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CORRIGENDA

At page 176, line 4 for the word “respondent’” read ‘“‘plaintiff”’.
At page 179, line 36 for the word ‘‘defendant” read “plaintiff”.
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THE EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA

To the Supreme Court of Canada:

Anaconda American Brass Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue (1952)
EX.C.R. 297. Appeal pending,.

Angus, William Forrest et al v. Minister of Nalional Revenue (1952)
Ex.C.R. 219. Appeal pending.

Army & Navy Department Store Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue
(1952) Ex.C.R. 546. Appeal pending.

Army & Navy Department Store (Western ) Lid. v. Minister of National
Revenue (1952) Ex.C.R. 546. Appeal pending.

Beament, George Edwin v. Minister of National Revenue (1951) Ex.C.R.
187. Appeal allowed.

Bouck, Phillis v. Minister of Nafional Revenue (1951) Ex.C.R. 118.
Appeal allowed.

Bowman Brothers Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue (1952) Ex.C.R.
476. Appeal pending.

Campbell, Thomas, v. Minister of National Revenue (1951) Ex.C.R. 290.
Appeal dismissed.

Composers, Authors and Publishers Assn. of Canada Ltd. v. Kiwanis Club
of West Toronto Lid. (1952) Ex.C.R. 162. Appeal pending.

Diamond Tazicab Association Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue (1952)
Ex.C.R. 331. Appeal dismissed.

Flintoft, Felicia H. et al v. Minister of National Revenue (1951) Ex.C.R.
211. Appeal dismissed.

Forbes, John D., v. Minister of National Revenue (1952) Ex.C.R. 267.
Appeal pending,.

Gairdner Securities Ltd. v. Minister of National Revenue (1952) Ex.C.R.
448. Appeal pending.

Holland, S.L., v. The King (1952) Ex.C.R. 233. Appeal pending.

Huniting Merritt Shingle Co. Ltd. v. Minister of National Revenue
(1951) Ex.C.R. 148. Appeal abandoned.

Independence Founders Litd. v. Minister of National Revenue (1952)
Ex.C.R. 102. Appeal pending.

Industrial Acceptance Corpn. Lid. v. The Queen (1952) Ex.C.R. 530.
Appeal pending.

Kennedy, Byron B., v. Minister of National Revenue (1952) Ex.C.R.
258. Appeal pending.
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MEMORANDA

MacLaren Co. Ltd., The James, v. Minister of National Revenue (1952)
Ex.C.R. 68. Appeal pending.

Manning Timber Products Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue (1951)
Ex.C.R. 341. Appeal dismissed.

Minister of National Revenue v. L. D. Caulk Co. of Canada Litd. (1952)
Ex.C.R. 49. Appeal pending.

Minister of National Revenue v. Lakeview Golf Club Lid. (1952) Ex.C.R.
522, Appeal pending.

Minister of National Revenue v. Soczété Coopérative Agricole du Comié
de Chéteauguay (1952) Ex.C.R. 366. Appeal pending.

Minister of National Revenue v. Walker, William S. (1952) Ex.C.R. 1.
Appeal abandoned.

Mulholland, F. H., v. The King (1952) Ex.C.R. 233. Appeal pending.
N., Miss, v. Minister of National Revenue (1952) Ex.C.R. 20. Appeal
pending.

Philliponi, Joseph Jr., v. Minister of National Revenue (1951) Ex.C.R.
291. Appeal abandoned.

Philliponi, Joseph Jr., v. Minister of National Revenue (1951) Ex.C.R.
292. Appeal abandoned.

Queen, The, v. B. V. D. Co. Lid. (1952) Ex.C.R. 191. Appeal pending.

Robson, James Goodfellow, v. Minister of National Revenue (1951)
Ex.C.R. 201. Appeal dismissed.

Sinnott News Co. Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue (1952) Ex.C.R.
508. Appeal pending.

Spence, Trevelyn et al v. The Queen (1950) Ex.C.R. 488. Appeal
dismissed.

Spratt, J. L., v. The King (1952) Ex.C.R. 233. Appeal pending.

Spruce Falls Power & Paper Co. Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue
(1952) Ex.C.R. 75. Appeal pending.

Sutton Lumber & Trading Co. Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue
(1952) Ex.C.R. 498. Appeal pending.

W., Mr., v. Mzmster of National Revenue (1952) Ex. C.R. 416. Appeal
abandoned.

Wain-Town Gas & Oil Co. Lid. v. Minister of National Revenue (1951)
Ex.C.R. 1. Appeal allowed.

Walker, William S. v. Minister of National Eevenue (1952) Ex.C.R. 1.
Appeal abandoned.
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IN THE EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA
GENERAL RULES AND ORDERS

In pursuance of the provisions contained in the 87th section of the
Exchequer Court Act (R.S.C. 1927, c. 34) and amendments thereto, it is
ordered that the General Rules and Orders of the Court be amended:

Accordingly that portion of Tariff B in the appendix to the said
Rules between the heading “Shorthand writers” and the heading
“Sheriff” is amended as follows:

1. In paragraph two the fee per folio under the first section. namely
0.20, is repealed and the fee 0.30 substituted therefor;

2. In paragraph two the fee to be paid under the third section,
namely 2.00 is repealed and the fee of 3.00 substituted therefor;

3. Paragraphs 3 and 4 are repealed.
4. Paragraph 5 is re-numbered paragraph 3.

DATED this 7th day of July A.D. 1952.

J. T. THORSON
President.

EUGENE R. ANGERS
J. CHAS. A. CAMERON
M. B. ARCHIBALD
JOHN D. KEARNEY
Puisne Judges.
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CASES

DETERMINED BY THE

EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA
AT FIRST INSTANCE

AND
IN THE EXERCISE OF ITS APPELLATE
JURISDICTION

BETWEEN:
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL APPELLANT:
REVENUE ....covvvvenaaennnn. PPELLANT;
AND
WILLIAM S. WALKER .............. RESPONDENT;
AND BETWEEN:
WILLIAM S. WALKER ................ APPELLANT;
AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL
RESPONDENT.

REVENUE ....................

Revenue—Income—Income tax—Practice—Daie of service of nolice of
appeal—Service effected by mailing notice within time limit set by
the Act—Income Tax Act, 8. of C. 1948, c. 52, s. 656(1) and s. 89(2)—
Taxpayer betting on horse races—Whether betting activities carried
on as a hobby or for profit—Taxzpayer liable for tax—"“From a trade
or commercial or financial or other business or calling”.

Taxpayer contends that certain income upon which he was assessed
income tax was derived from bets won on horse races and therefore
not taxable. The Court found that the evidence to support his
contention was insufficient. He also contends and the Court found
that he had $10,000 in cash in his safety deposit box on the 1st day of
January, 1941, the first of the taxation years under review, and that
such sum could not be income received during those years.

Held: That service of a notice of appeal under s. 89(2) of the Income
Tax Act, Statutes of 1948, c. 52, is effected when the notice of appeal
is sent by registered mail on a date within the time limit established
by s. §5(1) of the Act.
99085—1a
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1951 2. That the date of service of the notice of appeal is the date on which

— it was sent pursuant to s. 8%(2) of the Income Tax Act.
MinisTER .

oF 3. That the onus is on the taxpayer to show exactly what he received
%;’ﬁ;’gé; from betting and to discharge that onus there should be satisfactory

v corroboration of his own testimony.

WALKER 4 That if the taxpayer engaged in his betting activities with the intention
- of making profits out of them rather than as a hobby or for amuse-
ment his winnings would be assessable for income tax as having been
directly or indirectly received “from a trade or commercial or financial

or other business or calling . . .”.

APPEAL under the Income Tax Act.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Hyndman, Deputy Judge of the Court, at Edmonton.

Eldon D. Foote for William S. Walker.

Arnold F. Moir and F. J. Cross for the Minister of
National Revenue.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

Hy~pmaw, D.J. now (December 11, 1951) delivered the
following judgment:

These two appeals were heard together. The appeal of
the Minister (No. (1) above) is from a decision of the
Income Tax Appeal Board which allowed the appeal of the
respondent Walker. The second appeal (No. (2) above)
is by the taxpayer from an assessment by the Minister.

In regard to the appeal from the Tax Appeal Board,
counsel for the respondent in his pleadings objected to the
jurisdiction of the Court, and moved that the appeal be
dismissed, on the ground that the service of the notice of
appeal by the Minister was too late.

Section 55(1) of the Income Tax Act reads as follows:
55(1) The Minister or the taxpayer, may, within 120 days from the
day on which the Registrar of the Income Tax Appeal Board mails the
decision on an appeal under section 54 to the Minister and the taxpayer,
appeal to the Exchequer Court of Canada.

Section 89(2) of the said Act reads as follows:

83(2) A notice of appeal should be served upon the Minister by
being sent by registered mail to the Deputy Minister of National Revenue
for Taxation at Ottawa and may be served upon the taxpayer either
personally or by being sent to him at his last known address by registered
mail.
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The facts with respect to this objection are that the
notice of appeal by the Minister was sent by registered
mail addressed to the taxpayer at Winterburn, Alberta, on
the 22nd September, 1950, exactly on the 120th day from
the date on which the Registrar of the Income Tax Appeal
Board mailed a decision on the appeal to the Minister.
It was submitted that in law the 120th day should have
been the day when the taxpayer in the ordinary course of
mail would have received it. If that is the law, then the
notice was out of time as it would likely have taken at
least three days from the date of mailing before its receipt
by the taxpayer in Alberta, which would then have been
about three days late. As there is no rule of the Court,
or provision in the Act covering this precise point, it was
argued that the practice in England is to be followed, (see,
Sec. 36 of the Exchequer Court Act, R.S.C. 1927, ¢. 34, as
amended by Statutes of Canada, 1928, ¢. 23, s. 4) which
provides that where service is made by registered post, the
time at which the document so posted would be delivered
in the ordinary course of post shall be considered as the
time of service. See Annual Practice, 1928, at p. 14486.

However, one must examine carefully the language of
gection 89(2) above set out. The wording is, “may be
served upon the taxpayer either personally or by being
“sent” to him at his last known address by registered
mail” My interpretation of this wording is that it is not
the receipt of the notice by the taxpayer which is important,
but its “being sent”’; and the date on which it was “sent,”
should be regarded as the date of service.

If T am right in this interpretation of section 89(2),
then the service was in time, and this objection fails.

The issues on the appeal from the Appeal Board, that is
for the years 1946 and 1947, are similar to those on the
appeal by the taxpayer from the assessment by the Minister
for the years 1941 to 1945, inclusive, and the evidence and
the points raised apply equally in both cases.

The taxpayer set up the further objection that the case
was res judicata so far as the findings of fact by the Appeal
Board were concerned. However, it has been held in this
Court that an appeal from the Tax Appeal Board is a trial
de novo, and consequently this Court must find the facts
in the same manner as did the Board. The Board found

99085—13a
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}“9’5_11 as a fact, and this is the main issue to be determined, that

Mivistee  the sum of $17,863 shown in the net worth statement of
Namona, D€ taxpayer were moneys made in betting at the race
Revenuve course, and, not being a part of the taxpayer’s business or
wuoxsz calling, are not taxable; and also the further fact that the
taxpayer had $10,000 in his safety deposit box on the 1st
January, 1941, which therefore could not have been profits

in the subsequent years.

Hyndman,
DJ.

The facts and circumstances of the case are substantially
as follows: the appellant came to Alberta from Scotland in
1906 and is seventy-two years of age. His education ended
at the fifth grade in school, and he claims to know prac-
tically nothing of bookkeeping. His principal occupation
is farming a few miles west of Edmonton, Alberta. His
farm consists of about 560 acres, and of these, with the
help of his son, he cultivates about 400. The largest part
of his revenue he states is from grain. He also keeps some
milk cows and hogs. His wife is an invalid, and he employs
a housekeeper, and in the heavy season engages hired help.
He states that the racing season does not interfere with his
farm operations, as it takes place in the interval between
putting in the crops and the harvest.

For about ten years or more the taxpayer has regularly
attended the horse races during the racing season at
Edmonton, Calgary, and sometimes at Saskatoon and
Regina, the periods taken up being about six weeks. He
states that he is an enthusiast with respect to horse racing,
and that it is his hobby. He spends about twenty-three
days at the Edmonton races, twenty days at Calgary, Sas-
katoon six days and Regina six days. In all, when he
attends all events, therefore, about fifty-three days in the
year. He also has an interest-in at least three horses and
possibly five, and races them under the name of Burrows
and Walker.- Mrs. Burrows was the owner of some of these
horses and gave him a third interest in them in considera-
tion of his taking care of them between seasons. One
horse, Silent Flame, made $2,600 the first year and this
money was divided as follows: one-half to the frainer,
and the balance divided between Mrs. Burrows and Walker
in equal shares. It is not very clear what other moneys
were made with the horses, but he claims that actually
very little, if any, was made when all expenses were paid,
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and made no returns with regard to this particular business.
He did his betting through the Pari-Mutuels and testified
that each night he would make a memo on the program
of the day, or pieces of paper, in his hotel, as to his winnings
for the day; take them all home at the end of the racing
period, and at the conclusion of the racing season would
enter in his little black book, Exhibit 3, the exact amount
of his winnings for the year. None of these memos were
produced as he states he did not keep them, the only
entries being the year’s earnings shown in said Exhibit 3.

Examination of Exhibit 3 would make it appear that
all these entries might or could well have been made at
the same time. They are the only entries in the book. It
is not the kind of corroboration which one would or should
expect in a matter of this character. It may or may not
be correct, but for my part I feel that I cannot be satisfied
with it. They are really not original entries at all in the
true sense, but merely the total of the figures gathered from
alleged original entries.

Several witnesses testified that Walker was habitually
at the races and betting on nearly every race, and some
of them saw him actually winning, and with money in
his hands. But of course they could not say how much he
might have won or lost. He no doubt did win many times
and he probably lost many times. Stress was laid on the
fact that he was known as “Lucky Walker”, but that is
hardly acceptable evidence as to the extent of his winnings.
In order to satisfy any Court that these large amounts
were the result of betting, I think much more satisfactory
evidence should be required. If any definite amount could
have been established, then, subject to what I shall say
later, credit might be given him therefor, but in the absence
of such proof it is impossible to say what that amount
should be, and as the responsibility is on the taxpayer to
show exactly what part of these items are from betting,
and what from his regular business of farming, his appeal
in that respect must fail. In reality, the only evidence on
this point is the taxpayer’s own word. More satisfactory
corroboration I think should be required in such circum-
stances than that adduced at the trial.

As to whether or not the taxpayer’s operations on the
race courses amounted to the carrying on of a business or
calling, and assuming the fact that he did make said moneys
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in betting, such sums are taxable, on the authorities I am
left in some doubt. The crucial point seems to be, was he
betting as a hobby, or for pure amusement, or was he
systematically carrying on with a view to making money?

There are many decisions on this subject in the English,
Australian and New Zealand courts gathered in Gordon’s
Digest of Income Tax cases. I deduce from an examination
of these decisions that each case must depend on its own
particular facts, the important feature being whether or
not there was an intention on the bettor’s part to make
profit, and not as a form of amusement or hobby. Although
in view of my finding above it is not necessary to decide
this latter point, nevertheless when it is considered that
the taxpayer did have an interest in several race horses;
had the benefit of inside information from jockeys and
other interested persons on the probable outcome of races,
which he admits he had due to the fact that he was
running some horses which he owned or had an interest in;
and the further fact that for ten years or more he system-
atically attended all the races in sometimes four different
cities and bet on most of the events, one is almost driven
to the conclusion that this set of facts constitutes a business
or calling within the meaning of the tax Aects, and the
moneys made thereby would therefore be taxable. There
does not seem to be any doubt that money made on casual
bets made for pure amusement, or a hobby, are not assess-
able. Where to draw the line is the difficulty, but should
I be compelled to make a decision on this aspect of the
case, I think I would have to find on the facts and circum-
stances of the case that such winnings are assessable to tax.

In Partridge v. Mallandaine, (1), Lord Denman said:

The words in & & 6 Vict. ¢. 35, s. 100, Sched. D, second case, are
“professions, employments, or vocations.,” I am not disposed to put so
limited a construction on the word “employment” as that suggested in
argument. I do not think that employment means only where one man
is set to work by others to earn money; a man may employ himself so as
to earn profits in many ways. But the word “vocation” is analogous to
“calling” a word of wide signification, meaning the way in which a man
passes his life. The appellants attend races, make bets, and earn profits.
Is it to be said that, under these circumstances, they are not to be
assessed to the income tax, although every year they may have bets paid
which put a thousand pounds into their pockets . . . I think that the
case comes within the word “vocation,” and therefore the Commissioners
were right.

(1) (1887) 18 Q.B.D. 276 at 277.
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The words in our Act are “from a trade or commercial or
financial or other business or ‘calling’ directly or in-
directly received by a person from any office or employment
or from any profession or ‘calling’ ete. etc.” It will be
noted that Lord Denman says “ ‘vocation’ is analogous to
‘calling.’ ”

Other decisions which might be referred to are found
in Gordon’s Digest, e.g., Trautwein v. Federal Commis-
stoners of Taxation, (1); Jones v. Federal Commissioner
of Taxation, (2).

In the Jones case where there was a conspicuous absence
of system, and the element of sport, excitement and amuse-
ment were the main attractions, the decision was that
Jones was not engaged in betting as a business. KEvatt, J.
said: “All that I have said can best be summed up by
saying that, during the relevant period, the appellant
acquired and developed a bad habit which he was in the
special position to gratify. I do not think that the gratifi-
cation of this habit was a carrying on of any business on
his part, despite his many bets and his heavy losses.”

It is notorious that many people, usually well off, who
keep and run horses as a sideline, for excitement or amuse-
ment, lose money which they know or believe they can
afford to lose. In the present case, I do not think that in
Walker’s circumstances he could reasonably believe he
could afford to lose much money on a hobby of this kind,
from which I infer that his intention in embarking on this
business was to make profits out of it. If that was his
intention, then I think it can be said he was engaged in a
scheme other than a hobby, or for amusement, and any
winnings would be assessable to tax. This, then disposes
of the item of $17,863.

As to whether or not the taxpayer had $10,000 or more
in his safety deposit box on the 1st of January, 1941,
whilst the evidence is not very satisfactory, I am inelined to
give him the benefit of the doubt, and to hold that he had.

With the greatest deference to the learned member of
the Tax Appeal Board, I feel compelled to conclude that
the appeal from the Board with respect to the $17,863

(1) (1936) 56 C.L.R. 196. (2) (1932) 2 Aus. Tax Dec. 16.
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ought to be allowed; but agree with them as to the findings
regarding the above mentioned $10,000 item, and the appeal
of the Minister in this respect is dismissed. The assess-
ment will therefore be adjusted accordingly for the years
1946 and 1947.

The appeal of the taxpayer with respect to the years
1941 to 1945, inclusive, with regard to the item of $17,863,
is dismissed, but allowed as to the $10,000 item above
mentioned, and the assessment will also be adjusted
accordingly.

As the Minister is suceessful in the major part of both
appeals, and the taxpayer successful in the less important
item in dispute, I think the best disposition of costs is to
allow one half the taxable costs to the Minister, and no
costs to the taxpayer.

Judgment accordingly.

BrTwEEN:
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL APPELLANT:
REVENUE .................... !
AND -
HAROLD McKAY BOLSBY .......... REsPoONDENT.

Revenue—Income Tax—Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, c. 97, ss. 2(1),
2 (s), 9, 84—Income Tax Act, B.C. 1948, c. 52, s. 15(3)—R8ection 84 a
departure from section 9—Meanings of “year” and “fiscal period”.

The appellant was the proprietor of & business the fiscal period of which
ended on March 31 in each year. On April 30, 1946, he sold his
business and retired. In his income tax return for 1946 he reported
the income from his business only for the fiscal period ending March
31, 1946, but the Minister re-assessed him for 1946 and added the
income from his business for April, 1946, to the amount reported by
him, He appealed to the Income Tax Appeal Board which allowed
his appeal and the Minister appealed from its decision.

Held: That section 34 is a departure from the general charging section
of the Act and a taxpayer cannot be affected by it unless he comes
within its express terms.

2. That in 1947 the taxpayer was not the proprietor of a business at all
and section 34 had no application to him and that the income from
his business for April, 1946, had no place in his income tax return
for 1947 but must be included in his taxable income for 1946.
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APPEAL from a decision of the Income Tax Appeal
Board.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Thorson, President of the Court, at Toronto.

G. B. Bagwell, K.C. and J. 8. Forsyth for appellant,.
P. J. Bolsby K.C. and P. B. C. Pepper for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

On the conclusion of the argument the President
(November 30, 1951) delivered the following judgment.

This is an appeal from the decision of the Income Tax
Appeal Board (1) allowing the respondent’s appeal from
his income tax assessment for the year 1946.

The facts are not in dispute. It was agreed between the
parties that they are correctly set out in the reasons for
judgment of the Assistant Chairman of the Income Tax
Appeal Board. Prior to April 30, 1946, the respondent was
the sole proprietor of a business in the City of Toronto
known as the Bolsby Coal Company. He had carried on
this business for more than 20 years and throughout the
whole of this time the fiseal period of his business ended
on the 31st day of March in each year. On April 30, 1946,
due to ill health, he sold his business and retired. In his
income tax return for the year 1946 he reported his income
from his business for the fiscal period ending March 31,
1946. His net taxable income for that year, including such
income, amounted to $5,050.85, on which a tax of $944.02
was levied and paid. The income from his business for
the month of April, 1946, amounting to $2,664.43, was
reported in his income tax return for 1947. The amount
of taxable income reported by him in this return, including
this sum, came to $3,527.26. The Minister re-assessed the
respondent for the year 1946, adding the sum of $2,664.43,
being the income from his business for the month of April,
1946, to the amount of $5,050.85 which he had reported in
his return for 1946. From this assessment the respondent
appealed to the Income Tax Appeal Board, contending that
the income from his business for April, 1946, was properly

(1) (1951) 3 Tax A.B.C. 248.
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included in his income tax return for the year 1947 and
should not have been included in his assessment for the
year 1946. The Board allowed the appeal, vacated the
assessment and referred it back to the Minister to deduct
the sum of $2,664.43 from the respondent’s taxable income
for 1946, and to re-assess accordingly. From this decision
the Minister appealed to this Court.

I am unable to see how the decision of the Board can
stand. The appeal turns on the construction of section 34
of the Income War Tax Aect, R.S.C. 1927, chap. 97, which
reads as follows:

34. A member of a partnership or the proprietor of a business whose
fiscal period or periods is other than the calendar year shall make a
return of his income and have the tax payable computed upon the income
from the business for the fiscal period or periods ending within the
calendar year for which the return is being made, but his return of
income derived from sources other than his business shall be made for
the calendar year.

This section is a departure from the general charging
section of the Aect, section 9, which provides that in the
case of a person other than a corporation or joint stock
company the tax shall be assessed, levied and paid upon
the income “during the preceeding year” of such person.
According to section 2(1), “year” means the calendar year.
Thus, if it were not for section 34 the respondent, like
every other individual person, would have been assessable
only upon his income for the calendar year. It follows,
since the section is a departure from the general rule, that
a taxpayer cannot be affected by it unless he comes within
its express term.

As T read the section, I am unable to see how the
respondent’s income from his business for April, 1946,
could possibly be properly included in his income tax
return for 1947. It was not income from the business for
a fiscal period ending within the calendar year for which
the return was being made, for the respondent had no
fiscal period ending in 1947. Moreover, he had no business
after he sold it on April 30, 1946. He then retired from
business. ‘Consequently, in 1947 he was not the proprietor
of a business at all. He had ceased to be such on April 30,
1946. The conclusion seems plain that in 1947 he did
not come within the terms of section 34 at all and that it
had no application to him. He, therefore, fell back under
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the general charging section of the Act. The income from
his business for April, 1946, thus had no place in his return
for 1947 and could not have been validly included in his
assessment for 1947. That being so, the Minister was
right in determining that the amount of the respondent’s
April, 1946, business income had no place in his return or
assessment for 1947 and must be added to the amount
reported by him in his return for 1946 as an item of
taxable income for 1946.

Since the respondent’s April, 1946, business income
cannot be included in his income tax assessment for 1947,
it must be included in his taxable income for 1946. It
cannot fall anywhere else. It was income earned in 1946
and must be considered as subject to the general charging
of section 9, to the extent that it was not covered by seetion
34. The term “fiscal period” is defined by section 2(s) as
follows:

2. In this Act, and in any regulations made hereunder, unless the
context otherwise requires,

(s) “fiscal period” means the period for which the accounts of the
business of the taxpayer have been, or are ordinarily made up
and accepted for purposes of assessment under this Aect, and in the
absence of such an established practice the fiseal period shall
be that which the taxpayer adopts:

Provided, however,

(i) that such fiscal period shall not in any case exceed a period of
twelve months; and

(ii) that if a taxpayer purports to chanée his or its usual and
accepted fiscal period, the Minister may, in his discretion, disallow
such change.

In view of this definition I do not see how it could be
held, as counsel for the appellant contended, that the
respondent had two fiscal periods ending in 1946, one at
March 31, 1946, and the other at April 30, 1946. He had
only one fiscal period for which the accounts of his business
had been or were “ordinarily made up and accepted for
purposes of assessment under the Act” and that was the
period ending on March 31, 1946. Consequently, it was
only the income from the business for that fiscal period
that could be included in his taxable income for 1946
under the authority of section 34. That was, therefore,
the whole of the extent to which the section applied to
him. Any other income, whether from his business, to
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the extent to which section 34 did not apply to it, or from
other sources, received during the taxation year 1946 was
liable to assessment for that year.

In my opinion, the language of section 34 clearly sup-
ports the conclusion I have reached and I find no ambiguity
in it. The Court must, therefore, give effect to it without
regard to the effect it may have on the respondent. It
may well be that there was a deficiency in the section and
a failure to provide fairly for the case of a proprietor of a
business who ceased to be such before the end of an ordinary
fiscal period. That there was such a deficiency seems to
be recognized by section 15(3) of the Income Tax Act,
Statutes of Canada, 1948, chap. 52, which does make pro-
vision for such a contingency. But section 15(3) of the
Income Tax Act is not the law governing this case and
the Court must apply the law as it is with whatever
deficiency there may be in it.

For the reasons given, I find that the assessment for
1946 against which the appellant appealed was valid. The
appeal from the decision of the Board must, therefore, be
allowed, and the assessment restored. The appellant is
also entitled to costs. ;

Judgment accordingly.

BETWEEN:

HIS MAJESTY THE KING, on the
Information of the Deputy At- PLAINTIFF;
torney General of Canada ........

AND

WILFRED LIGHTHEART ............. DEFENDANT.

Crown—Negligence—Negligence Act, R8.0. 1937, c. 116—~The Highway
Trafic Act, R.8.0. 1937, c. 288, ss. 39(15), 60(1)—Action for damages
for injury to Crown’s motor vehicle and for loss of services of member
of reserve army due to negligence of defendant—Concurrent negligence
of servant of Crown—Crown action not barred by Provincial Act.

The action was brought to recover damages for loss and injury sustained
by the Crown as the result of a collision between a motor vehicle
owned and driven by the defendant and a motor vehicle owned
by the Crown and driven in the course of duty by a member
of the armed forces of Canada. The Crown’s vehicle was damaged
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and a member of the reserve army was seriously injured, involving 1951
Ioss .of his services and pay and allowances, hospitalization and THEING
medical expenses. v

Held: That the defendant was negligent in driving his car on the highway LiGETHEART
in the dark without lights. -

2. That the servant of the Crown was negligent in attempting to pass
the vehicle in front of him without making sure that the road
ahead of him was free from on-coming traffic.

8. That the Crown is able to take advantage of the Negligence Act of
Ontario. Toronto Transportation Commussion v. The King (1949)
S.C.R. 510 followed.

4. That when the Crown has lost the services of a member of its armed
forces it may bring an action per quod servitium amisit in the same
way as any other master and that the amount of pay to which the
member of the armed forces is entitled is evidence of the value of
his services. The King v. Richardson (1948) S.C.R. 57 followed.

5. That it is impossible to measure the value of the loss of services of a
soldier of a reserve unit differently from those of a soldier of the
regular army.

6. That the Crown’s claim was not barred by section 60(1) of The Highway
Traffic Act of Ontario.

INFORMATION to recover damages for loss and injury
due to negligence of the defendant.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Thorson, President of the Court, at Guelph.

J. McNab and S. Samuels for plaintiff,
C. Grant K.C. for defendant.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

On the conclusion of the trial (May 18, 1951) the
President delivered the following judgment:

This action is for damages for loss and injury sustained
by His Majesty as the result of a collision between a
motor vehicle owned and driven by the defendant and a
motor vehicle owned by His Majesty and driven in the
course of duty by Sergeant-Major Harold Joseph Keating,
a member of the armed forces of Canada.

The collision oceurred a few miles south of the Town
of Arthur in Ontario at about 7.30 p.m. on Oectober 16,
1949. His Majesty’s vehicle was one of two army jeeps
that formed part of a convoy of army vehicles of the 11th
Field Battery of the Royal Canadian Artillery, a reserve
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unit of the Canadian Army, that was travelling south on
provincial highway No. 6 on its way back to its head-
quarters at Guelph after a fire practice field exercise at
Meaford. The defendant’s car was proceeding north.
Sergeant-Major Keating was one of two dispatch riders
whose duty was to patrol the convoy to see that the vehicles
kept at the proper distance of approximately 100 feet from
one another and to control traffic at intersections so that
the convoy might safely cross. The convoy had stopped a
few miles north of Arthur and the vehicles in it were ordered
to turn on their lights as it was getting dark. After it
had started again and passed through Arthur, Sergeant-
Major Keating, who was then at the rear of the convoy,
was proceeding in stages towards the front to be ready to
control east and west traffic at the next cross-road. He
had just pulled out from behind one of the vehicles in the
convoy in order to pass vehicles in front of it when his
jeep was struck by the defendant’s car that had come
from the south and was travelling north. The jeep was
damaged and Warrant Officer Joseph Bernard Lamont, who
was riding in it with Sergeant-Major Keating, was seriously
injured involving loss of his services and pay and allow-
ances, hospitalization and medieal expenses.

The Crown’s claim is for damages for the cost of repairing
the army jeep, amounting to $313.95, loss of the services of
Warrant Officer Lamont during the period of his incapaci-
tation for which he was paid pay and allowances of $774.04
and his hospitalization and medical expenses amounting to
$332.50, making a total of $1,420.49.

The plaintiff’s claim is based on negligence on the part
of the defendant, several particulars of which are alleged
in the statement of claim. It is necessary to deal only
with the allegations that are supported by the evidence.
The most important allegation of negligence is that at the
time of the accident and immediately prior thereto the
defendant was driving without lights, although it was dark
and after dusk. I am satisfied from the evidence as a
whole that this allegation is well founded and I so find.
The defendant said that his lights were on, that he had
stopped at Alma for gas and had turned his lights on
there, that they were in good shape, that when he saw
the convoy he dimmed his lights but did not put them out
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and that they were both on immediately prior to the
collision but that after the eollision he had turned them
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off. Russell O'Neil, who was in the front seat of the .~

defendant’s car beside him, gave evidence to the same
effect. I do not accept these statements but prefer the
evidence on this point given by the witnesses for the

Thorson P.

plaintiff. Officer Cadet Vernon H. Porter, who was in

charge of the lead vehicle of the convoy, said that he saw
a car approaching from the south. It was then 200 feet
away. He dimmed the lights of his vehicle and the lights
of the approaching car went out. They were out as the
car passed his vehicle. It was dark at the time and im-
possible to see ahead without lights. Mr. Porter's evidence
is confirmed by other witnesses. Warrant Officer Lamont.
who was sitting in the jeep beside Sergeant-Major Keating,
got a glimpse of the defendant’s car just before it struck
the jeep and he wag positive that its head lights were out.
Sergeant-Major Keating stated that he pulled out from
behind one of the vehicles in the convoy to proceed to the
front and that when he had straightened out he saw a car
coming directly in front of him with no lights on. It was
then about 30 or 40 feet away and he swung his jeep
sharply to the left in order to try to avoid it. He was
certain that the oncoming car had no lights on and said that
if its lights had been on he would have seen it and would
not have attempted to pass the vehicles in the convoy that
were ahead of him. After the collision Sergeant-Major
Keating questioned the defendant why he did not have his
lights on and the defendant asserted that they were on,
whereas they were not. I have no hesitation in preferring
the evidence of Sergeant-Major Keating that the lights on
the defendant’s car were out to that of the defendant that
they were on. There is confirmation of Sergeant-Major
Keating’s evidence in the statements of Sergeant-Major
Jack Radcliffe. He went to the defendant’s car after the
collision and saw that its lights were out. He asked the
defendant why he was driving without lights and the
defendant said that they were on but they were not.
Sergeant-Major Radcliffe then reached into the car and
turned on the light switech. The lights then went on
except the right front light which had been broken in the
collision. There is, in my opinion, no doubt that the

*
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defendant was driving his car in the dark without any
lights and that this was the main cause of the collision
and its resultant damage.

Under these circumstances it is not necessary to deal at
any length with the other allegations of negligence. It
wag said that the defendant was not in a fit condition to
drive a car by reason of the consumption of an excessive
amount of aleohol. Sergeant-Major Keating said that
after the defendant got out of his car he smelt liquor on
his breath, and Sergeant-Major Radcliffe went even
further. He said that the defendant was drunk. His
evidence was that the defendant smelt of liquor, that his
speech was thick and that he staggered when he was talk-
ing to him. There were full and empty bottles of beer
in the car. As further evidence of the defendant’s condi-
tion, Sergeant-Major Radcliffe referred to the defendant’s
insistence that his lights were on when they were off and
said that he did not believe that the defendant realized
what had happened; he kept laughing as if it were a great
joke. Iam not required to find whether the defendant was
drunk or not. There is no doubt that he had been drinking
earlier in the day, and probably he drank more than he
said he did. It may well be that this affected his judgment
and that when he first saw the convoy he put his lights out
instead of dimming them, but, whatever may have been
the cause, the fact is that he was driving his ear on the
highway in the dark without lights. This was negligent.

While I have no hesitation in finding negligence on his
part, I have had more difficulty in determining whether
there was concurrent negligence on the part of Sergeant-
Major Keating, but I have come to the conclusion that
he was not wholly free from blame. His evidence was
that after the convoy had passed the junction of high-
ways No. 6 and No. 9 he fell in behind the last vehicle in
the convoy and then proceeded towards its head gradually
passing the vehicles ahead of him. He had got about half
way up the convoy when he had to pull in between two
vehicles in it to let two north-bound vehicles pass. He
then pulled out from behind one of the vehicles to pro-
ceed to the front and when his jeep had straightened out
on the highway and he had travelled about 22 feet along-
side the vehicle from behind which he had pulled out he
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saw the oncoming car about 30 or 40 feet ahead of him
and dangerously close. It appeared to be travelling to-
wards the centre of the road and the vehicle beside which
he was travelling. He then swung his jeep sharply. to
the left in order to avoid a collision. He was so close to the
vehicle on his right that he had only the alternatives of a
head-on collision or a sharp swerve to his left. While he
was making this swerve the right front fender of the
defendant’s car struck the right rear wheel of the jeep
and swung it half-way around so that when it came to a
stop it was on the shoulder east of the pavement and
pointing south with all four wheels off the pavement. The
defendant’s car came to a stop 50 to 75 feet farther north.
It was also all off the pavement and facing north.

While there is no doubt that Sergeant-Major Keating did
all that was possible to avoid the collision once that it
was imminent it is also clear from his cross-examination
that all the vehicles in the convoy ahead of him had their
bright lights on and would, to that extent, light up the
road ahead. The vehicles were travelling about 100 feet
or 100 yards apart and the lights would show up about
150 to 200 feet. Section 39(15) of The Highway Traffic
Act of Ontario, R.S.0. 1937, Chap. 288, provides:

39. (15) No person in charge of a vehicle shall pass, or attempt to
pass, another vehicle going in the same direction on a highway, unless
and unti the travelled portion of the highway in front of, and to the
left of the vehicle to be passed is safely free from approaching traffic.

Under all the circumstances, I have come to the con-
clusion that Sergeant-Major Keating did not satisfy this
requirement of the law. He was, I think, too close to the
vehicle ahead of him and made too sharp a turn to pull
out from behind it. This did not give him the chance
which he should have had of making sure that the portion
of the highway in front of and to the left of the vehicles
he was intending to pass was safely free from approaching
traffic. If he had been farther behind and had started to
pull out at a less sharp angle he would, I think, with the
aid of the lights of the convoy vehicles ahead of him have
been able to see the oncoming car even without its lights
sooner than he did and could then have pulled back in
safety behind the vehicle from which he had pulled out.
This view is supported by the evidence of the defendant
that the jeep was 10 or 15 feet behind one of the vehicles
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L"il when it turned out on the highway. The defendant said
TaeKive that he then swung to his left to avoid hitting the jeep
Ligmempaze Si0ice he could not turn to his right because the jeep had
T P swerved to its left. Russell O’Neill confirmed this evidence.

—— " He said that the defendant’s car was about 60 feet away

when the jeep pulled out from the vehicle in front of it.
It was about 15 feet behind that vehicle. I, therefore,
find that Sergeant-Major Keating failed to make sure

that the road ahead of him was free from oncoming traffic.

On the evidence I find that the defendant was 75 per
cent to blame for the collision and Sergeant-Major Keating
25 per cent.

It is established by the judgment of the Supreme Court
of Canada in Toronto Transportation Commission v. The
King (1) that the Crown is able to take advantage of the
Negligence Act of Ontario, R.S.0. 1937, Chap. 115, and
that it should, therefore, be entitled to the percentage of
damage found by the Court to be attributable to the other
party. I, therefore, find that the plaintiff is entitled to
75 per cent of the proved damages.

There is no dispute as to the damage to the jeep. The
cost of repairing it was proved by Warrant Officer John
E. Kerr to amount to $313.95.

It is also established that the Crown paid Warrant
Officer Lamont the sum of $774.04 by way of pay and
allowances during the period of his incapacitation. This
amount was paid pursuant to the pay and allowance regu-
lations applicable to members of reserve units. Counsel
for the defendant sought to draw a distinction between
the services of a member of a reserve unit and those of
the members of the regular army, but I am unable to draw
any such distinction. It is established by the judgment
of the Supreme Court of Canada in The King v. Richard-
son (2) that when the Crown has lost the services of a
member of its armed forces it may bring an action per
quod servitium amasit in the same way as any other master
and that the amount of pay to which the member of the
armed forces is entitled, although he cannot bring an
action for it, is evidence of the value of his services. This
was the view of Kerwin J., speaking also for Taschereau J.
Rand J., in a characteristic judgment, recognized that it

(1) (1949) S.C.R. 510. (2) (1948) S.CR. 57.
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was impossible to measure in monetary units the value of
national liberty or the maintenance of social order and well

19

1951
——
TaE Kinag

being. He could see no reason why, prima facie at least, ;>

the value to the Crown of the services lost, to the benefit
of which, in the circumstances and without more, the
Crown was at all times exclusively entitled should not be
measured by the remuneration. The reasons for judgment
of Estey J. support this view. Counsel for the defendant
sought to establish that there was a difference between
members of the regular army and members of reserve units
but I am unable to see any such difference in principle.
It is, in my judgment, impossible to measure the value
of the loss of services of a soldier of a reserve unit differently
from those of a soldier of the regular army, and I find the
claim of $774.04 for loss of services, being the amount of
pay and allowances paid, is well established.

The Crown also claims the sum of $332.50 for hospitali-
zation and medical expenses. This amount, although not
proved by counsel for the plaintiff, was generously and
properly admitted by counsel for the defendant.

It was alleged in the statement of defence that the
plaintiff’s claim was barred by reason of Section 60(1)
of The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.0. 1937, Chap. 288.
This was not argued by counsel for the defendant. The
contention is not allowed by the judgment of the Supreme
Court of Canada in The King v. Richardson (supra).

In the result there will be judgment in favour of the
plaintiff for 75 per cent of the plaintiff’s claim, established
at $1,420.49, amounting to $1,062.48.

It is settled by the practice of this Court that the

plaintiff who succeeds in an action for damages based on’

negligence is entitled to his costs irrespective of the fact
that his claim may have been reduced by reason of con-
current negligence on the part of the defendant or his
servant.

There will, therefore, be judgment for the plaintiff for
$1,062.48 and costs to be taxed in the usual way.

Judgment accordingly.

99085—2%a

Thorson P.
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BETWEEN:
MISS N. ..o e APPELLANT;
AND
MINISTER OF NATIONAL RESPONDENT
REVENUE .................... '

Revenue—Income—Income tax—Income War Tax Act 1927, c. 97, s. 3(1)
—Ezxcess Profits Tax Act—Carrying on a business—Dealings tn real
estate—Intention to buy and sell real estate to realize profits—Profits
tarzable—Appeal dismissed.

Held: That where transactions in real estate are carried on merely for
the purpose of investment with casual profits accruing to the investor
such profits are not taxable but where the intention is to buy and
sell with the view of earning profits such profits are taxable as being
the net profit or gain from a business.

APPEAL under the Income War Tax Act.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Hyndman, Deputy Judge of the Court, at Edmonton.

Geo. H. Steer, K.C. for appellant.
H.W. Riley, K.C. and F. J. Cross for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

Hynpman D. J. now (November 30, 1951) delivered
the following judgment:

This is an appeal by the taxpayer from an assessment
by the Minister of National Revenue for income and
excess profits taxes for the years 1943, 1944 and 1945, in
the amount of $5,832.50, $6,721.93, and $6,872.96, respec-
tively; less amounts paid, namely, $2,530.51, $2,313.28, and
$4,232.55, for the years 1943, 1944 and 1945, respectively,
leaving a balance of taxes unpaid as at the 5th September,
1948, for the saild years, of $4,170.74, $5,184.67, and
$2,089.73.

Notice of dissatisfaction was filed with the Minister,
dated 2nd September, 1949, but on the 15th December,
1949, such assessment was confirmed.

The difference between the amounts paid as above
mentioned and the present assessment, are claimed by the
Minister to be taxes on profits or gains made by the tax-
payer, the appellant, from the purchase and sale of real
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estate transactions in the City of Edmonton in each of the
years 1943 to 1945, inclusive.

The appellant submits that such profits are not taxable
inasmuch as they are capital profits from investments
of money which she had saved over a great many years
and that she was not carrying on any trade or business,
within the meaning of the Income War Tax Act, so far as
these transactions were concerned, but merely investing
her capital saving in securities which appreciated in value
in a normal manner.

The issue then is, was the appellant or was she not
carrying on a trade or business with a view to profit or
gain in respect of these transactions within the meaning
of section 3(1) of the Income War Tax Act? Section 3(1)
of the Income War Tax Act reads as follows:

“Income” means the annual net profit or gain or gratuity, whether
ascertained and capable of computation as being wages, salary, or other
fixed amount, or unascertained as being fees or emoluments, or as being
profits from a trade or commereial or financial or other business or calling,
directly or indirectly received by a person from any office or employment,
or from any profession or calling, or from any trade, manufacture or
business. .

The facts of the case as disclosed in the record and
evidence at the trial are substantially as follows: The
appellant stated that as a young girl she worked in a
laundry at a wage of $20 per week for three years, then
for four and one-half years was in partnership with her
brother in the laundry business, and when that business
ceased she had $1,600 saved up. Then in 1927 she worked
in the Ponoka Mental Hospital for a year and three months
at $45 a month, with board and lodging. After that she
worked in her father’s store, first at $40 a week and later
at $50 a week, until 1938 when the father transferred his
meat business to her and her two brothers in equal shares,
and since then to the present time she says she spends all
her working days in the store from 7.30 a.m. to 6 or 7 p.m.
During all her life in Edmonton she has lived at home with
her father at no cost to her and saved practically all her
earnings when on wages, and afterwards as a partner with
her brothers.

Her first investment was in 1930—a loan of $2,000; in
1931, $1,600 on a mortgage; $500 purchase of an agreement
for sale; loan of $200 to her brother. In 1933 loan to
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brother $5,000; in 1934 agreements of sale of about $1,500;
1935 loan $860; 1936 loan $376; purchase of oil stock $500
which proved worthless; agreement of sale $307; 1937
loan $110; May 21, 1937, she purchased a house for $1,400
and in June of same year sold same for $2,200. On February
9 she purchased a house for $2,118.82 and in May 1940,
sold same for $4,550. Loaned $207, bought an agreement of
sale for $165.16. In May, 1938, she purchased a property
for $3,200 and sold same in 1943 for $7,500; and another
house for $1,772.70 and sold it in December, 1941, for
$1,800. On 1st October, 1938, she purchased a house for
$1,600 and on December 1, 1938, sold it for $2,088.52. In
1939 she had seven separate transactions in buying and
selling houses, making substantial profits, and in intervals
between purchases and sales, rented some of them. In
1940 and 1941 seven similar transactions occurred each
year: in 1942 three transactions; in 1943 twenty-six; and
in 1944 thirteen; in 1945 ten and in 1946 three. In only
two instances were the properties sold for eash. In most
cases the terms were a comparatively small down-payment
and the balance in monthly instalments, some with interest
and others without interest, and it would take several years
to fully pay for the purchase price.

The appellant made returns as income, and paid taxes
thereon, on all profits in the said meat business, and on
all rents received by her for rented premises, and on all
interest paid her under agreements of sale, or otherwise;
but not on profits realized from the sale of the real estate
purchased and sold, which she regarded as capital aceretions
and profits and non-taxable. I might add that at different
times she bought Victory Bonds, three of them at $5,000
each, which, I think, she sold in 1943.

That she had accumulated very substantial savings over
the years does not admit of doubt, and had she invested
same from time to time in properties with the sole purpose
of securing an income such as rents, I do not think she
should be considered as a trader or in business. She had
no office and did all necessary work in relation to these
transactions at her home at night, after shop hours, and
on Sundays. Her evidence is that on the advice of her
father in the year 1938 she acquired two or three properties
as investments for the rent which they rendered, as she
wanted to provide independence for herself in case of
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sickness or other need. Later, she purchased more and
more with her former savings and the profits on the sales
she had effected. Her thrift and industry cannot but
excite one’s admiration, and it is likely that she never
regarded such profits as other than capital accretions, and
not subject to income tax. But examining and con-
sidering all the facts and circumstances as a whole, I
cannot escape the conclusion that in purchasing at least
most of these properties, her object was to sell again and
reap profits, and were not transactions with the sole view
of leasing and holding as investments. I quote from her
Examination for Discovery:

48. Q. Did you study the real estate market?

A, Well, T worked at it very hard; I had no experience to study it
from, I couldn’t study it from books—I studied it from my own practical
experience.

49. Q. When you say you worked very hard, what type of work
did you do in connection with this real estate affair?

A. Well, before I would buy a home I probably had to mspect
thirty before I could see one that was what I thought was a fairly
decent buy.

50. Q. Did you improve some of them for purposes of sale?

A. Some of them, yes.

76. Q. And that changed, you tell me, about 1940. You didn’t think
it was such a good idea. Now, what was your purpose in acquiring houses
from then on?

A, Well, I had capital gain in view, of course.

77. Q. And capital gain is the business of making money, isn't it?

A. My idea was to make investments and get enough money together
80 I would have enough to live on should I fall ill.

95. Q. Yes, and you tell me that you didn’t keep in mind the
desirability of the house from a resale standpoint?

A. Not necessarily 8o. I might have changed my mind at any time
and wanted to rent it for ten or fifteen years, if times had changed.
The market was very unsure at that time. No one knew what it would
do and I might have been forced to rent them for fifteen or twenty years.
I might not have been able to sell them at all. I took a big chance there.

I think the only reasonable inference from her evidence
at the trial and Examination for Discovery, is that during
the years in question she followed a course or system which
had in view making profit or gain from the purchases which
she made. Apart from her evidence, I think the number
of transactions, and the close proximity of sales to pur-
chases, compel one to the conclusion that her idea in
purchasing involved the intention of selling with the object
of profit, and not for investment purposes only.
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The principle of law underlying cases of this nature
seems to be that where the transactions are merely for the
purpose of investment with easual profits, such profits are
not taxable; but where the intention is to buy and sell
with the view to profits, such are taxable. In California
Copper Syndicate v. Harris (1), at p. 165 Lord Justice
Clerk said:

It is quite a well settled principle in dealing with questions of assess-
ment of Income Tax, that where the owner of an ordmary investment
chooses to realize i, and obtains a greater price for it than he originally
acquired it at, the enhanced price is not profit in the sense of Schedule D
of the Income Tax Act of 1842 assessable to Income Tax. But, it is
equally well established that enhanced values obtained from realization
or conversion of securities may be so assessable, where what is done is
not merely a realization or change of investment, but an act done in
what is truly the carrying on, or carrying out, of a business. The simplest
case is that of a person or association of persons buymg and selling
lands or securities speculatively, in order to make gain, dealing in such
investments as a business, and thereby seeking to make profits. There
are many companies which in their very mception are formed for such
a purpose, and 1 these cases it 1s not doubtful that, where they make
a gain by a reahzation, the gam they make is liable to be assessed for
Income Tax.

What 1s the line which separates the two classes of cases may be
difficult to define, and each case must be considered according to its
facts; the question to be determined being—Is the sum of gain that
has been made a mere enhancement of value by realizing a security,
or is it a gain made in an operation of business in carrying out a scheme
for profit-making?

This decision was approved in the Judicial Committee
by Lord Dunedin in Commissioner of Taxes v. Melbourne

Trust Ltd. (2) at p. 1010, and was followed by Duff, J. in
Anderson Logging Company v. The King (3).

Mr. Steer for the appellant relied largely on the decision
of Locke, J. in Argue v. Minister of National Revenue (4).
That was the case of an individual investing his money in
mortgages, promissory notes and other securities, and selling
and reinvesting. The point at issue was as to whether or
not he was carrying on a business as a money lender, thus
rendering himself subject to the provisions of the Excess
Profits Tax Act. Locke J., as I understand it, found as a
fact that he was merely investing his own money and was
not buying and selling with a view to profit, and therefore
was not carrying on a trade or business. He quotes the

(1) (1904) 5 T.C. 159 at p. 165. (3) (1924) SCR. 45.
(2) (1914) A.C. 1001. (4) (1948) S.CR. 468.
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remarks of Jessel, M.R., in Smith v. Anderson (1), in
deciding the meaning of business, as follows:

So in the ordinary case of investments, a man who has money to
invest, invests his money and he may occasionally sell the investments
and buy others, but he is not carrying on a business.

Locke, J. makes it plain that questions of this nature
must be decided upon the facts of the particular case under
consideration. Other decisions I might mention as having
a bearing on the case are Fhe Commissioner of Inland
Revenue v. The Scottish Automobile and General Insurance
Co. Ltd. (2), Pickford v. Quirke (3), Morrwson v. Minister
of National Revenue (4).

Exception was taken in the pleadings and on the argu-
ment as to the correctness of the principle upon which
such taxes were calculated and Mr. Steer relied on the
decision of the President in Trapp v. Minister of National
Revenue (5). However, on a close examination of that
decision, I am led to the conclusion that it is applicable
to the facts and circumstances of that particular case only,
the point being as to whether or not the taxpayer was
entitled to charge as an expense interest on a mortgage
which was due in the taxation year, but not paid until the
following year.

In the present instance, the situation is to my mind
entirely different. On a net worth basis the cost of the
securities sold by the appellant would be set off against
the value of the securities received on the transactions,
the difference being the profit or gain to her. I apprehend
that in the assessment the present worth or value of such
securities received by her would be the basis thereof.
However, as no evidence was adduced to the effect that
proper regard was not had to this feature of the assessment,
and the responsibility is on the appellant to show error in
this respect, I am compelled to find that the appeal on
this aspect of the case must fail.

I therefore find that the appellant is liable for income
and excess profits taxes in respect of the years 1943, 1944,
and 1945 on the profits or gains from the transactions above
mentioned, and the appeal must therefore be dismissed
with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

(1) (1880) 15 Ch. D. 247 at 261. (3) (1927) 13 T.C. 251.
(2) (1931) 16 T.C. 381. (4) (1928) Ex. C.R. 75.
(5) (1946) Ex. C.R. 245.
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BeTwEEN:
THE PERRY KNITTING CO. .......... APPLICANT;
AND
HARLEY MANUFACTURING
CO.LID. ..o, Rusponpext.

Practice—Trade Marks—Motion to:expunge—Alternative motion for an
order for pleadings and directing that issues of fact be determined
on oral evidence—The Unfair Competition Act, 1932, 22-23 Geo. V,
¢. 38, ss. 62, 63, 64—Proceedings under s. 52 of a summary nature and
determined on affidavit evidence—Issues of fact required by either
party to be determined on oral evidence should be specific issues
settled by the Court after hearing both parties—Originating notice
of motion to state clearly issues raised and include particulars as to
why entry in the Register does not accurately ezpress or define
existing rights of registrani—Rules 167 and 168 of Exchequer Court—
Affidavit contrary to provisions of Rule 168 disregarded—The Court
in proper circumstances may adjourn hearing of motion to enable
applicant to perfect his case.

In an originating notice of motion under section 52 of the Unfair Competi-
tition Aect, 1932, Statutes of Canada, chap. 38, for an order expunging
the respondents mark “Nitey Nite” from the Register, the applicant
included a further notice in the alternative, namely, that if the
respondent should appear and oppose the application, the Court would
be asked to order pleadings and to direct that issues of fact be
determined on oral evidence. On the return of the motion respond-
ent appeared and opposed the motion.

Held: That proceedings under section 52 of the Unfair Competition Act,
1932, should be of a summary nature and heard on affidavit evidence
except on specific issues required to be determined on oral evidence
and which issues should be settled by the Court after hearing both
parties.

2. That an originating notice of motion should state clearly the issues
raised by the applicant and include the particulars as to why the
entry in the Register does not accurately express or define the
existing rights of the registrant.

3. That the affidavit in support of a motion under section 52 of the Act
in which the deponent has no personal knowledge of the matters
sworn to or in which statements are made as being on information
and belief, without stating the grounds thereof, or the source of the
information, is contrary to the provisions of Rule 168 of the General
Rules and Orders of the Court and should be disregarded.

4, That the Court in proper circumstances has the power o grant an
adjournment of the hearing of the motion in order to enable the
applicant to perfect his case. .

MOTION under s. 52 of the Unfair Competition Aect to
expunge from the Register the respondent’s mark “Nitey
Nite”.
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The motion was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice 35_{
Cameron at Ottawa. THE PERRY

. KnN1TTIiNG

J. C. Osborne for the motion. Con:’PANY
Hariey Mra.

M. B. K. Gordon, K.C. contra. CoMPANY

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CameroN J. now (December 6, 1951) delivered the
following judgment:

In this matter the applicant is a New York corporation
and is said to be the owner of the trade mark “Nitey Nite”
which it caused to be registered in the U.S. Patent Office
as of August 18, 1925, under No. 202164. It claims to
have used the word in the United States as a trade mark
in association with wares described as children’s sleeping
garments since June 27, 1924, and to have made the trade
mark known in Canada by advertisements in publications
having a circulation in Canads since 1941. Its mark is
not registered in Canada. The defendant is a Quebec
corporation and on or about October 10, 1947, it first
commenced to use the trade mark “Nitey Nite” on
children’s night gowns, sleepers and pyjamas; on January
8, 1948 it applied for registration of that trade mark in
Canada and suchf registration was granted under No.
109N.S.28112.

On October 20, 1951, the applicant instituted proceedings
by way of an Originating Notice of Motion, asking for an
order expunging the respondent’s mark from the Register
“on the ground that the said entry does not accurately
express or define the existing rights of the person appearing
from the Register to be the registered owner of the said
registration.” These proceedings were taken under the
provisions of sections 52 and 53 of the Unfair Competition
Act, 1932,

The first paragraph of the Originating Notice of Motion
is in the usual form and gives notice that on the 20th day
of November, 1951, the applicant would ask for an order
expunging the respondent’s mark. Then follows a second
paragraph as follows:

OR, in the alternative, if the Respondent appears on the return of
the Motion and objects to the granting of an Order expunging the said
registration, this Honourable Court will be requested to order that
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1951 Pleadings be filed setting forth the particulars of the claim and defence
—~ of the parties hereto and directing that the issues of fact be determined

%ES:ITPT?: on oral evidence.
CompaNY . . -
v. The final paragraph gives notice of the material to be
HarLEYy MFra

Comrany Used on the application, including the affidavit of Frederick
Im.  George Aubrey—a patent agent associated with the
CameronJ. applicant’s solicitors.

On the return of the motion, Mr. Osborne appeared for
the applicant. Mr. Gordon appeared for the respondent
and intimated that he was opposing the motion to expunge
and was prepared to proceed with the hearing of that
application, having previously filed the affidavit of J. A.
Chamandy, President of the respondent company. Mr.
Gordon further submitted that as notice had been given
that the Court would on that date be asked for an order
to expunge the respondent’s mark, that motion should be
proceeded with on the basis of the material then before the
Court; that the alternative motion was improper, that it
was the clear intention of the Aect that the proceedings
should be of a summary nature and issues of fact should
be determined on affidavit evidence unless the Court had
made an order directing that some issue or issues of fact—
but not all of such issues—be determined on oral evidence;
and that there was no power in the Court to direct pleadings
on motions for expungement under section 52. He relied
in part on section 54 of the Unfair Competition Act, which
is as follows: '

54. Every such application and every appeal from any decision of
the Registrar shall, unless either party requires some 1ssue of fact to be

determined on oral evidence, be heard and determined summarily on
evidence adduced by affidavit.

Mr. Osborne took the position that as the motion to
expunge was being opposed, he wished to proceed with
the alternative part of his motion, namely, for an order
that pleadings be directed and that the issues of fact be
determined on oral evidence.

The procedure as to rectification and alteration under the
preceding Act—the Trade Mark and Design Act—was pro-
vided by section 45 thereof and was instituted by the infor-
mation of the Attorney General or at the suit of “any
person aggrieved.” Under that Act the issues would be
defined by pleadings in the ordinary way, but when the
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Unfair Competition Act, 1932, came into effect, that pro-
cedure was changed. By section 53, every application under
section 52 must be made by filing an Originating Notice of
Motion or by counter claim in an action for the infringement
of the mark. The provisions of the new Act and particu-
larly section 54, make it clear that the new procedure was
to be of a summary nature and except where either party
requires some issue of fact to be determined by oral evidence,
would be heard and determined summarily on affidavit
evidence.

The difficulties that have arisen in this case have been
brought about because the Rules make no provision for the
practical difficulties that are bound to arise in many cases
in proceedings of this nature. The proceedings are insti-
tuted by an Originating Notice of Motion. No provision is
made for the entry of an appearance by a respondent who,
under the Rules, may file his affidavits immediately before
the application comes on to be heard (Rule 167). The
applicant, therefore, is placed in a difficult position inasmuch
as he may not know until the motion is about to be heard
whether the matter is to be opposed or not; or whether the
respondent will require an adjournment or request that
some issue of fact be determined an oral evidence; or what
the respondent may admit; or whether the respondent may
desire to cross-examine on the applicant’s affidavits. Faced
with these uncertainties, he is unable to determine what
witnesses he might require at the hearing should he require
some issue to be determined on oral evidence. In some cases,
therefore, and in order to meet these difficulties, a practice
has developed by which the applicant—as here—includes in
his Originating Notice a further notice in the alternative—
namely, that if the respondent should appear and oppose
the application, the Court would be asked to order that
pleadings be delivered, with directions as to the time of
delivery thereof and, when desired, that all the issues of fact
be determined on oral evidence. In many cases, that pro-
cedure has been followed and as far as I am aware the
parties thereto have agreed that the method was useful and
practical. So far as I know, the objections now taken are
raised for the first time.

In other cases where neither party required any issue of
fact to be determined on oral evidence, the practice has
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\lff} been to treat the motion as one for directions and an order
Tae Preey Would be secured fixing the delay within which the affidavits
Iég’;ﬁ‘gg should be filed by both parties, the date of the hearing and

Hante M similar matters. In still other cases where no oral evidence
Company Was required, the matter has been disposed of on the basis

Lm.  of the affidavits filed, without any adjournment.

CameronJ. Tt seems to me that in opposed applications where the

" applicant desires to have some issue of fact determined on

oral evidence—as in this case—it would be practically im-
possible for the motion for expungement to be heard on the
date given in the notice, and that further directions by the
Court would be required. Such issues of fact as are to be
determined on oral evidence should, in my opinion, be
specific issues settled by the Court after hearing both parties.
For that reason, I can see no objection to including in an
Originating Notice of Motion a further motion in the alter-
native. How otherwise could notice be served on the
respondent that the applicant would ask that oral evidence
be allowed on certain issues, when the solicitor for the
applicant may have no knowledge as to whether the respond-
ent is to oppose the motion and would have no knowledge
as to the name of the respondent’s solicitor, until the very
date of the hearing?

Counsel for the respondent also took objection to the
affidavit filed in support of the motion. It is by a patent
agent in the office of the solicitor for the applicant. The
objection is taken on the ground that the deponent could
have no personal knowledge of the matters sworn to, such
as the adoption and use of the trade mark by the applicant,
the registration thereof in the United States, particulars of
the sales of the applicant’s garments, the advertisements
used in connection therewith and the costs of such adver-
tisements and the date of first user of the mark. Many of
the statements made are made as though they were within
the personal knowledge of the deponent, when it is clear
that he would have no such knowledge. Still other state-
ments are made as being on information and belief, without
stating the grounds thereof, or the source of the information.
That is contrary to the provisions of Rule 168 which is in
part as follows: -

168. Affidavits shall be confined to such facts as the witness is able
of his own knowledge to prove, except on interlocutory motions on which
statements as to his belief with the grounds thereof may be admitted,



ExCR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA

Reference may also be made to Battle Pharmaceuticals
v. Lever Brothers Ltd. (1), in which the President of this
Court drew attention to the necessity of strict compliance
with the provisions of Rule 168 and stated that proceedings
under section 52 of the Act were not in the nature of inter-
locutory proceedings. (See also Young v. Young Manu-
facturing Co. (2)).

Strictly speaking, therefore, the affidavit of Mr. Aubrey
should be disregarded except as to paragraphs 1 and 10
and that part of paragraph IT which is within his knowledge.
In the Battle Pharmaceuticals case the President, under the
special circumstances there existing, dismissed the appli-
cation to expunge, but pointed out that the Court might in
a proper case grant an adjournment to enable the applicant
to perfect his case on appropriate terms.

In this case I shall not dismiss the motion to expunge
but will give leave to the applicant to rectify the proceedings
on the terms later to be mentioned.
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Counsel for the respondent also took the position that-

the alternative motion should not be granted. As I have
intimated above, I am of the opinion that proceedings under
section 52 should be of a summary nature and heard on
affidavit evidence except on some specific issues required to
be determined on oral evidence. The proceedings are
initiated by an Originating Notice of Motion which in my
opinion should state clearly the issues raised by the appli-
cant and it should include particulars as to why the entry
in the Register does not accurately express or define the
existing rights of the registrant. In this case that informa-
tion is to be derived only by inference from the supporting
affidavit. Such a procedure as I have suggested would not
only define the issue but would sufficiently inform a respond-
ent as to the nature of the case he would have to meet and
would be of assistance to him in determining whether he
should or should not oppose the application. The affidavits
used in support of the application should be those which
the applicant intends to use when the matter is heard
although no doubt the Court would have power to direct
the filing of further affidavits in a proper case. If the
procedure outlined were adopted, I can see no reason for

(1) (1946) Ex. C.R. 277 at 282. (2) (1900) 2 Ch. 753.
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directing the filing of a statement of claim or a defence.
If an order for general pleadings were made, the summary
nature of the hearing required by section 54 would be
entirely done away with. For that reason I do not think
that an order directing the filing of a statement of claim
should be made and I therefore refuse the alternative appli-
cation on that point.

The material filed by the applicant being defective, I
shall dispose of the matter by granting an adjournment on
the main motion to enable the applicant to file and serve
such further and other material in support thereof as may
be advised, such affidavits to be so filed and served within
thirty days of this date.

The respondent will have twenty-one days from such
service to file and serve any additional affidavits it may
require. Either party may on notice move that such
specific issue or issues as it desires to have determined on
oral evidence, be so heard.

As the adjournment is granted to enable the applicant
to perfect its material, the costs of the day on which the
motion was heard will be cost to the respondent in any
event.

Judgment accordingly.

BeTwEEN:
DURAND&CIE. ........oiiiiiiieaaee, PraiNTIFF;
AND

LA PATRIE PUBLISHING CO. LTD.....DEFENDANT.

Practice—Copyright—Demand for Particulars—Rules 42 and 88 of Ez-
chequer Court—Rules of Supreme Court of England, 1883, Order XIX,
7.7, r. 7B, Order XLVIIIA, r. 2—Particulars related to status of plaintiff
to be furnished—Plaintiff not required to give particulars related to
existence of copyright or ilitle of owner since burden of proof on
defendant if he put them in issue—The Copyright Act, R.8.C. 1927, ¢. 32,
s. 20(8)—Manner in which plaintiﬁ’s.title dertves from the author a
material fact to be alleged—Facts that would indicate whether or not
plaintiff has parted with his title to copyright or those that would assist
defendant in establishing plaintiff’s title matiers to be ascertained upon
production or examination for discovery.
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Held: That in an action for infringement of copyright the defendant is
entitled to have full particulars as to the status of a plaintiff instituting
proceedings against him.

2. That particulars related to the existence of copyright in a play or to
the title of the owner therein are not needed to enable a defendant
to prepare his defence since the burden of proof on these points is on
him should he put them in issue.

3. That assuming the plaintiff herein is neither author or composer of the
play “Pelleas and Melisande”, but that it holds whatever rights it
possesses therein under assignments or licenses, particulars as to the
manner in which its title is derived from the author and composer are
required since it is a material fact on which the pliintiff necessarily
relies to make his case. If not so alleged in the action the defendant
is totally unaware of the nature of plaintiff’s claim to title and unable
satisfactorily to prepare a defence.

4. That the plaintiff is not required to set out facts which would indicate
whether or not it has parted with its title to copyright, or such facts
as would assist the defendant in establishing the latter’s title. These
are matters which can be properly ascertained upon production of
documents or upon examination for discovery.

MOTION for particulars.

The motion was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Ottawa.

S. Rogers, K.C. and G. F. Henderson for the mbtion.
R. Quain, K.C. contra.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CameroN J. now (November 29, 1951) delivered the
following judgment:

This is a motion on behalf of the defendant for an order
requiring the plaintiff to give certain particulars of the
statement of claim. It is supported by the affidavit of
Gordon F. Henderson—a member of the firm of solicitors
acting as Ottawa agents for the defendant’s solicitors—and
concludes as follows:

5. The defendant is unable to plead to the Statement of Claim without
such particulars having regard to the sparse nature of the information
contained in the said Statement of Claim.

The usual demand for particulars was made but was not
complied with and this motion followed.
99085—3a
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The action is one for damages for infringement of copy-
right in the play “Pelleas and Melisande,” it being alleged
that the defendant was responsible for the broadcast over
Radio Station CHLP of a recorded performance of the said
work in its entirety, or substantially so.

It may be noted here that a default judgment was set
aside by my order of September 5, 1951, and that by that
order leave was given to the defendant to file a defence
within twenty-one days after the payment by it of certain
costs. That time has expired but the parties have agreed
that the time should be extended to the date of hearing of
this motion. Upon that hearing I reserved my finding but
directed that the time for filing the defence would be further
extended until the disposition of the motion, when the
matter would be dealt with.

The defendant asks for particulars of eleven different
matters. 'Counsel for the plaintiff opposed the motion as
to all the items except No. 11, particulars of which he agreed
to furnish. As to the remaining ten items, there can be no
doubt that they are referable to matters which would be
relevant to the issues to be determined at the trial, should
questions be raised (as seems probable) as to the title of
the plaintiff to copyright in the play, and as to the existence
of copyright in the play itself. The main contention of
counsel for the plaintiff was that the statement of claim
was sufficient to disclose the issues, that particulars were
not needed to enable the defendant to prepare its defence;
and that in any event such particulars could properly be
secured upon an examination for discovery or upon pro-
duction of documents.

Rule 88 of the General Rules and Orders of this Court
provides that “every pleading shall contain as precisely as
may be a statement of the material facts on which the party
pleading relies, but not the evidence . . .”

Rule 42 thereof would also appear to be applicable to this
case and therefore the practice and procedure to be followed
is that in force in similar proceedings in His Majesty’s
Supreme Court of Judicature in England. 0.19 of those
Rules is in part as follows:

7. A further and better statement of the nature of the claim or defence,
or further and better particulars of any matter stated in any pleadings,
notice, or written proceedings requiring particulars, may in all cases be
ordered, upon such terms, as to costs and otherwise as may be just.
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7B. Particulars of a claim shall not be ordered under Rule 7 to be 1951
delivered before defence unless the Court or Judge shall be of opinion Dmmm
that they are necessary or desirable to enable the defendant to plead or .
ought for any other special reason to be so delivered. v.
LA PaTRIE

The statement of claim herein is unusually short. Ex- Pvggjlf‘f;m
clusive of the claim for damages in the sum of $600, it i
merely states in brief form that the plaintiff is the owner of ~*2o "
copyright in the play, that the defendant on March 10, 1950,
performed or caused to be performed a recorded performance
over Station CHLP of the play in its entirety or sub-

stantially so.

Item 1 of the demand is for particulars as to the status
of the plaintiff. The only information furnished in regard
to the status of the plaintiff is its name as shown in the
style of cause. Nothing is stated as to the jurisdiction in
which it is located, where it carries on business, or whether
it is an incorporated company or a partnership. I have no
doubt whatever that a defendant is entitled to have this
information in regard to a plaintiff instituting proceedings
against him. If the plaintiff is a corporation, the claim
should state that fact, the jurisdiction in which it was in-
corporated and the location of its head office. If it be a
partnership, that fact should be stated, together with the
names and addresses of the partners on whose behalf the
action is brought.

0.48(a), r. 2 of the English Rules, provides that when
proceedings are instituted in the firm name of a partnership,
the defendant may demand particulars of the names and
places of residence of the partners on whose behalf the
action is brought, and 'that if such be not supplied all pro-
ceedings in the action must be stayed.

It would appear that the plaintiff has an office in or may
carry on business in France. It is of interest, therefore, to
note that under the English practice, if such a firm was a
partnership and had no place of business in England, it could
neither sue nor be sued in the name of the firm. In the 1950
Annual Practice, p. 851, it ds stated: “A partnership firm
which has no place of business in England within the mean-
ing of words ‘carrying on business within the jurisdic-
tion’ as defined in the preceding note, can neither sue nor

99085—3%a



36
1951

—
Duganp g1
Cie.

V.
LA PatRIE
PusLisHING
Co. L.

Cameron J.

EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA [1952

be sued in the firm’s name. The partners must sue or be
sued individually in their own name and be served as
ordinary defendants.”

The particulars required under Item 1 must be furnished
by the plaintiff.

Items 2, 3 and 4 of the demand are for particulars of the
names of the author of the words and the composer of the
music, of the play, and the name of the country in which
they are citizens or subjects. Item 8 is for particulars of all
agsignments by virtue of which the plaintiff claims to have
acquired the copyright in the said work or any interest
therein, and the extent of such interest, and setting forth the
date of and parties to such assignments. The particulars
required in these items all go to the question of the title of
the plaintiff to copyright in the play.

Items 5 and 6 are for particulars as to whether the author
and composer are alive, and if deceased, the dates of death.
Item 7 is for particulars of the name of the country in which
the play was first produced, the date thereof and the name
of the publisher. These demands in my opinion relate to
the question of the existence of copyright in the play.

These particulars are among those which counsel for the
plaintiff submits can be ascertained upon discovery. It is
not always easy to draw the line between what ought to be
furnished by way of particulars and what ought to be
obtained by way of discovery. Particulars are ordered
primarily with a view to having a pleading made sufficiently
distinet to enable the applicant to frame his answer thereto
properly, and secondarily to prevent a party from being
taken by surprise at the trial. Examination for discovery
is made to get at the knowledge of the adverse litigant.

Rule 88 of this Court requires pleadings to contain the
precise statement of the material facts on which the party
pleading relies. The general rule was thus stated by Cotton,
L.J. in Phillips v. P. (1):

In my opinion it is absolutely essential that the pleading, not to be
embarrassing to the defendants, should state those facts which will put

the defendants on their guard, and tell them what they have to meet
when the case comes on for trial.

(1) (1878) 4 Q B.D. 139.
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In Bruce v. Odhams Press Ltd. (1), Scott, L.J. defined
“material”:

The word “material” means necessary for the performance of formu-
lating a complete cause of action, and if any one “material” statement is
omitted, the statement of claim is bad.

Sections 20 to 24 of the Copyright Act, R.S.C. 1927, c. 32,
as amended provide the civil remedies for infringement of
copyright. Under section 20(3) thereof, certain statutory
presumptions arise in infringement proceedings when the
defendant puts in issue either the existence of the copyright
or the title of the plaintiff thereto. In such a case the work,
unless the contrary is proved, is presumed to be one in
which copyright subsists; and the author of the work, unless
the contrary is proved, is presumed to be the owner of the
copyright.

I think I may safely assume that in this ease the defendant
will put in issue either the existence of copyright or the
title of the plaintiff thereto, or both; and therefore, in con-
sidering what are the material facts which the plaintiff must
set forth in its claim, it is proper to take into account that
the plaintiff may intend to rely on the presumption that
copyright subsists in the play rather than setting out matters
which would establish that fact. From that point of view,
it is not material to its case to allege facts which establish
the existence of copyright. While particulars as to Items
5, 6 and 7 would doubtless be of great assistance to the
defendant in meeting the presumption as to the existence of
copyright in section 20(3) of the Act, it must be remembered
that the burden of proof on that point (under the circum-
stances I have mentioned) lies on the defendant. For that
reason I do not think that the plaintiff is required to give
particulars as to Items 5, 6 and 7.

But different considerations apply to Items 2, 3, 4 and 8.
I think I may assume that the plaintiff is neither author or
composer of the play, but that it holds whatever rights it
possesses therein under assignments or licenses. By virtue
of the presumption that, under the circumstances which
I have mentioned, title to copyright is in the author, the
plaintiff in order to succeed must establish that the title
thereto is in it. The root of the plaintiff’s title is in the
author and composer, and it is material to the plaintiff’s

(1) (1936) 52 T.L.R. 224 at p. 228.
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13?_{ case that it establish the manner in which its title is derived
Duranoer from the author and composer. These being material facts
(,30“‘ on which the plaintiff necessarily relies, they must be
P%;Egglga pleaded, or, strictly speaking, the plaintiff could not give
Co.Lw. evidencein regard thereto (see Phillips v. P. (1)). If notso
Camerony. 2llegedin the claim, the defendant is totally unaware of the
— nature of the plaintiff’s claim to title and unable satis-
factorily to prepare a defence. The particulars asked for

in Items 2, 3, 4 and 8 must be furnished by the plaintiff.

Item 9 is for particulars of all assignments and/or agree-
ments whereby the plaintiff has parted with the public
performing right in the copyright or has granted the right
to license performances of the said work in Canada setting
forth the dates of and parties to such assignments and/or
agreements.

These particulars are no doubt asked for in the hope that
they will indicate that the plaintiff has at some time parted
with its right to reproduce the play—or some part of that
right—in Canada. From material filed on the application
to set aside the default judgment, it would appear that
Station CHLP is a member of the Canadian Association of
Broadcasters and holds certain licences from the Composers,
Authors and Publishers Association of Canada (C.A.P.A.C.),
a performing rights society; and that C.A.P.A.C. in turn has
entered into certain agreements with S.A.C.E.M.—a per-
forming rights society in France—in regard to the use of
certain works in Canada. It isthe duty of the plaintiff to
set out the material facts on which it relies to establish its
title to copyright, but it is not required to set out faets
which would indicate whether or not it has parted with such
title, or such facts as would assist the defendant in establish-
ing the latter’s title. These are matters which in my opinion
are not necessary to enable the defendant to prepare its
defence, but are matters which can be properly ascertained
upon production or upon examination for discovery. I
therefore refuse the motion as to Item 9.

Item 10 is for particulars of any registration of copyright
and assignments thereof at Stationers Hall, London, Eng-
land, under the provisions of the Imperial Copyright Act of
1842 or other relevant Imperial legislation.

(1) (1878) 4 Q.B.D. 133.
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As T understand the argument on this point, it is con- 1951
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tended by the defendant that the existence of copyright in Duranper
Canada may depend upon the question as to whether the Cf‘
work was registered at Stationers Hall under the Imperial P:E‘I‘;IE‘;EI;G
Copyright Act, 1842 (see Smiles v. Belford (1)). Again, = Co.Lx.
this appears to be a matter of the existence of copyright and , —— +
for the reasons I have stated in regard to Items 5, 6 and 7, —
I shall not order the plaintiff to give particulars. If the
assignments referred to in Item 10 are ones by which the
plaintiff acquired copyright in the work, the details of such
assignments will be furnished under the disposition I have
made of Item 8. If the plaintiff does not rely on any
registration at Stationers Hall, it is not required to set out
particulars thereof. Such information as the defendant may
require in regard thereto is properly to be obtained upon

examination for discovery.

In the result, therefore, the motion for particulars will
be granted in part. There will be an order requiring the
plaintiff to deliver to the defendant particulars of the state-
ment of claim as required in Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 8 and 11 of the
notice of motion, within two months of the date of this
order; and that all further proceedings be stayed until the
delivery thereof.

It is further ordered that the time within which the
defendant shall file and serve its statement of defence be
extended; and that the defendant shall have leave to file
and serve its statement of defence within twenty-one days
of the service of the particulars to be delivered under this
order by the plaintiff.

The cost of the motion will be to the defendant in the
cause.

Judgment accordingly.

(1) (1877) 1 O.AR. 436.
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BrTwEEN:
JOHN CRAGG ...........c.ccoiiiiinn.. APPELLANT;
' AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL RESPONDENT
REVENUE ...........c..covounl.. '

Revenue—Income Tax—Income Tax Act, 8.C. 1948, ¢. 62, Div. J., 8. 91(4)
—Whether profit from purchase and sale of property is capital gain
or tazable business profit a question of fact—Taxpayer not subject to
tax on income not received during year.

Between May 1, 1943 and January 31, 1946, the appellant purchased ten
properties in Toronto and sold nine of them and the question was
whether his profit on these transactions was a capital gain upon the
realization or exchange of an investment or a profit or gain from a
trade, business or calling.

Held: That whether a profit on the purchase and sale of properties is a
capital gain upon the realization or exchange of an investment or &
profit or gain from a trade, business or calling is a question of fact
to be answered in the light of all the surrounding circumstances and
little, if any, help is to be derived from the actual decisions in other
cases. California Copper Syndicate v. Harris (1904) 5 ‘T.C. 159
followed.

2. That the Court must be careful before it decides that a series of profits,
each one of which would by itself have been a capital gain, has become
profit or gain from a business. Such a decision cannot depend solely
on the number of transactions in the series, or the period of time in
which they occurred, or the amount of profit made, or the kind of
property involved. Nor can it rest on statements of intention on the
part of the faxpayer. The question in each case is what is the proper
deduction to be drawn from the taxpayer’s whole course of conduct
viewed in the light of all the circumstances. The conclusion in each
case must be one of fact.

3. That, on the facts, the appellant was carrying out a scheme of profit
making, that his purchases and sales of property were operations of
business and that his profits therefrom were subject to tax.

4. That a taxpayer cannot be taxed in respect of income that he has not
received during the taxation year. Capital Trust Corporation Limited
et al v. Minister of National Revenue (1937) S.CR. 192 applied.

APPEAL from a decision of the Income Tax Appeal
Board.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Thorson President of the Court, at Toronto.

J.D. McNish K.C. and 8. G. Tinker for appellant.
G. B. Bagwell K.C. and T. Z. Boles for respondent.
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The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.
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following judgment:

This is an appeal from the decision of the Income Tax
Appeal Board (1) dismissing the appellant’s appeal from
his income tax assessment for the year 1946 whereby the
sum of $7,5637.66 was added as taxable income to the amount
reported by him.

This amount was said to be the appellant’s net profit in
1946 from the purchase and sale by him of three properties
in the city of Toronto, namely, 100 Albertus Avenue pur-
chased on July 31 1945, for $11,962.34 and sold on Novem-
ber 26, 1946, for $8,750 a loss of $3,212.34, 2339-41 Yonge
Street purchased on January 15, 1946, for $133,000 and sold
on May 15, 1946, for $141,000, a profit of $8,000 and 94
Tyndall Avenue purchased on January 31, 1946, for $34,500
and sold on April 30, 19486, for $37,250, a profit of $2,750.

It was contended for the appellant that this amount was
a capital gain upon the realization or exchange of an invest-
ment and for the Minister that it was the annual net profit
or gain from a trade, business or calling carried on by the
appellant.

The test to be applied in determining an issue such as
this has been considered by the courts in several cases. In
Califormia Copper Syndicate v. Harris (2) the Lord Justice
Clerk (Macdonald) put it as follows:

Tt is quite a well settled principle in dealing with questions of assess-
ment of Income Tax, that where the owner of an ordinary investment
chooses to realize it, and obtains a greater price for it than he originally
acquired it at, the enhanced price is not profit in the sense of Schedule D
of the Income Tax Act of 1842 assessable to Income Tax. But it is equally
well established that enhanced values obtained from realization or con-
version of securities may be so assessable, where what is done is not merely
a realization or change of investment, but an Act done in what is truly
the carrying on, or carrying out, of a business . . .

What is the line which separates the two classes of cases may be
difficult to define, and each case must be considered according to its facts;
the question to be determined being—Is the sum of gain that has been
made 2 mere enhancement of value by realizing a security, or is it a gain

made in an operation of business in carrying out a scheme for profit-
making?

(1) (1950) 3 Tax. AB.C. 203. (2) (1904) 5 T.C. 159 at 165.
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This statement of principle has been approved by Lord
Dunedin, speaking for the Judicial Committee of the Privy
Council, in Commissioner of Taxes v. Melbourne Trust,
Limited (1); by Lord Buckmaster in the House of Lords
in Ducker v. Rees Roturbo Development Syndicate and
Inland Revenue Commissioners v. Rees Roturbo Develop-
ment Syndicate (2); by Duff J., as he then was, speaking
for the Supreme Court of Canada, in Anderson Logging Co.
v. The King (3), which judgment was affirmed by the
Judicia] Committee of the Privy Council (4), and, more
recently, by this Court and Kerwin J. in the Supreme Court
of Canada in Atlantic Sugar Refineries Limited v. Minister
of National Revenue (5). The question on which side of the
line an item of profit or gain falls is thus one of fact to be
answered in the light of all the surrounding circumstances.
Consequently, little, if any, help is to be derived from the
actual decisions in other cases based, as they must be, upon
the facts of the case in which they were given.

The facts appear from the evidence of the appellant who
was the only witness called. They are not in themselves
in dispute, the only question being the deduction that
should be drawn from them. The appellant was a full time
employee in the accounting department of the North Ameri-
can Life Assurance Company with office hours from 8.30
a.m. to 445 p.m. There is no reference in his evidence to
any purchase or sale of properties prior to 1943 but from
May 1, 1943, to January 31, 1946, he purchased ten proper-
ties and sold nine of them, the particulars of his purchases
and sales being set out in Exhibit 1. His first purchase was
on May 1, 1943, of 504 Sherbourne Street, a large rooming
house of 23 rooms, for $11,500. This, he said, was a revenue
producing property. He had acquired some money that he
desired to invest and gave as his reason for purchasing the
property that he realized that his income as a clerk was
going to be limited and he wanted to increase it. On
November 1, 1943, he purchased two other properties, one,
29-31 Winchester Street, a small apartment house of 10
suites, for $20,000 and the other, 337-41 Sherbourne Street,
a small apartment house of 18 suites, for $25,000. These

(1) (1914) A.C. 1001 at 1010. (4) (1926) A.C. 140.

(2) (1928) A.C. 132 at 140. (5) (1948) Ex. CR. 622;
(3) (1925) S.C.R. 45 at 48. (1949) S.C.R. 706.
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were both revenue producing and his reason for purchasing
them was the same as in the case of the first one, namely, to
increase his income. Then on January 2, 1944, he pur-
chased 610-18 Mt. Pleasant Road. This was a different
kind of property from the first three. It had three stores
and a billiard room on the ground floor and 4 apartments
over the stores. It was also revenue producing. In 1944
the appellant sold all these properties at a substantial profit,
504 Sherbourne Street on March 1, 1944, at a profit of
$13,500, 29-31 Winchester Street on April 1, 1944, at a
profit of $2,000, 610-18 Mt. Pleasant Road on May 1, 1944,
at a profit of $6,500 and 337-41 Sherbourne Street on
October 31, 1944, at a profit of $4,000, a total profit of $26,-
000. The appellant gave a reason for each of these sales. He
said that he was anxious to obtain more desirable properties
than the rooming house and the two apartment houses.
These were older properties in the heart of the downtown
district and needed renovation and it was difficult for him
to supervise this in view of his full time occupation. There
was a similar reason for selling the 610-18 Mt. Pleasant
Road property. He did not have time to attend to this
investment and, in addition, the fact that there was a
billiard room on the premises caused trouble. I now
come to three properties of a different nature. On
May 1, 1944, the same day as he sold the Mt. Pleasant
Road property, he bought Buckingham Manor at
Oshawa, a reasonably modern apartment house of 28 to 30
suites, for $48,500. He had a resident caretaker there who
collected the rents but he sold this property on April 30,
1945, at a profit of $4,500, giving as his reason for so doing
the fact that Oshawa was 35 miles away and gas rationing
made supervision difficult. On January 1, 1945, he bought
34-36 Rosecliff for $149,300. This was a fire proof, very
modern building with 52 suites and a 28 car garage. The
appellant still owns this property, which is fully rented,
and has refused an offer of $300,000 for it. Then on July 31,
1945, he purchased Wilton Court, a 100-room hotel. This
was revenue producing. It was managed for him by persons
on the staff of the hotel. He sold this property on December
5, 1945, at a profit of $23,000, making a total profit in 1945
of $27,500. He gave as his reason for this sale that there
was a second mortgage on the Rosecliff property which he

{
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had to meet and that he used part of the proceeds of the
Wilton Court sale to pay it. As part of the sale price for
Wilton Court the appellant had to take in 100 Albertus
Avenue at $11,962.34. He did not like this investment.
Indeed, he never acquired it as such. It was really a trade
in which he had to take in order to make his advantageous
sale of Wilton Court. He sold this property on November
26, 1946 at $3,212.34 less than the amount at which he
had taken it in trade. This was the only sale on which he
did not make a profit. Then we come to the other two

.properties already mentioned, 2339-41 Yonge Street, an

apartment house with 40 suites and 2 stores, which the
appellant bought on January 15, 1946, and sold on May 15,
1946, at a profit of $8,000 and 94 Tyndall Avenue which he
purchased on January 31, 1946, and sold on April 30, 1946,
at a profit of $2,750. Altogether his profits on the 9 proper-
ties sold between March 1, 1944 and April 30, 1946, was
$61,037.66.

The appellant emphasized that he had never advertised
any of his properties or listed them for sale and that he
had not sought out buyers but that the real estate agents
had brought offers to him which he had accepted. He also
stated that he often felt an urge to leave his insurance com-
pany employment and look after his investments but that
he decided in 1946 that he would stay with the company
and after that he purchased no other properties, except a
small residence which he did not buy for investment. The
only property he still retains is 34-36 Rosecliff. He left the
employ of the insurance company in 1949 and is now
engaged in real estate development and promotion.

‘While the appellant said that his sole reason for pur-
chasing the properties was to produce revenue and increase
his income he admitted on cross-examination that he had
stated before the Income Tax Appeal Board that he knew
the condition of the real estate market in 1943 and 1944,
that it seemed to him that there would be a good market
and an increase in value and that this fact influenced him
in his decision to purchase. When he was asked why he
did not retain the properties if his sole purpose was invest-
ment he said that when he was approached to sell he did so,
it being his desire sooner or later to own a modern revenue
producer which he obtained when he purchased 34-36
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Rosecliff. When he was asked why he then purchased
Wilton Court he said that at the time he was thinking about
resigning his position with his insurance company and that
if he had done so he would have retained Wilton Court.
This was also given as his reason for purchaging 2339-41
Yonge Street and 94 Tyndall Avenue. This uncertainty
followed a period of service in the forces.

There is one other fact to which reference must be made.
On May 26, 1947, the appellant made an application under
section 5 of the Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, for a reference
to the Board of Referees to have his standard profits deter-
mined at $25,000. In this application he described the
nature of his business as that of real estate and stated that
it had commenced in July 1943. There was a solemn
declaration by him that the facts in his application were
true. The appellant also filed returns under the Excess
Profits Tax Act for the years 1944 and 1945, showing under
the head of business income a profit on the sale of properties
of $26,000 for 1944 and $27,500 for 1945. His standard
profits were fixed by the Board of Referees at $25,000 subject
to a deduction for salary allowance. The appellant gave
as an explanation for his application that it had been made
at the request of the Income Tax Department, but the fact
of the application and its contents remains.

Counsel for the appellant stressed the fact that he had
not listed or advertised any of his properties or attempted
to sell them, that he had testified that his purpose in pur-
chasing the properties was to increase his income and that
his evidence was uncontradicted and that he had given a
sound reason for the sale of each property. He agreed that
the onus was on the appellant to show that he had not been
carrying on an operation of business and submitted that the
appellant had discharged this onus. His argument then
" was that in purchasing the three properties the appellant
was merely investing his money and that in selling them
he was merely realizing his investment and that his profit
on each sale was a capital gain and not subject to tax.

There is, I think, no doubt that each of the profits made
by the appellant could, by itself, have been properly con-
sidered a capital gain and the Court must be careful before
it decides that a series of profits, each one of which would
by itself have been a capital gain, has become profit or gain
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from a business. Such a decision cannot depend solely on
the number of transactions in the series, or the period of
time in which they occurred, or the amount of profit made,
or the kind of property involved. Nor can it rest on state-
ments of intention on the part of the taxpayer. The question
in each case is what is the proper deduection to be drawn
from the taxpayer’s whole course of conduct viewed in the
light of all the circumstances. The conclusion in each case
must be one of fact.

I am unable to accept counsel’s submission that all that
the appellant did was to invest his money and then
realize his investment. That does not seem to me to be
a realistic view of his course of conduct. I am not im-
pressed with his statement that he did not list or advertise
his properties or seek to sell them. He did not have to do
so for the offers came to him and he accepted them. The
number of transactions and the rapidity of turnover of the
properties are also important factors. I am also of the view
that it may fairly be inferred from his conduect, rather than
from his statements, that in 1943 he embarked upon a
program of purchasing properties because he thought that
they would increase in value and selling them with the
objective of finally acquiring a modern revenue producing
property. On the facts, I have no difficulty in finding that
the appellant was carrying out a scheme of profit making,
that his purchases and sales of property were operations of
business and that his profits therefrom were subject to tax.
Moreover, I am unable to see how he can now assert that
his profits were not business profits in view of his statutory
declaration that he was in the real estate business. He
cannot escape from this declaration by his attempted
explanation.

In view of this finding the appeal herein on the ground
put forward by the appellant must fail. But the assess-
ment against which the appeal was-taken cannot stand in
its present amount. It appeared as the result of questions
put by the Court that the alleged ‘profits of $8,000 from the
sale of 2339-41 Yonge Street and $2,000 from the sale of 94
Tyndall Avenue were represented by mortgages in favour
of the appellant payable by instalments. The mortgage
back to him on the sale of 2339-41 Yonge Street was a
second mortgage for $10,560, which included his so-called
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profit of $8,000. This was payable at the rate of $100 per
month inclusive of interest, the first payment falling due
in June, 1946. The mortgage on 94 Tyndall Avenue was
also a second mortgage for $4,695, of which $2,750 was
profit, payable quarterly at the rate of $250 and interest
at 5 per cent per annum, the first payment being due on
July 31, 1946. It was, therefore, clear that the profit
alleged to have been received in 1946 on the sale of these
properties was not in fact wholly received in 1946. I think
it must follow from the decision of the Supreme Court of
Canada in Capital Trust Corporation Limiled et al v.
Minister of National Revenue (1) that since a taxpayer is
taxable in respect of the income received by him during a
taxation year, regardless of the year in which it may have
been earned, he cannot be taxed in respect of income that
he has not received during such year. ‘Consequently the
appellant was taxable in 1946 only for such profits, if any,
ag he received in 1946, the remaining profit being taxable in
subsequent years.

Under the circumstances, I granted leave to the appellant
to amend his statement of claim to allege that the profits
of $8,000 and $2,750 were not received by the appellant in
1946 and not taxable in that year. In so doing I acted
under section 90(2) of the Income Tax Act, Statutes of
Canada 1948, chap. 52, as amended, included in Division J
of that Act, which governs this appeal.

Section 91(4) of the Income Tax Act provides for the
manner in which the Court may dispose of an appeal
from the Income Tax Appeal Board as follows:

91. (4) The Court may dispose of the appeal by

(a) dismissing it;

(b) vacating the assessment;

(¢) varying the assessment; or

(d) referring the assessment back to the Minister for

reconsideration and reassessment.

It is interesting to note that there is no specific provision
for disposing of the appeal by allowing it. The alternative
to dismissing the appeal is to deal with the assessment in

(1) (1937) S.C.R. 192.
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one of the ways specified in paragraphs (b), (¢) and (d)
of section 91(4). In order to give effect to the findings of
the Court that the appellant is subject to tax on the ground
that his profits were net profits from a business but not
subject to tax on profits not received by him in 1946 the
Court must dispose of the appeal by referring the 1946
assessment back to the Minister for reconsideration and re-
assessment.

On the matter of costs I see no reason why the appellant,
having failed on the grounds of appeal put forward by him,
should be excused from liability for costs. If he had origin-
ally raised the matter which I gave him leave to raise by
amendment the Minister might well have given effect to it
and amended the assessment -accordingly. After careful
consideration of the matter I have concluded that the
respondent is entitled to costs.

Judgment accordingly.




Ex.CR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA

BETWEEN:
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL .
REVENUE .....oooooonn APPELLANT;
AND
THE L. D. CAULK CO. OF
CANADA LTD. ..o, RESPONDENT.

Revenue—Income Taz—Income War Taox Act RSC. 1927, c. 97, 5. 6—I—
“Dusbursements or expenses not wholly, exclusively and necessarily
laid out or expended for the purpose of earning the income”—
Deductibility of legal expenses incurred wn defending a charge pros-
ecuted under the Criminal Code and of making representations lo
the Commassioner under the Combines Investigation Act—No differ-
ence 1 lests to be apphed to determine deductibility of legal expenses
and any other expenses or disbursements—Appeal dismissed.

Respondent, a manufacturer of dental supphes, in 1947 at the invitation
of the Commissioner under the Combines Investigation Act, who was
conducting an mvestigation mto an alleged combine i the manu-
facture and sale of dental supplies in Canada, made representations
before him, employing for that purpose solicitors to whom in 1947
a fee was paid for their services.

Later respondent with others was prosecuted upon a charge laid under
the Criminal Code of Canada that they did m fact constitute a
combine in the manufacture and sale of dental supplies in Canada.
At the trial of such charge respondent was acquitted and an appeal
from such acquittal taken by the Crown was dismissed. Respondent
in 1948 paid fees to its solicitors and also to counsel who acted for it
at the trial and appeal.

In its income tax returns for the taxation years 1947 and 1948 respondent
deducted from its income the amounts so paid by it to its solicitors
and counsel for their services at the hearing before the Commissioner
and at the trial and appeal. These deductions were disallowed
by the Minister of National Revenue and an appeal taken by
respondent to the Income Tax Appeal Board was allowed. The
matter was referred back to the Minister to re-assess the respondent
and allow the deductions in full. The Minister appealed to tlus
Court.

Held: That the payments to its solicitors and counsel by respondent were
made 1n the usual course of business and were made with reference
to a particular difficulty which arose in the course of the year, namely,
the mvestigation by the Commissioner, the charge laid against the
respondent and the unfavourable and damaging publicity which
resulted therefrom, and which would have been greatly enhanced
had the charge been sustamed: the disbursements had nothing $o
do with the assets or capital of the company but were made 1n an
effort to establish that its trading practices were not illegal, and to
enable it to carry on as it had in the past, unimperilled by charges
that such practices were illegal.
51001—1la
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2. That the disbursements were wholly, exclusively and necessarily laid
“out for the purposes of its trade and for the purpose of earning
the income.

3. That the tests to be applied to determine the deductibility of legal
expenses from income are the same as those applicable to any other
disbursements or expenses.

4. That there is no essential difference between expenses incurred in
defending a right of a trader to describe his goods in a certain
manner (in common with all other members of the public) and
expenses incurred in successfully defending a right to the use of
certain trade practices which were equally available to all members of
the publie.

5. That there is no distinction between the legal expenses incurred in the
proceedings before the Commissioner and those expenses incurred in
defending the criminal charge laid against the respondent, the same
matters were in issue throughout and arose out of precisely the
same circumstances.

6. That in view of the fact that respondent was acquitted the mere
fact that the charge against respondent was made under the Criminal
Code has no bearing on the deductibility or otherwise of the expenses
incurred in defence of that charge.

APPEAL from a judgment of the Income Tax Appeal
Board.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Toronto. :

Jos. Singer, K.C. and J. 8. Forsyth for appellant.
J. W. Pickup, K.C. and J. D. Pickup for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CamzroN J. now (January 4, 1952) delivered the follow-
ing judgment:

This is an appeal by the Minister of National Revenue
from a decision of the Income Tax Appeal Board, dated
December 4, 1950. By consent I heard this appeal and
similar appeals in four other cases at the same time. In
the other cases the Minister of National Revenue had also
appealed from decisions of the Income Tax Appeal Board,
the respondents being the Dominion Dental Co. Ltd. (No.
43983), Goldsmith Brothers Smelting and Refining Co.
Ltd. (No. 43981), The Dental Co. of Canada Ltd. (No.
46470) and 8.8. White Co. of Canada, Ltd. (No. 43982).
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The principles involved in each case are precisely the
same and it was therefore agreed that a formal judgment
should be rendered in one case and that that judgment
should be applicable to all. I have selected this particular
case inasmuch as it applies to two taxation years and
involves payments made in respect of two different matters.

The main facts in this case (as well as in the other cases)
are not in dispute. The respondent herein carries on the
business of manufacturing of dental filling materials and
dental specialties at Toronto. In 1947, the Commissioner
under the Combines Investigation Act, R.S.C. 1927, ¢. 26,
had been conducting an investigation into an alleged com-
bine in the manufacture and sale of dental supplies in
Canada.’ Prior to making his report thereunder, the Com-
missioner had invited the respondent along with other
companies, to make representations before him. The
respondent for that purpose employed solicitors to represent
it before the Commissioner and in the year 1947 paid such
solicitors the sum of $625 for their legal services.

Later in 1947, the Commissioner made a report to the
Minister of Justice and therein he expressed the opinion
that a combine existed in the distribution and sale of
dental supplies in Canada within the meaning of the
Combines Investigation Act, and that the respondent,
along with others, was a party and privy to that combine.
That report was circulated and widely publicized through-
out Canada. Subsequently, a charge was laid against the
respondent—and other companies—under section 498 of
the Criminal Code, and at the trial of that charge the
respondent and the other companies were acquitted. Later,
an appeal from such acquittal was taken by the Crown and
that appeal was dismissed.

In the taxation year 1948, the respondent paid its solici-
tors a total of $701.41, representing their charges for
preparation for trial of the charge so laid against the
respondent. As those solicitors were unable to represent
it at the trial, the respondent secured counsel and for his
services paid the sum of $12,000 in 1948. The respondent
claimed to be entitled to deduct from its taxable income
the said sum of $625 for the taxation year 1947, and the
said sums totalling $12,701.41 in the taxation year 1948.
By Notices of Assessment dated respectively December 3,
1949, and May 18, 1950, the Minister totally disallowed the

51001—13a
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said deductions. An appeal was taken by the respondent
to the Income Tax Appeal Board which board by its
decision dated December 4, 1950 (3 T.A.B.C. 160) allowed
the said appeals and referred the matter back to the
Minister with a direction that the said deductions should
be allowed in full, and to re-assess the respondent accord-
ingly. From that decision an appeal is now taken to this
Court.

In his Notice of Appeal the Minister relied on the pro-
visions of paragraphs (a) and (b) of section 6(1) of the
Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, c. 97, as amended, as
follows:

Sec. 6—1. In computing the amount of the profits or gains to be
assessed, a deduction shall not be allowed in respect of

(a) disbursements or expenses not wholly, exclusively and necessarily
laid out or expended for the purpose of earning the income;

(b) any outlay, loss or replacement of capital or any payment on
account of capital or any depreciation, depletion or obsolescence,
except as otherwise provided in this Act.

At the hearing, however, counsel for the Minister aban-
doned all reliance upon paragraph (b).

At the hearing, no oral evidence was given and the
argument proceeded on the basis of the record before me,
namely, the documents forwarded by the Registrar of the
Income Tax Appeal Board (pursuant to the provisions of
the Act) which, of course, included the judgment of the
Board and the exhibits filed at the hearing before it.

In each case it is essential to ascertain the true nature
of the expenditure in order to determine whether it has
been “wholly, exclusively and nedessarily laid out or
expended for the purpose of earning the income.” Ex. A-9
in this case is the indictment preferred against the respond-
ent and others. It shows that they were charged that
“during all the years from 1930 to 1947, both inclusive,
they did within the jurisdiction of this Honourable Court
unlawfully conspire, combine, agree or arrange together
and with one another and with certain others (named
persons or corporations) to unduly prevent or lessen com-
petition in the production, manufacture, purchase, barter,
sale, transportation or supply in the cities of Toronto and
Montreal and other places throughout Canada, of articles
or commodities which may be a subject of trade or com-
merce, namely, new, used, and refinished dental equipment,
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artificial teeth, precious metals used in dentistry and dental
treatment, dental sundries, and other articles or com-
modities used in dentistry and dental treatment and did
thereby commit an indictable offence contrary to the pro-
visions of the Criminal Code, Section 498, subsection 1(d).”

I think I may safely assume that the investigation in
1947 by the Commissioner under the Combines Investi-
gation Act, at which time the respondent incurred expenses
in having its solicitors appear before him, was an investi-
gation into precisely these same matters.

No question is raised as to the reasonableness of the
amounts so paid so that I am not concerned at all with
the amount of the deductions.

It is to be noted particularly that the investigation
before the Commissioner and the subsequent ecriminal
proceedings taken against the respondent had to do with
the day to day practice of the respondent in conducting
the manufacturing and selling of its products; that the
legal expenses so incurred were incurred directly by and
on behalf of the respondent itself, and not on behalf of its
individual directors; that the proceedings instituted against
it were of a criminal nature and that the respondent was
wholly successful throughout. The deductions claimed,
therefore, are not in respect of a penalty or fine imposed
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incurred in: a eriminal proceeding in which the taxpayer
was convicted. They do not, therefore, fall within the
principles laid down in such cases as Commissioners of
Inland Revenue v. E. C. Warnes & Co. Ltd. (1) and Com-
miassioners of Inland Revenue v. Alexander Von Glehn &
Co. Ltd. (2).

Throughout the whole of the proceedings which oceca-
sioned the expenditures in question, the trade practices
of the respondent were challenged and defended. It was
alleged that such practices were illegal and that the
respondent was guilty of a crime. The adverse publicity
incidental to the Commissioner’s report and the subsequent
criminal charge was of such a nature that the company’s
future prospects were placed in jeopardy. Quite naturally,
therefore, they took steps to see that their interests were
protected by employing solicitors to represent them before

(1) (1919) 12 T.C. 227. (2) (1919) 12 T.C. 232.
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the Commissioner and to prepare for the trial and the
criminal charge, and later by employing counsel to represent
them at the trial and the appeal which followed. In the
result, their efforts were successful and the respondent was
acquitted, the Crown having failed to prove that the trade
practices complained of were in any way illegal. I have
said that their business was placed in jeopardy by the
charges so laid. In the judgment rendered by the Tax
Appeal Board it was stated that “the adverse publicity
had already contributed to @ substantial decrease in the
company’s business,” and under the circumstances of this
appeal I think T am entitled to rely on that finding of fact.
The respondent’s business reputation—and therefore its
capacity to earn profits—was at stake and consequently it
secured legal assistance in defending its position and its
practices. It was forced to incur these expenses or possibly
suffer the consequences of a serious loss in business.

Under the circumstances, then, were the disbursements
made “wholly, exclusively and necessarily for the purpose
of earning the income?”

Asg stated by the President of this Court in Siscoe Gold
Mines Ltd. v. Minister of National Revenue (1):

There is nothing in the Income War Tax Act to warrant the assump-
tion that legal expenses are a special class of disbursements or expenses
or that they are generally deductible and that it is only in excepiional
cases that thewr deduction is disallowed. The tests to be applied in
determining their deductibibty are the same as those applicable to any
other disbursements or expenses.

Counsel for the respondent submitted that the disburse-
ments here in question were incurred by the respondent
not in its capacity as a trader, but as a citizen amenable
to the law like all other citizens. His argument was put
in this way.

That the legal costs of successfully defending the criminal charge
and of resisting the investigation by the Commissioner preceding those
charges, were not “business expenses” but “personal expenses” and, there-
fore, should be disallowed as “not expended for the purpose of earning
the income.” Although the acts which gave rise to the investigalion
before the Commissioner, and the charge, were done in the course of
“business”, the criminal charge and the previous investigation by the
Commissioner were taken against the company as “citizens amenable like
all other citizens, individual and corporate, to the law,” and expenses of
clearing themselves were expended upon themselves in therr character of
citizens and not in their character of traders.

(1) (1945) Ex. C.R. 257 at 261.
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He relied on the well-known case of Strong & Co. Ltd. v.
Woodifield (1). The headnote in that case is as follows:

A brewery company owned an inn which was carried on by a
manager as part of their business. A customer sleeping in the inn was
injured by the fall of a chimney, and recovered damages and costs against
the company for the mjury, which was owing to the negligence of the
company’s servants:—

Held, that the damages and costs could not be deducted in estimating
the balance of profits for the purpose of the income tax, the loss not
being connected with or arising out of the trade, and not being money
wholly and exclusively laid out or expended for the purposes of the trade.

Lord Loreburn, L.C., said at p. 452:

In my opinion, however, it does not follow that if a loss is in any
sense connected with the trade, it must always be allowed as a deduction;
for it may be only remotely connected with the trade, or it may be
connected with something else quite as much as or even more than
with the trade. I think only such losses can be deducted as are
connected with in the sense that they are really incidental to the trade
itself. They cannot be deducted if they are mainly incidental to some
other vocation or fall on the trader in some character other than that of
trader. The nature of the trade is to be considered. To give an illustra-
tion, losses sustained by a railway company in compensating passengers
for accidents in travelling might be deducted. On the other hand, if a
man kept a grocer’s shop, for keeping which & house is necessary, and one
of the window shutters fell upon and injured a man walking in the street,
the loss arising thereby to the grocer ought not to be deducted. Many
cases might be put near the line, and no degree of ingenuity can frame a
formuls so precise and comprehensive as to solve at sight all the cases
that may arise. In the present case I think that the loss sustained by
the appellants was not really incidental to their trade as innkeepers, and
fell upon them in their character not of traders, but of householders.
Accordingly I think that this appeal must be dismissed.

He also referred to Fairrie v. Hall (2), in which the
taxpayer, a sugar broker, claimed the right to deduct
from his assessment £550 damages and £3025 legal expenses
which he had been obliged to pay as the result of a malicious
libel published by him against the chairman of a rival
company. In that case MacNaghten, J., following the
Strong v. Woodifield case, disallowed the deductions, find-
ing that the said sums were not losses connected with or
arising out of the taxpayer’s trade, but fell upon him in the
character of a calumniator of a rival sugar broker.

It seems to me that in the matter now before me these
cases can have no application on the point under discussion.
The business of the respondent was that of manufacturing,
distributing and selling dental supplies and it was in

(1) (1908) AC. 448. (2) (1947) 2 AER. 14].
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relation to its trading practices in manufacturing, dis-
tributing and selling that the Commissioner caused an
investigation to be held and that later the Crown laid the
criminal charge. If the respondent had not been engaged
in the manufacture and sale of dental supplies and if it
had not followed certain trade practices in connection
with its business, no investigation would have been held,
no charge would have been laid and no such expenses
would have been incurred. I am quite unable to find
that such expenses were incurred as “personal” expenses
or that they were incurred in any manner or capacity
other than that of trader.

In the Supreme Court of Canada the deductibility of
legal expenses has been considered on: a number of oceasions.
In the case of The Minister of National Revenue v. The
Dominion Natural Gas Co. Ltd. (1), the decision was
concerned with a deduction claimed by the respondents in
respect of the costs of litigation, which, in its results,
affirmed the right of the respondent under certain bylaws
of the Township of Barton to sell gas in certain localities
in the City of Hamilton. In that case the decision in this
Court (2) was reversed and the deductions disallowed. In
the case of The Minister of National Revenue v. The
Kellogg Co. of Canada, Ltd. (3), Duff, C.J. summarized
the Court’s finding in the Dominion Natural Gas case as
follows:

Tt was held by this Court that the payment of these costs was not
an expenditure “laid out as part of the process of profit earning” but

was an expenditure made “with a view of preserving an asset or advantage
for the enduring benefit of the trade,” and, therefore, capital expenditure.

In the instant case it is not eontended that the amounts
disbursed were capital expenditures.

In the Kellogg case Duff, CJ., speaking for all the
members of the Court, after stating that counsel for the
appellant rested his case on the decision in the Dominion
Natural Gas Co. case, and after reviewing that case and
the decision thereon, stated:

The present appeal concerns expenditures made by the respondent
company in payment of the costs of litigation between that company
and the Canadian Shredded Wheat Company. To quote from the judg-
ment of the Privy Council, delivered by Lord Russell of Killowen in

(1) (1941) S.C.R. 19. (2) (1940) Ex. CR. 9.
(3) (1943) S.CR. 58.
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Canadian Shredded Wheat Co. Ltd. v. Kellogg Co. of Canada, Lid.
(1938) 2 D.L.R. 145, at 149, the Canadian Shredded Wheat Company
claimed

“an injunction to restrain (the respondent) from infringing the
registered trade marks consisting of the words “Shredded Wheat” by the
use of the words “Shredded Wheat”, or “Shredded Whole Wheat’ or
“Shredded Whole Wheat Biscuit”, or any words only colourably differing
therefrom.”

As regards this payment, the question in issue was whether or not
the registered trade marks of the plaintiffs in the action were valid trade
marks, or, in other words, whether or not the present respondents, The
Kellogg Company, and all other members of the public were excluded
from the use of the words in respect of which the complaint was made.
The right upon which the respondents relied was not a right of property,
or an exclusive right of any description, but the right (in common with all
other members of the public) to describe their goods in the manner in
which they were describing them.

It was pointed out in The Minister of National Revenue v. The
Dowminion Natural Gas Company, supra, at p. 25, that in the ordinary
course legal expenses are simply current expenditures and deductible as
such. The expenditures in question here would appear to fall within this
general rule. i

It is very clear that the appellant does not succeed in bringing his
case within the decision upon which he relies.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.

The principles applied in that case seem to me to be
applicable here. The dispute which arose and which
resulted in the payment of legal expenses was occasioned
by certain trading practices which in the result were not
found to be illegal. The right upon which the respondent
relied was the right to conduect its business in a certain
manner and was not a right of property or an exclusive
right of any description, but the right, in common with
all other members of the publie, to follow the trade prac-
tices which it was following. Insofar as the provisions of
section 6(1) (a) are concerned, I am unable to perceive
any essential difference between expenses incurred in
defending a right of a trader to describe his goods in a
certain manner (in common with all other members of the
public) and expenses incurred in successfully defending a
right to the use of certain trade practices which, so far as
I am aware, were equally available to all members of the
publie.

Further, I am unable to find that any distinetion can be
made between the legal expenses incurred in the proceedings
before the Commissioner and those expenses incurred in
defending the criminal charge laid against the respondent,
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of which charge it was acquitted. The same matters were
in issue throughout and arose out of precisely the same
circumstances. In view of the fact that the respondent
was acquitted, I do not think that in this case the mere
fact that the charge against the respondent was made
under the Criminal Code has any bearing on the deducti-
bility or otherwise of the expenses incurred in defence of
that charge. The result might have been different had
the respondent been found guilty of the charge, but as to
that I need say nothing,.

The decision in Spofforth & Prince v. Golden (H. M.
Inspector of Taxes) (1) is of considerable interest. In
that case the appellant was a firm of chartered accountants
and Mr. Spofforth, one of the partners, was accused of
conspiring with a client to defraud the revenue in setting
up a new corporation. No charge was laid against Mr.
Prince, the other partner, but in defending the charge
before the Magistrate, Mr. Spofforth had his own counsel
and Mr. Prince was represented by counsel having a watch-
ing brief. The case broke down in lmine and the
Magistrate declined to commit Mr. Spofforth. The costs
incurred by both Mr. Spofforth and Mr. Prince were paid
by the firm and the firm claimed the right to deduct the
legal expenses so incurred from the profits of the partner-
ship for the year.

Wrottesley, J. disallowed these deductions. As I read
the judgment, the costs incurred by Spofforth were dis-
allowed on the ground that they were incurred in defending
a charge against him personally and not a charge against
the partnership; there was also cohsiderable doubt as to
whether the costs, while paid by the appellant, were, in
fact, incurred by the partnership. The costs of Mr. Prince
were also disallowed on the ground that while Mr. Prince
was separately advised, both he and Mr. Spofforth were
aiming not at the making of profits by the partnership, but
at enabling Mr. Prince to protect his own interests.

But in that case Wrottesley, J. did allow deductions in
respect of legal costs incurred by the partnmership itself.
Mr. Spofforth received a letter from the Solicitor of Inland
Revenue stating that the latter wished to take statements
of evidence from two employees of the Appellants. Mr.

(D (1945) 26 R.T.C. 310.



ExCR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA

Spofforth immediately consulted his partner, Mr. Prince,
and sought an interview with their solicitors on the 18th
of December, 1940, and on the 31st of December, 1940,
the solicitors wrote to the Solicitor of Inland Revenue.
The appellant partnership claimed that the legal expense
so incurred by it should be allowed as a deduction, and,
in allowing them, Wrottesley, J. said at p. 315:

From the letter written by Messrs. Rowe & Maw on 31st December,
1940, it would appear that at and down to this stage this firm was acting
for the appellants in the ordinary course of business, and in cirecumstances
in which the appellants can fairly say that the purpose for which they
gave the instructions and incurred the resulting costs were their ordinary
professional purposes. There had been a somewhat unusual demand by
a government department to interview servants of the firm, and in that
case it was an ordmary business precaution that the firm’s solicitors should
be called in to advise. If, therefore, any appreciable sum of costs was
incurred by the firm up to this point, it is, in my view, properly to be
deducted.

In that case, therefore, the legal expenses actually
incurred by the partnership in preparing to meet a demand
by a department of Government were considered to be
in the ordinary course of business and deductible as such.
It was apparently not necessary in that case to reach any
conclusion as to whether the legal expenses at the trial
would have been allowed had the partnership been charged
with and acquitted of conspiracy, for, while the learned
judge posed that as one of the questions which he might
have to determine, I am unable to find that he did so.

Reference may also be made to Mitchell (Inspector of
Tazes) v. B. W. Noble Ltd. (1). In that case the directors
of the company, being satisfied that in order to save the
company from scandal it was necessary to get rid of a
certain director, paid him a large sum of money and
claimed the right to deduet that sum in computing its
profits. The Court of Appeal in affirming the judgment
of Rowlatt, J. held that that sum must be regarded as
money “wholly and exclusively laid out and expended for
the purposes of the trade” of the company, and were
deduetible as such.

Lord Hanworth, M.R. said in part at p. 737:

It was a payment made in the course of business, with reference
to a particular difficulty which arose in the course of the year, and was
made not in order to secure an actual asset to the company but to enable
the company to continue to carry on, as it had done in the past, the

(1) (1927) 1 X.B. 719,
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same type and high quality of business, unfettered and unimperilled by
the presence of one who, if the public had known about his position,
might have caused difficulty in its business and whom it was necessary
to deal and settle with at once.

And in the same case Sargent, L.J. said that

1t is quite impossible to put agamst the capital account of the company

. & payment of this nature. It seems to me that the payment . . .
was not of such a nature; it certainly was not capital withdrawn from
the company, or any sum employed or intended to be employed as capital
m the business . . . To my mind, it is essentially different from these
various payments in the cases which have been referred to, which were
of the nature of adding to, or improving the equipment, or otherwise
made for the permanent benefit of the company.

It is true that the deduction permitted in that case was
not in respect of legal expenses, but as I have said above,
the tests to be applied are the same for legal expenses as
for other expenses. It seems to me that in many respects
the opinions so expressed by the Master of the Rolls and
Sargent, L.J. are applicable here. The payments were
made in the usual course of business and were made with
reference to a particular difficulty which arose in the course
of the year, namely, the investigation by the Commissioner,
the charge laid against the respondent and the unfavourable
and damaging publicity which resulted therefrom, and
which would have been greatly enhanced had the charge
been sustained. The disbursements had nothing to do
with the assets or capital of the company, but were made
in an effort—which in the result turned out to be successful
—to establish that its trading practices were not illegal,
and to enable it to carry on as it had in the past, unim-
perilled by charges that such practices were illegal. They
were wholly, exclusively and necessarily paid out for these
purposes and were therefore, in my opinion, laid out for
the purposes of its trade and for the purposes of earning
the income.

Reference may also be made to the Governor and Com-
pany of Adventurers of England Trading into Hudson's
Bay v. Minister of National Revenue (1). In that case
the company claimed the right to deduct legal expenses
incurred in connection with an action brought by it in
the United States to restrain a firm from using a name

(1) (1947) Ex. C.R. 130.
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similar to that of the company. In allowing the deduction, }35_5
Angers J. said: MINISTER

The legal expenses and costs laid out by the appellant to protect its N or
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trade name, business and reputation were not incurred with the object REVENTE
of creating or acquiring any new asset but were incurred in the ordinary v,
course of protecting and maintaining its already existing assets. On  Cauvnk

the other hand, I do not believe that these expenses and costs can be

considered as being a capital outlay or loss. Ca,n_ﬂ)n J.
. . There was no new asset brought into existence by these pro-
ceedings. The expenses were incurred in the ordinary course of maintaining
the already existing assets of the Company.
I am of the opinion, therefore, that the judgment of the
Income Tax Appeal Board was right and that the dis-
bursements claimed by the respondent do not fall within
the exclusions of the Income War Tax Act.
There will therefore be judgment affirming the decision
of the Income Tax Appeal Board and dismissing this appeal.
The respondent is entitled to its costs after taxation.
Judgment accordingly.
BRITISH COLUMBIA ADMIRALTY DISTRICT 1_9(5_1’
BETWEEN: Dec. 18
1952
ALBERTA WHEAT POOL PLAINTIFF: JL—’T].
ELEVATORS LIMITED ........ e
AND
THE SHIP ENSENADA ................ DEFENDANT.

Shapping—Ship striking dolphin with too much momentum—Damages—
Commission evidence forms no part of record if not read by either
party.

Held: That either party to an action may read into the record the
evidence of witnesses examined on commission and if neither party
chooses to do so such evidence does not form part of the record.

2. That defendant is liable to plaintiff for damages suffered by plaintiff
through defendant ship striking a dolphin on plaintiff’s wharf with
too much momentum.

ACTION for damages allegedly caused by defendant ship.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Sidney Smith, District Judge in Admiralty for the British
Columbia Admiralty District, at Vancouver.
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Cecil Merritt for the plaintiff.
Vernon Hill and J. Cunningham for the defendant.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

SooNEY SMrrH D.J.A. now (January 11, 1952) delivered
the following judgment:

In this action the plaintiff claims damages for damage
done to its dolphin, situated at the northwest corner of
plaintifi’s wharf in Vancouver harbour, by the defendant
ship while berthing along the west side of the wharf about
noon on 2nd May 1951.

At the trial evidence, which I accept, was given by three
of plaintiff’s “tie-up crew,” who were standing-by to take
the ship’s mooring lines. They testified as to the force
with which the ship struck the dolphin; the successive
cracking of its several piles and the lateral displacement
of the whole. The all-important witness for the defence
was the pilot in' charge of the vessel (under the Master)
at the time. He was not aware of any undue impact when
coming alongside but admits having been told by the
plaintiff’s foreman of the alleged damage when he was
leaving the vessel. One witness from an assisting tug and
another from a line-boat were also called. They testified
they saw nothing unusual, perhaps due to the position of
their respective vessels at the time.

The evidence of the Master and Chief Officer of the
Ensenada had at the instance of the defendant been taken
on commission at Montreal, but defendant’s counsel
declined to read this into the record on the authority of
Gogstad & Co. v. 8.8. Camosun (1), followed by me in
Pacific Express v. Salvage Princess (2). Here plaintiff
submitted that defendant’s counsel had no right of election
and that the evidence must be tendered, the witnesses being
absent from the jurisdiction. As the point was important
and recurring, I reconsidered the matter. With great
deference I am satisfied that my predecessor in this Court
was right and that defendant’s counsel may exercise the
privilege he sought. In addition to Atkinson v. Casserley
(3), relied on in the Camosun case, reference may be made

(1) (1940) 56 B.CR. 156. (2) (1949) Ex. C.R. 230.
(3) (1910) 22 O.L.R. 527.
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to the form of the long order for commission in our Supreme
Court Rules, p. 219, form 35 (b); to Admiralty rule 111;
and to Proctor v. Lainson (1). I think it quite clear from
these authorities that either party may put in commission
evidence, and that if neither does so, it forms no part of
the record, and that is the situation here.

On the evidence before me I am of opinion that there
was an error of judgment on the part of those in charge of
the defendant ship, who were in control of the operation
of making fast alongside the wharf in the face of no
particular difficulties. I think they lost control of the
vessel and allowed her to strike the dolphin with too much
momentum, thus doing the damage complained of. The
dolphin is for the purpose of protecting the corner of the
wharf and cannot be expected to withstand blows of exces-
sive violence. Here the dolphin was composed of 19 piles;
7 outside piles had been broken prior to this accident; 9
inside piles were broken on this occasion; only 3 remained
intact.

I must therefore find for the plaintiff with costs. I think
the parties will have no difficulty in reaching a settlement
on the damages. To assist them I may say that in my
view nothing should be allowed for the cost of replacement
of the previously broken piles. Failing settlement there
will be a reference to the learned Deputy Registrar.

Judgment accordingly.

(1) (1836) 7 C. & P. 629.
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BETWEEN:
FURNESS (PACIFIC) LIMITED........ APPELLANT;
AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL RESPONDENT
REVENUE .................... )

Revenue—Income tax—Income—Deductions from income—Income War
Tax Act R.S.C. 1927, ¢. 97, secs. 8, 6(1) (p), 6(1) (j), 8—“Taxation
pertod”—“Taxation year”—Losses sustained tn business operations in
forewgn country—Appeal dismissed.

Appellant, mecorporated in the Province of British Columbia, carries on
business in 'Canada and in the United States of America. In the
years 1944 to 1946 it sustamed losses on its United States operations
and in 1947 and 1948 it made a profit on those operations. In its
return under the provisions of the Income War Tax Act for the years
1947 and 1948 it claimed a deduction on its United States operations
of the losses in the years 1944 to 1946 from its income earned m
the United States for 1947 and 1948. These deductions were dis-
allowed and the Income Tax Appeal Board affirmed the income tax
assessments for 1947 and 1948. The Company appealed to this Court.

Held: That “taxation period” in 8. 6(1) (7) of the Income War Tax Act
is not synonomous with “taxation year” in s. 5(1) (p) of the Act.

2. That the provisions of s. 5(1) (p) of the Act are general while those
of 8. 6(1) (j) are specific in that they deal with the computation of
tax on foreign income and so override those of s 5(1) (p) and the
appeal must be dismissed.

APPEAL from the judgment of the Income Tax Appeal
Board.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Sidney Smith, Deputy Judge of the Court, at Vancouver.

D. N. Hossie, K.C. for appellant.
R. M. Howard and F. J. Cross for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

Soney SmitE D.J. now (January 9, 1952) delivered
the following judgment:

This appeal is brought from a judgment of the Income
Tax Appeal Board sustaining the appellant’s income tax
assessments for the years 1947 and 1948. Only the former
year need be dealt with as the same principles apply to
both.
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The appellant was incorporated in the Province of British
Columbia and carries on a general shipping business in this
Province and also in the United States of America by
means of branches in Los Angeles and San Francisco and
sub-agents in Seattle and Portland.

In the taxation years prior to 1944 the appellant, gener-
ally speaking, made a profit on its United States operations
as well ag on its Canadian operations, During the relevant
years it claimed and received, under sec. 8 of the Income
War Tax Act, relief for income taxes paid to the Revenue
authorities of the U.S. on income earned in the United
States. In the taxation years 1944 to 1946 however appel-
lant suffered losses on its United States operations and
did not then claim such losses as a deduction from income
in these taxation years. But in the taxation years 1947
and 1948 appellant again made a profit on its U.S. opera-
tions, and in its income tax returns for such years it claimed
that it was entitled to deduct the losses suffered by it in
the taxation years 1944 to 1946 from its income earned in
the U.S8. in the taxation years 1947 and 1948. Appellant
says that it is entitled to deduct these losses under sec.
5(1) (p) of the Income War Tax Act; it admits that
under sec. 6(1) (j) of the Act it is prohibited from deduct-
ing such losses in the taxation year in which the losses
were incurred; but it contends there is no such prohibition
in sec. 6(1) (j) with respect to losses suffered in the
previous three years. The respondent contends otherwise
and that is the issue in this case.

The relevant statutory provisions of secs. 5 and 6, reduced
to material skeleton form, are as follows:
Seec. 3—“Income” means the annual net profit . . . directly or
indirectly received by a person . . . from any . . . business . . . whether
derived from sources within Canada or elsewhere.
Sec. 5(1) “Income” . . . shall . . . be subject to the following
deductions:—
(p) Amounts in respect of losses sustained in the 3 years immediately
preceding . . . the taxation year, but . . .

Sec. 6(1) . . . a deduction shall not be allowed in respect of

(7) net losses sustained in . . ., any taxation period . . . in any
foreign country, after the tax-payer has in respect of any such
'period . . . received reciprocal tax relief under this Act for
taxes paid to any such country in respect of profits earned therein.

51001—2a
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It is common ground that the amount of income subject
to Canadian taxation in any particular year must be
ascertained under the provisions of the Canadian Income
War Tax Act; that appellant elected to claim and received
tax relief under sec. 8 of the Act during the relevant period;
that accordingly sec. 6(1) (j) precludes it from deducting
net losses sustained in the taxation year for which the
tax is being computed. But on the other hand appellant
says it is not precluded by sec. 6(1) (j) from deducting
losses for the three preceding years (1944, 1945, 1946) from
U.S. profits earned in 1947; that it retains this right under
sec. 5(1) (p); that the quantum of income derived from
sources within the U.S. during the years 1947 can only be
arrived at after due allowance for business losses incurred
in the U.S. during 1944, 1945 and 1946, as provided by
sec. 5(1) (p) of the Act; that the question in issue is not
the deduction of losses as envisaged in sec. 6(1) () but
rather the proper application of the overriding definition
of income in sec. 3 and in sec. 5(1) (p).

The respondent’s answer is short and simple, if anything
can be regarded as simple in income tax matters. It says
it comes squarely within the provisions of sec. 6(1) (7). It
submits that this section was enacted in: 1935 to remedy
an unfavourable situation which was found to exist in the
case of a company carrying on business both in Canada
and abroad. The respondent brought to my attention and
adopted the observations of Mr. H. H. Stikeman K.C. on
this point in the Dominion of Canada Taxation Service,
vol. 1, sec. 6, para. J., p. 6-501:

This section was designed to remedy a condition whereby the
Canadian Revenue would bear a burden when losses were incurred and
receive no tax when profits were earned. As it now stands, a Canadian
company which brings into account profits earned in any country which
affords reciprocal relief from taxation under section 8 of the Act may
claim as a credit against the Canadian Tax on such profits the tax paid
to the Country where the profits arose. It follows, therefore, that little
or no tax is paid in Canada in respect of such profits. It would therefore
be improper to permit profits made in Canada to be reduced by losses

incurred in a foreign country and in respect of which no tax is ever
paid in Canada.

I accept this statement of the respondent’s submission.
The question is whether the section, as drafted, is adequate

to bring the circumstances of appellant’s case within its
scope. I think it is. The language of the section is wide.
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It speaks of “taxation period”; not “taxation year”. I
cannot find these terms synonymous. It provides no ground
for saying that while the losses of any one taxation year
may not be offset against income in that year, yet by
virtue of sec. 5(1) (p) losses of the three preceding years
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Board this would be a curious anomaly, were it so. It
seems to me such a construction would require very express
language, which is altogether missing here.

Appellant based an argument on the expression “net
losses” found at the commencement of sec. 6(1) (j).
Whatever these words may mean in their context I do
not think they mean that the aforesaid foreign losses are
to be deducted from foreign income before the computation
of tax. Nor do I think any inference favourable to appel-
lant can be drawn from the circumstance that sec. 5(1) (p)
was first passed in 1940 and did not assume its present
form until 1944. I must take the Act as it stood during
the years in question. And doing so, I cannot overlook
the force of the respondent’s submission that the provisions
of sec. 5(1) (p) are general, while those of sec. 6(1) (j)
are specific in that they deal with the computation of tax
on foreign income, and thus override those of sec. 5(1) (p).

An alternative point raised by appellant was the question
of double taxation, and Article XVI of the Canada-United
States of America Tax Convention Act, 1943, was referred
to. But I can find no case of double taxation here, and
even if there were, I do not see what this Court could do
about it.

I have not found this an easy case. Appellant’s argu-
ment was attractive, and reasonable, and it is with some
regret that I find I am unable to give way to it. But in the
end, it seems to me clear enough that the language of the
statute cannot be construed as appellant would have it.
And I am bound by the statute.

The result is that the argument put forward on behalf
of appellant fails and this appeal must be dismissed with
costs,

Judgment accordingly.
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BETWEEN :
THE JAMES MacLAREN CO. LTD. ....APPELLANT;
AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL RESPONDENT
REVENUE .................... )

Revenue—Ezxcess Profits Tarx—Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940—Income War
Tax Act R8.C. 1927, ¢. 97, s. 8, 5. (1) (w)—P.C. 331, January 30, 1948
as amended March 6, 19/8—Portion of corporation taxes paid Province
of Quebec deductible from income—Method of compuimg amount
deductible—Cost of “barkwng” logs excluded as being considered as
part of manufacturing or processmmg—Appeal allowed.

Held: That in computing the net income of appellant for the year 1947
to ascertain its profits under the Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, the
appellant is entitled to deduct from its taxable income a proportion
of taxes paid for that year to the Province of Quebec under the
provisions of the Quebec Corporation Tax Act; Spruce Falls Power
& Paper Co. Lid. v. The Minister of National Revenue, Post p. 75.

2. That in computing the costs of the integrated operations carried on by
appellant in order to arrmve at the amount properly deductible from
income computed on a cost-ratio basis the cost of “barking” the logs
should be excluded entirely from the computation, “barking” being
considered as part of the manufacturing or processing.

APPEAL under the Excess Profits Tax Act.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Ottawa.

John Aylen, K.C. and J. Ross Tolmie for appellant.
D.W. Mundell, K.C. and T. Z. Boles for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CamrroN J. now (December 14, 1951) delivered the
following judgment:

In its amended income and excess profits tax return for
the year 1947, the appellant claimed a deduction from its
taxable income of a proportion of taxes paid for that year
on its net income to the Province of Quebec under the
provisions of the Corporation Tax Act (Statutes of Quebec,
1947, c. 33, s. 6). By his amended notice of assessment
dated May 19, 1949, the respondent totally disallowed that
deduction. The appeal now before me is in respect of
that disallowance insofar only as it relates to excess profits
tax payable by the appellant.
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Under the Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, as amended, the
“profits” of the corporation means the amount of its net
taxable income as ascertained under the provisions of the
Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, c. 97, as amended,
subject to certain exemptions not here of importance. Under
the latter Act, “income” is defined by section 3, and by
section 5 certain deductions and exemptions are allowed.

For the taxation year 1947, the relevant permissible
deduction was as follows:

5(1) (w). Such amount as the Governor in Council may, by regu-
lation, allow in respect of taxes on income for the year from mining or
logging operations.

The appellant bases its claim on para. (w) and on the
regulations of the Governor in Council applicable thereto,
namely, P.C. 331, dated January 30, 1948, as amended by
P.C. 952, dated March 6, 1948. The respondent denies
that the appellant is entitled to any deduction under para.
(w) on the ground that the deductions permitted thereby
are limited to taxes levied specifically on logging and
mining operations; and that in any event the appellant
has not brought itself within the provisions of P.C. 331 as
amended. I understand that in the Province of Quebec
there has never been a tax levied specifically on logging
operations.

The appellant is a corporation having its head office at
Buckingham in the Province of Quebec and carries on
business exclusively in that province. It is engaged in
the manufacture of newsprint paper from pulp wood, its
business being wholly integrated. It cuts logs on timber
limits held under lease from the Province of Quebec, trans-
ports the logs by various methods to its pulp mill at
Buckingham and to its sulphite mill at Masson, at which
points the logs are converted into wood pulp and sulphite
pulp; at a later stage the wood pulp is conveyed to the
mill at Masson where it is mixed with sulphite pulp and
then manufactured into newsprint paper which is sold
to the consumers. In addition thereto, it also sells to
others timber of a type not needed by it in the manu-
facture of newsprint, either on the stump or after it has
been cut. It also purchases for its own use a certain
percentage of pulp wood which has been cut by settlers in
the area.
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It will be seen, therefore, that the appellant carried on
two separate operations. The first was a purely logging
operation, namely, the cutting and selling of logs as such.
Its records are kept in such a way that the net income
arising from that operation is clearly ascertained. The
appellant’s fiscal year ends on November 30 and it is
established that its net profit for that purely logging
operation for the calendar year 1947 was $88,587.87. By
the provisions of section 3(a) (i) of P.C. 331, a taxpayer
is entitled to deduct the whole of the provincial tax paid
in respect of that net profit. The provincial tax being at
the rate of 7 per cent, the appellant claims the right to
deduct eleven-twelfths of 7 per cent of that sum, namely,
$5,674.48.

The other operation of the appellant is a wholly inte-
grated one, namely, the acquisition or purchase of timber,
or the right to cut timber, the transportation of the logs
to the mills and the manufacturing and processing thereof
into newsprint paper. The profit on these operations is
derived solely upon the sale of the finished produects to the
consumers. The appellant alleges that in that integrated
operation it also carried on “logging operations” up to the
point where the logs are taken into the mills; and that
therefore a proper proportion of the tax paid to the
Province of Quebec on its net income is attributable to its
logging operations, and may therefore be deducted from
its net income in computing the taxable income under the
Excess Profits Tax Act. Later herein, I will refer to the
manner in which the appellant computes the amount so
claimed.

By consent, this case and that of Spruce Falls Power &
Paper Co. Ltd. (No. 33517) were heard together, the
general issues being precisely the same. In the Spruce
Falls case, the appellant was an Ontario corporation and
had paid taxes in the same year to the Province of Ontario
under the Ontario Corporations Tax Act, 1939. Its business
was wholly integrated, consisting in the manufacture and
sale of sulphite pulp and newsprint from pulp wood, which
pulp wood it acquired from its own properties or from
timber limits leased from the provinece or by purchase
from settlers. It did not, however, sell any logs as such.
In that case, I held that the appellant came within the
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provisions of para. (w) of section 5(1) of the Income War
Tax Act, and was entitled under the provisions of P.C. 331
to deduct that proportion of the tax paid to the Province
of Ontario on its net income, which on sound accounting
principles could be deemed as arising from its logging
operations—that is, up to the point where the logs were
taken into the mill for processing; and that in the absence
of any established market value for such logs “at the time
of delivery to the mill,”” such proportion was properly ascer-
tained on sound accounting principles to be the ratio
existing between the cost of the logging operations and the
total cost of the integrated operations.

For the reasons stated in the Spruce Falls case (which
need not be repeated here but may be considered as part of
my reasons for judgment in this case), I hold that the
appellant is entitled to the benefit of the provisions of para.
(w) of section 5(1) of the Income War Tax Act, and to
the provisions of the regulations applicable thereto, namely,
P.C. 331 as amended by P.C. 952, although the tax paid by
it to the Province of Quebec was not levied under an Act
specifically directed to income derived from logging and
mining operations. In essence, the provincial tax so levied
was the same ag that levied under the Ontario Corporations
Tax Act, 1939, in the Spruce Falls case.

It follows, therefore, that under the provisions of section
3(a) (1) of P.C. 331, the appellant in computing its net
taxable income is entitled to deduct that portion of the
provincial tax which is referable to its net profit from the
purely logging operations (i.e., where it sold the logs as
such), and that amount has been established at $5,674.48
(see Ex. 6—p. 2). As in the Spruce Falls case, I also find
that the portion of the second (or integrated) operation of
the appellant which preceded the taking of the logs into
the mills constituted a “logging” operation within the
meaning and intent of para. (w) and of P.C. 331, and
that in respect of that portion of the operation, the appel-
lant is entitled to the deduction provided in Part (ii) of
section 3(a) of P.C. 331.

I turn now to the method adopted by the appellant
in computing the deduction which it claims in respect of
the logging portion of the integrated operation. The
evidence is that in the absence of any available market
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value for logs at the time of delivery to the mills, it is in
accordance with sound accounting principles to consider
that the income reasonably deemed to have been acquired
from such logging operations is that same proportion of
the total income from the entire operation which the costs
of the logging operation bears to the total cost of the
entire operation. That principle is established by the
evidence of Mr. R. F. Burns, a chartered accountant and
a partner in the accounting firm of McDonald, Currie &
Co. (who were accountants for the appellant) and also by
the evidence of Mr. F. A. Coffey, a chartered accountant
and partner in the firm of P. S. Ross and Sons. For the
reasons given by them and for the reasons given by me in
the Spruce Falls case, I find that principle of apportionment
to be within the provisions of P.C. 331 and one which the
appellant is entitled to use. In the computation made
in this case, all selling and administrative expenses are
excluded.

The computation so made is as shown on Ex. 6 and is as
follows: The total cost of the logging operations are
established at $2,273,392.57, and the total cost of the inte-
grated operations (referred to as the cost of sales) is
established at $4,995,310.56, the former therefore being
45-51 per cent of the total. The total taxable profits,
excluding income from other departments, such as interest
received, profit on electric light department and on tele-
phone lines, and on the purely logging operations, ete., is
gshown to be $3,108,011.87, of which sum 45-51 per cent
is $1,414456.20. The provincial tax which was levied on
the income of the appellant for the integrated operations
was levied on an income of $3,108,011.87, and of that
amount 45-51 per cent, or $1,414,456.20 may be said to be
the income derived from the “logging” portion of the
integrated operation.

By the computation shown in Ex. 6, it is shown that the
total tax paid to the Provinece of Quebec for the period
January 1, 1947, to November 30, 1947, in respect of
the income from the integrated operation, was $198,540.42,
and applying to that figure the same ratio as exists between
$1,414,456.20 and $3,108,011.87 (or 45-51 per cent), it is
shown that the total tax paid to the Province of Quebec
on the logging portion of the integrated operation was
$90,355.75. That amount added to the sum of $5,674.48
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(the Quebec tax relating solely to the purely logging
operation above mentioned) makes up the total claim of the
appellant, namely, $96,030.23.

On the evidence, I find that the principles followed in
that computation are in accordance with the provisions
of P.C. 331 and that the net profit or gain so determined
may be reasonably deemed to have been derived by the
appellant from the operations mentioned in paragraphs A
and B of section 3(a) (ii) of P.C. 331, and to have been
computed in accordance with sound accounting principles
with reference to the value of the logs at the time of such
delivery to the mills, and excluding any amount added
thereto by reason of processing or manufacturing the logs.

Section 3(a) (ii) is as follows:
3. In these regulations,

(a) “Income derived from logging operations” by a person means

(ii) where he does not sell but processes, manufactures or exports

from Canada logs owned by him, the net profit or gain
reasonably deemed to have been derived by him from

(A) the acquisition of the timber or the right to cut the
timber from which the logs were obtained, and the
cutting and the transportation of the logs to the sawmill,
pulp or paper plant or other place for processing or
manufacturing, or to the carrier for export from Canada,
as the case may be, or

(B) the acquisition of the logs and the transportation of them
to such point of delivery

computed in accordance with sound accounting principles with

reference to the value of the logs at the time of such

delivery, excluding any amount added thereto by reason of

processing or manufacturing the logs;

The evidence shows that in its computation of costs of
the integrated operations, the appellant has included in
its costs of the “logging” portion, the cost of “barking”
the logs. It seems to me, however, that the provisions of
the Order in Council which I have cited clearly exclude
that as an item of costs of logging operations. The com-
putation provided for in para. (ii) is to ascertain the net
profit reasonably deemed to have been derived by the
appellant from certain specific operations only, namely,
the acquisition of the timber (or logs) or the right to cut
timber, the cutting thereof, and the transportation of the
logs to the mills or other point of delivery. It may well
be as suggested by counsel for the appellant that logs
when “barked” are still logs; but in view of the limitations
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mentioned, I think that item of cost should be excluded
entirely from the computation, “barking” being considered
ag part of the manufacturing or processing.

The evidence does not supply the barking/cosbs and I
am unable, therefore, to correct the computation or to
determine the proper percentage to be applied. I assume,
however, that the records of the appellant are of such a
nature that the exact costs of barking can be readily ascer-
tained and the proper adjustment made.

The general conclusions arrived at in the Spruce Falls
case are of equal application here. As in that case, there-
fore, I reject the application of the respondent to introduce
evidence of the agreements entered into between Canada
and seven of the provinces (not including Ontario and
Quebee) under the Dominion-Provineial Tax Rental Agree-
ments, Statutes of Canada, 1947, c. 58. A further objection
was raised by the respondent that the “logging” costs of
the integrated operations of the appellant are those of the
logs actually consumed in the mills in 1947, whereas some
of such logs may have been acquired, purchased and trans-
ported just prior to 1947. I considered that submission in
the Spruce Falls case and for the reasons given in that case
I must reject it. In the Spruce Falls case the respondent
originally contended that the deduction claimed was barred
by the provisions of section 6(1) (o) of the Income War
Tax Act and the regulations thereunder (P.C. 5948). I do
not know whether that question was originally raised in
this case. In any event, counsel for the respondent, in
argument, abandoned that defence entirely and it need not
be referred to further.

The appeal will therefore be allowed and there will be a
declaration that, (a) the appellant in computing its net
income for the year 1947 under the Excess Profits Tax Act
is entitled to deduct therefrom the sum of $5,674.48, that
amount being referable solely to its income on its purely
logging operations; (b) that the appellant is also entitled
to deduct therefrom the same proportion of $198,540.42
which the costs of the “logging” portion of the integrated
operation (namely, $2,273,392.57 minus the costs of barking
to be ascertained) bears to the total cost of the integrated
operation (or adjusted costs of sales), namely, $4,995,310.56.
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The assessment will therefore be set aside and the matter
referred back to the respondent: (1) to ascertain the costs
of the barking of the logs above referred to, and (2) to
compute the deduction to be allowed on the basis above
set forth, and (3) to re-assess the appellant accordingly.

The appellant will be entitled to its costs after taxation.

Judgment accordingly.

BETWEEN :
SPRUCE FALLS POWER AND A .
PAPER CO. LTD............... PPELLANT;
AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL| o
REVENUE ................... . ESPONDENT.

Revenue—Excess Profits Tax—Exzcess Profits Tax Act, 1940, Income War
Tax Act, RS.C. 1927, ¢. 97, 5. 8, 8. 6(1) (w)—P.C. 831, January 30, 1948,
re-enacted on March 6, 19/8—Interpretation Act, BR.S.C. 1927, ¢c. 1,
8. 20(a)—Tax on logging operations—Preamble to be disregarded
when language of an enaciment is clear—Calculation of amount
deductible in case of integrated business—Cost-ratio basis of arriving
at amount deductible correct—Method of calculation based on sound
accounting principles—Appeal allowed.

Appellant, incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario and
carrying on business in Ontario, appeals from its assessment for the
year 1947 under the Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, by which its claim
to deduct from its taxable income a portion of the total sum paid
by it to the Province of Ontario under the provisions of the Ontario
Corporations Tax Act for the year 1947 was disallowed.

Appellant’s business is the manufacture and sale of unbleached sulphite
pulp and newsprint. Its business i1s wholly integrated in that its
total operations comprise the acquisition of timber and logs, the
transport of them to its mill and their conversion by a series of
separate operations into sulphite or newsprint and the eventual sale
thereof to the ultimate consumer. The logging phase of the operation
is completed when the logs are delivered to the mill. None of the
logs are sold as such and appellant’s income is received only upon
the sale of the finished or semi-finished products.

The tax paid the Province of Ontario by appellant was a general corpora-
tions income tax and not in any sense limited to corporations carrying
on a specific type of business such as logging. The tax paid was
on the whole of its net income and not merely on that part which
might be considered as attributable to its logging operations.
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1951 By 5. 8(1) (w) of the Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, c. 97 a deduction

S —~ from income was permitted corporations in “such amount as the
PRUCE FaLLS G . : . .
POWER AND Governor in Council may, by regulation, allow in respect of taxes on
Paprr Co. income for the year from mining or logging operations.” P.C. No. 331
Lmp. January 30, 1948, re-enacted on March 6, 1948, provided these regula-
V. tions for determining the allowance under s. 5(1) (w) of the Act, “the
MinysTER .
oF amount that a person may deduct from income under Paragraph (w)
NATIONAL . . . Is an amount not exceeding the proportion of the total taxes
RevENUE therein mentioned paid by him to

(a) the government of a Province . . . that the part of his
income that is equal to the amount of

(c)

(d) income derived from logging operations as defined herein
is of the total income in respect of which the taxes therein
mentioned were so paid.

2.

3. In these regulations
(a) ‘Income derived from logging operations’ by a person means

L)

165 ) T
(ii) when he does not sell but processes, manufactures or
exports from 'Canada logs owned by him the net profit
or gain reasonably deemed to have been derived by him
from
(A) the acquisition of the timber or the right to cut the timber
from which the logs were obtamed, and the cutting and
the transportation of the logs to the sawmill, pulp or
paper plant or other place for processing or manufacturing
or to the carrier for export from Canada, as the case
may be, or
(B) the acquisition of the logs and the transportation of them
to such point of delivery
computed in accordance with sound accounting principles with
reference to the value of the logs at the time of such delivery,
excluding any amount added thereto by reason of processing or
manufacturing the logs;

Appellant apportioned its net income as between the logging operations
and its total operations in the same proportion as the cost of the
logging operations bears to the total cost of all its operations, namely,
4636 per cent, and claims to be entitled to deduct 46-36 per cent
of the tax paid to the Province of Ontario as being a tax paid to a
province in respect of income from logging operations.

Held: That when a taxpayer is engaged in an integrated business such as
the appellant he has a right to apportion his income as between
logging and other operations and to claim a deduction for provincial
and municipal taxes in respect thereof.

2. That if the language of an enactment is clear, the preamble must be
disregarded and there is no inconsistency between the provisions of
P.C. 331 as amended and the final version of Para. (w) of 8. 5(1) of the
Income War Tax Act.
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3. That appellant in 1947 did conduct logging operations and that P.C. 331
remained in full effect throughout 1947 and appellant is entitled to
have its rights determined thereunder.

4. That the basis of arriving at the amount claimed for deduction on a
cost-ratio basis, that is, by apportioning the profit of appellant as
between logging operations and other operations in the same proportion
as the cost thereof and not on & market value basis of the logs
delivered to the mill iy established by the evidence and is made on
sound accounting principles and is within the provisions of P.C. 331.

APPEAL under the Excess Profits Tax Act.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Ottawa.

Roderick Johnston, K.C. for appellant.
D. W. Mundell, K.C. and T. Z. Boles for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CamEeroN J. now (December 14, 1951) delivered the
following judgment:

This is an appeal from an assessment for the year 1947,
and made under the Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, as
amended, whereby the respondent totally disallowed the
appellant’s claim to be entitled to a deduction from its
taxable income of $188,454, being a portion of the total sum
of $406,501.29 paid by it to the Province of Ontario for
the year 1947 under the provisions of the Ontario Corpora-
tions Tax Act, 1939. The dispute centres around the inter-
pretation to be placed on section 5(1) (w) of the Income
War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, ¢. 97, and on the provisions of
P.C. 33L

I think it is advisable at once to set out certain facts
in regard to the operations of the appellant in order that
the issues may be clarified. The appellant is incorporated
under the laws of the Province of Ontario, having its head
office at Toronto. Its business is the manufacture and sale
of unbleached sulphite pulp and newsprint. Its mill is
located at Kapuskasing, Ontario. Its basic raw material
is pulp wood. In that district it is the owner of 175,488
acres of timberland and also holds eighty-two townships
under Crown lease. Camps are established in these areas,
the trees are felled, the branches trimmed and the trees
cut into logs. The logs are then transported to the mill at
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Kapuskasing by river, rail or truck. The extent of the woods
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men were engaged thereon in the winter (a number some-
what in excess of the average number employed in the mill
proper), that the man-days thereon totalled 514,938 (also
in excess of the man-hours worked at the mill), and that
339,627 cords of wood were actually consumed in the mill
operations. To supplement its supply of pulp wood, the
appellant also purchased a substantial quantity of logs from
settlers and then transported them by rail or truck to the
mill.

The “logging” phase of the operation is completed when
the logs are delivered to the mill. None of the logs are
sold as such. The appellant’s business is wholly integrated
in that its total operations comprise the acquisition of the
timber or logs, the transport thereof to the mill, its con-
version by a series of separate operations into sulphite pulp
or newsprint, and the eventual sale thereof to the ultimate
consumer. Its income therefore is received only upon the
sale of the finished or semi-finished produects.

For the taxation year 1947, the appellant, pursuant to
the provisions of section 14(1) of the Ontario Corporations
Tax Act, 1939, as amended, paid to the Province of Ontario
the sum of $406,501.29, that section being as follows:

14. (1) In addition to the taxes imposed in sections 10 and 12, and
save as in this section otherwise provided, every incorporated company
which has its head or other office in Ontario, or which holds assets in
Ontario, or which transacts business in Ontario, shall for every fiscal year
of such company pay a tax of seven per centum calculated upon the
net income of the incorporated company.

Certain corporations by section 14(3) were exempted
from payment of that tax. It is clear, however, that the
tax was a general corporations income tax and was not
in any sense limited to corporations carrying on a specific
type of business such as logging; and that the tax was
payable on the whole of the net income computed in
accordance with the provisions of the Aet. The appellant,
therefore, after estimating its net profit in accordance with
that Aet, paid the tax on the whole of its net income and
not merely on that part thereof which might be considered
as attributable to its logging operations.
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Under the Excess Profits Tax Act, the “profits” of a E’f_ﬁ
corporation means the amount of its net taxable income Srruce Falis
ag determined under the provisions of the Income War Tax Paoge éﬂ"
Act, RS.C. 1927, ¢. 97, as amended, subject to certain I‘,’f”
exemptions not here of importance. Under the latter Act, Mﬂf)fm‘
“income” is defined by section 3, and by section 5 certain Naronan
defined deductions and exemptions are allowed. For the Revevs
taxation year 1947 the relevant permissible deduction was
as follows:

85(1) (w) Such amount as the Governor in Council may, by regulation,
allow in respect of taxes on income for the year from mining or logging
operations.

Cax'n:r;n J.

The appellant bases its claim on para. (w) and on the
regulations of the Governor in Council thereunder as
enacted by P.C. 331. That Order in Council was passed on
January 30, 1948, but on March 6, 1948, section 1 thereof
was revoked and re-enacted in another form. Thereafter,
the operative and relevant portions of P.C. 331 as so
amended and as they related to the taxation year 1947,
were as follows: )

1. Subject to these regulations the amount that a person may deduct
from income under paragraph (w) of subsection one of section five, is an
amount not exceeding the proportion of the total taxes therein mentioned
paid by him to

(a) the Government of a Province, . . .
that the part of his income that is equal to the amount of

(¢) income derived by him from mining operations as defined herein, or

(d) income derived by him from logging operations as defined herein
is of the total income in respeet of which the taxes therein menmoned
were 50 paid.

2. No deduction from income shall be allowed under these regulations
unless the taxpayer produces to the Minister a receipt or receipts for
payment of the taxes in respect of which the deduction is claimed.

3. In these regulations,
(a) ‘Income derived from logging operations’ by a person means
(i) where logs are sold by him to any person at the time of or
prior to delivery to a sawmill, pulp or paper plant or other
place for processing or manufacturing logs, or delivery to a
carrier for export from Canada, or delivery otherwise, the net
profit or gain derived by him from
(A) the acquisition of the timber or the right to cut the timber
from which the logs were obtained, and the cutting and
sale, or the cutting, transportation and sale of the logs, or

(B) the acquisition, transportation and sale of the logs, or
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(i) where he does not sell but processes, manufactures or exports
from Canada logs owned by him, the net profit or gain
reasonably deemed to have been derived by him from

(A) the acquisition of the timber or the right to cut the timber
from which the logs were obtained, and the cutting and
the transportation of the logs to the sawmill, pulp or
paper plant or other place for processing or manufacturing,
or to the carrier for export from Canada, as the case may
be, or

(B) the acquisition of the logs and the transportatien of them
to such point of delivery

computed in accordance with sound accounting principles with

reference to the value of the logs at the time of such delivery,

excluding any amount added thereto by reason of processing

or manufacturing the logs;

In brief, the contention of the appellant is that para. (w)
is mot limited in its scope to taxes paid specifically on
logging operations as such, but that in an integrated busi-
ness such as its, where one of its operations is a logging
operation, it is entitled to apportion its net income between
the various operations; that such an apportionment is a
commonly recognized principle, and is specifically recog-
nized in the regulations of P.C. 331. It has, therefore,
apportioned its net income as between the logging opera-
tions and its total operations in the same proportion as the
cost of the logging operations bears to the total cost of all
its operations, namely, 46-36 per cent. Applying the same
principle to the tax paid to the Province of Ontario, it
claims to be entitled to deduct 46-36 per cent of that tax
as being a tax paid to a province in respect of income from
logging operations.

The defence is a denial that the appellant comes within
the provisions of para. (w) or the regulations, for the
reasons later to be referred to. In his decision and in the
pleadings, the respondent had also alleged that the dedue-
tion was barred by the provisions of section 6(1) (o) of the
Income War Tax Act and the regulations thereunder
(P.C. 5948), but in argument his counsel abandoned that
defence entirely. It is not necessary therefore, to consider
the alternative claim of the appellant as set out in para. 18
of the statement of claim. It is admitted that section 2
of P.C. 331 has been complied with.

The first question that arises is in regard to P.C. 331.
Mr. Mundell, counsel for respondent, submits that as it was
enacted and amended prior to the enactment of para. (w)
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in the form which I have set out above, it must be read E{l
with reference to the form in which para. (w) existed at Spruce Faiis
the time such regulations were passed and amended. Para, Eo7ERAND

Parer Co.
(w) was first added to section 5(1) in 1946 and made L.
applicable to the year 1947. The form in which it then MIasTER
appeared is of no importance as it was repealed in 1947, o
and as then re-enacted was made applicable to the taxation Revenus

year 1947 and subsequent years, and was as follows: Cameron J.

(w) Such amount as the Governor i Council may, by regulation, allow
for amounts paid m respect of taxes imposed on the income, or any
part thereof, by the Government of a Province by way of tax on income
derived from mining operations or mncome derived from logging operations.

While it was in that form P.C. 331 was passed and
amended. Later, in 1948, the 1947 version of para. (w)
was repealed and re-enaected in the form I have above set
out and made applicable to the year 1947. As I have
already stated, P.C. 331 was not further amended or
annulled and remained in effect for the year 1947. Mr.
Mundell submits, therefore, that notwithstanding that the
1947 para. (w) was repealed, the regulations passed while
it was unrepealed must be construed with reference to it
in that form.

In my opinion that is the wrong approach to the ques-
tion. The 1947 version of para. (w) never came into
operation so far as the 1947 taxation year was concerned
and I do not think it need be considered. It is to be noted,
also, that P.C. 331 was enacted shortly prior to and in
anticipation of the proposed revision of para. (w). The
matter is governed, I think, by the provisions of the
Interpretation Act, R.S.C. 1927, ¢. 1, s. 20 (a), which was
ag follows:

20. Whenever any Act or enactment is repealed, and other provisions
are substituted by way of amendment, revision or consclidation,

(a) all regulations, orders, ordinances, rules and by-laws made under
the repealed Act or enactment shall contmue good and vald, in
go far ag they are not inconsistent with the substituted Aect or
enactment, until they are annulled and others made in their stead.

P.C. 331 as amended continued, therefore, to be good
and valid following the 1948 enactment of para. (w)
insofar as it was not inconsistent therewith. To ascertain
whether there is any inconsistency, it becomes necessary
to ascertain the meaning of para. (w).

51001—3a
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logging operations as such and does not include taxes levied
under a general corporations income tax on corporations
whose businéss is wholly or in part “logging operations.”
He says that the deduectibility is not to be determined by
the nature of the business operations but by a tax which is
levied only on a logging operation. He admits that if
such a tax were levied, a taxpayer whose business was
solely that of logging operations would be entitled to the
full deduction of the provincial or municipal tax under
section 1 of P.C. 331; but says that a taxpayer such as a
pulp and paper manufacturer could deduet nothing for the
tax so paid unless that tax was levied solely on its income
from logging operations. It is shown that no specific tax
on logging operations as such was enacted in Ontario until
some years aftter 1947.

In support of his contention, Mr. Mundell refers to three
clauses of the preamble to P.C. 331 as follows:

AND WHEREAS, at the present session of Parliament, an amendment
will be proposed to Paragraph (w) of Subsection (1) of Section 5 of the
Income War Tax Act to provide therein for the deduction from income
of amounts paid in respect of taxes imposed on the income, or any part
thereof, by any municipality authorized by a province by way of tax on
income derived from mining or logging operations;

AND WHEREAS Paragraph (w) of Subsection (1) of Section 5, as
proposed to be amended, will implement the undertaking of the Dominion
of Canada contained in Clause 8 of the Dominion-Provincial Agreements
relative to taxes on income derived from mining or logging operations;

AND WHEREAS it is desirable that the applicable provisions and
definitions of the Dominion-Provincial Agreements shall be included in any
regulation governing the deduction from income of amounts paid in respect
of such taxes;

Further, he submitted that in order to ascertain the full
import of P.C. 331, the Court should examine the Do-
minion-Provincial Agreements themselves and he tendered
them in evidence. It is said that an examination of these
Agreements will support the contention of the respondent
that para. (w) was amended in 1948 in pursuance of the
Dominion-Provincial Agreements, and that by those Agree-
ments, the contracting provinees and their municipalities
could levy only a tax specifically directed to mining and
logging operations. It may be noted that the provinces of
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Ontario and Quebec were not parties to these Agreements. 1931
Objection being raised as to their admissibility, I heard Seruce Faus

. PowER AND
argument thereon and reserved my finding. Parer Co.

The principle of the right of a taxpayer who is engaged v
in logging operations to claim a deduction for provineial M“‘(‘)fm

and municipal taxes in respect thereof, and where he is Namowaw
engaged in an integrated business such as the appellant, to ReveNve
apportion his income as between logging and other opera- Cameron J.
tions, is so clearly set forth in the enacting portions of

P.C. 331 that I find no necessity whatever to refer to the
preamble or the Agreements therein referred to in explana-

tion thereof. If the language of an enactment is clear, the
preamble must be disregarded. In Powell v. Kempton

Park Race Course Co. (1) the rule was thus stated by the

Earl of Halsbury:

Two propositions are quite clear, one that a preamble may afford
useful light as to what a statute intends to reach, and the other that if an
enactment is itself clear and unambiguous, no preamble can qualify or cut
down the enactment.

On that ground, therefore, I must find that the Dominion-
Provincial Agreements are inadmissable as evidence. 1
might add also that I do not think that the provisions of an
agreement between Canada and some of the provinces
could be used to limit or vary the provisions of a general
enactment, applicable to the whole of Canada.

Disregarding for the moment the definition contained in
P.C. 331, section 3, what meaning is to be attributed to
“taxes on income from logging operations?”’ I put that
question because of Mr. Mundell’s contention that to the
extent that the definition in P.C. 331 allowed a deduction
of the tax not specifically imposed on income from logging
operations, the Governor in Council in enacting P.C. 331
exceeded the powers conferred by para. (w).

Let me assume a case. in which a corporation in Ontario
engaged only in logging operations paid a tax under the
Ontario Corporations Tax Act, 1939, on its income there-
from in 1947. Would that not have been “taxes on income
from logging operations?” For the reasons I have stated
above, the respondent says it would not, but I cannot agree.
In my opinion, the tax so paid would fall squarely within
the section. If Parliament had intended to limit the

(1) (1899) A.C. 143 at 157.
51001—3%a
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deduction in the way suggested by the respondent, it would
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tions.” It is not improbable that as the amended para.
(w) was to have application throughout Canada, the inten-
tion was to confer the same right on taxpayers who resided
in the mon-agreeing provinces as were conferred on the
others by the Dominion-Provincial Agreements, and thereby
avoid discrimination.

It is not contended by the respondent that a taxpayer
whose integrated business included “logging operations”
is in any different position under para. (w) than one whose
business is solely that of logging. In view, therefore, of
the finding I have just made, I do not need to pursue
further the right of the appellant under para. (w) to
apportion its tax as between logging and other operations.
I find that there is no inconsistency between the provisions
of P.C. 331 as amended and the final version of para. (w).
I find also that the appellant in 1947 did conduet logging
operations. P.C. 331 therefore remained in full effect
throughout 1947 and the appellant is entitled to have his
rights determined thereunder.

If there were any doubt as to the appellant’s right to
apportionment of its tax paid to the province, as between
logging and other operations, it is completely removed by
the provisions of P.C. 331 which was clearly designed to
include such a case as the present one. If the Governor-in-
Council had intended to limit the right in a manner pro-
posed by the respondent, it would have been necessary
only to say that the taxes so paid would be allowed in
full. But provision is made in seetion 1 for an apportion-
ment on the basis of the proportion existing between
income from logging operations (as defined by s. 3) and
the total income in respect of which the taxes were paid.
Then section 3 defines “income derived from logging opera-
tions,” and by section 3(a) (ii) provides a method for the
agcertainment of “logging income” in the case of an
integrated operation, not only where the taxpayer pro-
cesses its own logs but also where it buys other logs and
processes them. It therefore is unnecessary to refer at any
length to the cases cited which indicate that the principle
of apportionment of income over the various operations of
an integrated business is well established. Reference, how-



Ex.CR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA 85

ever, may be made to Commissioners of Taxation v. Kirk i’f_{
(1); International Harvester Co. of Canada Ltd. v. Pro- Seruce Fais
vincial Tax Commissioners (2) ; and to Provincial T'reasurer %&‘ggéﬁf’
of Manitoba v. Wm. Wrigley Jr. Co. Ltd. (3). L.
The respondent submits that even if the appellant be M toman
entitled to a deduction of a portion of the tax, it has 9% =
not brought itself within the provisions of P.C. 331. By Revexue
section 1 thereof, the appellant is entitled to deduct an o, cony.
amount not exceeding the proportion of the total taxes —
paid to the Province of Ontario which the part of its
income that is equal to the amount of its income derived
by it from logging operations (as defined in section 3) is
of the total income in respect of which the taxes therein
mentioned were so paid. It is established that the tax
paid to the provinee (although the assessment at the time
of the trial was not finalized) was $406,501.29, and that the
total income in regpect of which that tax was so paid was
$5,806,653.01. The appellant’s income from its logging
operations is to be determined under section 3(a) (ii)
(supra). It is therefore the net profit or gain reasonably
deemed to have been derived by it from the operations
set out in para. A and B, and computed in accordance with
sound accounting principles with reference to the value of
the logs at the time of such delivery, excluding any amount
added thereto by reason of processing or manufacturing
the logs.
As the appellant sold no logs as such, it made no profit
from the sale of logs. It is submitted that it is necessary
to establish a notional profit which on sound accounting
principles might be reasonably deemed to have been
derived therefrom. The basis proposed by the appellant
is that of cost-ratio, namely, by apportioning its profit as
between logging operations and other operations (manu-
facturing and selling) in the same proportion as the cost
thereof, which were said to be respectively $7,216,162 and
$15,566,208, the logging cost, therefore, being 46-36 per
cent of the total. Its claim, therefore, is to deduct 46-36
per cent of the total tax paid to the Province of Ontario
of $406,501.29—or $188,454.
This method of apportionment—and for the moment I
am not referring to the figures included in the method—
is said to be in accordance with sound accounting principles

(1) (1900) A.C. 588. (2) (1949) A.C. 36.
(3) (1950) AC. 1.
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logging operations. Evidence to that effect was given by
Mr. A. J. Little, a partner in the accounting firm of Clark-
son, Gordon & Co., and who personally had charge of the
audit of the appellant’s books. That evidence was not
challenged in any way. It is also supported by the evidence
of Mr. R. F. Burns, a chartered accountant and a partner
in the firm of McDonald, Currie & Co., and who gave
evidence in another case which by consent was heard at
the same time as this appeal.

The respondent contends, however, that such a compu-
tation is not in accordance with the Order in Council. He
points out that the computation must not only be on sound
accounting principles, but must be made “with reference
to the value of the logs at the time of such delivery.” In
his opinion, that “value” means the market value, namely,
the amount which the appellant would have received had
it sold the logs at the time they were received at the mill,
instead of processing them. In that way, he says, the
income attributable to the logging operations would have
been on precisely the same basis as that of a taxpayer
whose operations were limited to logging. By that method,
it is said, the profit, if any, on the logging operations could
be precisely determined, presumably by deducting costs
from the market value; if the market value were less than
the costs, there would be no profit on that part of the
operations and any profit eventually arising on the total
operation would be attributable to manufacturing and
sale. I might state here that the evidence is conclusive
that the woods and logging operations of the appellant
were carried out with maximum efficiency, and that the
total costs thereof are shown to be much below the average
in the industry.

Now the section does not refer to “market value” but to
value of the logs at the time of such delivery . . . to the
pulp or paper plant, ete. It seems to me that the regulation
was drafted with full knowledge that there is, in fact, no
market—and therefore no market value—for pulp wood
at the time of ite delivery to the mill where it is to be
processed. That fact was established to my satisfaction
at the trial. Paper mills are of necessity located in or near
the area in which their extensive timber limits are located
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and when the pulp wood is brought long distances by river, 3’5_%
train or truck to the mill, it is brought there not for the Seruce Fais
purpose of re-sale but to manufacture it into sulphite pulp %&ﬁgéﬁ”
or paper. It is true in some cases—as in the other case
now before me—that a company in the course of cutting 1\,111;';51,,5R
its own pulp wood may also cut and sell other types of N AL
wood which it does not require for its mill. But those logs Revenuve
are not brought to the mill for manufacturing or pro- oo g
cessing. Moreover, I do not think that the purchases of —-
logs made by the appellant from settlers throughout the
distriet is of any help in establishing market value at the
time of its delivery to the mill. The evidence is all one
way and establishes that there was no market for logs at
the time of their delivery to the mill.

It is my opinion that too much emphasis should not be
placed on the single word “value” in the final part of
section 3(a) (il), which I ghall repeat.

computed in accordance with sound accounting principles with reference
to the value of the logs at the time of such delivery, excluding any amount
added thereto by reason of processing or manufacturing the logs;

The main purpose of that phrase is that the portion of
the income which in an integrated operation is to be
considered as “income from logging operations,” is to be
ascertained at a given point in the integrated operation,
namely, when logs are delivered at the mill, and to exclude
any value which might have been added by the processing
or manufacturing of the logs thereafter. The “value” of
the logs at that point is a clearly notional one and not
capable of being precisely ascertained. I think the Order
in ‘Council was drawn with full knowledge of that fact
and that therefore provision is made that the proportion
of the net income which is to be apportioned to logging
is that which on sound accounting principles may reason-
ably be deemed to have arisen at that point.

It is for that reason that the accountants, lacking any
market value for logs delivered at the mill, have found it
necessary to depart from the practice which they would
have followed had such a yardstick been available. In
doing so, they have adopted allocation of profit on a cost-
ratio basis and they are in agreement that that is in accord-
ance with sound accounting principles, under the circum-
stances, and that it accurately represents the proper ratio
existing between the value at the time of delivery to the



38

1951

EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA [1952
mill and the total value at the time of the sale of the

Srucs Faus finished product. No alternative scheme was suggested

Powzr anp
Parer Co.
Lo,

V.
MiNISTER
OF
NATIONAL
REvENUE

Cameron J.

by the respondent and I am satisfied on the evidence of
the accountants that it is the only one which under the
circumstances would be fair and reasonable and of assist-
ance in arriving at the allowance which P.C. 331 so clearly
contemplates.

Mr. Little considered various methods of computing
the apportionment of income on a cost-ratio basis and
also on a capital-employed return basis and filed Ex. 5 to
indicate the results of these various methods. The latter
method he rejected after pointing out that by one com-
putation the logging costs could be considered as repre-
senting 35-21 per cent of the total, and by another
equally valid on accounting principles they would repre-
sent 67-08 per cent of the total.

He pointed out that there were four possible methods
of making the computations on a cost-ratio basis, the
results depending on whether the indirect costs of general
administration, selling and miscellaneous items (totalling
$590,108.39) and certain other items of overhead were
excluded or included entirely, or whether they were appor-
tioned in part between logging and other operations and
the manner of such apportionment,.

Basis 2 of Ex. 5 is that claimed by the appellant, and Mr.
Little stated that it was computed on sound accounting
principles. In that basis the actual direct logging costs
are $7,216,162 and in that figure no amount is included for
general administrative, selling or miscellaneous items
totalling $590,108.39, all of which are added to the total
direct costs which thereby aggregate $15,566,208. On that
basis the direct logging costs are 46-36 per cent of the
total cost so computed, and that is the basis on which
the claim of the appellant is put forward. In that com-
putation the company has not included on either side such
costs as interest payments, payment to the retirement trust
funds, loss on townsite operations, and the like.

Mr. Little personally preferred the computation as
shown in Basis 4 of Ex. 5. By that method he would have
apportioned certain general expenses between the direct
logging costs and the direct total costs, in which case
the former would have been 47-58 per cent of the latter—
a percentage in excess of that claimed by the appellant.
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I find, therefore, that the apportionment proposed by E’E
the appellant is established by the evidence to have been Seruce Faus
made on sound accounting principles and otherwise to be EOWERAND

within the provisions of P.C. 331. I might add here that L.
in computing direct logging costs, nothing has been included Mg
for “barking” the logs. OF
., NarionaL
One further objection of the respondent should be noted. Revexue

The direct logging costs as computed by the appellant cameron7.
and its accountant are not in one small respect precisely —
the actual costs incurred in 1947. The figure $7,216,162
given as “logging costs” is—as stated by Mr. Little—a
composite figure representing that portion of the current
year’s expenditures and the previous year’s expenditures
applicable to the wood delivered into the mill during the
twelve months of 1947. By that he means that some of
the logs which were cut or purchased in 1946 would not be
delivered to the mill until 1947, and some of those cut or
purchased in 1947 might not reach the mill until 1948.
The respondent contended, therefore, that the costs com-
puted in that manner are incorrect, and do not accurately
reflect the 1947 costs. In the industry, logging and milling
operations are practically continuous throughout the year.
At any given time there are large quantities of logs cut
and lying in the bush, others are being moved to the mill
and still others are in the stockpile at the mill, and costs
are incurred at every stage. From a practical point of
view, it would be an impossible task—and I think a useless
one—to endeavour to apportion each item(of costs, such as
cutting and transportation, to the precise year in which
the cost was actually inecurred. The only method that
could reasonably be followed is that adopted by the appel-
lant and is to relate such costs to the cost of the logs
actually put through the mill in 1947, and which alone
resulted in the income subject to taxation. I accept the
evidence of Mr. Little that that method is in accordance
with sound accounting principles.

The appellant is entitled to succeed and the appeal will
be allowed. The appeal is under the Excess Profits Tax
Act only and I must therefore confine my decision to the
provisions of that Act.

There is no dispute between the parties as to the net
taxable income of the appellant if its claim is allowed.
The notice of assessment dated March 10, 1950, and which
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makes certain other adjustments to the amended return
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both parties except on the one point which has now been
determined; it fixes the net taxable income at $7,018,113.30.
From that amount there should now be deducted $188,454,
plus 46-36 per cent of such further amount, if any, as may
be paid by the appellant to the Province of Ontario in
respect of the taxation year 1947 under the Ontario Cor-
porations Tax Act, 1939, as and when it has paid the final
assessment thereunder.

There will therefore be a declaration that under the
provisions of section 5(1) (w) of the Income War Tax Act,
as it was in effect in the taxation year 1947, and under the
provisions of the regulations established by P.C. 331 as
amended, the appellant in computing its taxable income
under the provisions of the Excess Profits Tax Act of the
year 1947, is entitled to deduct therefrom 46-36 per cent
of taxes paid (and payable) by it to the Province of
Ontario under the provisions of the Corporations Tax Aect,
1939 as amended, for the taxation year 1947; that in respect
of the sum of $406,501.29 already paid by the appellant
to the Province of Ontario thereunder, the appellant is
entitled to deduct the sum of $188,454. The appellant is
also entitled to a deduction of 46-36 per cent of any
additional amount paid or to be paid by it to the Province
of Ontario thereunder upon producing to the respondent
satisfactory receipts evidencing such additional payment.
In view of these findings, I do not think it necessary or
advisable to state the amount of the appellant’s net taxable
income or its excess profits which are assessable to tax, as
asked for in the Claims (d) and (e) of the prayer in the
statement of claim. Such amounts can be readily ascer-
tained and agreed upon as soon as the total liability of
the appellant to the Province of Ontario has been finally
ascertained.

The appeal is therefore allowed, the assessment dated
March 10, 1950, is set aside to the extent I have indicated,
and the matter is referred back to the Minister to re-assess
the appellant in accordance with my findings.

The appellant will be entitled to its costs.

Judgment accordingly.
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BETWEEN: 1951
——
HIS MAJESTY THE KING ............ PrarnTivr;
AND Dec. 18

PLANTERS NUT & CHOCOLATE
DEFENDANT.

Revenue—Sales tax—Ezxcise Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, c. 179, s. 86(1), 8. 89—
Schedule III—*Foodstuffs"—“Shortening”—Words of a statute not
applied to any particular art or science are to be construed as they
are understood in common language—Peanut oil not “shortening”
within the meaning of Schedule III.

Defendant manufactures and sells peanut oil in liquid form advertising
it as liquid shortening and as an all-purpose cooking and salad oil.
It claims exemption from sales tax under the exemption provided for
by s. 89 and Schedule III of the Excise Tax Act which under the
heading “Foodstuffs” exempts “peanut butter and shortening and
materials for use exclusively in the manufacture thereof”.

Held: That the peanut oil sold by the defendant being in liquid form
and therefore lacking the quality of plasticity to be found in lard,
is not “shortening” within the meaning of that word as found in
Schedule III of the Excise Tax Act.

2. That the words of the Excise Tax Act and Schedule ITI are not applied
to any particular science or art and are to be construed as they are
understood in common language.

INFORMATION exhibited by the Attorney General of
Canads to recover sales tax from the defendant.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Toronto.

J. W. Pickup, K.C. for plaintiff.

The Honourable S. A. Hayden, K.C. and J. W. Blain
for defendant.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CaMEroN J. now (December 18, 1951) delivered the
following judgment:

In this Information the plaintiff, under section 86(1) of
the Excise Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, c. 179, as amended, claims
from the defendant the sum of $1,603.14 for consumption
or sales tax said to be payable in respect of the admitted
manufacture and sale by the defendant of peanut oil in
the period August 23, 1949, to September 30, 1949, together
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with certain penalties and interest for non-payment thereof
within the time limited by the Act. The proceedings are
in the nature of a test case, for I was informed at the trial
that the defendant had then paid the full amount of the
tax under protest and without admitting any liability
therefor. Moreover, there is no dispute between the parties
as to the amount of the claim if, in fact, the respondent be
liable to tax.

Section 89 of the Act provides that the tax imposed by
section 86 shall not apply to the sale or importation of the
articles mentioned in Schedule III thereto, and included
in that schedule under the heading of “Foodstuffs,” the
following are exempted:

Peanut butter and shoriening and materials for use exclusively in the
manufacture thereof.

The sole contest between the parties is whether the
peanut oil so sold and manufactured by the defendant is
“shortening” within the meaning to be given to that word
in the Schedule. If the defendant’s produet is found to
be “shortening,” it is exempt from the tax.

The Excise Tax Act contains no definition of “shorten-
ing” or of the other articles mentioned in Schedule III.
The words of the Act and of the Schedule are not applied
to any particular science or art, and in my opinion are
therefore to be construed as they are understood in common
language. In the case of The King v. Planter’s Nut and
Chocolate Co. Ltd. (1), I had to consider the meaning of
the words “fruit” and “vegetable,” also found in Schedule
I11, and reached the conclusion that while from a botanist’s
point of view the peanut and cashew nut might be included
in “vegetable” or “fruit,” neither was so included in the
common understanding of the words “peanut” or “cashew
nut.” That judgment was recently affirmed in the Supreme
Court of Canada.

The cases which I there cited on this point are of equal
application here.

In Craies on Statute Law, 4th Ed., p. 151, reference is
made to the judgment of Lord Tenterden in Att.-Gen. v.
Winstanley (2), in which at p. 310 he said that “the words
of an Act of Parliament which are not applied to any
particular science or art” are to be construed “as they are

(1) (1951) Ex. CR. 122. (2) (1831) 2 D. & Cl. 302.
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understood in common language.” The author referred
also, to Grenfell v. I.R.C. (1), in which Pollock, B. stated
that if a statute contains language which is capable of
being construed in a popular sense such a “statute is not
to be construed according to the striet or technical meaning
of the language contained in it, but is to be construed in its
popular sense, meaning of course, by the words ‘popular
sense,” that sense which people conversant with the subject-
matter with which the statute is dealing would attribute it.”

In Cargo ex. Schiller (2), James, L.J. expressed the same
ideas in these words: “I base my decision on the words of
the statute as they would be understood by plain men who
know nothing of the technical rule of the Court of Admir-
alty, or of flotsam, lagan and jetsam.”

Reference may also be made to Milne-Bingham Printing
Co. Ltd. v. The King (3), in which Duff J. (as he then
was), when considering the meaning of the word “maga-
zines” as contained in the Special War Revenue Act, 1915,
said: “The word ‘magazine’ in the exception under con-
sideration is used in its ordinary sense, and must be con-
strued and applied in that sense.” In The King v. Montreal
Stock Exchange (4), a case involving the interpretation of
the word “newspapers”’ as used in Schedule ITI of the
Special War Revenue Act, Kerwin, J. said: “In the instant
case, the word under discussion is not defined in any statute
in pari materig and it remains only to give to it the ordinary
meaning that it usually bears.” He then referred to the
definition of the word as contained in Webster’'s New
International Dictionary.

Again, in Att.-Gen. v. Bailey (5), it was held that the
word “spirits,” being “a word of known import . . . is used
in the Excise Acts in 'the sense in which it is ordinarily
understood.” In that case the Court said at p. 292: “We
do not think that, in common parlance, the word ‘spirits’
would be considered as comprehending a liquid like ‘sweet
spirits of nitre’ which is itself a known article of commerce
not ordinarily passing under the name of ‘spirit.” ”’

It is of some interest, also, to note the rule of interpreta-
tion adopted in the United States in construing Excise Aets.

(1) (1876) 1 Ex. D. 242, 248. (3) (1930) S.C.R. 282, 283.
(2) (1877) 2 P.D. 145, 161. (4) (1935) S.C.R. 614, 616.
(5) (1847) 1 Ex. 281.
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As stated in Craies on Statute Law, p. 152, the rule is that
the particular words used by the Legislature in the denomi-
nation of articles are to be understood according to the
common commercial understanding of the terms used, and
not in their scientific or technical sense, “for the Legis-
lature does not suppose our merchants to be naturalists, or
geologists, or botanists.” (200 Chests of Tea (1), per
Story, J.).

The defendant company carries on business at Toronto.
The parent company is located at Suffolk, Va., and since
1928 has there manufactured peanut oil. The defendant
began the commercial production of peanut oil in Canada
on or about August 23, 1949. It is advertised and sold
under the name “Planter’s Hi-Hat Peanut Oil” and is a
liquid sold only in cans. It is described in the advertise-
ment as “the all-purpose cooking and salad oil.”

It is not sold or advertised under the name “shortening,”
but it is described as a new, modern, all-purpose liquid
shortening. It is advertised as suitable for use in pan
frying, deep fat frying, cooking and baking, in which cases
it performs the function of shortening. It is also advertised
as suitable for use in salads, soups and sauces and in these
cases it is used as an oil and not as shortening. It is there-
fore referred to as an “all-purpose cooking and salad oil.”

The evidence establishes that since August, 1949, the
peanut oil sold by the defendant has been used effectively
in Canada as a shortening agent in deep fat frying and
in the making of pies, cakes, doughnuts and the like. It
is therefore submitted by the defendant that as it has been
and is being used as a shortening it is, in fact, “shortening”
within the meaning of that word in Schedule III, and is
therefore exempt from tax. For the plaintiff it is con-
tended that “shortening” in its popular sense and as used
in the trade and by the public has a well defined meaning,
namely, a manufactured plastic fat of the consistency of
lard and used for “shortening” purposes in cooking, frying
and baking. It issubmitted, therefore, that the defendant’s
product, being in liquid form and not in plastic form and
not having been manufactured or processed, but rather
being a single refined vegetable oil, is not “shortening.”

(1) (1824) 9 Wheaton (U.S.) 435.
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The defendant’s case, apart from the evidence of those
witnesses who testified as to the successful use of peanut
oil as a shortening agent in cooking, baking and frying,
rested mainly on the evidence of Arthur C. Eaton and
Dr. F. A. J. Zeidler. The former is senior chemical engineer
of the defendant’s parent corporation at Suffolk, Va. He
gaid that the function of shortening is to lubricate and
weaken the cell structure of the gluten and starch to make
the product tender and easily eaten. He defined shortening
as “a material which will lubricate,” and stated from his
experience and as a chemist that peanut oil fell within
that definition.

Dr. Zeidler is President of Zeidler-Bennett Limited, a
research and testing laboratory in Toronto. He is a
scientist of wide experience and for many years has
specialized in applied and organic chemistry. His practical
definition of shortening was “a substance that produces a
certain velvety crumb in baking and acts as a lubricant in
cooking, provided it is palatable and non-toxic.” In his
opinion, peanut oil fell within that definition.

A very helpful—and I think a very important—summary
of the history of “shortening” was given by Dr. N. H.
Grace, the head of the Oils and Fats Section in the Division
of Applied Biology, National Research Council at Ottawa.
He is the holder of several degrees in chemistry, a member
of the American Chemical Society, the American Oil
Chemists Society, and a Fellow of the Royal Society of
Canada. From 1931 to 1937 he was in the Chemical
Division of the National Research Council and since then
has been in the Division of Applied Biology. For the last
seven or eight years he has been engaged in research work,
particularly in the adaptation of Canadian oils for edible
purposes as oils and as shortenings. He is very familiar
with peanut oil. He states that in Great Britain and in
America the first substances used in cooking to “shorten,”
were animal fats such as lard and tallow. “Shortening”
as such was invented in the United States in the latter
half of the last century. During the great expansion of
the cotton industry, it was found that the cottonseed oil—
a cheap by-product of the cotton industry—could be mixed
with high-melting lard and the whole sold as lard. Then
cottonseed oil was blended with tallow. Up to 1910,
therefore, cottonseed oil was blended with harder animal
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fats and the result was that lard compounds—called
“shortenings”—were designed and sold to simulate the
properties of lard.

In 1910 there was a new and important development—
the discovery of eatalytic hydrogenation of unsaturated fats
and oils. By that process, vegetable oils could be made
plastic or hardened. The next, class of shortening, therefore,
was an all-vegetable shortening consisting entirely of
vegetable oils hardened to a plastic consistency simulating
that of lard. In addition, there were numerous other
crosses, such as the blending of peanut oil with a heavily
hydrogenated peanut oil which also simulated the properties
of lard. No doubt basing his opinion on the knowledge
of the history of shortening and on his experience in
research work in connection therewith, Dr. Grace defined
shortening as “a manufactured plastic fat of the con-
sistency of lard”. In his opinion, peanut oil did not fall
within that definition in that (1) it was an oil lacking the
consistency of lard, and (2) it was a single oil which had
been merely refined from the crude peanut oil and there-
fore was not a manufactured plastic fat. As I have said
above, peanut oil is a liquid and is so sold, and it is admitted
that it had not been subjected to the hydrogenation pro-
cess in any degree. Now there is a very considerable
amount of evidence to support the view of Dr. Grace and
of all the other witnesses for the plaintiff, that in Canada
“shortening” as understood and used in the trade and by
the general public does not include liquids, but must be
a substance simulating and having the plasticity of lard.
The defence did not produce any samples of any oils which
at any time had been sold in Canada under the name
“shortening,” or establish that any such oils had been sold
under that name. On the other hand, there were produced
on behalf of the plaintiff Exhibits 1, 2, 4, 5, 6 and 7, all
being cardboard containers used in the sale of six different
types of shortenings (all of a plastic nature). KEach bears
the brand name as well as the name “shortening” prom-
inently displayed on the labels.

Dr. Zeidler in cross-examination admitted that he had
never known a substance which was sold as shortening
which was not, in fact, plastic like lard or butter; nor had
he any knowledge of any liquid oil ever being sold as
“shortening.” Mrs. Elwood, another witness for the
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defendant, is Food Editor of the Toronto Star Weekly and
was formerly Food Editor of the Daily Star. She is also
a graduate in Home Economics of the University of
Toronto, has taught Home Economies, has managed lunch
rooms, and has demonstrated food products. She has used
both liquid and other shortenings and admitted that in
purchasing peanut oil or any other oil to be used for
shortening purposes, she had never found it labelled as
“shortening” on the package or container by the person
who sold it. Mrs. Graham, another witness for the defend-
ant, also used both liquid and other shortenings and
admitted that when she did not use one in liquid form,
she used 4 solid shortening like butter or lard—‘“one of
the brands that are sold as shortening.” Dr. Elworthy, a
witness for the plaintiff, is a graduate of the University
of London, a Fellow of the Royal Institute of Chemistry
of Great Britain, and of the Canadian Institute of Chemis-
try. At the time of the trial he was the Commodity Officer
of the Oils and Fats Administration of the Dept. of Trade
and Commerce, and for about two years was with the Oils
and Fats Administration of the Wartime Prices and Trade
Board. He has had considerable experience with the
baking industry. Speaking as one who was very familiar
with that industry, he expressed the opinion that “ ‘shorten-
ing’ is a mixture of fats and oils in plastic form” and that
that definition was one accepted by the baking industry.

Another witness for the plaintiff was Dr. R. A. Chapman,
B.S.A.,, M.Sc., Ph.D., who is in charge of the food section
of the Food and Drugs Division, Dept. of National Health
and Welfare, Ottawa. He states in the course of his duties
he has examined a large number of materials which were
labelled “shortening” and added, “I have not encountered
any which were liquid in form—and by that I mean that
the main name, its principal name, the common name, on
the package was shortening.” He expressed the opinion
that “shortening” as generally understood was a plastic
substance.

But even in the advertisements and publications of the
defendant there are to be found indications that “shorten-
ing” was ordinarily considered to be a solid or plastie.
Throughout, they stress the difference between the new
liquid shortening and solid shortening, although solid or

plastic shortenings were never sold under the designation
51001—4a
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1951 of “solid shortenings,” but merely as shortening. The
—— .
Tee Kive following extract from p. 2 of Ex. A—a pamphlet of the
Prawms  0efendant entitled “Key to Good Health,” will serve to
o Nor& illustrate the point. The same extract also appears on
HOCOLA . .
Cotm p. 35 of Ex. H—a pamphlet entitled “Cooking the Modern
—_— b2}
Cameron J. Wa'y'

— FOR RECIPES THAT CALL FOR SOLID SHORTENING . . .
If you have some favorite recipe that calls for a solid shortening, try it
with Planters Peanut Oil. See how much better your results can be.
But note this important difference: Because Planters Peanut Oil is richer
than ordinary shortening, be sure to use less of it—usually about one-third
less. If a recipe, for example, calls for a full cup of solid shortening, two-
thirds of a cup of Planters Peanut Qil should be about right. That means
economy oo, you see, with Planters.

Special Note: If you are more accustomed to working with solid
shortening, just put the Planters Peanut O1l in the freezing compartment
of your refrigerator over night. Then you can handle 1t as you would
any solid shortening. But remember—use aboul one-third less.

In that extract the defendant company refers to “ordinary
shortening” and from what immediately follows there can
be little doubt but that in the mind of the author, ordinary
shortening meant solid shortening. Mr. Eaton stated that
the purpose of hydrogenation is to raise the melting point
of the produet, and that following hydrogenation ‘“the
product is then commonly called “shortening”; the peanut
oil which is not hydrogenated, he called “a liquid
shortening.”

Many dictionary definitions of shortening were cited,
some of which suggested that any material which performed
the function of shortening was, in fact, shortening. I
prefer, however, the description given in an authoritative
text book, “The Chemistry and Technology of Food and
Food Products,” by Morris B. Jacobs, where in Vol. I,
p. 586, he states: “Shortening agents are distinguished by
their plasticity, which enables them to form with milk,
flour, etc., the peculiar dough structure which is essential
for the production of good baked products.” The evidence
as to the generally aceepted meaning in Canada is in accord
with that description.

In the light of this evidence, therefore, I have reached the
conclusion that the peanut oil sold by the defendant, being
in liquid form and therefore lacking the quality of plas-
ticity to be found in lard, was not “shortening” within the
meaning of that word as found in Schedule III. In so
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finding I am not unmindful of the other arguments
advanced by counsel for the defendant to the effeect that
the plastic or solid shortenings when melted would still
be “shortening,” although in liquid form; that the shorten-
ing process takes place after the plastic shortenings have
been subjected to heat, and that by reducing the tempera-
ture the liquid peéanut oil would become a solid. I accept
the evidence of Dr. Grace and the other witnesses to whom
I have referred as indicating beyond question that in the
trade and among the public generally, shortening meant a
manufactured or processed fat (which from the chemical
point of view includes oil) having a plasticity similar to
that of lard. In view of the evidence of Dr. Grace (and
without taking into consideration the definition of “shorten-
ing” as found in the Regulations established under the
Food and Drugs Act), I would have been inclined to the
view that if the peanut oil had been processed by hydro-
genation (even without the addition of any other fat or
oil) and sold as shortening, it would have been “shortening”
within Schedule III. I am of the opinion that shortening
which hag the consistency of lard would not be used in
any practical sense except as “‘shortening.” The defendant,
however, desired to produce an oil—an all-purpose oil—
which could be used not only as a shortening agent but
also for many other purposes and it is no doubt for that
reason that it has not subjected its product to hydro-
genation. In so doing the defendant, in my opinion, has
not produced shortening. All that may “shorten” is not
necessarily shortening. Butter no doubt could be an
excellent shortening and may frequently be used for that
purpose, but it is not manufactured, sold or purchased as
“shortening.” Any palatable and non-toxic vegetable oil
could possibly be used to perform some or all of the func-
tions of “shortening,” but that does not necessarily bring
them within the general accepted meaning of “shortening.”
In my view, peanut oil is itself a known article of com-
merce not ordinarily passing under the name of “shorten-
ing,” and that view is amply supported by the evidence.

The opinion which I have just expressed is sufficient
to dispose of the case. But inasmuch as much of the
evidence and argument was directed to the contention of
the defendant that its product was within the definition
of “shortening” as contained in the regulations under the

51001—43a
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1951 Food and Drugs Act, R.S.C. 1927, ¢. 76, as amended, I think

“Y—l . L)
TreKiwve I should refer to that argument briefly. That definition
Prawrms Was as follows:

Cg)ggnfm Sec. B.09. 010. Shortening, other than butter or lard shall be a
Co.Lrp, combination of fats and oils, processed by hydrogenation or otherwise,

—_ with or without Class IV preservative, and shall not contain more than
Cameron J. one per cent of substances other than fatty acids and fat.

I may say that I doubt very much whether that Act or
the regulations thereunder should be considered. It is
not a taxing Act and its purpose is to suitably control the
sale and use of food and drugs. It is not, therefore, an
Act in pari materia with the Excise Tax Act. In argument,
counsel for the defendant contended that it should not be
considered, but his witness Dr. Zeidler adopted the
definition therein as one definition of “shortening” and
much of his evidence was based thereon. Tt was also
referred to by witnesses for the plaintiff.

Dr. Zeidler, being familiar with the process used by
the defendant in producing peanut oil and with the
chemical ingredients of the product, was of the opinion
that from a chemical point of view peanut oil was “a

combination of fats and oils,” and that while it was not

processed by hydrogenation, the process used was an

“otherwise processing” as required by the definition. From

the chemaist’s point of view he considered fats and oils to be

the same. While admitting that in the produet sold by the
defendant the peanut oil was not combined with any other
fat or oil, his view was that as the peanut oil itself con-
sisted of a number of fats or oils, there was within “peanut
oil” itself, a combination of fats and oils. The peanut oil
consists of six different substances, four of which are
glycerides or esters of saturated fatty acids, and two of
* which are glycerides or esters of unsaturated fatty acids.

The proeess used by the defendant may be described
briefly as follows: The peanuts are broken into small
pieces and heat and pressure are applied; the crude peanut
oil is drained off; then by a refining method the soap is
removed; the resulting neutral oil is washed to produce a
neutral washed oil which is then bleached and the bleached
neutral oil is then deodorized, the resulting produet being
peanut oil as it is marketed. These operations, Dr. Zeidler
said, constituted “processing.”
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I do not consider it necessary to review all the evidence
on this point. I have read it carefully and have reached
the conclusion that the defendant’s product does not fall
within that definition. I accept the evidence that as
ordinarily understood, there is a distinction between fats
and oils. Dr. Zeidler, after stating that chemically fats
and oils were the same, added: “We call commonly a fat a
substance of this type, glyceride or ester, which is at
ordinary temperatures solid or semi-solid; and we call an
oil, a glyceride ester which at ordinary temperatures—I
mean the geographical part of the world—is liquid.” That
view of the distinction between fats and oils is supported
by other evidence as well and is, I think, in accordance
with the common understanding. That being so, the
“peanut o0il” is not a combination of fats. It contains no
fat in that sense.

Nor do I think it is a combination of oils. It is rather a
single oil composed of a number of combined glycerides.
In using the words “combination of oils,” I think the
regulation was intended to apply to those things which
were ordinarily considered as oils and not to the combina-
tion of the component parts of an oil. Dr. Zeidler was of
the opinion that the glycerides so combined to form peanut
oil were “fats or oils,” but as I have said above, from
the chemical point of view he made no distinetion between
the two words. Dr. Chapman, on the other hand, was of
the opinion that the glycerides were neither fats nor oils.
In the sense in which they are used in the regulations, I
am satisfied that “fats and oils” refers to those things
which in ordinary language are considered to be fats or oils
and not to the constituent parts of such fats or oils, even
although in the view of some chemists such constituent
parts are themselves fats or oils.

As T have said, the peanut oil was not combined with
any other oil. There was therefore no “combination of
fats and oils” as required by the regulations. Peanut oil,
therefore, does not fall within the definition of “shortening”
as contained in the regulations.

The plaintiff is therefore entitled to succeed. There will
therefore be judgment that the plaintiff is entitled to be
paid by the defendant the sum of $1,603.14, being the sales
tax payable on the sale price of peanut oil sold by it
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1951  between August 23, 1949, and September 30, 1949, together
TemKmva With the further sum of $22.03, being penalties payable in
Pramimms Tespect thereof up to December 31, 1949. The plaintiff is

Nur& also entitled to be paid such additional penalties as may
C&OCOLLT‘:,TE have accrued thereon from December 31, 1949, to this
Camoron J. date and computed in accordance with the provisions of

——  section 106(4) of the Excise Tax Act.
The plaintiff is also entitled to costs after taxation.

Judgment accordingly.

1951 BETWEEN:

0ct:22  INDEPENDENCE FOUNDERS A .
1052 LIMITED ..........coovvvene.. PPELLANT;
Jan. 31

THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL) o
REVENUE ..oovoiieeennnn. ESPONDENT.

Revenue—Income—Income taz—Capital or income—Appeal allowed.

Appellant operates an investment trust business and uses as agents two
trust companies. Its clients are allowed to buy by instalments
fractional shares in blocks of securities that are lumped together.
Holders of these fractional interests may buy further interests at
market price at any time and can also compel appellant to buy them
back at any time at the market price. Appellant’s source of income
is its right to be paid various fees and emoluments deducted on a
percentage basis from all moneys that pass through its hands.
Appellant was assessed for income tax on the increases in market
value of securities that have been lying passive in its hands.

Held: That any profit made by appellant can be made not from sale and
re-purchase transactions but only while the appellant has no trans-
actions in those securities and any increases in value are ecapital
increment and not taxable income.

APPEAL under the Income War Tax Act.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr.
Justice Sidney Smith, Deputy Judge of the Court, at
Vancouver.

J. L. Lawrence and B. W. F. McLoughlin for appellant.
Dugald Donaghy, K.C. and F. J. Cross for respondent.
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The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment:

Soxey Smite D.J. now (January 31, 1952) delivered
the following judgment:

The Company appeals from assessments for income tax
covering several years, and also from assessments for
excess profits tax which do not cover quite the same period.
But since all the assessments seem to be governed by the
same principles, I need not go into details.

The Company operates an investment trust business and
the main difficulties that arise in the case are due to the
complexity of the relations between the Company and its
agents and clientele. The Company makes use of two
trust companies and there is a multiplicity of agreements
between one or more of the Companies and the clientele.
I need not conjecture whether these complications serve
any useful practical purpose; but it is necessary to find
the essential legal relations of these parties, stripped of
unessential complexities. It seems to me that the two
trust companies are nothing but agents for the appellant
Company, and that this case should be dealt with as though
the appellant Company itself carried out all transactions
into which the clientele enter.

Without elaborating on the tortuous courses pursued,
I may say that I view the appellant’s business as one for
giving investors an opportunity for investing in securities
without having to pay for them in full. Clients are
allowed to buy by instalments fractional shares in blocks
of securities that are lumped together. One peculiarity
of the arrangement is that holders of these fractional
interests can buy further interests at market price at any
time, and can also at any time compel the appellant to buy
them back at the market price. Consideration of the
scheme shows that, though the client gains or loses by
fluctuations of the market, the appellant neither gains
nor loses on interests that are outstanding in the hands
of clients, though the appellant is affected by market
fluctuations in securities that are merely passive in the
appellant’s hands and are not the subject of any trans-
action at the time.
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What have been assessed in this case are the increases
in market value of securities that have been lying passive
in the appellant’s hands. Appellant claims that these
increases in value are capital increment and not income
at all; the Minister claims that they constitute a profit
in a commodity that it is the appellant’s business to deal
in, and so are income within the relevant Acts. The
Minister points to the fact that the appellant’s memor-
andum of association lists the buying and selling of securi-
ties as one of the appellant’s objects. This, however,
though a factor to be considered, is far from conclusive.
The question is not whether a company can carry on a
particular business, but whether that is in fact its business.

As I have said, the appellant has neither profits nor
losses on securities while they are the subject of deals with
clients. Though it can gain or lose on securities that are
lying passive in its hands, it is as liable to lose as to win,
according to the general market. The real source of income
or profit that is its raison d’étre is its right to be paid
various fees and emoluments which are given various fancy
labels and are deducted on a percentage basis from all
moneys that pass through its hands.

The effect of all this is that, though buying and selling
interests in securities are essential to the appellant’s busi-
ness, these transactions are not its livelithood. In faet,
with regard to these transactions, the appellant is in much
the position of a broker relying on commissions. It is only
on fluctuations in the market for shares not being bought
or sold that appellant can make a profit. It does not seek
the profit, which is just as likely to be a loss. If profit, it is
a fortuitous profit.

It is true, as respondent says, that these securities are
held for the very purposes of the appellant’s business. But
that is not in itself enough to make them taxable. A
logging company may hold timber lands essential to its
business, but if it is not a trader in timber lands, an increase
in their value is capital, not income. The respondent will
answer that that is an isolated transaction, and the land
is not bought for re-sale; that here there is a course of
dealing in securities, and they are bought for re-sale. Again,
I do not think that is necessarily enough.
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Take the case of a man who runs a picture gallery, and
counts on making his profit by charging admissions. To
keep clients interested he may have to keep his collection
constantly changing, and so constantly to keep buying
and selling pictures, even though he has no desire to be a
dealer, and even though he is as likely to lose as to gain
by his deals. I cannot believe that his gains or losses
would have any bearing on his taxable income; he is a
showman, not a dealer. Similarly the appellant keeps
securities not asa dealer, but as an inducement to persuade
clients to buy and to pay it commissions. These securities
are like the tools of a trade; the user of tools must keep
replacing them, and may be lucky enough to have them
rise in value after replacement; but I quite fail to see how
the increase could be treated as income. Or there might
be a music-teacher who stocked flutes and supplied them
at cost to pupils, so that he could make money giving them
lessons. I cannot believe that any rise in the value of his
stock could be taxed as income.

The respondent would have more to go on if the appel-
lant actually made profit from sales and re-purchases, even
if this was fortuitous and unsought, though I very much
doubt whether even then the profit would be income. Here,
however, the profit, far from being made from sale and
re-purchase transactions, can only be made while the
appellant has no transactions in those securities. That
seems to me decisive; so I hold that the increases in value
are capital increment and not taxable income.

This conclusion makes it unnecessary for me to consider
the appellant’s other argument that even if a profit made
by market gains was taxable, this could not be taxed until
it was realized by re-sale; though I appreciate the strength
of that submission too.

I would allow the appeal.

Judgment accordingly.
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1951  BrTWEEN:
Nor2-7l, 29

o5 JASON MINES LIMITED (now .
e NEW JASON MINES LIMITED)% APPELLANT;

AND

THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL) .
REVENUE .................... ESPONDENT.

Revenue—Excess profits tar—Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, ¢c. 97,
ss. 48(1), 66, 89. The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, 8.C. 1940, c. 32,
ss. 2(f), 8—Income Tax Act, 8.C. 1948, c¢. 32, s. 92—Meaning of
“tazable income”—Quaere whether order for repayment of tax can
be made.

The appellant appealed from its assessments for excess profits tax for
the years 1940, 1941 and 1942. In each of these years its income was
derived from the operation of a metalliferous mine and was exempt
from corporation tax under s. 89 of the Income War Tax Act and
it contended that it was not subject to tax under The Excess Profits
Tax Act, 1940. Appeals allowed.

Held: That the ferm “taxable income” as used in section 2(f) of The
Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, means income that is liable to income
tax and that since the appellant’s income for the years under review
was exempt from income tax it had no taxable income as determined
under the Income War Tax Act and, therefore, no profits within
the meaning of section 2(f) of The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, that
could be brought into charge for excess profits tax under section 3
of that Act.

2. That it is questionable whether an order can be made in these pro-
ceedings for repayment to the appellant of the amount of tax paid
by it.

APPEAL under The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Thorson, President of the Court, at Toronto.

T. Sheard K.C. and A. B. Whitelaw for appellant.

G. B. Bagwell K.C. and J. S. Forsyth for respondent.
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The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

THE PrESIDENT now (February 14, 1952) delivered the
following judgment:

The appellant herein, which was incorporated on Novem-
ber 9, 1938, as Jason Mines Limited by Letters Patent
under the Ontario Companies Act and had its name changed
on July 8, 1948, to New Jason Mines Limited by Supple-
mentary Letters Patent, appeals from the assessments
levied against it for excess profits tax for the years 1940,
1941 and 1942,

The appellant’s main ground of appeal is that in each
of the said years its income was exempt from income tax
under section 89 of the Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927,
chap. 97, and that, consequently, it was not subject to any
tax under The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, Statutes of
Canada, 1940, chap. 32. An alternative ground of appeal
is that the Minister acted on a wrong principle in disallow-
ing its claims for depreciation allowance. Almost all the
evidence at the hearing was directed to this issue but if the
appellant succeeds in its main contention its alternative
one need not be considered.

The main contention turns on the construction of section
89 of the Income War Tax Act, section 3 of The Excess
Profits Tax Act, 1940, and the definition of “profits” in
section 2(f) of the latter Act. Section 89 of the Income
War Tax Act, as enacted in 1936 and amended in 1939,
provided as follows:

89. (1) Subject to the provisions of this section, the income of a
company derived from the operation of any metalliferous mine which
comes into production after the first day of May, 1936, and prior to
the first day of January, 1943, shall be exempt from the corporation tax

hereunder for its first three fiscal periods established by the Minister
hereunder following the commencement of such production.

(2) The Minister, having regard to the production of ore in reasonable
commercial quantities, shall determine which mines, whether new or old,
qualify under subsection one hereof.
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(3) The Minister shall issue a certificate stating the date upon which
any mine is deemed to have come into production and establish such
fiseal periods of twelve months each, during which the mmcome derived
from any such mine shall be exempt hereunder.

(4) The Minister may make any regulations deemed necessary for
carrying this section into effect.

It is admitted that the appellant’s income in each of
the years under review was derived from the operation of
a metalliferous mine, namely, its gold mine, that such
mine came into production during the specified period,
that the Minister issued the necessary certificate and that
the appellant’s income was exempt from the corporation
tax under the Income War Tax Act. The fact that the
appellant had no income in any of the said years that
was liable to income tax is not disputed. Indeed, that
fact appears on the very face of the notices of assessment
issued by the Minister. I now come to the relevant sections
of The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940. Section 3, the
charging section of the Act, read as follows:

3. In addition to any other tax or duty payable under any other
Act, there shall be assessed, levied and paid upon the annual profits or
upon the annual excess profits, as the case may be, of every person
residing or ordinarily resident ;n Canada, or who 1s carrying on business
m Canada, a tax as provided for in the First Part of the Second Schedule
te this Act, or a tax as provided for in the Second Part of the sad
Schedule, whichever tax is the greater.

The amendment of this section in 1942 does not affect
the question under discussion. It is plain that what was
brought into charge for tax under the Act was “annual
profits” or “annual excess profits” and the term “profits”
in the case of a corporation was defined by section 2(f)
the relevant portion of which read as follows:

2. (1) In this Act and in any regulations made under this Act, unless
the context otherwise requires, the expression—

(f) “profits” in the case of a corporation or jomnt stock company for

any taxation period means the amount of net taxable income
of the said corporation or joint stock company as determined

under the provisions of the Income War Tax Act in respect of
the same taxation period;
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On these enactments counsel for the appellant con-
tended simply that since the appellant’s income was exempt
from corporation tax under section 89 of the Income War
Tax Act it had no taxable income as determined under
the provisions of the Income War Tax Act and, con-
sequently, no “profits” within the meaning of section 2(f)
of The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, that could be brought
into charge for excess profits tax under section 3 of the
latter Act.

In my judgment, there is no sound answer to this con-
tention. Counsel for the respondent submitted that sections
40 to 87 inclusive of the Income War Tax Act excepting
section 76A thereof were, mutatis mutandis, made applic-
able to matters arising under The Excess Profits Tax Act,
1940, by section 14 of the latter Act but that section 89
of the Income War Tax Aect was not, and argued that
although the appellant’s income was exempt from cor-
poration tax under section 89 of the Income War Tax Act
there was nothing in that section to warrant any exemption
from excess profits tax. That is not the point. It is not a
question whether an exemption from excess profits tax can
be read into section 89. What is to be determined is the
meaning of the words “net taxable income” as used in
section 2(f) of The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940. Counsel
for the respondent urged that the fact that Section 89 of
the Income War Tax Act exempted the appellant’s income
from corporation tax did not mean that it did not have any
“net taxable income”, that notwithstanding the exemption
it did have a “net taxable income” that was available for
any tax other than the corporation tax and, that being the
only tax from which it was exempt, it followed that it was
not exempt from excess profits tax. I cannot agree with
this contention. There would be substance in it if the
“net income” of the appellant was made the measure of
the profits to be brought into charge for excess profits tax
but that is not the case. The measure is the “net taxable
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income” as determined under the Income War Tax Act. I
do not see how it could be said that the appellant had any
taxable income as determined under the Income War Tax
Act when all its income was exempt from tax under it.
How could it have any taxable income under the Act if
it had no income that was liable to tax under it? The
question answers itself. Support for the view that the
term ‘“taxable income” means income that is liable to
income tax can be found in a statement of Lord Mae-
naghten, delivering the judgment of the Judicial Commit-
tee of the Privy Council in N.S.W. Taxation Commis-
sioners v. Adams (1) that the words “taxable income”, as
they were used in the Income Tax Act that was being
construed, meant “income liable to income tax”. And in
Black v. The Minister of National Revenue (2) Maclean J.
held that income that was exempt from taxation under
the Income War Tax Act was not taxable income. The
same is true here. Since the appellant’s income in the
years under review was exempt from corporation tax under
Section 89 of the Income War Tax Act and there was no
other income tax under the Act to which it was liable it
had no net taxable income as determined under the said
Act. Consequently, it had no profits within the meaning
of section 2(f) of The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, and
there could not be any annual profits or excess annual
profits that could be brought into charge for excess profits
tax under section 3 of that Act. I find, therefore, that the
appellant was not subject to any excess profits tax for any
of the years 1940, 1941 or 1942 and that the assessments
from which it appeals are invalid.

In view of this decision it is not necessary to consider
the questions relating to depreciation raised by the appel-
lant in its alternative ground of appeal and I express no
opinion on them.

(1) (1912) AC. 384 at 391. (2) (1932) Ex. C.R. 8 at 13.
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There is one other matter to be mentioned. In its state-
ment of claim the appellant alleged that in accordance
with section 48 subsection 1 of the Income War Tax Act
the Minister required payment of the amount of tax
liability which was disputed by it, namely, the sum of
$14 975, that arrangements were made by it with the
Minister to retire this amount in instalment payments
and that the whole amount was fully paid by March 31,
1951, and it claimed that the said sum of $14,975 should be
repaid to it with interest. The appellant’s allegations were
admitted by the Minister in his statement of defence.
While it seems proper that this sum should be repaid to
the appellant, since the assessments have been held invalid,
it is questionable whether an order for such repayment
can be made in these proceedings. The jurisdiction of this
Court in appeals from assessments is set out in section
66 of the Income War Tax Act as follows:

66. Subject to the provisions of this Act, the Exchequer Court shall
have exclusive jurisdiction to hear and determine all questions that may
arise in connection with any assessment made under this Act and in
delivering judgment may make any order as to payment of any tax,
interest or penalty or as to costs as to the said Court may seem right and
proper.

While this section empowers the Court to make an
order as to payment of any tax I doubt whether it authorizes
an order for repayment of a tax. That there was ground
for such doubt and need for removal of it appears from
section 92 of The Income Tax Act, Statutes of Canada,
1048, chap. 52, which provided as follows:

92. The court may, in delivering judgment disposing of an appeal,
order payment or repayment of tax, interest, penalties or costs by the
taxpayer or the Minister.

Under this section there would, I think, be power to order
the repayment by the Minister of a tax paid by a taxpayer
but it does not apply in the present case which must be

determined within the limits of the jurisdiction fixed by .
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section 66 of the Income War Tax Act. Under the circum-
stances, even although I think that the sum ought to be
repaid, I do not see how the Court can make any order
in these proceedings for its repayment.

There will, therefore, simply be judgment that the
appeals from the assessments for the years 1940, 1941 and
1942 are allowed with costs.

Judgment accordingly.
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BETWEEN :

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN, on
the information of the Attorney PrAINTIFF;
General of Canada ..............

AND

THE COMMUNITY OF THE
SISTERS OF CHARITY OF DEFENDANT.
PROVIDENCE, ............... .

Ezpropriation—Ezxpropriation Act, RS8.C. 1927, c. 64, ss. 9, 23—Hospital
operated as charitable institution not an object of commercial dealing
—Principle of re-instatement applicable to property of exceptional
character—Depreciation inevitable notwithstanding maintenance—
Depreciation to be ascertained from tables and actual condition of
property—Ten per cent allowance for compulsory taking only in
exceptional cases—Additional allowance applicable to whole amount
of value to owner.

The plaintiff expropriated property in the City of Hull on which there
was a hospital operated by a religious community of nuns on a non-
profit basis as a charitable institution.” The action was taken to have
the amount of compensation payable to the owner determined by the
Court.

Held: That the nature of the expropriated property takes it out of the class
of properties whose value to their owners is measured by the ordinary
economic and commereial tests of value. It is not of the kind that
lends itself to commercial dealing but is of an exceptional character
and its value to the owner must be measured by a standard that is
appropriate to it.

2. That this is a case in which the principle of re-instatement should be
applied and the defendant should receive such a sum of money as
will enable it to replace the expropriated property by property which
will be of equal value to it.

3. That it is fallacious to assume that an asset can be so well maintained
that it will remain in ag good as new condition indefinitely. Depreci-
ation begins from the moment of its first use and continues not-
withstanding maintenance. City of Knozville v. Knozville Water Co.
(1909) 212 US. 1. followed.

4, That although well recognized depreciation tables are of great assistance
in ascertaining the amount of depreciation of an asset they ought not
to be used by themselves. It is always necessary to make a careful
examination of the asset and consider its structural and functional
condition so that consideration may be given not only to the elapsed
time of its expectancy of life according to the tables but also to the
remaining life that may be expected in the light of its actual condition.

5. That it is only in cases where it is difficult by reason of cerfain un-
certainties to estimate the amount of the compensation that there is
ground for adding the ten per cent allowance for compulsory taking
to the owner’s indemnity. 7The King v. Lavoie December 18, 1950,
unreported, followed.

52480—1I1a
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6. That the estimation of the compensation in the present case involves
sufficient difficulty and uncertainty to bring it within the ambit of
the rule in the Lavoie case.

7. That the amount found as the value of the expropriated property to its
owner is an indivisible sum and the additional allowance for com-
pulsory taking should be based on the whole of it rather than on only
part of it.

INFORMATION by the Crown to have the amount of
compensation money payable to the owner of expropriated
property determined by the Court.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr, Justice
Thorson, President of the Court, at Ottawa.

F. B. Major Q.C. and J. Bertrand for plaintiff.
P. Ste Marie Q.C. and A. Taché Q.C. for defendant.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

TaE PrEsmENT now (April 3, 1952) delivered the follow-
ing judgment:

The information exhibited herein shows that the lands
of the defendant described in paragraph 2 thereof were
taken by His late Majesty the King for the purpose of a
public work of Canada under the Expropriation Act, R.S.C.
1927, chap. 64, and that the expropriation was completed
by the deposit of a plan and description of the lands in
the office of the registrar of deeds for the registration
division of Hull in the Province of Quebee, in which the
lands are situate, on May 6, 1946. Thereupon, under section
9 of the Act, the said lands became vested in His Majesty
and all the right, title and interest of the defendant thereto
or therein ceased to exist and, under section 23, became
converted into a claim to the compensation money which
was made to stand in the stead of the property.

The parties have not been able to agree upon the amount
of compensation money to which the defendant is entitled
and these proceedings are brought for an adjudication
thereon. By the information the plaintiff offered the sum
of $735,676 but the defendant by its statement of defence
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claimed $998,000. At the opening of the trial counsel for 35_11
the defendant applied for and obtained leave to amend its Tar Quesx
v

statement of defence by claiming $1,450,614. SISTEES OF
CHARITY OF

The expropriated property is well situated. It is on the Provibsnce
east side of Laurier Street in the City of Hull and extends ThorsonP.
eastward to the Ottawa river. On the north it is bounded
by Jacques Cartier Park and on the south by the convent
owned by La Congrégation des Servantes de Jésus-Marie.

There are two lots in the property the northerly one being
Lot No. 219C with a frontage of 209 feet on Laurier Street
and an area of 2-3 acres and the southerly one Lot No.
219D with a frontage of 2515 feet and an area of 2-5 acres.

The defendant, a religious community of nuns devoted to
charity, operates a general hospital, commonly called the
Sacred Heart Hospital, on Lot No. 219D. It acquired this
lot on August 7, 1911, as a gift from the City of Hull subject
to certain conditions, one of which was that it should con-
vert the house that was on the property into a hospital and
enlarge it to meet the needs of the public. The present
hospital is the result of additions and replacements. It
may be considered in three sections. The most southerly
one consists of the original house called the Champagne
house which was built in 1901 or 1902 as a private residence
and is now used as a residence for the nurses and the nuns.
It is of ordinary brick construction. The main building,
which is the hospital proper, was built at different times.
The original building was erected in 1912. The north wing
was built in 1924 with re-inforced concrete beams and slabs.
The centre part, which was re-built in 1928 after a fire in
1926, has a steel frame and is fireproofed with tile and
concrete. The south east wing, which was built in 1929,
is of similar construction, The main building may properly
be described as fire resistive. The third section, called the
annex, is the service wing of the hospital. Part of it dates
back to 1912 and the rest was built in 1926. It may also
be described as of ordinary construction. A plan prepared

by Mr. L. Sarra-Bournet sets out the details of the lay-out
52480—13a
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of the hospital on its several floors and the plot plan shows
the out-buildings and other out-door improvements on the
premises as well as the hospital itself.

After the completion of the hospital in 1929 the defendant
acquired Lot 219C on September 23, 1931, from H. Dupuis
for $12,000. This lot is still vacant land being used by
the defendant for a garden. It is surrounded by a metal
fence.

The defendant’s hospital has been recognized under the
Public Charities Act of Quebec, R.S.Q. 1941, chap. 187, as
a public charitable institution and it is admitted that it has
always been operated without profit. It is the only general
hospital in the City of Hull and serves not only the city
but also the surrounding district. It is agreed that it is
not large enough to meet the demands of the area it serves
and is overcrowded.

After the expropriation the City of Hull, on September
30, 1946, sold to the defendant a property on the Mountain
Road in Hull, containing 44-54 acres, for the sum of $1.00,
it being understood that the defendant bound itself to
build a new hospital and would start before January 1,
1949, and that if it did not do so the sale would be null and
void. On November 24, 1948, the City of Hull extended
the time for the commencement of the construction to
January 1, 1951, and on January 16, 1951, the City granted
a further extension to January 1, 1952. The property in
question is admirably suited as a site for a hospital.

It was assumed during the case that the defendant will
build a new hospital as soon as possible and a considerable
portion of the defendant’s claim was based on that
assumption.

So far as I am aware this is the first time that a hospital
voluntarily operated by a religious organization on a non-
profit making basis as a charitable institution has been
taken under the Expropriation Act. In my opinion, the
nature of the expropriated property takes it out of the
class of properties whose value to their owners is measured
by the ordinary economic and commercial tests of value
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in the three decisions which settle the law on the matter, Tm‘n—é;'ﬂmz

to which I referred in The King v. Woods Manufacturing
Co. Ltd. (1), namely, Cedars Rapids Manufacturing and
Power Company v. Lacoste (2), Pastoral Finance Asso-
ciation, Limited v. The Minister (3), and Vyricherla Nar-
ayona Gajapateraju v. The Revenue Divisional Officer,
Vizagapatam (4). The defendant’s property is not of the
kind that lends itself to commercial dealing but is of an
exceptional character and its value to the owner must be
measured by a standard that is appropriate to it. As I see
it, this is a case in which the principle of re-instatement
should be applied. This means that the defendant should
receive such a sum of money as will enable it to replace the
expropriated property by property which will be of equal
value to it. Vide—Cripps on Compensation, 8th edition,
page 180; London School Board v. South Eastern Railway
Co. (5) ; Metropolitan Railway Compdny and Metropolitan
District Railway Company v. Burrow (6), the text of which
judgment appears in the Appendix to Cripps (supra) at
pages 906-916. The sum to be paid should, therefore, be
gufficient to cover the realizable money value of the land,
the replacement value of the hospital, being its reconstruc-
tion cost less its depreciation, the value of the other out-
buildings and out-door improvements, all of these values
being computed as of the date of the expropriation, the cost
of moving to a new hospital and a sum equal to the increased
cost of constructing a new hospital after the date of expro-
priation, the last item being included in the defendant’s
entitlement on the assumption that it will build a new
hospital. The defendant should, therefore, receive the fair
market value of the land, namely, its realizable money
value as at the date of the expropriation, regardless of the
fact that it may not have to buy a new site, together with
such sum as would enable it to build just as valuable a
hospital on a new site and move into it.
(1) (1949) Ex. CR. 9 at 44. (4) (1939) A.C. 302 at 312.

(2) (1914) AC. 569 at 576. (5) (1887) 3 T.L.R. 710.
(3) (1914) A.C. 1083 at 1088. (6) (1884) The Times, Nov. 22.
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Eﬂ On this basis, counsel for the defendant gave particulars
TasQueen Of the amounts of the various items in its claim, amounting
Smemsop 1D the total to $1,434,649.76 as follows:

CHARITY OF
Provmcn INDEMNITE PECUNIAIRE RECLAMEE PAR LA
Thorson P. DEFENDERESSE COMME COMPENSATION:
- Pour la perte de:
BaAtISEES, it e e i $1,177426.00
TEITAIN, < ov o ceir oeeeineaena e eeeteateaenanaans 72,400.00
Dépendances, .......ccvviiiiireniiiiiinirititiiaaaas 2,260.00
Tennis, ..... cooviiiiri ittt eernnanencnsoneesnnnnns 500.00
Cloture métallique, ... covvverevreenereiensrnnennnnnns 2,100.00
Chemins—stationnement, .........c.ovivnennens vevnnns 5,000.00
TrObEOITS, ...t ivtiiei it civiieiee e anraaaans 700 00
Monument, .. ....coviiiiiiiiiii it 600.00
Egoub Privé .. ..oovviiiii i e i 1,000.00
Cloture de bois, ..ot 320 00
Arbres, arbustes, gazon, fleurs vivaces, nivellement, etc. .. 7,500.00
$1,269,806.00
POUR
Déménagement :
Général: .....oviiiiiiiiiiiiiian $20,327.00
Appareils spéeialisés: ................. 7,994.00
Appareils de cuisine
et de buanderie: .................. 6,100.00
$34,421.00 34,421.00
$1,304,227.00
POUR:
Deépossession forcée, 10 pour cent ........ 130,422.70

$1,434,649.70

The Court took a view of the expropriated property in
the presence of counsel for the parties.

I shall deal first with the value of the land. Opinion
evidence on this was given by Mr. A. Guertin and Mr. B.
Grandguillot for the defendant and Mr. Theo Lanctot and
Mr. C. Lalande for the plaintiff. All were agreed that the
value to be ascertained was the fair market value of the
land as at the date of the expropriation and that the most
advantageous use to which it could have been put was for
residential purposes and all put forward its possible develop- .
ment for subdivision into lots for private dwellings.
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Mr. Guertin proposed a plan of subdivision, Exhibit T, 1951

with a 50 foot street running east from Laurier Street Tam an
immediately north of the convent to a projected 66 foot g .2 v
street parallel with Laurier Street and coming to a dead Cragrryor
end at the north end of the property. There were to be Frovisxee
24 lots in this subdivision which he valued at 60 cents to 70 Th°r5°nP
cents a square foot. These lots ran from a low of $3,000 for
a 50 foot lot facing on Laurier Street to a high of $6,500
for a lot on the east side of the projected street with a
frontage of only 40 feet. Mr. Guertin estimated that these
lots could have been sold for a total of $86,000 from which
he deducted expenses of $240 for surveys and $8,576 for
selling commissions. This left a net valuation of $77,184.
This is excessive. Mr. Guertin did not consider the prices
paid by the defendant for lot 219C or by the Shell Oil
Company or the Supertest Petroleum Company for similar
parcels of land with frontages on Laurier Street and extend-
ing east to the river, and there were no sales of lots on which
he could possibly come even near to a justification of his
estimated values. It is doubtful, to say the least, whether
such a subdivision with the backs of the houses on the lots
on the east side of the projected street facing the river
would ever have been permitted. And it is obvious that
Mr. Guertin has had no experience in promoting sub-
divisions, for even if he could have sold the lots at his prices,
he could not have made anything like a net $77,184 out of
his gross sales of $86,000. Mr. Guertin’s valuation would
mean more than $16,000 per acre for the property, which
is more than three times what the defendant paid for it in
1931. There is no evidence to warrant the assumption of
any such increase in value. In my view, it would be un-
reasonable and unfair to accept Mr. Guertin’s valuation
and I have no hesitation in rejecting it.

For similar reasons I reject Mr. Grandguillot’s valuation
of $72,400. It struck me that he was mainly seeking to
justify his figures in the municipal valuation which he had
made for the City of Hull between 1943 and 1947. He
adopted the amounts of 45 cents per square foot.for the
frontage on Laurier Street and 35 cents for the remainder
of the acreage which he had used in his municipal valuation
and applied them to a corrected area of 193,376 square feet
which gave him a total valuation of $72,400, particulars of
which are given by Exhibit U, as against the municipal
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valuation of $70,540. He then sought to test his valuation
by an estimate of what the sales of lots in a projected sub-
division of the property would have realized. His proposed
plan of subdivision, Exhibit X, was similar to Mr. Guertin’s
except that there were two streets running east from
Laurier Street to the projected street parallel with it. ‘This
wag superior to Mr. Guertin’s plan in t%xat there was no
dead end street but it left less room for the lots. There
were 24 lots on his plan, 7 with a frontage of 48 feet on
Laurier Street to be sold at $3,000 each, 7 with a frontage
of 48 feet on the west side of the projected street parallel
with Laurier Street to be sold at $3,500 each and 10 with a
frontage of 46 feet on the east side of this street and
extending back to the river to be sold at $4,000 each. The
total amount of these sales would come to $84,500 from
which Mr. Grandguillot deducted $12,100 for expenses
connected with promoting the subdivision such as costs of
surveys, selling commissions, interest on capital and taxes
during the selling period leaving $72,400 as the market
value of the property. No provision was made in the
estimate for the cost of roads, sidewalks or water and sewer
services. Apart from the fact that it is doubtful that the
proposed plan would have been feasible or permitted, Mr.
Grandguillot had no support for his figures. He could not
point to any sales of comparable property that came any-
where near them. He also disregarded the prices paid by
the oil companies, to which reference will be made later,
although he admitted that the land owned by them had
greater value than the defendant’s. It seems plain to me
that Mr. Grandguillot’s valuation of the land was excessive.

The valuations made by Mr. Lalande and Mr. Lanctot
were not much better. Mr. Lalande put forward a plan of
subdivision with his report, Exhibit 6, showing two streets
running east from Laurier Street to a street along the river
bank. The 24 lots on this plan faced either on Laurier
Street or on the streets running east from it. Mr. Lalande
priced these at 50 cents per square foot for all the lots
except the corner ones which he put at 624 cents per square
foot. These prices came to a total of $66,275 from which
he deducted $7,000.for charges leaving his valuation at
$59,275. Mr. Lalande’s plan is open to even more serious
objection than the other two plans in that he has put one
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along the river could not be built except with a great Tngaz;mn

amount of fill. Otherwise, his plan is subject to the same

stms oF

kind of criticism as the other two. Mr. Lalande did not CHARITY oF

consider the sales of parcels of land similar to the defend- *
ant’s but admitted that its land was not as valuable as
that of the Shell Oil Company or the Supertest Petroleum
Company near the Interprovincial Bridge. He purported
to rely on two sales of property on the west side of Laurier,
which Mr. Guertin had also mentioned, one of Lot 68 on
Laurier Street near Reboul Street to L. Bourguignon on
February 16, 1940, at $1,400 which worked out at 22 cents
per square foot and the other of Lot 140 on Laurier Street
north of the hospital to R. Baillot on October 10, 1942, at
$2,200 which worked out at 33-6 cents per square foot.
These two sales do not provide any base for Mr. Lalande’s
estimate. Nor could he find any support in the sales of
properties in other parts of the City of Hull, particulars of
which were given on pages 2 and 3 of his report. He
admitted frankly that these properties were not comparable
to the defendant’s land. Mr. Lalande’s valuation cannot
be adopted.

This leaves Mr. Lanctot’s opinion. He valued the land
fronting on Laurier Street at 50 cents per foot for a depth
of 100 feet which came to $23,025 and the balance amount-
ing to 3-46 acres at $9,000 per acre which came to $31,140,
making a total valuation of $54,165. An alternative valua-
tion was based on the same amount for the frontage on
Laurier Street, for a depth of 100 feet together with -216
cents per foot for the remainder for a further depth of 300
feet which came to $29,840.40 and 15 cents for a strip along
the shore which was submerged at times which came to
$1,913.88 making a total of $54,778.95. While I cannot
accept Mr. Lanctot’s valuation his report, Exhibit 4, does
contain reliable information from which a fair estimate can
be made. Mr. Lanctot, whose knowledge of real estate
values in Hull is very considerable, stated that during the
period from 1929-30 to 1940 the real estate market was

ROVIDEN CE
Thorson P.

on the decline but in 1940 there came a rise which up to .

1944 he considered as being 15 per cent and then from
1944 to 1946 there was a further increase of 20 per cent. In
my view, this estimate in the rise of real estate market
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values is preferable to Mr. Lalande’s estimate of an increase
of 50 per cent. In valuing the frontage on Laurier Street
Mr. Lanctot relied on the sale to Mr. Baillot, already
referred to, which worked out at 33+6 cents per square foot
in 1942 to which he added a 30 per cent increase up to 1946
which brought it up to 44-75 cents per square foot. On
this basis he valued the frontage on Laurier Street at 50
cents. There is less exception to this part of his valuation
than to his estimate of $9,000 per acre for the rest of the
property. This amount was based on three sales of large
parcels of property particulars of which he gave, namely,
a sale to the Supertest Petroleum company, registered on
April 8, 1929, of 2-5 acres at $13,000 or $5,200 per acre, a
sale to the Shell Oil Company, registered on September 3,
1931, of 2-89 acres for $21,000 or $7,266 per acre and a sale
to the defendant, registered on September 31, 1931, of 2-4
acres for $12,000 or $5,000 per acre. This works out at an
average of somewhat less than $6,000 per acre and Mr.
Lanctot applied more than his 35 per cent increase in value
to get this up to $9,000 per acre. Mr. Lanctot was quite
unjustified in applying the figure of $9,000 per acre, based
as it was on the average of the three sales referred to and
the increase in market values up to 1946, only to the land
100 feet back from Laurier. He was plainly in error in so
doing, for the lands covered by these sales all had extensive
frontage on Laurier Street. If he used the figure at all he
should have applied it to the whole of the defendant’s land.

The evidence of these sales was given before me in the
case of The King v. Woods Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (1) and
Mr. Lanctot gave the same estimates of increases in real
estate values as he gave in the present case. There was
also evidenece in that case, which was not before me in this
one, that led me to the view that at the time of the sales
the fair market value of the land of the defendant in that
case was approximately $6,500 per acre. On that assump-
tion and applying Mr. Lanctot’s percentage of increase in
market values I estimated the value of the 4 acres expro-
priated on May 19, 1944, at $7,500 per acre and that of the
1-68 acres expropriated on May 7, 1946, at $9,000 per acre.
Although my estimate of the value of the expropriated
property in that case was increased by the Supreme Court

(1) (1949) Ex. CR. 21
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evidence before me, taking $6,000 per acre as the average
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price of the three sales referred to and increasing this by Cmasrrror

35 per cent, according to Mr. Lanctot’s estimate, I could

PROVIDENCE

not reach an average of $9,000 per acre, there are such ThP-

factors as proximity to the Park and a fine view of the
Ottawa River and the cliff on the Ottawa side that would
fairly warrant an estimate of $9,000 per acre for the
defendant’s land. The total area comes to 4-8 acres, almost
5 acres, so that a valuation of the defendant’s land at
$45,000 in round figures would be ample. I do not see
how the evidence before me could possibly justify a higher
estimate.

Opinion evidence of the value of the hospital was given
by Mr. R. Brunet and Mr. A. Deschamps for the defendant
and Mr. E. J. Bartley, Mr. J. Adam and Professor J. A.
Coote for the plaintiff. They each made an estimate of
reconstruction cost as of the date of the expropriation, then
reduced this by the amount of depreciation which they
considered appropriate and arrived at an amount which
some of them described as depreciated value but which I
shall refer to as replacement value. Mr. Brunet, a con-
struction contractor and a former mayor of the City of
" Hull, said that he obtained the cubic contents of the build-
ing from Mr. Bournet and applied what he considered
the proper unit price per cubic foot. On this basis he
estimated the reconstruction cost of the Champagne house
at $97,853.40, the main building at $755,715.28 and the
annex at $106,676.64, making a total of $960,245.32. These
amounts were reduced by his depreciation allowances, 25
per cent or $24,463.35 for the Champagne house, 15 per cent
or $113,357.29 for the main building and 17 per cent or
$18,135.03 for the annex, making a total of $155,955.67.
This left $804,289.65 as the replacement value.

Mr. Deschamps, an outstanding construction engineer
from Montreal with experience in hospital construction,
followed the same method. He obtained the cubic contents
from Mr. Bournet’s plan and applied unit prices thereto
which he considered proper, based on hospitals which he
said were of similar construction. He estimated the recon-
struction cost of the Champagne house at $90,605, the main
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building at $694,591 and the annex at $93,576, makmg a
total of $878,772, to which he added architect and engineer
fees at 6 per cent, amounting to $52,706, making a total of
$931,498. Mr. Deschamps and Mr. Brunet were in agree-
® ment as to their percentages of depreciation, having dis-
cussed the matter together. Mr. Deschamps’ total allow-
ance for depreciation, based on these percentages and
applied only to the total of $878,772.00, came to $142,448.
This left a replacement value of $789,050.00.

The witnesses for the plaintiff worked somewhat differ-
ently, Mr. Bartley and Mr. Adam dividing the work of
estimating the reconstruction cost between them and both
working under the supervision of Professor Coote who
assumed responsibility for the depreciation estimates and
the final valuation. The details of this composite valuation
are set out in Professor Coote’s report, Exhibit 2. Mr.
Bartley surveyed the electrical and mechanical services in
the hospital and estimated their reconstruction cost. He
explained in detail how he proceeded to ascertain the
quantities in the electrical system and that he had obtained
the necessary prices from Mofax Electrical Limited one of
the largest electrical firms in Montreal. His estimate for
the electrical services came to $20,057. He followed a similar
procedure with the mechanical services, particulars of which
are set out on page 9 of Exhibit 2, and obtained the required
prices from John Colford, a large heating and plumbing
contractor in Montreal, except in the case of the boilers and
the refrigeration where the information was obtained from
actual suppliers. His estimate for the mechanical services
came to $93,521. With an allowance of $7,000 for architect’s
fee his estimate of the reconstruction cost of the electrical
and mechanical services came to $120,578.

Mr. Adam, an Ottawa architect of great experience,
obtained plans of the building from Mr. Sarra-Bournet and
other information from various sources. He also made a
thorough examination of the building, ascertained the
details of construction by inspection and took off the
quantities of material in its several parts. To these he
applied the current prices for material and labour obtained
either from the actual suppliers or from contractors ex-
perienced in the various sub-trades. He estimated the
reconstruction cost of the Champagne house at $74,699,
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the main building at $556,309, the annex at $73,766 and the
elevator and dumb waiter at $19,950, making a total of
$724,724 which amount included an allowance for archi-
tect’s fees and contractor’s profit, to which he added $50,730
for what he called general conditions, making a total of
$775454. The total of this amount and that of $120,578
for the electrical and mechanical services, coming to
$896,032, represents the estimated reconstruction cost of
the hospital.

Professor Coote, a consulting engineer with Robert A.
Rankin and Company of Montreal and formerly Assistant
Professor of the Department of Mechanical Engineering of
MecGill University for 30 years until his retirement in 1948,
was in charge of the valuations made for the plaintiff. He
visited the hospital on numerous occasions and supervised
and checked the work of estimating. Then in the light of
his study and experience he determined the life expectancy
of each of the items set out on page 7 of his report, Exhibit
2, and estimated the amount of depreciation of each. He
estimated the useful life of the main building at 60 years
and, because of its type of construction, applied a 4 per
cent sinking fund curved line depreciation and reached his
opinion of a 10 per cent depreciation for its 17 years of use.
On the assumption that the Champagne house and the
annex would be used as long as the main building he put
their respective life expectancies at 87 and 63 years. Be-
cause both these buildings were of ordinary construction he
applied a straight line depreciation to them and estimated
a 51 per cent depreciation for the former and a 32 per cent
one for the latter. He put the life of the elevator and dumb
waiter at 40 years and its depreciation at 43 per cent. The
depreciation for the electrical services was put at 43 per cent
and for the mechanical services at the various rates shown
on page 7 of Exhibit 2. Altogether Professor Coote’s depre-
ciation allowances came to $188,850, which left a replace-
ment value for the hospital of $707,182.

This sum of $707,182 covers the same items as the esti-
mates of $804,289.65 by Mr. Brunet and $789,050 by Mr.
Deschamps. The difference is mainly due to the larger
allowance for depreciation made by Professor Coote. The
difference in the estimates of reconstruction cost namely,
$960,245.32 by Mr. Brunet, $931,498 by Mr. Deschamps and
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$896,032 by Mr. Bartley and Mr. Adam was not greater
than might be expected. I am satisfied that Mr. Bartley
and Mr. Adam were very thorough in their inspection and
careful in their quantity surveys and, other factors being
equal, I would attach greater weight to an estimate of
reconstruction cost based on actual quantities and current
prices for materials and labour than to one based on cubie
contents and an assumed unit price per cubic foot. Against
this in the present case there is the fact that Mr. Bartley
and Mr. Adam did not have actual working plans and
detailed specifications to help them in taking off the quan-
tities. Moreover, I was impressed with Mr. Deschamps’
statement that in this case he did not have to take off
quantities since he had buildings of a comparable type and
known actual costs to go on. This makes Mr. Deschamps’
estimate preferable to Mr. Brunet’s. While Mr. Deschamps’
estimate is subject to some discount by reason of the fact
that his cubic contents figure is 500 cubic feet higher than
Mr. Sarra-Bournet’s and that the hospitals he referred to
as being of a comparable type to the building in question
were more modern in construction, I have come to the
conclusion that his estimate of reconstruction cost, namely,
$913,498, is the one that ought to be accepted.

The amount to be allowed for depreciation is not as easy
to determine. It is always difficult in the case of a building
such as this to estimate its depreciation at any given time.
Depreciation means diminution in value and the diminution
may be due either to physical deterioration, commonly
called depreciation by wear and tear, or simply depreciation,
or to funetional deterioration or reduced usability by reason
of factors other than wear and tear, commonly referred to as
obsolescence, or to both. Frequently obsolescence is more
important than depreciation by wear and tear but both
must be considered together in a proper appraisal of value.
In estimating the amount of depreciation of an asset it is
important to avoid errors that are surprisingly common.
One of these is the assumption that the life of an asset can
be prolonged indefinitely through maintenance. This wide-
spread view found favour even with a court of such high
standing as the Supreme Court of the United States as
late as 1903 in San Diego Land and Town Co. v. Jasper (1).

(1) (1903) 189 U.S. 439.
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depreciation was properly understood. In that year the Tn;é;mn

Supreme Court of the United States in the leading case of
City of Knozville v. Knozville Water Co. (1) laid down
certain principles that have never since been judicially dis-
puted. It is now settled that it is fallacious to assume that
an asset can be so well maintained that it will remain
in as good as new condition indefinitely. Depreciation
begins from the moment of its first use and continues not-
withstanding maintenance. The inevitability of deprecia-
tion was frankly recognized by Mr. Deschamps, as was
to be expected from a person of his eminence. But, on the
other hand, it does not follow that the amount of deprecia-~
tion can be ascertained merely from depreciation tables.
While well recognized tables are of great assistance since
they are based on recorded experience they ought not to be
used by themselves. It is always necessary to make a
careful examination of the asset and consider its structural
and functional condition so that consideration may be
given not only to the elapsed time of its expectancy of life
according to the tables but also to the remaining life that
may be expected in the light of its actual condition. On
the evidence, I have no hesitation in preferring the deprecia-
tion estimates of Professor Coote and his associates to those
of Mr. Brunet and Mr. Deschamps or of Mr. Guise. In
the first place it seemed to me that Professor Coote, by
reason of his long study of the theory and principles under-
lying this difficult subject as well as his actual experience as
a consultant had a greater knowledge and better under-
standing of it than the others. Secondly, and this is a more
important reason, his opinion, supported as it was by Mr.
Bartley and Mr. Adam, was based on a more careful
examination of the facts. I found it more realistic and

more convineing. There was not much difference regard- -

ing the main building. Mr. Brunet and Mr. Deschamps
both put its depreciation at 15 per cent, Mr. Brunet saying
this was mostly due to obsolescence and Mr. Deschamps
setting it at 9 per cent for obsolescence and 6 per cent for
depreciation by wear and tear. Neither could assign any
specific reason for the 15 per cent except that Mr. Brunet
said that it worked out approximately at 1 per cent per

(1) (1909) 212 US. 1.
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year. I may say, in passing, that I do not agree with Mr.
Brunet’s statement that there was no appreciable deprecia-
tion to be seen. Professor Coote found only a 10 per cent
depreciation for this part of the hospital due both to wear
and tear and to obsolescence and inadequacy. Mr. Adam
thought that there was a 17 per cent depreciation mainly
because of obsolescence. It was not functioning properly
in the light of provineial requirements, not enough cubic
space per bed for the number of beds and not enough light.
There was a greater discrepancy of opinion in the case of
the other buildings. Mr. Brunet and Mr. Deschamps put
the depreciation of the Champagne house at only 25 per
cent although it was 44 or 45 years old and not up to modern
standards. This was admittedly low. The estimates of
51 per cent by Professor Coote and 50 to 55 per cent by
Mr. Adam struck me as much nearer reality. In my view,
Professor Coote’s estimate was reasonable. Nor can the
estimate of 17 per cent for the annex be supported. This
was only 2 per cent higher than that for the main building
notwithstanding that it was only of ordinary construction
and part of it was 34 years old. While it is true that the
upper floors have had less use than the main building, as
Mr. Deschamps pointed out, that is not true of the rest of
the annex, particularly of the kitchen. Mr. Adam found
signs of wear and tear in the annex. The galleries on the
east side were very much depreciated. Moreover, the annex
was of a type of construction which in relation to the main
building would not have been permitted in 1946. Professor
Coote also pointed out that as a service wing it was not
up, to date. The corridors and stairs were narrow, the
kitchen was old and there were several signs of overcrowd-
ing. The wing would not have been adequate for any
extension of the hospital. Indeed, it was obsolete for a
modern hospital. Professor Coote’s estimate of a 32 per
cent depreciation was a fair one. Neither Mr. Brunet nor
Mr. Deschamps made any check of the electrical and
mechanical services. There, in effect, I find that the
evidence of the plaintifi’s witnesses was not seriously
challenged notwithstanding the opinion of Mr. Guise, which
I am unable to accept. Mr. Bartley said that the eleetrical
services were pretty close to a minimum standard for that
type of building and were only in fairly good order, there
being evidence of deterioration through lack of maintenance
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in the distribution panel and wiring. In his opinion, the 1951

heating services were adequate at the time of their installa~ Tgs QUEEN
tion. The piping and radiators were in good condition but ¢ - .
the boiler room was only in fair to poor condition, there Cmagrryor

being evidence of lack of running maintenance, one of the VIR G
boilers requiring a complete rebuilding. The steam and ThorsonP.
condensate system was in good condition. The plumbing

services were reasonably good, the system being in good

order having regard to its age. Mr. Adam thought that

the mechanical services were obsolescent and Professor

Coote considered that the electrical and mechanical services

were not up to the mark of a modern hospital. I agree. I

am satisfied that Professor Coote sought to be fair in his

estimate of depreciation and I accept his total allowance

of $188,850 for depreciation as reasonable. The deduction

of this figure from Mr. Deschamps’ estimate of $931,498

for the reconstruction cost of the hospital leaves $742,648

as its replacement value as at the date of expropriation. To

use round figures, I put this value at $750,000.

There was very little difference of opinion over the value
of the out-buildings and other out-door improvements.
Most of the witnesses confined themselves to estimates of
the values of these items after due allowances for deprecia-
tion and their evidence may be summarized briefly. The
* out-buildings at the back (dependances) were valued at
$2,260 by Mr. Brunet, $1,450 by Mr. Grandguillot and
$2,113 by Mr. Adam. Both Mr. Brunet and Mr. Grand-
guillot valued the tennis court at $500. The metal fence
surrounding Lot 219C was valued by Mr. Brunet at $2,320
and by Mr. Grandguillot at $2,100. Mr. Grandguillot
valued the driveways at $5,000, the walks at $700, the
monument at $600 and the wooden fence at $320. His first
estimate of the value of the private drainage.at the back
(égoflit privé) was $4,500 but he later corrected this to
$1,000. Mr. Adam did not value several of these items
separately, but included the fences, driveway, tennis court,
ete., and drainage together with their reconstruction cost
and then he and Professor Coote put their depreciated value
at $10,000. This total, which did not include anything for
the monument, is almost identical with the total for the
corresponding items put forward by Mr. Grandguillot.
Finally, Mr. Grandguillot valued the trees, lawns, shrubs,

52480—2a
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flower beds, ete., at $7,500, which is too high, whereas Mr.
Lalande and Mr Lanctot put this item at $3,621, which
is too low. Mr. Grandguillot’s original figures for all these
items came to $22,570 but he corrected this by eliminating
his first item of $900 and reducing his figure for the private
drainage by $3,500, leaving a corrected estimate of $18,170.
In my view, it would be fair to fix the value of these items
in round figures at $17,500.

I next come to the cost of moving to a new hospital. Mr.
J. R. Fournier, an experienced mover, estimated the cost
of moving from the present site to the proposed site on
the Mountain Road at $20,327.50, the details of which are

" given in Exhibit V. Against this there was Mr. L. Grondin’s

estimate of $17,058. I see no reason why I should not
accept Mr. Fournier’s estimate. To this amount must be
added the cost of dismantling, transporting and re-installing
certain special hospital equipment, such-as tables, X-ray
apparatus, sterilizers, operating room lights, centrifuge and
hydrotherapeutic apparatus. Mr. L. Lamalice valued this
equipment at its 1946 value and took 30 per cent of it as
the cost of the moving (déménagement), which came to
$11,992.10. But since the cost of actual transport was
included in Mr. Fournier’s estimate, Mr. Lamalice’s esti-
mate must be reduced by one-third which left his figure at
$7,994, to cover dismantling, re-installing and risk of break-
age. There was also the cost of dismantling and re-
agssembling the kitchen and laundry equipment, which was
not included in Mr. Fournier’s estimate. Mr. Grandguillot
estimated the depreciation value of this equipment at
$24,500, particulars of which appear in Exhibit Z1, and
then expressed the opinion that the cost of dismantling
and re-assembling with an allowance for breakage would
come to $6,100. While Mr. Grandguillot was not an expert
in this field and his estimate is open to some doubt on this
account, there was no contrary estimate. The three items.
mentioned come to a total of $34,421.

There remains the claim for the amount required to
meet the increased costs of construction after the date of
the expropriation. Mr. Sarra-Bournet said that it would
take a year for the preparation of plans for a hospital like
the present one and Mr. Deschamps agreed. I accept this
statement. Mr. Brunet said that it would take 24 to 30
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its claim for this item to the difference between the cost of ThorsonP.

construction in May, 1946, and the cost of construction in
December, 1948. This, in my opinion, was a reasonable
view of the time it would take to draw the necessary plans
and specifications and construct a new hospital. The
evidence of Mr. Deschamps and Mr. Adam establishes that
in Quebec the construction cost index rose from 151-5 in
May, 1946, to 191-5 in December, 1948, an increase of 40
points and a percentage increase of 26-4 per cent. If this
percentage is applied to the reconstruction cost of $931,498
which T have found, as I think it should be, the result
amounts to $245,915.47, TIf the same percentage is applied
to the sum of $17,500, being the value of the out-buildings
and other out-door improvements, as I think would be fair,
there is a further item of $4,620. These two items make a
total of $250,535.47.

The total of these items, $45,000 for the land, $750,000
for the hospital building, $17,500 for the out-buildings and
other out-door improvements, $34,421 for the cost of moving
and $250,535.47 for the additional cost of construction
comes to $1,097,456.47, which I put in round figures at
$1,100,000. On the application of the principle of re-
instatement I estimate the value of the expropriated
property to the defendant at this amount. In my judgment,
this is amply sufficient to cover all the factors of value to
the owner that ought to be taken into account and, but for
recent decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada dealing
with an allowance for compulsory taking, it would be the
amount of compensation money to which I would find the
defendant entitled.

This leads me to consideration of the defendant’s claim
for a 10 per cent allowance for compulsory taking and the
jurisprudence on it. There is no Act of Parliament either
in England or in Canada authorizing such an allowance
and there is no rule of law requiring it. Its grant is entirely
a matter of practice adopted in Canada from a practice in

England that has been abolished there in the great majority
52480—2}a
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of cases for over 30 years. While the English practice was
general and uniform the same cannot be said of the
Canadian one. The decisions of this Court on when there
should be such an allowance have been conflicting and
there has been lack of consistency in those of the Supreme
Court of Canada. It would, I think, be an understatement
to say that the state of the Canadian law on the subject is
unsatisfactory. In view of the importance of the matter
and the need for reform it is, I think, desirable to outline
the English practice with its present limited extent and
then review the decisions on its Canadian derivative.

It is not clear when the English practice first arose except
that it was prior to The Lands Clauses Consolidation Act,
1845. In that year a Select Committee of the House of
Lords considered the principles adopted by surveyors in
assessing compensation for the compulsory taking of lands
under various Acts authorizing their acquisition for under-
takings of a public nature and reported in part as follows:

Upon the question of severance and damage, the committee are of
the opinion that it is impossible to establish any fixed rate upon which
the damage arising from severance, and other injuries to property, can be
assessed and compensated.

With respect to the land, etc. actually taken, the witnesses who were
examined state, that, to the marketable value of the property taken, they
add, in their valuations, a percentage, on the ground of the sale being
compulsory. The amount of this percentage varies with the views of the
different witnesses, whose evidence will be found in the Appendix; but
the committee are of opinion that a very high percentage, ‘a.mounting to not
less than 50! per cent upon the original value ought to be given in
compensation for the compulsion only to which the seller is bound to
submit, the severance and the damage being distinet considerations. In
some of the evidence it appears to the committee that a very unfair view
is taken of the injury done to proprietors, and of the compensation due
to them.

The committee are of opinion that many cases occur in which it is
necessary to consider the land, ete., not merely as a source of income, but
as the subject of expensive embellishment, and subservient to the enjoy-
ment and recreation of the proprietor.

Public advantage may require all these private considerations to be
sacrificed; but as it is the only ground on which a man can be justly
deprived of his property and enjoyments, so, in the case of railways, though
the public may be considered ultimately the gainers, the immediate motive
to their construction is the interest of the speculators, who have no right
to complain of being obliged to purchase, at a somewhat high rate, the
means of carrying on their speculation.

It is to be observed, that the price of the land purchased, and the

compensation for that which is injured, form together but a small pro-~
portion of the sum required for the construction of a railway, so that no
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apprehension need be entertained of discouraging their formation, by
calling upon the speculators to pay largely for the rights which they acquire
over the property of others.

This extract from the Committee’s report is set out in
Hodges on Railways, 6th Edition (1876), at page 202.
Greater detail of the report, Sessional Paper, 1845, No. 184,
will be found in Shefford’s Law of Railways, 4th Edition
(1865), Vol. I1, at page 228. It is manifest from the report
that the Committee did not attempt to justify the allow-
ance on any ground other than that of being compensation
“for the compulsion only” and made no pretence that any
principle of valuation was being established. It is plain
that they thought that speculators who were promoting
undertakings of a public nature should pay the owners of
the lands required for them more than they were actually
worth. It seems to have been considered that the taking
savoured of tort. In any event, the compensation was set
at the value of the lands plus the additional allowance
because they were taken against the owner’s will. There
was no other reason for the allowance.

The next text-book reference is in Lloyd on Cempensa-~
tion, 6th Edition (1895), at page 71, where the author,
after referring to the above Committee’s recommendation
that not less than 50 per cent upon the original value ought
to be given as compensation for the compulsion, said:

Recent experience has shown that such estimate is an exaggerated one;
and 10 per cent is considered a sufficient compensation for the compulsory
sale in addition to the assessed value in the case of house property; but
in respect of agricultural lands as much as 25 per cent is sometimes given.

Here again the allowance was considered as additional
to the value of the land.

Then there is the following statement in Hudson’s Law
of Compensation (1905), Vol. I, at page CLVII:

As a matter of custom, an addition of a certain percentage should be
made {o the value of the property taken (but not to any sum claimed for
injurious affection), where the promoters are purchasing under compulsory
powers. This percentage varies from 10 per cent upwards, according to
the nature of the property taken. Where the land has reached its true
value and been applied to its most profitable user (such as building), 10
per cent is generally accepted as being proper and sufficient, but where,
for instance, land is clearly applied to some purpose giving it a present
value below that which will arise in the future when it is put to some
more profitable use although no actual caleulation of this enhanced value
is possible at the moment, it is customary to add more than ten per cent
as a solatium to the owner for the loss of the additional, but distant,
value which attaches to the land of which he is being deprived.
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This statement is further confirmation of the fact that
the allowance was additional to the value of the land. It
is also interesting to note that the addition was a matter of
custom. There was no attempt to lay down any prineciples
for determining when it should be given. It was always
given.

I now come to statements in the English text-books of a
later date. In Cripps on Compensation, 8th Edition (1938),
the author says, at page 213:

The fact that lands have been taken under compulsory process does
not alter the principle of valuation, and the customary addition of 10
per cent can only be justified as a part of the valuation and not as an
addition thereto. In practice the 10 per cent is applied fo the value of the
lands only, and not to incidental damage, this percentage may be taken
to cover various incidental costs and charges to which an owner is subject
whose land has been taken, and if no percentage were added such incidental
costs and charges would have to be considered in assessing the amount of
compensation.

And there is a similar statement in Arnold on Damages
and Compensation, 2nd Edition (1919), at page 248. These
two statements differ from the previous ones. It seems to
me that in the statement that the customary addition of
10 per cent can only be justified as a part of the valuation
and not as an addition thereto there was a recognition
that a valuation of lands based on their value plus a fixed
percentage of their value simply because they were taken
against the owner’s will was contrary to principle and an
attempt was made to rationalize the allowance as a prin-
ciple of valuation and make it cover various incidental
costs and charges.

There is a dearth of English judicial decisions on the
subject. This is, no doubt, largely due to the fact that
the amount of compensation to be awarded in cases under
The Lands Clauses Consolidation Act, 1845, was not a
matter for the judges but was to be assessed by justices of
the peace, arbitrators or surveyors under section 63 or by
arbitrators or juries under section 68. In Lock v. Furze
(1) there was a recognition of the practice of making the
allowance, although it was held not to be applicable to the
facts of that case, and in In Re Wilkes Estate (2) Hall V.C.
referred to it as “the additional 10 per cent for compulsory
purchase” and dealt with it in the same way as the rest of
the purchase-money. Later, there was an attempt in

(1) (1865) 19 CB.N.S. 94. (2) (1880) 16 Ch. D. 597.
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(1) to obtain a judicial decision on the legality of the THEM

additional allowance but it failed because it was held that
the transaction under review was not a compulsory purchase
and it was, therefore, unnecessary to consider the legality
of the addltlonal allowance. I have not been able to find
any other English decision bearing on the matter, but there
is an Jrish decision in which there are some obiter dicta on
it. In In re Athlone Rifle Range (2) the Master of the
Rolls held that an addition of 20 per cent to the purchase
price of rents reserved under a lease was made without
authority and then, at page 437, said:

As regards compensation for land (as distinct from rent) taken com-
pulsorily, arbitrators in the same way as juries do frequently add something
for the annoyance of being disturbed in the possession, and the difficulty
and delay in procuring other suitable premises, and they are not legally
bound to treat the case as exactly the same as an ordinary case of vendor
and purchaser where both parties are willing to contract; but I cannot
say that even in respect of actual occupation of lands in point of law
an allowance of 20 per cent additional is a reasonable allowance. I am
sure it is unreasonable in respect of a rent charge.

Vide also Lord Mayor of Dublin v. Dowling et ol (3) where
the allowance was recognized.

The practice which gave the owners of lands that were
compulsorily taken at first 150 per cent and later 110 per
cent of what they were worth merely because they were
taken against the owner’s will is now in effect in England
in only comparatively few cases. From time to time
Parliament recognized that there was no justification for
the allowance and prohibited it by statutory enactment as,
for example, by section 21 of the Housing of the Working
Classes Act, 1890, and by section 9 (10) of the Local
Government Act, 1894. The greatest limitation of the
practice came in 1919 when the allowance was abolished in
all cases where land was acquired by any government
department or any local or public authority. This was
done by rule 1 of section 2 of the Acquisition of Land
(Assessment of Compensation) Act, 1919, which read as
follows:

2. In assessing compensation, an official arbitrator shall act in accord-
ance with the following rules:
(1) No allowance shall be made on account of the acquisition being
compulsory;
(1) (1896-97) 13 TL.R. 14 (2) (1902) 1 Ir. 433.
and 312. (3) (1880) L.R. Ir. 6 Q.B. 502.
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_135} I think it may fairly be said that Parliament took this
Tae Quesn Step because it recognized that the practice of automatically
Sismos op 21ving the owner of lands required for public purposes 10
%ﬁ or per cent more than their realizable money value inevitably
——  led to excessive awards and could not be justified. Thus
Thorson P. the English practice canme to an end and in all the cases
to which the Act of 1919 applied and since most cases of
compulsory taking are under this Act it may be said that
the practice has largely ceased in England. It continues,
however, as Cripps points out, at page 265, in cases that
still come under the Lands Clauses Consolidation Act, 1845,
and in such cases the 10 per cent allowance is always added

to the value of the land taken compulsorily.

But although the additional allowance has been abolished
in England in all cases of expropriation by the government
or any local or public authority the practice of granting it
still persists in Canada in certain cases under the Ex-
propriation Act notwithstanding that all expropriations
under it are made by the Crown in right of Canada. During
recent years this Court substantially discontinued granting
any additional allowance for compulsory taking, but this
trend has been partly reversed by the recent decisions of
the Supreme Court of Canada in Irving Oil Company
Limited v. The King (1), Diggon-Hibben Ltd. v. The King
(2) and The King v. Lavoie (3).

The importance of the subject merits a review of the
Canadian jurisprudence on it. I have already pointed out
that there is no statutory support for the practice, the only
reason for it being the English practice to which I have
referred. It is also a fact that it has not been as generally
applied as it was in England. There are many cases both
in this Court and in the Supreme Court of Canada in which
an additional allowance of ten per cent for compulsory
taking has been granted without any comment at all or
with merely a reference to it as the “usual” allowance for
compulsory taking as, for example, in The King v. Torrens
et al (4). These present no difficulty, apart from the
question of the propriety of the allowance, for they are
strictly in accord with the English practice. But at an
early date attempts were made in this Court—and later in

(1) (1946) S.C.R. 851. (3) Dec. 18, 1950, unreported.
(2) (1949) S.C.R. 712, (4) (1917) 17 Ex. C.R. 19 at 31.
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the Supreme Court of Canada—to justify the additional 1951
allowance on some ground of principle other than merely TanmmN
that of compensation for compulsory taking and to deter- Sismans oF
mine when it should and when it should not be granted. Cmarmryor
There was nothing in the English practice to support any Frovivinca
such distinction. In England, as we have seen, the addi- ThorsonP.
tional allowance was always granted—until it was abolished =~
except in the few cases referred to. It seems to me that
in these attempts there was an implicit recognition that the
general practice of giving every owner of expropriated
property ten per cent more than its value merely because
it had been expropriated could not be justified in principle.
But when the attempts were made differences of opinion
and confusion arose. The extent of the differences can
best be illustrated by contrasting almost the first decision
on the subject with almost the last. In Symonds v. The
King (1) Burbidge J. held that the additional allowance
for compulsory taking should be added only “in cases where
the actual value of lands can be closely and accurately
determined”, but that where that cannot be done, and the
price allowed is liberal and generous there is no occasion
to add anything for the compulsory taking. On the other
hand, in Diggon-Hibben Ltd. v. The King (2) Rand J.
held that the practice of making the allowance applied in
certain circumstances presenting difficulty or uncertainty
in appraising values. There could not be a greater differ-
ence of view.
In between these opposites the decisions both of this
Court and of the Supreme Court of Canada show a great
variety of reasons for granting or withholding the allowance,
some of which are irreconcilable with one another. I shall
deal first with the cases prior to The King v. Hunting et ol
(3). In several cases the “usual” ten per cent for com-
pulsory taking was allowed merely because the land had
been taken against the will of the owner: Belanger v. The
King (4); The King v. Carrieres de Beauport Cie (5); The
King v. The Hudson’s Bay Co. (6); The King v. Patrick
King (7); The King v. Bowles (8); The King v. Grass (9).
These cases were all strictly in accord with the English
(1) (1903) 8 Ex. CR. 319 at 322.  (5) (1915) 17 Ex. C.R. 414 at 425.

(2) (1949) S.CR. 712 at 713. (6) (1916) 17 Ex. C.R. 441 at 445,
(3) (1916) 18 Ex. C.R. 442; (7) (1916) 17 Ex, C.R. 471 at 481.
(1917) 32 DL.R. 331, (8) (1916) 17 Ex. C.R. 482 at 486.

(4) (1917) 17 Ex. CR. 333 at 350. (9) (1916) 18 Ex. C.R. 177 at 197.
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Eil practice. But several other reasons for granting the addi-
TaeQumex tional allowance appear in the cases. For example, it has
Ssmmsop De€n given for contingencies, moving, good-will, ete, The
gmgg King v. Condon (1); for contingent items, The King v.
——  Macpherson (2); for the good-will of a hotel because its
Thorson P. yalue could not be moneyed out with precision and any loss
and all other expenses incidental to the closing down of a
going concern, The King v. The Carslake Hotel Co. (3),
affirmed by the Supreme Court of Canada (4); for the
compulsion and to cover all other unforseen incidentals
including moving, The King v. Blais and Vadeboncoeur
(5). These cases are related to one another in that in them
the allowance was granted as compensation for disturbance
of various kinds. But the presence or absence of disturb-
ance was not a determining factor for it was granted in
_ several cases where there was no disturbance, as for example,
in the case of vacant land that was part of a timber limit,
The King v. The New Brunswick Ratlway Co. (8); in the
case of properties from which there had been revenue, The
King v. Hearn (7); in the case of vacant lands that were
particularly suitable for warehouse site purposes, The King
v. Vassie & Co. et al (8). And there were cases where the
allowance was granted not as compensation for disturbance
but in addition to an award for it, The King v. Courtney
(9); The King v. Jalbert et al (10). Then there were cases
in which it was held that no allowance should be given, as,
for example, when the owner has made no use of the
property and derived no revenue from it but bought it for
speculative purposes, Raymond v. The King (11); in the
case of properties that yielded practically no revenue and
were not occupied, The King v. Hearn (12); because the
property had been bought for speculative purposes in the
expectation of its expropriation, The King v. Picard (13);
in the case of property which the owners had been trying
to sell for a number of years, The King v. McCarthy (14),
affirmed by the Supreme Court of Canada (15), without
(1) (1909) 12 Ex. C.R. 275 at 282. (9) (1916) 16 Ex. C.R. 461 at 464.
(2) (1914) 15 Ex. CR. 215 at 232. (10) (1916) 18 Ex. CR. 78 at 80.
(3) (1915) 16 Ex. CR. 24 at 33.  (11) (1916) 16 Ex. C.R. 1 at 22;
(4) June 13, 1916, unreported. (1918) 59 Can. S.C.R. 62.
(5) (1915) 18 Ex. C.R. 63 at 66.  (12) (1916) Ex. C.R. 146 at 176.
(6) (1913) 14 Ex. C.R. 491 at 497. (13) (1916) 17 Ex. C.R. 452 at 460.

(7) (1916) 16 Ex. C.R. 146 at 175. (14) (1919) 18 Ex. C.R. 410 at 436.
(8) (1917) 17 Ex. CR. 75 at 83.  (15) Oct. 11, 1921, unreported.
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any reference to this point. Yet the allowance was granted
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in The King v. Blais et al (1) “to cover all incidental ex- Tnm?i;mn
penses occasioned by the expropriation and for the com- o U
pulsory taking against the will of the owners, who were Cmagmryor

desirous to hold the property for speculative purposes.”

ProvibENCE

The refusal to grant the additional allowance was a ThoronP.

departure from the English practice.

It is plain that up to this date there had been no success
in this Court in establishing any general ground of prin-
ciple for the application of the additional allowance apart
from that of compensation for the compulsion only.

In the Supreme Court of Canada there were no pro-
nouncements by way of attempted justification of the
additional allowance prior to the decision in Dodge v. The
King (2) where Idington J. said:

There may be added, as usually is added, a percentage to cover
contingencies of many kinds.

There were other cases in which the additional allowance
was granted without comment as in The King v. Trudel
(8) and in The King v. Hearn (4) where the Court reduced
the amount awarded by this Court but included ten per
cent for the compulsory taking without distinguishing, as
this Court had done, between the properties that yielded
revenue and those that did not.

I shall now refer to the King v. Hunting et al (5) which,
until recently, was the leading Canadian case on the subject.
In this Court Cassels J. allowed full compensation to each
of the owners of the expropriated properties and, in addition,
allowed each one ten per cent for the compulsory taking.
On an appeal to the Supreme Court of Canada the legality
of this additional allowance was challenged by counsel for
the Crown but it was upheld by a majority of the Court,
a variety of reasons being given by the several judges.
Fitzpatrick C.J. expressed his opinion as follows, at page
331:

If there is to be any limit to litigation there must be some finality

in the determination of law and in rules of practice. The allowance of
10 per cent for compulsory purchase has become so thoroughly established

(1) (1915) 18 Ex. C.R. 67 at 71. (4 (1917) 55 Can. S.C.R. 562

(2) (1906) 38 Can. S.C.R. 149 at 576
at 156, (5) (1915) 18 Ex. CR. 442;
(3) (1914) 49 Can. SC.R. 501 (1917) 32 DLR. 331.

at 517.
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a rule from the innumerable cases both here and in England in which
it has been awarded almost as a matter of course, that I certainly should
not be prepared to countenance its being questioned in any ordinary case.
At the time of the passing of the Consolidated Lands Clauses Act, 1845,
it was suggested that 50 per cent should be the allowance for compulsory
purchage; this, however, was too high and long experience has proved that
10 per cent is a reasonable sum to add to cover anything not included in
the actual valuation. That owners may have such further claims if they
are to be fully compensated for the taking of their property may, I think,
be seen in the present cases, where they have been brought before two
Courts before they can recover the compensation to which they are
entitled. I suppose it is well known that the costs they can recover from
the Crown do not represent the expense to which they are put in such
litigation. That this charge should be open to dispute and be specially
fized in each case would be, I think, disastrous. The 10 per cent allowance
does not, of course, profess to be anything but a covering charge, and
perhaps there might be cases in which it ought not to be allowed. In
ordinary cases such as the present and where allowed by the Judge, I do
not think it should ever be questioned in this Court.

It appears from these reasons that, notwithstanding the
statement in Cripps to which I referred earlier, the ten per
cent allowance is not part of the valuation of the lands but
is a “covering charge” additional to it “to cover anything
not included in the actual valuation”. There is no indica-
tion of what is included in this coverage except the reference
to the expenses of litigation beyond the costs recoverable
from the Crown. Idington J. thought that the usual ten
per cent should be added as “compensation for compulsory
taking”. He agreed that there is no rule of law rendering
it an invariable consequence of compulsory taking but
thought that in the majority of cases it “is no more than
justice demands”. Then there are generalizations in his
reasons which suggest that the allowance may be for dis-
turbance. Duff J., as he then was, simply dismissed the
appeal. Anglin J., as he then was, put the case differently
from the others. After some general observations, in the
course of which he stated that the inconvenience and
possible loss attendant upon disturbance is not the only
element involved in the ten per cent allowance, which has
now become customary, that in some instances it has been
allowed on the expropriation of vacant land, vide The King
v. New Brunswick Railway Co. (1), and that an element
present in every case is the inconvenience and possible loss

(1) (1913) 14 Ex. C.R. 491 at 497.
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in finding a satisfactory re-investment, he laid down the
following principles, at page 333:

Compensation should cover not merely the market value of the land,
but the entire loss to the owner who is deprived of it. It must, therefore,
usually exceed the market value, though it may occasionally be less, as
where the land taken is, while in the owner’s hands, subject to depreciatory
restrictions from which it is relieved when expropriated. The 10 per cent
allowance is of course independent of and additional to any sum in excess
of market value to which the owner may be entitled because of special
adaptability of the expropriated premises to his purpose.

It is clear from these reasons that Anglin J. considered
that the 10 per cent allowance is independent of and addi-
tional to not merely the market value of the expropriated
property but its value to the owner. Then Anglin J. ex-
pressed the opinion that when such an important item of
convenience and possible loss as disturbance in occupation,
involving the finding of other suitable premises, is wholly
absent, as it was in the case before the Court, a substantial
reduction in the allowance of ten per cent may well be
made and proceeded to divide the ten per cent as follows,
at page 335:

After giving careful consideration to the various elements in respect
of which the 10 per cent is allowed, I would fix the allowance (in addition
to market value and for special adaptability) at 4 per cent for disturbance
in actual occupation, including the inconvenience of finding other suitable
premises, and 6 per cent to cover all other expenses, damage and in-
convenience to the deprived owner entailed by the taking of his property.
Like the 10 per cent itself this 4 per cent is of course an arbitrary figure.
While no authority can be cited to support it, reason demands that,
where there is no actual disturbance of possession, the allowance for
compulsory taking should be less than where that serious inconvenience
is suffered, and the division of the “additional allowance” of 10 per cent
into two parts, ascribing 4 per cent to damage caused by actual eviction,
and 6 per cent to other damage occasioned by the taking of the property,
will probably at least work approximate justice in the majority of cases.

There is, of course, no judicial authority for this division
and there wag nothing in the English practice to warrant
it. But the division is interesting because of its implicit
recognition that the granting of an allowance in terms of
percentage over and above the value of the expropriated
property to the owner merely because it had been taken
from him is not reasonable or consistent with principle.
Brodeur J., dissenting from the other judges, was of the
opinion that since the owners of the expropriated property
had received a liberal compensation for it without having
suffered any disturbance they were not entitled to any
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1*15_} additional allowance. I have set out the reasons of the
Tre Queex Several judges without attempting to deduce the ratio
v decidend: of the decision other than that the granting of

SISTERS OF

Caarrry or the additional allowance was, for various reasons, approved.
ProvimEnce

Thomom . After the decision in the Hunting case (supra) there were
——  numerous cases in this Court in which the additional allow-
ance for compulsory taking was granted or refused on
various grounds as, for example, in The King v. Lynch’s
Limited et al (1); The King v. The Royal Scotia Yacht
Squadron et al (2). Indeed, it would be fair to say that
prior to my coming to the Court it was granted more often
than it was refused. Thereafter, the practice of this Court
went the other way. I made it a rule not to grant any
additional allowance for compulsory taking in the expro-
priation cases that came before me and the other judges of
this Court followed a similar course with the exception of
Angers J. who continued the former practice. As I saw it,
the Court was not obliged in law to grant any additional
allowance. No Aect of Parliament, either English or
Canadian, authorized it and no rule of law required it.
The only reason for granting it was the English practice
to which I have referred. But that practice had been
formally abolished in England in 1919, which was sub-
sequent to the decision in the Hunting case (supra), in the
case of all expropriations of the same kind as those made
in Canada under the Expropriation Act and I could not
see any reason why a practice should continue to be main-
tained in Canada when the English practice on which it
was dependent had itself ceased to exist. Moreover, con-
siderations of principle similar to those that led to the
abolition of the practice in England weighed strongly with
me, namely, that where property has been lawfully ex-
propriated by the government pursuant to an Act of
Parliament and Parliament has determined that the com-
pensation payable to its owner shall be measured by the
value of the property to him the Court ought not to give
him ten per cent more than its value. Consequently, since
the owner had no legal right to an additional allowance
for compulsory taking I did not give him any. It was,
and still is, my view that where all the proper factors of
value have been taken into account and adequate com-

(1) (1920) 20 Ex. C.R. 158 at 163. (2) (1921) 21 Ex. C.R. 160 at 162.
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pensation has been awarded there is no justification in
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principle for any additional allowance for compulsory THEQUEEN

taking and that such an allowance is an unwarranted bonus.
I have, therefore, felt it my duty on several occasions to
criticize the addltlonal allowance as contrary to principle
and urge its abolition: vide The King v. Thomas Lawson
& Sons Limited (1); The King v. Diggon-Hibben Limited
(2); The King v. Woods Manufacturing Co. Ltd. (3). Iam
not alone in my criticism of the allowance. Its propriety
has been challenged in a number of cases: vide re Watson
and City of Toronto (4); In re Wilson and The State
Electricity Commission of Victoria (5).

I now come to the decisions of the Supreme Court of
Canada partially reversing the trend that was being followed
in this Court. The first was in Irving Oil Company Ltd. v.
The King (6). There an appeal from O’Connor J. of this
Court was allowed and his award increased. In the in-
crease there was a ten per cent additional allowance for
compulsory taking but no reason for granting it was given
except that of Kerwin J. who said, at page 556:

Under the circumstances of this case, the appellant is entitled to ten
per cent for compulsory taking.

No general rule for granting or refusing the additional
allowance was laid down. But a general rule was enunci-
ated in Diggon-Hibben Ltd. v. The King (7). There an
appeal from my judgment, in which I had declined to
grant any additional allowance for compulsory taking on
the ground that it would really be a bonus, was allowed
and an additional allowance of ten per cent on a portion
of the amount which I had found as the value of the
property to the owner was added to my award. Rand J.,
speaking also for Taschereau J., put the reason for granting
the allowance as follows, at page 713;

In the case of Irving Oil Company v. The King (8), it was held that
while an allowance of 10 per cent for compulsory taking is not a matter
of right, in circumstances presenting difficulty or uncertainty in appraising
values, such as were found there, the practice of making that allowance
applied. Similar circumstances are present here; in fact in the gemeral
character of the two situations there is no difference whatever. For that
reason, I think the allowance should be made.

(1) (1948) Ex. C.R. 44 at 106. (5) (1921) V.L.R. 459.
(2) April 15, 1948, unreported. (6) (1946) S.C.R. 551.
(3) (1949) Ex. C.R. 9 at 59. (7) (1949) S.C.R. 712.

(4) (1916) 38 O.L.R. 103 at 111.
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1951 Estey J. agreed with Rand and Taschereau JJ. in adding
Tre Qui QUEEN the allowance to the amount of my award but not for the
Swmmsop Same reasons. He put his decision on the basis of the
Crarrry of general practice. At page 719, he said:

ProvEncE . .
S The allowance for compulsory taking is founded upon a long established

Thorson P. practice in the Courts and is granted as part of the compensation, It is
a factor separate and apart from what would be included as disturbance
allowance.

Later, at page 720, he said: )

The amount allowed may be varied and there are cases where, having
regard to the circumstances, no allowance should be made, but, with great
respect, the circumstances in this case do not distinguish it from these
cases in which an amount for compulsory taking was allowed.

The question came before the Supreme Court of Canada
again in The King v. Lavoie (1). There the Crown appealed
from the judgment of Angers J. of this Court and the
owner of the expropriated property cross-appealed. The
appeal and the cross-appeal were both dismissed. One of
the grounds of the cross-appeal was that the owner was
entitled to an additional allowance of ten per cent for
forcible taking and that this had been denied by Angers J.
On this point, Taschereau J., who delivered the unanimous
judgment of the Court, laid down an important general rule
in the following terms:

Le contre-appellant soumet en second lieu, qu’il a droit & un
montant supplémentaire de 10 pour cent de la compensation accordée, pour
dépossession forcée. Ce montant additionnel de 10 pour cent n’est pas
accordé dans tous les cas d’expropriation, et ce n'est que dans les causes
ou il est difficile par suite de certaines incertitudes dans Pappréciation du
montant de la compensation, qu'il y a lieu de Pajouter a lindemnmité
(Irving Oil Co. v. The King (2); Diggon-Hibben Ltd. v. The King (3)).
Jci, on ne rencontre pas les circonstances qui existalent dans les deux
causes que je viens de citer, et qui alors ont justifié I'application de la
réglee. Il n'a pas éb6 démontré qu'il existait des éventualités
inappréciables et incertaines, impossibles & évaluer au moment du procés.

Thus in this case the Supreme Court of Canada adopted,
with variations, the rule enunciated by Rand J. in the
Diggon-Hibben Ltd. case (supra) rather than the reasons
given by Estey J.

I shall deal briefly with the variations referred to. The
rule laid down by Rand J. in the Diggon-Hibben Ltd. case
(supra) did not mean that the ten per cent additional
allowance for compulsory taking was to be applied in all

(1) Dee. 18, 1950, unreported. (2) (1946) S.C.R. 551.
(3) (1949) SC.R. 712.
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cases of difficulty or uncertainty in appraising values for, 1951

as I read his reasons, he limited its application to circum- Tn;{umn

stances of difficulty or uncertainty such as were found in g -

the Irving Oi Company case (supra). If his language Crarmryor
. - ProvimENCE

were construed strictly there would be very few cases in " ___

which the practice would apply. But in the Lavoie case ThorsonP.

(supra) the application of the practice was not confined

to the circumstances such as were found in the Irving Ol

Company case (supra) and, to that extent, it was put on a

somewhat wider basis. But the Lavoie case (supra) also

held that not all cases of difficulty or uncertainty in esti-

mating the amount of the compensation warrant the grant-

ing of the additional allowance for it emphasized that it is

only in cases where it is difficult by reason of certain un-

certainties to estimate the amount of the compensation

that there is ground for adding the additional allowance

to the owner’s indemnity. Thus, while the limits for the

application of the additional allowance were not fixed with

precision it is made clear that the range of cases in which

it should be granted is a narrow one.

The decisions lend themselves to several comments. The
first is that the Supreme Court of Canada has broken new
ground. I have made a careful search of the authorities
on the subject of the additional allowance for compulsory
taking in England, Canada, Australia and New Zealand
and have found no case prior to the Diggon-Hibben Ltd.
case (supra) in which the application of the additional
allowance has been restricted to cases of difficulty or
uncertainty or difficulty by reason of uncertainty in esti-
mating the amount of the compensation. There was nothing
in the English practice to warrant such a restriction and
there is no Canadian statutory enactment or prior rule of
law that supports it. The test laid down by the Court for
determining in what circumstances the additional allowance
should be granted is thus of its own creation.

The second comment is that, although the Supreme Court
of Canada asserted in Stuart v. Bank of Montreal (1) that
it was bound by its previous decisions save, as Duff and
Anglin JJ., stated, in very exceptional circumstances, the
Court did not in the Lavoie case (supra) consider that it
was bound by its previous decision in the Hunting case

(1) (1909) 41 Can. 8.C.R. 516.
52480—3a
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}35: (supra) but felt free to overrule it without doing so ex-
Tae Quenn pressly. Certainly, the decisions in the two cases cannot
Swrmsor DOth stand. It cannot be the rule, as Fitzpatrick C.J. put
PoammYoF it in the Hunting case (supra), that the additional allow-
Thomonp, 20.CE for compulsory taking is so thoroughly established

— and of such general application that it should not be

questioned in any ordinary case and at the same time also
be the rule, as Taschereau J. put it in the Lavoie case
(supra), speaking for the whole Court, including the Chief
Justice and Rand J., who had also been in the Diggon-
Hibben Ltd. case (supra), that the additional allowance is
permissible only in cases where it is difficult by reason of
uncertainty to estimate the amount of the compensation.
It is not possible to reconcile these two decisions. To the
extent that they are inconsistent with one another the
Hunting case (supra) must be regarded as having been
overruled by the Lawoie case (supra). The latter now
takes the place of the former as the leading Canadian case
on the subject. That being so, it is a matter for regret that
it has not been reported.

The decisions have served a useful purpose in brushing
aside several confusing statements both in this Court and
also in the Supreme Court of Canada. Now certain propo- -
sitions are established beyond dispute. One of these is
that the additional allowance for compulsory taking is not
in lieu of an allowance for disturbance, as some of the cases
suggest, but is separate and apart from it. It is also
settled that the additional allowance for compulsory taking
has no place in ordinary expropriation cases. It is no longer
the general rule to grant it. Indeed, it is to be granted
only in the exceptional circumstances mentioned in the
Lavoie case (supra). This radical change is not only a
great departure from the original English practice and a
sharp reversal of the opinions expressed in the Hunting
case (supra), but is also, in my opinion, a marked advance
towards recognition that the former practice of giving every
owner of expropriated property ten per cent more than
its value to him simply because it was expropriated cannot
be defended. The recognition will not be complete until
the additional allowance is abolished altogether.
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It is apparent from this review that the Canadian law
relating to the additional allowance for compulsory taking
has had a chequered career. I must now decide whether
such allowance should be granted in the present case. I
have come to the conclusion that it should be. Notwith-
standing my own opinion that the sum of $1,100,000, which
I have found as the value of the expropriated property to
the defendant, is ample compensation to it and that any
additional allowance would really be a bonus, I find that the
estimation of the amount of the compensation involves
sufficient difficulty and uncertainty to bring the case within
the ambit of the rule in the Lavoie case (supra). Con-
gequently, an additional allowance should be added to my
award.

I must next decide its amount. This has given me
concern. In the Diggon-Hibben Ltd. case (supra) the
Supreme Court of Canada, in allowing the appeal from
my judgment, added only $10,000 to the amount of my
award, although I had found $120,000 as the amount of
compensation money to which the defendant was entitled.
With great respect, I question the correctness of the basis
of the computation. It would seem more appropriate, once
it was decided to grant the ten per cent additional allow-
ance, to attach it to the whole amount of my valuation
instead of to only part of it and make it $12,000 instead of
$10,000. In fixing the latter amount Rand J. suggested
that I had found the value of the land at $100,000. I can-
not agree. I did not separate my award into one amount
for the value of the land and another as an allowance for
disturbance. I made only one award for the value of the
expropriated property. In the course of my judgment
I stated my opinion that it is the duty of the Court to
estimate the value of the property as a whole rather than
to attempt to assess the amounts of the several factors that
ought to be taken into account in arriving at the estimate
of value which section 47 of the Exchequer Court Act
directs the Court to make and that the amount of such
estimate is a global sum. My award of $120,000 was my
estimate of the value of the property to the defendant after
taking into account the various factors and elements of
value that were brought to the attention of the Court,
including the defendant’s claim for disturbance. To take
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only $100,000 of my estimate as the value of the property
suggests that the remaining $20,000 was for something other
than its value. My award did not lend itself to any such
partition. It was an indivisible amount and all of it, in my
opinion, represented the value of the property. It is the
established rule in England in cases under the Lands
Clauses Consolidation Act, and, in my judgment, the rule
is the same in Canada in cases under the Expropriation Act,
that a claim for disturbance is not a separate head of com-
pensation, such as a claim for damages for injurious affec-
tion, but is merely one of the factors of value of the property
to the owner that is to be taken into account in determining
the amount of the compensation. This was the view taken
by the Court of Appeal in Horn v. Sunderland Corporation
(1). And it is consistent with the statement of Lord Hals-
bury L.C. in Inland Revenue Commissioners v. Glasgow
and South Western Ry. Co. (2). I am, therefore, of the
opinion that since an additional allowance for compulsory
taking is to be granted it should be based on the whole of
the amount which I have found to be the value of the ex-
propriated property to its owner rather than on only part
of it. By the application of the principle of re-instatement
I have found this value at $1,100,000. Consequently, I
award ten per cent of such value, or $110,000, as the
additional allowance for compulsory taking, making a total
award of $1,210,000. '

While I regard this additional allowance of $110,000 as a
bonus and grant it only because of the rule laid down by
the Supreme Court of Canada in the Lavoie case (supra),
my objection to it in the present case is eased by the fact
that it will be used by the defendant in furtherance of the
charitable purposes for which it was formed.

The defendant has been left in undisturbed occupation
and possession of the expropriated property ever since the
date of its expropriation, without payment of any rent.
Therefore, under the long established practice of this Court,
it i1s not entitled to any interest.

(1) (1941) 2 K.B. 26. (2) (1887) 12 A.C. 315 at 320.
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amount of compensation money to which the defendant is Crarrryor

entitled, subject to the usual conditions as to all necessary
releases and discharges of claims, is the sum of $1,210,000
without interest; and that the defendant is entitled to costs
to be taxed in the usual way.

Judgment accordingly.

BETWEEN:

RALPH DI FIORE, trading under the

firm name and style of THE PraiNTIFF; -

STEADFAST SHOE REG'D,, ....
AND

GABRIEL TARDI, trading under the
firm name and style of ATOMIC D=rFENDANT.
SLIPPER REGD,, .............

Patents—Infringement—The Patent Act, 1935, S. of C. 1935, c. 32, ss. 26,
36(1), 36(2)—8hoe-making process—M oulding slippers by the use of
moulds—Misleading and ambiguous statements in specification—
Failure to disclose important information—Anticipation—Failure to
confine claims to invention.

The plaintiff brought action for infringement of his patent for a shoe-
meking process. The defendant attacked the validity of the patent
on the grounds of insufficiency in the specification, lack of novelty
and subject matter, and claiming more than was invented and denied
infringement,.

Held: That if a specification by itself will not enable a person skilled in
the art to which it relates to put the invention to the same successful
use as the inventor himself could do, without leaving the result to
the chance of successful experiment, the specification is insufficient
to comply with the requirements of section 35(1) of The Patent Act,
1935, and the patent falls,

2. That the statement in the specification that other materials than leather
could be used is misleading,

3. That the term “suitable machinery” in the specification is ambiguous.

4. That the plaintiff failed to disclose how to make and operate the moulds
for the preforming of the sole shells and uppers and how to design
suitable lasts that can be used with the moulds and taken out of
them.

5. That the plaintiff’s invention was not anticipated.
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6. That if the plaintiff’s method of moulding a slipper was an invention
he failed to disclose wherein and in what respects it is different from
other methods of moulding known in the art and his patent falls for
failure to distinguish his invention from other inventions.

7. That the plaintiff has not confined his claims‘to his particular method
of moulding but has made them cover moulding generally and thus
include what is old as well as what might be new and the patent
falls for claiming more than was invented.

ACTION for infringement of patent.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Thorson, President of the Court, at Montreal.

E. D. Angers for plaintiff.
C. Scott Q.C. for defendant.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

Tazr PresmeNT orally delivered the following judgment:

This is an action for infringement of the plaintiff’s
Canadian Letters Patent No. 459,582 applied for on Febru-
ary 18, 1947, and issued on September 13, 1949, for a shoe-
making process. The defence to the action is that the
patent is invalid for insufficiency in the specification, lack
of novelty and subject matter, and claiming more than was
invented. The defendant also denies infringement.

The specification recites that the invention relates to a
manufacturing method for shoes and, more particularly,
such flexible types as so-called “lounge” shoes, slippers and
the like and sets out its objects as follows:

The main object of the invention resides in the provision of a simpli-
fied method for producing an inexpensive slipper or the like.

Another object is the provision of a method for making an inex-
pensive yet comfortable shoe.

A further object contemplates a slipper-making method which can
be performed by unskilled labour.

A still further object concerns a shoe-making method which is applic-
able to a variety of styles and forms of slippers or lounge shoes.

Other objects and advantages of the invention will become apparent,
or be pointed out further, during the description to follow.

Then there is a description of the four figures of the
drawing annexed to the specification and a reference to the
parts as follows:

Referring to the drawing, wherein similar reference characters repre-
sent corresponding parts throughout, the slipper shown in Figure 1, consists
essentially of the following parts: the vamp “V”, the rear quarter section
“R” the sole shell “S”, the heel “H” and the cushion pad “C”.
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And I set out also the following paragraphs:

In accordance with the method of the invention, the elements above-
mentioned are preformed by means of suitable machinery either by
heating the leather or other materials chosen for the said elements,
moistening the same or a combination of the two. In any case, this
preforming operation requires the use of moulds for shaping the elements
of the slipper to standardized dimensions.

Deseribing, now, the individual elements, it will be seen from Figure
3, that the sole shell “S” consists of a sole proper 5 a marginal upstanding
wall 6 and a right angular outwardly extending flange 7 integral with the
top of said wall 6 and in a plane parallel to that of the sole 5. The
vamp “V” and the rear quarter “R*” are similarly provided with flanges
8 and 9 respectively adapted to lie against flange 7 when the elements
are assembled in their proper relative positions. Of course, during the
forming operation of the vamp and rear quarter a bias or out-turned bead
10 may be formed or provided on the outer edges thereof for decorative
purposes.

For assembling together the component parts of the slipper, a suitable
last is disposed inside the sole shell, the contacting faces of the flanges
7, 8 and 9 coated with a suitable cement after which the vamp and rear
quarter are put in place. Pressure exerted all around on the said flanges
will secure the same together and permit the stitching down of the vamp
and rear quarter to the sole shell proper by means of a marginal stitching
line 15. Thereafter, the projecting portion of the flanges 7, 8 and 9 are
trimmed close to the stitching and the ends of the flanges rounded and
polished to form a decorative bead as shown to advantage in Figures 1
and 2. The next operation consists in attaching in position the heel “H”
and filling the bottom of the sole shell with the cushion pad “C”, said
cushion being in the form of a suitable textile or a lamb skin (shearing).

The specification ends with two claims reading as follows:
The embodiments of the invention in which an exclusive property
or privilege is claimed are defined as follows:

1. In a method of the character described, the steps of forming a
sole shell having a depressed sole and marginal flange, similarly forming
rear quarter and vamp sections with sole shell-registering flanges, cement-
ing said flanges in contacting relation: under pressure, and stitching to-
gether the cemented flanges.

2. A shoe-making method, comprising prefabricating by moulding a
sole shell having a depressed centre sole and marginal flange, a flanged
rear quarter section and a flanged vamp section, cementing said vamp
and rear quarter sections flanges to the sole shell flange, stitching the
flanges together, and trimming the flanges close to the stitching to form
a bead.

The plaintiff, who has been a shoe manufacturer since
1920, gave a detailed and clear demonstration of the pro-
cess by which he made his slipper, Exhibit 1. The two
pieces of leather required for the bottom or sole shell and
for the top or upper were cut on a clicking machine. The
bottom piece was then moistened and heated and set in an
aluminum mould with a last inserted inside the leather.
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This was then pressed down by hand or with a hammer
or a hydraulic press. Then the last was removed and the
leather piece taken out. This had now become a moulded
sole shell with an upright wall and a flat flange at the top.
The top piece of leather, intended for the upper, was dealt
with in a similar manner and beecame a moulded upper
with a flat flange at the bottom. The moulded sole shells
and uppers kept their shapes and could be packed away
until required. The next step in the process was to put a
fine layer of cement on the top of the flange of the moulded
sole shell and the bottom of the flange of the moulded
upper. These two parts were then put back in the moulds
with the last inserted inside and the two moulds were
pressed together so that the cement would hold. The top
and bottom moulds were then taken off leaving the moulded
sole shell and moulded upper glued together with the last
inside. The outstanding flanges of the bottom and top
were then stitched together with a Goodyear lock-stitch
machine and the last taken out. The excess leather on
the united flange was then cut off and the edge trimmed.
The slipper was then ready for coloring of the leather,
polishing, trimming and other finishing. The plaintiff
explained that he had been trying to find a method of
putting a sole shell and an upper together that would
replace the old method which consisted of mounting the
parts on a last by hand by means of mounting pliers or
pincers and tacks and then sewing the parts together. When
he started to make slippers in a mould he found difficulties
such as not being able to take the last out of the mould.
It took him 18 months of experimentation before he eould
make his first slippers.

The plaintiff then explained how he made his moulds.
He first drew a design of his proposed slipper on a last, made
a pattern of the design out of cardboard, cut the necessary
pieces of leather according to this pattern, pasted them
on the last, put the last with the leather on it into a form,
poured plaster around it up to the top of the bottom piece
of leather on the last and thus obtained a plaster cast of
the lower mould. A plaster cast of the upper mould was
obtained in a similar manner. The two plaster casts were
then taken to a foundry where aluminum moulds were
made. The plaintiff selected aluminum because it would
not spot the leather. Then the moulds required machining
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inside, which the plaintiff did himself, and they were then
taken to a machine shop and the tops and bottoms made
level so that the pressure on the top and bottom when
the two moulds were put together should be equal. This
was essential. The adaption of the lasts to the moulds
presented a hard problem because of the offsets in a
standard last. They could not be taken out and the plaintiff
had, therefore, to design his own lasts and eliminate the
offsets to the extent of making it possible to take them
and the slippers out of the moulds.

The slipper now made by the plaintiff, Exhibit 1, is not
the one shown on the drawing annexed to the specification
but the process of making it is essentially the same.

It was admitted by the plaintiff on his cross-examination,
and there is plenty of evidence from other sources, that
most of the steps in his process were old, such as, cutting
the leather, moistening and heating it, using cement, making
soles and uppers with flanges, applying pressure, sewing
with a lock-stitch, trimming and polishing. But what was
claimed as new was the preforming of the sole shells and
uppers by the use of moulds. In effect, the essence of the
plaintiff’s invention, as counsel for the plaintiff put it, was
said to be the making of moulded sole shells and uppers by
the use of moulds and suitable lasts and bringing them
together by the steps described in the specification.

I have no doubt that the plaintiff’s method of making
slippers was useful in that it accomplished the purposes
which he sought to achieve. The evidence also supports
the conclusion that he was the first person in Canada to
make slippers by the use of moulds. But this is not
enough for section 26 of The Patent Act, 1935, Statutes of
Canada, 1935, chap. 32, requires as a condition of the
validity of a patent that the invention for which it is
granted should be “not known or used by any other person”
before the inventor invented it, so that first invention in
Canada will not suffice. Moreover, while I believe the
plaintiff’s statement that he had never previously heard
of moulded soles or uppers, meaning thereby soles or uppers
preformed by the use of moulds, and think that in making
his application for a patent he acted in good faith, this will
not help him if any of the attacks on the validity of his
patent are well based.
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I shall deal first with the contention that the patent is
invalid for insufficiency in the specification for failure to
comply with the requirements of subsections (1) and (2)
of Section 35 of The Patent Aect, 1935, as amended, which
provide as follows:

85. (1) The applicant shall in the specification correctly and fully
describe the invention and its operation or use as contemplated by the
inventor, and set forth clearly the various steps in a process, or the
method of constructing, making, compounding or using a machine, manu-
facture or composition of matter, in such full, clear, concise and exact
terms as to enable any person skilled in the art or science to which it
appertains, or with which it is most closely connected, to make, con-
struct, compound or use it. In the case of & machine he shall explain the
principle thereof and the best mode in which he has contemplated the
application of that principle. In the case of a process he shall explain
the necessary sequence, if any, of the various steps, so as to distinguish
the invention from other inventions. He shall particularly indicate and
distinetly claim the part, improvement or combination which he claims
as his invention.

(2) The specification shall end with a claim or claims stating dis-
tinetly and in explicit terms the things or combinations which the applicant
regards as new and in which he claims an exclusive property or privilege.

I had oceasion in Minerals Separation North American
Corporation v. Noranda Mines, Limited (1) to deal with
the requirements of a similar section. While my judgment
in that case was reversed there was no dissent from my
comments on these requirements. There I said, at page
316:

Two things must be described in the disclosures of a specification, one
being the invention, and the other the operation or use of the invention
as contemplated by the inventor, and with respect to each the description
must be correct and full. The purpose underlying this requirement is
that when the period of monopoly has expired the public will be able,
having only the specification, to make the same successful use of the
invention as the inventor could at the time of his application. The
description must be correct; this means that it must be both clear and
accurate. It must be free from avoidable obscurity or ambiguity and
be as simple and distinet as the difficulty of description permits. It must
not contain erroneous or misleading statements calculated to deceive
or miglead the persons to whom the specification is addressed and render
it difficult for them without trial and experiment to comprehend in what
manner the invention is to be performed. Tt must not, for example,
direct the use of alternative methods of putting it into effect if only one
is practicable, even if persons skilled in the art would be likely to choose
the practicable method. The description of the invention must also be
full; this means that its ambit must be defined, for nothing that has not
been described may be validly claimed. The description must also give
all information that is necessary for successful operation or use of the

(1) (1947) Ex. C.R. 306.
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invention, without leaving such result to the chance of successful experi-
ment, and if warnings are required in order to avert failure such warnings
must be given. Moreover, the inventor must act uberrima fide and give
all information known to him that will enable the invention to be carried
out to its best effect as contemplated by him.

'This statement of the extent to which the disclosures
must go in describing the invention and its operation or
use as contemplated by the inventor, if the patent is not
to fail for either the ambiguity or the insufficiency of such
description, was abstracted from a number of cases which
I cited.

When it is said that a specification should be so written
that after the period of monopoly has expired the public
will be able, with only the specification, to put the inven-
tion to the same successful use as the inventor himself
could do it must be remembered that the public means
persons skilled in the art to which the invention relates
for a patent specification is addressed to such persons. It
should, therefore, be looked at through their eyes and
read in the light of the commmon knowledge of the art which
they should possess. But it is important to note that such
common knowledge must be limited to that which existed
at the date of the specification.

I have come to the conclusion on the evidence that the
specification does not comply with the requirements of
section 35(1) of The Patent Act, 1935. I shall deal first
with the less important reasons for this conclusion. On
his eross-examination the plaintiff had his attention drawn
to the words “or other materials” and was asked what
materials other than leather could be used. He suggested
that plastics might be used but admitted that shoemakers
had given up the idea of using them. The fact is that
leather is the only material that is practical, so that the
words “or other materials” are, strictly speaking, mislead-
ing. Similarly, the term “suitable machinery” is not free
from ambiguity. Does it mean merely the machinery by
which the moulds are pressed, which seems likely, or does
it include the moulds and last as well? Both Mr. C. Jucker
and Mr. F. Schonenbach, who gave expert evidence for
the defendant, found the words difficult to understand. Mr.
Schonenbach thought that he might have to invent his
own machinery. I find the term “suitable machinery” an
ambiguous one. Moreover, the plaintiff did not give all the
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information known to him that would make his invention
work to the best advantage. He said, for example, that it
was essential to his process to use leather that had been
tanned by a vegetable tanning process and that oil tanned
leather such as chrome leather, which is ordinarily used
for shoes, would not do. The reason for this was that
the vegetable tanned leather admits water whereas the
oil tanned leather rejects it and it was essential to the
moulding of leather that it should be of such a nature as
to let in water. Nor is there any reference to the desir-
ability of using aluminum moulds instead of steel or cast
iron ones, although the plaintiff selected aluminum because
it would not spot the leather. There is also no information
as to how much water or heat should be applied to the
leather or how long it should be kept pressed into the
moulds to preform the sole shells and uppers. While these
omissions of information might not invalidate the patent
on the ground that the information is of such a nature that
persons skilled in the art might reasonably be expected
to possess it there is a striking insufficiency in the speci-
fication. Mr. Schonenbach, who is an experienced shoe-
maker, expressed the opinion that all the operations in the
plaintiff’s process were fully described, except the moulding,
and he could not tell from the specification how the mould,
which he considered the crux of the process, should be made.
And Mr. Jucker, with whose evidence I was, on the whole,
favourably impressed, said that he thought that with the
specification he could gradually, through trial and error,
make just as good a slipper as Exhibit 1, if he had the
moulds, but he would have to have the moulds in order
to be able to do so. Then he would also have to design a
suitable last. As a matter of fact, the designing of a last
that would be suitable for use in a mould would have a
determining effect on what kind of a mould should be made.

If a specification by itself will not enable a person skilled
in the art to which it relates to put the invention to the
same successful use as the inventor himself could do, with-
out leaving the result to the chance of successful experi-
ment, the specification is insufficient to comply with the
requirements of section 35(1) of the Act and the patent
falls.
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In my opinion, the plaintiff has failed to disclose two
important things, which are, of course, closely related to
one another, namely, the making and operation of the
moulds for the preforming of the sole shells and uppers
and the designing of suitable lasts that can be used with
the moulds and taken out of them. It may be that the
designing of suitable lasts is the more important. In any
event, I do not believe that a workman skilled in the art
and having only the specification before him could put the
plaintiff’s process into the same successful use and operation
as the plaintiff himself can do, without very considerable
experimentation. Indeed, I am satisfied that he could not
do so. Under the circumstances, I find that the specifi-
cation fails to meet the requirements of section 35(1) of
The Patent Act, 1935, and that the patent is invalid
accordingly.

There is another important reason for holding the patent
invalid. Counsel for the defendant adduced evidence to
show the state of the prior art, in the course of which
various types of slippers were produced. These, except
for the defendant’s slipper, Exhibit 16, were different from
the plaintiff’s slipper, Exhibit 1, or the slipper which he
first made according to the drawing, Exhibit A, and have
no direct bearing on the issue except as illustrating part
of the prior art. Counsel also filed a great many patents
both to show the state of the prior art and also to support
the defences of anticipation and lack of subject matter. I
list these patents as follows, giving in each case the name
of the inventor and the number and date of the patent:
Exhibit R, K. Grosz, Canadian patent No. 333,628, dated
June 27, 1933; Exhibit S, Q. E. Packard and A. Lennon,
Canadian patent No. 83,164, dated September 29, 1903;
Exhibit T, J. A. Romain, Canadian patent No. 145,936,
dated February 11, 1913; Exhibit U, 8. Strauss, Canadian
patent No. 180,229, dated November 6, 1917; Exhibit V,
J. J. Heys, Canadian patent No. 228,713, dated February
13, 1923; Exhibit W, W. S. Bass, United States patent
No. 1,139,153, dated May 11, 1915; Exhibit X, S. Strauss,
United States patent No. 1,209,225, dated December 19,
1916; Exhibit Y, 8. Strauss, United States patent No.
1,331,220, dated February 17, 1920; Exhibit Z, J. H. Pope,
United States patent No. 1,386,654, dated August 9, 1921;
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Exhibit Z1, J. H. Pope, United States patent No. 1,388,120,
dated August 16, 1921; Exhibit Z2, K. Grosz, United States
patent No. 1,972,339, dated September 4, 1934; Exhibit
Z3, O. F. Hoppe, United States patent No. 2,001,308, dated
May 14, 1935; Exhibit Z4, A. Bates, United States patent
No. 2,054,188, dated September 15, 1936 ; Exhibit Z5, D. W.
Wiggin, United States patent No. 1,871,764, dated August
16, 1932; Exhibit Z6, F. Ashworth, United States patent
No. 2,086,526, dated July 13, 1937; Exhibit Z7, L. Mond-
schein and P. Speier and K. Grosz, British patent No.
383,935, dated November 24, 1932; Exhibit Z8, L. Mond-
schein and P. Speier and K. Grosz, British patent No.
387,602, dated February 9, 1933 ; Exhibit Z9, L. Mondschein
and P. Speier and K. Grosz, British patent No. 388,349,
dated February 23, 1933; Exhibit Z10, K. Grosz et al,
German patent No. 573,969, dated April 7, 1933; Exhibit
Z11, F. Bengtsson, German patent No. 581,202, dated July
22, 1933. The evidence discloses that the moulding of
leather was not new. Nor was the idea of moulding parts
of shoes or slippers a novel one. While Mr. Schonenbach
admitted that he had not seen a moulded slipper like that of
the plaintiff, Exhibit 1, or that of the defendant, Exhibit
16, in Canada and admitted the plaintiff’s ingenuity, he
had seen moulded bottom shells in Europe made by the
Batta Shoe Company in Czechoslovakia. Moreover, the
idea of making a moulded slipper had occurred to himself
about 10 years ago, and he had prepared a crude mould
but had given up the idea of working on it for lack of
the necessary time and money and also because he con-
sidered that a hand made slipper was superior to a moulded
one. Mr. Jucker also said that the moulding of uppers
was general in Europe and that the moulding of lowers
had been done in Czechoslovakia. Moreover, several of
the patents put in by counsel for the defendant indicate
the use of moulds in the making of leather footwear, for
example, Exhibit V, The Heys Canadian patent No. 228,713,
showing the use of moulds for making mocassins and how
the moulds should be made and used, Exhibit X, the Strauss
United States patent No. 1,209,225, showing a machine for
moulding a shoe, Exhibit Z, the Pope United States patent
No. 1,386,654, describing the use of moulds in the making
of mocassins, Exhibit Z2, the Grosz United States patent
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No. 1,972,339, showing a moulded sole, Exhibit Z3, the
Hoppe United States patent No. 2001 308, showing a
machine for making a sandal with a moulded sole and
Exhibit Z4, the Bates United States patent No. 2,054,188,
also showing a moulded sole.

Counsel relied upon Exhibit Z2, the Grosz United States
patent, as anticipation of the plaintiff’s invention. The
requirements that must be met before an invention should
be held to have been anticipated by a prior publication
have been discussed in many cases. I had ocecasion to deal
with the matter in The King v. Uhlemann Optical Company
(1) which judgment was recently affirmed by the Supreme
Court of Canada. There, at page 157, I put the require-
ments as follows:

The information as to the alleged invention given by the prior pub-
lication must, for the purposes of practical utility, be equal to that given
by the subsequent patent. Whatever is essential to the imvention or
necessary or material for its practical working and real utility must be
found substantially in the prior publication. It is not enough to prove
that an apparatus described in it could have been used to produce a
particular result, There must be clear directions so to use it. Nor is it
sufficient to show that it contained suggestions which, taken with other
suggestions, might be shown to foreshadow the invention or important
steps in jt. There must be more than the nucleus of an idea which, in
the light of subsequent experience, could be looked on as being the
beginning of a new development. The whole invention must be shown
to have been published with all the directions necessary to instruct the
public how to put it into practice. It must be so presented to the public
that no subsequent person could claim it as his own.

This statement was merely a summary of the views ex-
pressed in the cases there cited, including Pope Appliance
Corporation v. Spanish River Pulp and Paper Mills Ld. (2),
where Viscount Dunedin, in delivering the judgment of the
Judicial Committee of the Privy Council, put the test in
these words:

Would a man who was grappling with the problem solved by the
Patent attacked, and having no knowledge of that patent, if he had had
the alleged anticipation in his hand have said, “That gives me what I
wish.”
and later, at page 56:

Does the man attacking the problem find what he wants as a solution
in the prior so-called anticipations,

And it should be borne in mind here also that, in con-
sidering whether an invention was anticipated by a prior
patent, the prior patent must be read in the light of the

(1) (1950) Ex. CR. 142, (2) (1929) 46 R.P.C. 23 at 52.
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353 common knowledge which a person skilled in the art should
D1 I‘;IORE have had immediately prior to the alleged invention. If
Taro:  the prior publication would give such a person the same
Thorson P, information, for practical purposes, as the patent under
— attack then it is an anticipation of the invention covered

by it, but otherwise not.

The test of whether a prior publication, such as a patent,
is an anticipation of the invention covered by a patent
in suit in & particular case is thus seen to be a very exacting
one. The Grosz patent, Exhibit Z2, must meet this test
before it can properly be held to have been anticipatory
of the plaintiff’s invention. Can it do so? I think not.
When Mr. Schonenbach was asked whether, having the
Grosz Canadian patent, Exhibit R, before him, he could
make a slipper with a moulded bottom shell like Exhibit 7,
the bottom part of the plaintiff’s slipper, Exhibit 1, he said
that he could. I am unable to accept this statement in
view of his evidence about the difficulty involved in the
plaintiff’s patent of knowing how the moulds should be
made. He would be faced with a similar difficulty
in trying to make the plaintiff’s slipper, Exhibit 1, with
only the Grosz Canadian patent, Exhibit R, before him
and he later recognized this difficulty himself. When Mr.
Jucker was shown Exhibit R, the Grosz Canadian patent,
he said that the disclosures in it permitted making a slipper
having a sole that was preformed by moulding, thinking
that that patent disclosed how the moulds were made, but
in this he was completely mistaken for there is no such
disclosure there. Then Mr. Jucker was shown Exhibit Z2,
the Grosz United States patent, which does indicate that
a mould was used, and said that with it before him he
could construct a slipper similar to the plaintiff’s slipper,
Exhibit 1, if he had the necessary last and mould. These
were essential and he could not make the slipper without
them without experimentation. Then Mr. Schonenbach
was re-called and examined with respect to Exhibit Z2, the
Grosz United States patent, and substantially qualified his
previous statement. He said that, with the Grosz United
States patent before him, he could make a slipper similar
to the plaintiff’s slipper, Exhibit 1, after experimentation.
He would have to create his own moulds. On cross-
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examination he said that while the Grosz patent gave him
the germ of an idea he would have to find something in
his own mind that did not exist in the Grosz patent. On
this evidence it seems plain to me that the Grosz United
States patent, Exhibit Z2, does not meet the tests of antici-
pation that I described in the Uhlemann Optical Company
case (supra) and I find that the plaintiff’s invention was
not anticipated by it.

But that does not dispose of the issue of novelty in
favour of the plaintiff, for he is on the horns of a dilemma.
If his particular method of moulding a slipper was new
and inventive, which is not impossible, he has totally failed
to disclose wherein and in what respects it is different from
other methods of moulding known in the art and his patent
falls for failure to distinguish his invention from other
inventions. And, furthermore, he is in the position that
he has made his claims too broad. Even if his particular
method of moulding a slipper was a patentable advance
in the art he has not confined his claims to his improvement
in the art of moulding slippers or his particular method
of moulding. They cover moulding generally and thus
include what is old as well as what might be new and the
patent falls for claiming more than was invented.

In view of these defects in the patent it is not necessary
to enquire further whether the plaintiff’s advance in the
art, if he made any, over what was common knowledge
in it was a workshop improvement or involved the exercise
of inventive ingenuity. If it was the former then there
was lack of subject matter and if it was the latter it was
not disclosed. In either event, the patent falls.

The plaintiff may well be in the position of an inventor
who loses the benefit of his invention through defects of
draughtsmanship in the specification but every patentee
who brings an action for infringement runs the risk of
having the validity of his patent challenged.

Since the plaintiff’s patent is invalid he has no case for
infringement of it. If it were otherwise I would have no
difficulty in finding on the evidence that the defendant
deliberately took the plaintiff’s process without his consent
and used it with variations in making his own slippers. It
is true that both Mr. Schonenbach and Mr. Jucker pointed
out differences between the defendant’s slipper, Exhibit 16,
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and the plaintiff’s slipper, Exhibit 1. Mr. Schonenbach
illustrated two respects in which there were differences.
The first was that the defendant’s sole shell was moulded
all the way around without any seam at the back and was
considerably higher from the bottom at the back than the
plaintiff’s sole shell. The other difference, which followed
from the first one, was that the flanges did not go all the
way around the slipper but only as far as the front. This
made for less sewing. These differences in construction
called, of course, for different lasts and moulds but aside
from them the method followed by the defendant was
essentially similar to that which he had been taught by
the plaintiff while he was in his employ. That essential
similarity would, in my opinion, be sufficient to constitute
infringement, if the patent were valid, but as it is the
defendant is free from liability to the plaintiff.

Under the circumstances, the plaintiff’s action must be
dismissed with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

BeTWEEN:

COMPOSERS, AUTHORS AND
PUBLISHERS ASSOCIATION OF PrAINTIFF;
CANADA, LIMITED . .........

AND

KIWANIS CLUB OF WEST
TORONTO ....................

Copyright—Infringement action—Copyright Act RS.C. 1927, c. 82 s. 3(1),
17—“Public performance of any musical work in furtherance of a
religious, educational or charitable object”—"“In furtherance of’ means
to promote, to advance or to assist—Defendant a fraternal organiza-
tion—Receipts from dance at which musical works alleged to have
been infringed were performed expended by defendant on charitable,
religious or educational objects.

} DEFENDANT.

The action is for iInfringement of copyright in two musical works owned
by the plaintiff, a company incorporated under the Dominion Com-
panies Act. Plaintiff alleges that an orchestra under contract with
the defendant provided music for public dances held by the defendant
at premiges in Toronto, Ontario, known as Casa Loma, and at a
public dance at such place conducted under the auspices of the
defendant the orchestra played these two musical works.
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S. 17 of the Copyright Act, R.8.C. 1927, c. 32 provides inter alia “that no
church, college or school and no religious, charitable or fraternal
organization shall be held Hable to pay any compensation to the
owner of any musical work or to any person claiming through him
by reason of the public performance of any musical work in further-
ance of a religious, educational or charitable object”.

Defendant is 2 service club incorporated without share capital under the
'Companies Act of the Province of Ontario. Its Letiers Patent set
forth its purposes and objects infer alia as . . . (g) To carry on
charitable and relief work of all kinds and to receive and collect gifts
and donations for that purpose; . . .”.

By an agreement with the Corporation of the City of Toronto for the
use and occupation of Casa Loma as a tourist attraction and enter-
tainment centre defendant was obligated to maintain the premises
and expend any surplus funds from receipts derived by defendant
from its operation “entirely for the benefit of under-privileged, needy
and crippled children, other charities and war service work” and in
operating the premises “shall do so always with the object of raising
money for such children, charities and/or war service work”.

Defendant performed fully its obligations entered into under the contract
with the City of Toronto and the net revenue earned from the
venture was used for no other purposes than those set forth in the
agreement.

Held: That “in furtherance of” in s. 17 of the Copyright Act means to
advance or to assist or 40 promote and to come within the exempting
proviso it is not necessary that the funection at which the musical
work is publicly performed should itself be of a religious, educational
or charitable nature.

2, That on the date when the musical works, copyright in which is claimed
to have been infringed, were performed, they were performed in the
furtherance of a charitable object and the entire proceeds of the
Casa Loms, project, including the proceeds from the dances in question,
were expended almost entirely on charitable objects and those not so
specifically expended were directed to religious or educational objects.

3. That defendant is a fraternal organization since it is a body of men
associated by some common interest not only fraternizing or uniting
as brothers but by those activities which have been undertaken they
exemplify towards the needy and underprivileged the care and
solicitude which one would expect of a brother.

ACTION for infringement of copyright in musieal works.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Toronto.

H. E. Manning, K.C. and Jos. A. Falconer for plaintiff,
Harold G. Fozx, K.C. and G. M. Ferguson for defendant.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.
52480—43
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1951 CameroN J. now (February 2, 1952) delivered the fol-

Conposmms lowing judgment:

AU::?:? ®  The plaintiff herein is @ company incorporated under
f&‘éﬁ?ﬁﬁ the Companies Act of the Dominion of Canada, having its
or ?ﬁ:g head office at Toronto. The evidence establishes that the

v, plaintiff at all material times was the owner of that part
KTgL':JI;IS of the copyright in the musical works known as “Sleepy
——  Lagoon” and “Summertime” which consists of the sole
right to perform the said musical works or any substantial

part thereof in public throughout Canada.

The defendant is a corporation incorporated under the
Companies Act of the Province of Ontario, also having its
head office at Toronto. It has the use and occupation of
the premises in Toronto known as “Casa Loma,” and in
connection with its activities it holds public dances there.
Music for the dances was provided by a professional
orchestra under contract with the defendant. It is alleged
and proven that on December 15 and December 16, 1950,
an orchestra under the leadership of Benny Louis, at public
dances at Casa Loma played the musical works “Sleepy
Lagoon” and “Summertime,” respectively, and that the
said dances were conducted under the auspices of the
defendant. As a result thereof, the plaintiff alleges that
the defendant has infringed its copyright in the said works
and, among other things, it now claims damages and an
injunction.

The right of the plaintiff in the said works falls within
section 3(1) of the Copyright Aect, R.S.C. 1927, c. 32, as

amended:
For the purposes of this Act, “copyright” means the sole right . . .
to perform . . . the work or any substantial part thereof in public; . .

and to authorize any such acts as aforesaid.

By section 17 of the Act as amended:

17. Copyright in a work shall be deemed to be infringed by any
person. who, ‘without the consent of the owner of the copyright, does
anything the sole right to do which is by this Act conferred on the
owner of the copyright:

Provided that the following acts shall not constitute an infringement
of copyright:

Then follow seven specified acts which do not constitute

infringement, and the following:

Further provided that no church, college, or school and no religious,
charitable or fraternal organization shall be held liable to pay any
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compensation to the owner of any musical work or to any person claiming
through him by reason of the public performance of any musical work
in furtherance of a religious, educational or charitable object.

It is upon this last mentioned proviso that the defendant
relies insofar as the infringement proceedings are con-
cerned. It alleges that it is a fraternal and/or charitable
organization and that the public performance of the works
in question was in furtherance of a charitable object.

It is of some interest to note the history of the legislation
in regard to the exemptions provided for organizations of
this sort. Such exemption was first provided by section
6 of c. 8, Statutes of 1931, and thereby the following sub-
section was added to section 17(1) of the Act.

(vii) The performance of any musical work by any church, college
or school, or by any religious, charitable or fraternal organization, provided

such performance is given without private profit for religious, educational
or charitable purposes.

By c. 28, Statutes of 1936, that subsection was repealed
and the following substituted therefor:

(vi1) The performance of any musical work by any church, college
or school, or by any religious, charitable or fraternal organization, pro-
vided such performance is given without private profit for religious,
educational or charitable purposes; provided, further, that such perform-
ance shall be deemed to be given without private profit if the only fees
which are paid are paid to individual performers and that no fees or
commissions are paid to any promoter, producer or contractor for services
in promoting or producing the performance.

By c. 27, Statutes of 1938, the last mentioned subsection
was repealed and the “further proviso” as above was added
to section 17(1) in the form which I have set out above.

The facts are not seriously in dispute. The defendant is
a service club and a member of the well-known “Interna-
tional Kiwanis” Clubs. It was incorporated without share
capital in 1932 and the Letters Patent (Ex. 1) set forth its
purposes and objects as follows:

(a) To give primacy to the human and spiritual rather than to the
material values of life; (b) To encourage the daily living of the golden
rule in all human relationships; (c¢) To promote the adoption and the
application of higher social, business and professional standards; (d) To
develop, by precept and example, a more intelligent, aggressive and
serviceable citizenship; (e) To provide through Kiwanis Clubs a practical
means to form enduring friendships, to render altruistic service and to
build better communities; (f) To co-operate in creating and maintaining
that sound public opinion and high idealism which make possible the
increase of righteousness, justice, patriotism and goodwill; (g) To carry
on charitable and relief work of all kinds and to receive and collect gifts
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and donations for that purpose; (A) To raise money by holding or con-
ducting concerts, entertainments, contests and sales; (¢) To do all such
acts and exercise all such powers as may be considered advisable for
promoting and advancing the objects for which such Club has been
organized; (j) To establish, maintain and operate camps, hostels, relief
centres and other like institutions; (k) To invest and deal with the moneys
of the Corporationr not immediately required for the purposes of the
Corporation in such manner as, from time to time, may be determined;
(1) To do all such other things as are incidental or conducive to the
attainment of the above objects; and (m) For the purposes aforesaid,
to acquire the assets of West Toronto Kiwanis Club, an unincorporated
agsociation;

In order to carry out its objects and particularly its
charitable and relief work (clause (g)), funds had to be
provided or raised. Someone conceived the idea that the
Club might sueccessfully and profitably operate the very
large, palatial residence known as “Casa Loma” by charging
a fee to tourists and others who might wish to inspect it,
and by conducting dances, concerts and the like. The
property 'at that time was in a somewhat dilapidated con-
dition, had been taken over by the Corporation of the City
of Toronto for unpaid taxes and was apparently unsaleable.
Accordingly, arrangements were entered into with the
owner, by which the defendant became entitled to the use
and occupation thereof. In the year 1950, the defendant
was in possession under an agreement with the City of
Toronto, dated January 2, 1942 (Ex. 10), as amended by
subsequent agreements, Exhibits 11, 12 and 13. As so
amended, the agreement provided for the use and occupa-
tion of Casa Loma and the tunnel stables and grounds
used in connection therewith, for a period of twenty-five
years from January 1, 1942. The agreement strictly limited
the purposes for which the premises could be used, and
shortly were as follows: (a) to conduct tours of inspection
of the premises under the supervision of the Club; (b) to
operate tearooms and to carry on dancing under the super-
vision of the Club; persons using the Club for such
purposes to pay the regular admission fee, in addition to
any other charges prescribed by the Club for such attend-
ance; (c¢) to sell Casa Loma booklets; (d) to grant per-
mission to hold bridge parties, teas and picnics, the stated
admission fee to be charged to individuals in addition to
any other charge; (e) to hold all meetings and functions
of the Club in the said building and to use the said building
for the general purposes of the Club, all without charge to
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the persons attending such meetings and/or functions 1951
and/or using the said building for such general purpcses of Conossss
the admission fee per person for entry to the said building; A‘g‘;’“

(f) to hold under the supervision of the Club bazaars, fairs, PuveLisares
amusements and musicales without any charge or for a fixed 45 Gomrm
charge; (g) to hold under the supervision of the Club Limrren
broadcasts, meetings, concerts, weddings, exhibitions or Kronnts
other functions without any charge or for a fixed charge. Crus

The Club was required to charge an admission fee of not CameronJ.
less than twenty-five cents and not more than fifty cents =
for all tourists and visitors entering Casa Loma, with some-
what lower charges for children. Those attending the
dances paid the regular admission fee, plus an additional
charge.

By clause 3, the Club was required to pay to the city
annually 25 per cent of the annual gross receipts from the
admission fees with the proviso that if the attendance fell
below a certain number, the percentage payable to the
city would be reduced to not below 15 per cent. By clause
17, as amended, the city was entitled to be paid 15 per cent
of the annual gross receipts from fixed charges made in
connection with certain specified functions.

Clause 6 provided that the city should be at no expense

for preparation of the building, tunnel or stables, or for
renovations or repairs or for any other purpose whatsoever.
It may be noted here that by reason of the dilapidated
condition of the building and by reason of the use to which
the building was to be put, the Club necessarily expended
certain sums in repairing windows, installing a new furnace,
in laying some new floors and in interior decorations. and
in supplying new amenities, as well as certain kitchen
equipment and furniture.

By clause 7 the Club was required at its own expense to
make all repairs to the building, tunnel and stables and
pay for all maintenance thereof, including therein water,
sanitary facilities, heat and lighting. By clause 10 the
Club was required to keep the lawns and gardens in an
attractive condition and to keep the buildings clean and
in good order. By the amendment of July 6, 1943 (Ex. 11),
the city undertook the costs of repairs to and the renova-
tion of the exterior masonry work of the buildings and
stables, the Club undertaking to ereect and maintain fences
necessary for public safety.
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1951 The most important part of that agreement, so far as
COMPosmns this case is concerned, is clause 5, which has remained

AvIEOES ynchanged since January 2, 1942. It is as follows:

PusLisaERs 5. That the annual gross receipts derived by the Club from the total

%:Sgiﬁgi? operation of the Premises less the percentage to be paid to the City as

Livrprp  @bove and hereinafter provided and less the costs to the Club for necessary
v. repairs, improvements, equipment, actual maintenance, supervision and
KIwaNis  management of the Premises shall be used and expended by the Club
Crus entirely for the benefit of under-privileged, needy and crippled children,

Cameron J. Other charities and war service work and for no other purpose whatsoever

R and that the Club in usimng and operating the Premises for the purposes
set forth in paragraph number one hereof shall do so always with the
object of raising money for such children, charities and/or war service
work.

In accordance with the agreements, the defendant oper-
ated this project—and it had many others—by a special
group of its members called the “Casa Loma Committee.”
The Committee employed and paid a full-time manager,
guides, and other necessary help. Its main revenue there-
from was derived from the admission fees charged to
tourists and others. Over a period of years it conducted
dances to which the public were invited and at which the
music was provided by a paid orchestra. All the income
and expenditures in connection with the project were
handled by the Committee and after payment of all the
expenses and the percentage due the City of Toronto,
the amount remaining was paid into a special trust fund.
It was out of the latter that the charitable disbursements
were made. In any year when the full amount of income
in the special trust fund was not used, it was accumulated
as a reserve.

Ex. 15 is the audited statement of the defendant’s affairs
for the year ending December 31, 1950. The Casa Loma
income and expenditures are shown at p. 6. The total
income was $180,890.72, of which $73,994.15 was from
“General gate admission,” and $36,253.60 was from “Dance
revenue.” The residue is made up of smaller amounts
from sales of refreshments, tobacco and souvenirs, and of
revenue from “checking, guides, luncheon ecatering and
miscellaneous items.” The expenditures show that $19,-
596.33 was paid to the City of Toronto, $25,358.42 was
paid out for orchestras and entertainment; and after allow-
ing for the stated amounts for costs of items which were
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sold, and for catering, wages, operating expenses, adver-
tising and publicity and administrative expense, the year’s
operation showed an excess of income over expenditure of
$43,887.62.

P. 5 of Ex. 15 provides the details of the income and
expenditures of the Casa Loma trust fund. To the $43,-
887.62 derived from the year’s operations there were added
“interest earned” of $3,901.37 and sundry income of $97.48
—a total of $47,916.47. The item of “earned income” is
derived from investments in bonds of a total face value
of $130,000 (p. 4) and called the “trust fund,” these invest-
ments being made up almost entirely of accumulations of
unexpended net revenue from the Casa Loma project over
a number of years. The details of the expenditure from
the trust fund are shown on p. 5 and will be referred to
later. For the year, all the income was expended except
$1,719.23, The trust fund account is operated quite
separately from the general funds of the defendant and
no part of the income from the former is transferred to the
latter except one item of $1,500 which will be referred to
later.

On this set of facts, two questions must be answered:
(1) Were the dances conducted at Casa Loma under the
supervision of the Club on December 15 and December 16,
1950, and at which “Summertime” and “Sleepy Lagoon”
were performed by the paid orchestra in public, so con-
ducted in furtherance of a charitable object? and (2) Was
the defendant at the time a charitable or fraternal organiza-
tion? It is only if both these questions are answered in
the affirmative that the defendant can be relieved of the
charge of infringement.

In the sense in which it is here used, I interpret the
phrase “in furtherance of” to be equivalent to “to advance,”
or “to assist,” or “to promote.” To come within the
exempting proviso, it is not necessary that the function at
which the musieal work is publicly performed should itself
be of a religious, educational or charitable nature. It is
sufficient if it be held in furtherance of or to promote,
advance or assist in any one of these objects. By its
agreement with the city, the defendant was required to use
its net revenue entirely for the benefit of underprivileged
children, needy, and crippled children, other charities and

169

1951
——
CoMPOSERS
AUTHORS
AND
PusLisEERS
ASSOCIATION
or CANADA,
Livrrep

.‘v . N
Krwanis
Cius

Cameron J.



170 EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA [1952

1951  war service work. In the year 1950 there was, of course, no
00;1;;;“5 “war service work,” and the other specified uses were
AUATlf];mS undoubtedly charitable objects. I think it can be inferred
Pusuisemes that the city was quite satisfied that the defendant had

%gséflﬁf;‘:" lived up to its agreement in every detail inasmuch as it
Lo hag not sought to take advantage of clause 18 of the agree-
Krwaxzs Inent which provides for termination thereof upon breach

Cuoe by the defendant of any of its covenants. The declared
CameronJ. aim or object of the Casa Loma project was to secure funds

—  for the charitable purposes mentioned, and it was so limited

in the agreement, and one of the Club officers who was a
party to the arrangements entered into with the City of
Toronto stated that such object constituted the sole motive
of the defendant in embarking on the project. An examina-
tion of the use to which the net revenue was put satisfies
me that that object was fully carried out and the net

revenue used for no other purposes.

In 1950, the net income from the Casa Loma operations
of that year, available for the use of the Committee, was
approximately 25 per cent of the total income (p. 6 of
Ex. 15). I do not think it necessary to consider in detail
the expenditures listed on that page and which, as to
operating expenses and -administrative expenses, are
detailed on p. 7. It is sufficient to say that after examining
them in the light of the evidence adduced, I am satisfied
that they were all properly incurred in connection with
the project itself and were necessarily disbursed either to
meet the requirements of the agreement with the city,
or directly in connection with the operation of the project.
The payment to the city was, of course, in the nature of a
rental. The mere fact that salaries and wages were paid
to the employees or to the members of the orchestra is
here of no concern. The phrases, “without private profit,”
or “without motive of gain” do not appear in the “further
proviso” now under consideration as they did or do appear
in other parts of section 17(1). In the opinion of the
accountant of the defendant corporation, they were all
properly chargeable to the operation itself.

Moreover, none of the moneys go expended were paid to
the defendant (save as to one item which I shall presently
mention) or to any of its members. It is contended, how-
ever, that the defendant and some of the members did
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receive some indirect benefits from the agreements. It is
true that for a few years the weekly luncheons of the Club,
and the Committee meetings, were held at Casa Loma
and that no rental was charged therefor. The members
paid for their meals, however, and I gather from the
evidence that the luncheons and committee meetings took
place there so as to further the interests of the members in
the main project carried on by the defendant. It is true,
also, that by the agreement members of the defendant club
could enter the building without payment of the admission
fee, that they and their wives and children, with escorts,
could attend the dances free of charge. But these privileges
were used very rarely; when members attended the dances
—there may have been six or seven on occasions—they
ordinarily did so to supervise what was going on as they
were required to do by the agreement. These matters are
of such minor importance that in my opinion they do not
in any way affect the question as to whether or not the
public performances were in furtherance of a charitable
object.

I turn now to a consideration of the manner in which the
net income was disbursed and which, in my opinion, will
be helpful in determining not only whether the musical
works were performed in furtherance of a religious, educa-

tional or charitable object, but also whether the defendant

was a fraternal or charitable organization. The details are
shown on p. 5 of Ex. 15 and were further elaborated in
evidence.

Administrative costs are shown at $1,500. It is explained
that this is an annual charge made to the fund and which
year in and year out approximates the proportion of the
overall administrative costs, which is referable to the Casa
Loma project and the trust fund. The assistant secretary’s
salary of $1,970 is not her full salary but that proportion
thereof which fairly represents the proportion of her time
which is spent on the project and the trust fund, and it is
shown that but a very small part of her time is occupied
with the general work of the Club. I see no reason to
question these items as properly chargeable to the costs of
operation of the project and the trust fund. Contingent
liability insurance of $22.08 and unemployment insurance
of $22.92, and sundries of $445 are also referable to the
project.
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335_{ Under the heading of “Underprivileged Children,”
Comrposers $3,290.21 was expended for children’s aid and Christmas
AUTHORS hagkets to assist poor children, one of the defendant’s com-

AND
Pusuiserrs Mittees having ascertained the names of needy children and

AN families from the Neighbourhood Workers’ Association,
Lmarmp  personally investigated each case and supplied free of
Kiwanis  charge such things as food, clothing, wheel chairs and

Civs  orthopoedic shoes, the work and distribution thereof being
CameronJ. done voluntarily by -the committee. For “National Kids’

~—  Day,” the expenditure was $231.51; it was made for such

things as entertainment and refreshments for the sick and
crippled children in hospital, and for games for young
children of the same sort as are provided by the Y.M.C.A.
Under the heading of “Boys’ Work,” $737.89 was expended
on equipment and entertainment for boy scouts in need of
assistance; and $50 on youths’ probation. The latter
amount was given to certain officials of the Juvenile Court
to assist in the rehabilitation of poor and needy first

offenders.

On “Girls’ Work” $4,868.01 was expended. The greatest
part was used for underprivileged girls, sixty-two girls
having been sent to the summer camp sponsored by the
Y.W.C.A, and twenty-three girls to Bolton Camp. Sports
equipment was purchased and provided free of charge, and
in addition to the sports activities educational classes were
held in dramatics, dancing and musie.

The defendant operated a summer camp called “Camp
Westowanis” to which are sent underprivileged boys and
girls. A revenue of $1,716.81 was received from those who
could pay part or all of the expenses, but the Club expended
a net amount of $3,781.77 in connection with its operation.
All the disbursements I have so far referred to would seem
to fall within the category of a “charitable object” except
the instructions in sports, dramatics, dancing and musie,
which are of an educational nature.

$1,286.40 was paid out under the heading of “Agricul-
ture.” In conjunction with the Ontario Agricultural
Representative of the County of Peel, the Club sponsored
work of an educational character among junior farmers in
the district. To encourage them to be better farmers, they
sponsored calf clubs, potato clubs, grain clubs, gardening
and cooking activities, and gave prizes therefor and an
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annual banquet to the Junior Farmers’ Association. A
substantial number of trees were planted with the assistance
of the Club members to encourage the interest of the young
farmers in reforestation, but very little cash was actually
laid out on that project.

Under the heading of “Voeational Guidance,” $1,251.86
was expended. In this work the Club’s committee worked
closely with the principals of seven collegiate institutes in
West Toronto. Twenty-four special night courses were
conducted by it at the Technical School. On the recom-
mendation of the prineipals, four students received financial
assistance to enable them to finish courses which they
would otherwise have had to discontinue. The vice-
chairman of the committee spent time every evening
throughout the winter in conducting these classes. Scholar-
ships of $25 each were given for vocational guidance papers
on the recommendation of the principal. Expert advice
was received from the Social Service Department of the
University of Toronto and books on vocational guidance
were purchased and supplied gratis to the libraries of the
collegiates. All this work is of an educational character
as is the item of $705.55 for “school proficiency awards”
expended on the recommendation of the school principals
involved.

For the “Key Club” $267.33 was expended. It was to
assist in the operations of a group of High School students
having similar aims as the Kiwanis Club itself.

Under the heading of “Public Affairs” $608.62 was paid
out. In co-operation with other clubs, the defendant par-
ticipated in a province-wide courtesy and safe driving
campaign. Contributions in money or kind were made to
aged people’s homes and to hospitals, and busses were
provided for disabled veterans. Such expenditures, I think,
would be of an educational or charitable nature. Then
follows an expenditure of $1,293.28 on “Spiritual Aims,”
and on the evidence of Mr. Oaten it is clear that the amount
so disbursed was in furtherance of a religious object.
$1,000 of that sum was expended to assist in the furnishing
of a church in need of assistance.

One of the main concerns of the defendant was to assist
in the operation of the High Park Y.M.C.A. which it con-
structed at a cost of some $30,000 and turned over to the
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Bﬂ “Y”’ for one dollar, some years ago. In 1950, it expended
Composzrs $7,789 in support of that work, the largest part of which
AUS‘;“S was in sponsoring the Ki-Y sports supervised by the
Posusames Y.M.C.A. Practically all the necessary sports equipment

%iséillﬁfff was provided, as well as other costs of operation and in
LIB;‘)ITED these activities 24,000 boys participated. In connection
Kiwans with the Y.M.C.A. itself, $560 was expended for necessary

CioB  decorations and $402.49 was charged to depreciation for
CameronJ the building itself. In addition, $2,900.50 was expended
T on the George Syme project which is entirely carried out
by the defendant. It is a scheme to organize and supervise

the sports activities of a very large number of young people

in a depressed area and to keep them off the streets. Of

the fotal amount, $2,400 was used in payment of the

salary of a Y.M.C.A. supervisor working exclusively on

that scheme, and the balance was for necessary sports
equipment. On the evidence, I am satisfied that these

outlays related exclusively to charitable objects.

$100 was expended on the Kiwanis Music Festival
conducted by all the Kiwanis Clubs in the city. Com-
petitions are held in all fields of music and the amount
contributed was used to provide two small scholarships,
presumably to assist in the further musical education of
the successful competitors. Under the heading of “Music
Appreciation,” $487.05 was paid out to renovate musical
instruments which the members of the defendant club
collected, and these were then turned over to be used by
musical students who could not afford to purchase them.
These two items, I think, are of an educational nature.

“Sundry Projects” accounted for $11,434.98. This
included donations to such organizations as the St. John’s
Ambulance Society, Canadian Red Cross, Canadian Na-
tional Institute for the Blind, Winnipeg Flood Relief
($2,500), the Queen Elizabeth Hospital and the Humber
Memorial Hospital, Toronto Community Chest ($1,500),
the Y.M.C.A. World Service ($1,500), the United Nations
Children’s Relief Fund, the Boy Scouts ($1,000), the Red
Shield Appeal of the Salvation Army, the John Howard
Society to assist in the rehabilitation of released prisoners,
Dr. Barnardo’s Home, a grant of $25 to assist a needy girl
injured in a fire and to assist her to become self-supporting.
All these expenditures are clearly of a charitable nature.
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In addition, a small sum ($10) was paid for a membership
in the Art Gallery of Toronto, and other small sums were
expended for films to show the activities of the Club among
underprivileged children and to advertise the Casa Loma
projeet so as to secure more revenue therefrom. The
“Sundry Projects” also include an item of $2,250 paid to
the Neighbourhood Workers’ Association to assist it in the
operation of Bolton Camp-—a charitable project. This
particular disbursement was made to enable the Association
to procure additional ground for its camp area. Finally,
there is an item of $180 for emergency relief which is
made up of small contributions to assist distressed persons
whose homes had been destroyed, or the like.

The sole purpose of the defendant Club in earrying on
the Casa Loma project was to raise funds for the purpose
of carrying on its charitable activities; by its agreement
with the city the proceeds could not be used for any other
purpose; the dances were held as part of the general project
to raise funds for the same purpose, and the musical works
referred to were publicly performed at those dances. On
the evidence, I have no hesitation in reaching the con-
clusion that on December 15 and 16, 1950, when the musical
works were so performed, they were so performed in the
furtherance of a charitable object, and that the proceeds
of the whole Casa Loma project in 1950 (including the
proceeds from the dances in question) were expended
almost entirely on charitable objects. The few that were
not specifically directed to charitable objects were directed
to religious or educational objects.

If, for example, a local branch of the Red Cross Society—
which I think would undoubtedly fall within the category
of “charitable organization”—decided to raise funds with
which to further its work by conducting a public dance
at which the orchestra played copyrighted musical works:
and if in connection therewith it paid the orchestra, hall
rent and other necessary outgoings, and devoted the net
proceeds to its ordinary work—then, I think that the
public performance of such musical works would be in
furtherance of 'a charitable object. Essentially, the position
here is the same and I can see no difference between the
object of the Red Cross Society in so doing and the object
of the defendant in conduecting its dances for the purposes
T have set out.
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1951 I find, therefore, that the first question must be answered
— . .
Cowmrosers, in the affirmative.
AUIHORS T have not overlooked the argument of counsel for the
ig:ééﬁ?g; respondent regarding the sum of $130,000 shown as invest-
or Canapa, Inents in the “trust funds,” which as I have sald is made
LU’%:)ITED up very largely of sums accumulated over the years from
Krwants the Casa Loma project and not used in the year in which
Gt they were received. It is suggested that under the contract
CameronJ. with the City of Toronto, the full amount of the profits
" from the project should have been expended annually on
charitable objects and that it is possible that the defendant
may direct part or all of this accumulated fund to non-
charitable objects. As I read the contract, there is no
requirement that the annual profits must be spent on
charitable objects in the year in which they are earned.
Nevertheless, they are bound to be so expended in time
and there is little doubt that they will be so used. They
are held “in trust” and while there is no specific declaration
of trust, the term no doubt refers to the obligation of the
defendant to the City of Toronto to use the fund for the
specified purposes only. It has not been shown that they
have at any time been used for other purposes. I have
no doubt whatever that the surplus was built up so that
the defendant would have funds on hand to continue its
charitable objects in years in which its operating income
might be less than it needed to carry on its charitable
work.

But, for the relevant year (1950), as I have shown, the
defendant expended on such purposes more than its net
profits from that year’s operations. In Commissioners of
Inland Revenue v. Yorkshire Agricultural Society, (1)
Atkin, L.J., in considering whether the Society was estab-
lished for charitable purposes only, emphasized the neces-
sity of viewing the situation at the relevant time (the
taxation year in question) and at p. 632 ff said:

It was said, this is a voluntary Society, there are no rules and by-laws
limiting its activities, and therefore at any moment it may devote its
funds to a non-charitable purpose. It might, it is said, distribute its
funds amongst its members or in relief of its members and that would
not be a charitable purpose, and therefore it is to be deemed to be not
a Society formed for a charitable purpose. I think, with respect, that
that 18 a non sequitur. The question you have to consider 1s whether at
the relevant time you are dealing with the income of a society established

(1) (1928) 1 X B. 611.



Ex.CR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA

for charitable purposes only, and in respect of that income also you
have to consider whether the income is applied in fact to charitable
purposes only . . . But if it does so (i.e., by adding objects which are
non-charitable), then it appears to me that the Society will cease to be a
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to me that the question is the same, whether it was established for a
charitable purpose and whether it is still operating in that sphere.

I turn now to the second question as to whether, as
alleged, the defendant is a fraternal organization. I note
at once that the exemption is applicable to a church, college,
school, and to a religious, charitable and fraternal organi-
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zation. A “fraternal organization” is not defined, but if it

is to be judged by its associates, it would seem to be
an organization which in some way is devoted to public
service and which endeavours in one way or another to
bring about better conditions in those fields which are
generally recognized as being for the public good. It
seems to me that Parliament, while recognizing the rights
of owners of musical works, desired to cut down those
rights in a limited way by lessening the costs of the public
performance of musical works where the performance was
in furtherance of a religious, educational or charitable
object, thereby possibly increasing the amount of money
which would be available to carry out such objects. To
limit the obvious difficulties which would be encountered
in determining whether the performance was in furtherance
of a religious, educational or charitable object, the exemp-
tion was made applicable to the named organizations only,
which, by their very nature, might be assumed to have
such objects, or one or more of them, as their main objeect.
If that were the sole test, then on the evidence I would
find that the defendant is a fraternal organization.

In the Shorter Oxford English Dictionary, 3rd Ed., I find
the following definitions:
“Fraternal”—Of or pertaining to brothers or a brother; brotherhood.
“Fraternity”—A body of men associated by some common interest;
a company—-guild.

“Fraternization”—The action of fraternizing or uniting as brothers,
fraternal association.

As I have said, the defendant is a service club, a member
of the well-known “International Kiwanis” Club, and was
first organized in 1921. It has a membership of about
110 men, all carefully selected because of their interest in

55452—1a
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1951 the aims and objects of the Club itself. Weekly luncheons

Con;f)gmns, are held and there is usually a speaker who may address
AUTHORS  the members on matters of wide interest or on the work

PusLisEErs being carried out by the Club itself.
ASSOCIATION

on ?ﬁTﬁA The work of the Club is earried out by its various com-
v, mittees, composed of members of the Club. Under “Club
nggg‘m Administration” it has the following committees: Kiwanis
— _ Education, Membership, Public Relations, Records,
Cameron J. Financial; and under the heading “Club Meetings” the
following: Program and Entertainment, Inter-Club Rela-

tions and Advisory Board.

There are two main groups of committees carrying out
the objects of the Club, namely: “Youth Service” and
“Community Service.” Under the former there are the
following committees dealing with underprivileged children
—Children’s Aid and Youth Probation, Vocational Guid-
ance and Proficiency Awards, Boys’ Work (including Boy
Scouts and Cubs), Girls’ Work, Camp, Y.M.C.A. (High
Park Branch, Perth-Royce Branch, and George Syme
Branch).

Under “Community Service” there are the following
committees: Agriculture and Horticulture, DBusiness
Standards and Public Affairs, Support of Churches in their
spiritual aims, Music Appreciation and Kiwanis Music
Festival and Casa Loma.

Under the heading “Special Committees” there are: Club
Extension and Emergency Committees.

It seems to me that the general aims and objects of the
Club are concisely stated in clauses (e) and (g) of the
“Purposes and Objects” set forth in the Letters Patent,
as follows:

(e) To provide through Kiwanis Clubs a practical means to form
enduring friendships, to render altruistic service and to build
better communities;

(g) To carry on charitable and relief work of all kinds and to receive
and collect gifts and donations for that purpose.

“Enduring friendships” are created and stimulated by
membership in the Club, by regular attendance at the
luncheons, by participation in the work of the various
committees, and by upholding and praectising together the
“objects of Kiwanis” (set forth on the opening page of
Ex. A). While it may be described as a “luncheon club,”
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the luncheon is by no means an end in itself. It is merely
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and increased. Each member takes an active interest in PusLismEes

ASSOCIATION

the welfare work carried on by the Club, not only by orCanapa,

attending the luncheons and committee meetings, but in
rendering actual assistance in the projects themselves—
the Y.M.C.A., the summer camps for underprivileged
children, vocational guidance, and the other activities I
have mentioned. The evidence establishes to my complete
satisfaction that the defendant is @ body of men associated
by some common interest and is therefore @ fraternal
organization. Its members not only fraternize or unite as
brothers, but by those activities which I have mentioned
they exemplify towards the needy and underprivileged the
care and solicitude which one would expect of a brother.

My conclusion, therefore, is that the defendant is a
fraternal organization and it therefore becomes unnecessary
to consider whether it is also a charitable organization,
although there is much to indicate that in the Casa Loma
project its aims and objects were entirely charitable, using
that word in its broad sense. The defendant has brought
itself within the exemption and the plaintiff’s claim for
infringement and for ancillary relief based on infringement
must fail.

One other matter may be referred to. The plaintiff led
evidence to indicate that for some two or three years prior
to 1950 it had issued an annual license to the defendant
for orchestra music at Casa Loma, and that the defendant
had paid the annual charges in respect thereof. It was
gsubmitted in argument that thereby the defendant had
impliedly recognized the rights of the plaintiff and that
it was therefore liable to continue the payment of the licence
fee for 1950. The evidence did not establish that any
contract had been entered into by the defendant by which
it was bound to pay any sum to the defendant for the year
1950, and this claim also fails.

The plaintiff’s action will therefore be dismissed with
costs to be taxed.

Judgment accordingly.

\
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BeTwEEN:

iR oy and ARTHUR L Sormuaars;
AND

HIS MAJESTY THE XING ...... ....RESPONDENT.

Crown—Petition of Right—Claim for damage caused by flooding of lands
as the result of construction and operation of dams on the Souris
River by the Crown—No negligence in construction of dams—Transfer
of ownership of dams—No lLability on Crown for maintenance and
operation of dams after transfer of ownership {o Province of Manitoba
—Petition dismissed.

Suppliants claim damages from the Crown (1) because their lands were
flooded as the result of the construction by the Crown of certain dams
on the Souris River in Manitoba, alleging that such dams were
improperly, unskilfully, carelessly or negligently constructed and (2)
because of the improper, careless and negligent supervision and
operation of such dams by the agents and servants of the Crown.

Held: That engineers are expected to be possessed of reasonably competent
skill in the exercise of their particular calling and the most that
can be expected of them is the exercise of reasonable care and prudence
in the light of scientific knowledge at the time, of which they should
be aware.

2. That the engineers responsible in any way for the construction of the
dam or dams in question were competent in their profession and
exercised all reasonable care and prudence after ascertaining and
investigating all available material factors appertaining to the river,
surrounding couniry and watershed and the action fails on the allega-
tion of negligence in design and construction of the dams.

3. That the respondent cannot be held liable for damage suffered through
supervision and operation of the dams subsequent to April 1, 1945,
the date on which ownership of all the dams was transferred to and
taken over by the Government of the Province of Manitoba from
respondent and were thereafter under the sole control, operation
and supervision of officials of that Province. Lessard v. Hull Electric
Company (1947) S.CR. 22.

PETITION OF RIGHT to recover damages from the
Crown for loss sustained by suppliants allegedly due to
the negligence of respondent in the construction and
operation of dams on the Souris River in Manitoba.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Hyndman, Deputy Judge of the Court, at Winnipeg.

W. P. Fillmore, K.C. and C. W. Fillmore for suppliants.
M. J. Finkelstein, K.C. and K. E. Eaton for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.



ExCR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA

Hy~xpman D.J. now (January 23, 1952) delivered the
following judgment:

By Petition of Right, for which fiat was granted, and
filed the 30th August, 1950, suppliants, James Ramsay,
claimed to be the owner, and Arthur Penno, the lessee, of
all of section 9 in township 5, range 25, west of the prin-
cipal meridian north of the Souris river, of which 100
acres were under crop cultivation and 54 acres used for
hay; and the southwest quarter of section 16 in the said
township 5, excepting thereout the right-of-way of the
Canadian Pacific Railway, of which 130 acres are under
crop cultivation and 24 acres used for hay; which lands
are adjacent to the said Souris river.

The Souris river rises in the province of Saskatchewan,
follows a course through North Dakota, and thence
through the province of Manitoba, and empties into the
Assinniboine river.

Suppliants allege that in or about the year 1941, or prior
thereto, His Majesty caused to be constructed, without
the consent or permission of the suppliants, four dams or
dykes at various points on the said river, in the province
of Manitoba, one of them situate on section 16 in township
6, range 23, known as the Hartney; another situate on said
section 9, known as the Napinka or Stewart dam; one on
section 8, township 4, range 26, known as the Ross dam,
and one on the northeast of section 33, township 2, range
27, known as the Snider dam; all for the purpose of im-
peding the waters of said river, or of stopping its natural
flow, or raising the level there-in and above such dams,
and/or, as it passed through certain of the lands above
referred to.

It is claimed that such dams were improperly, unskil-
fully, carelessly or negligently constructed by His Majesty,
as follows:

(a) Said dams were of improper design and not fit to perform the
function for which they were intended.

(b) Were constructed in a manner to narrow natural bed of the river
and so as to prevent the free passage along the surface of the
said river, of trees and other floating material and so as to cause
an obstruction to the ordinary flow in a manner which stopped
and gathered debris and prevented it from passing such dam
and which caused the said waters to rise above its natural course
and flow into the lands of the suppliants.
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(¢) Were not of sufficient dimensions to accommodate the natural
flow of the waters and forced such water from its natural course
on to the lands of the suppliants.

(d) The Hartney dam, which is situate downstream from suppliants’
lands, and the Napinka dam, which is adjacent to suppliants’
lands, are on a higher level than the lands of the suppliants
and were so constructed as to cause water, held back by the
dam, to overflow its banks and to flow onto the lands of the
suppliants and with no natural flow or outlet to the same, and
to remain upon the said lands.

(e) Insufficient or no protection is afforded to prevent the waters
of said river, raised by the said dams, from flooding over the
banks of said river onto the said lands.

(f) No proper or adequate re-propping with rock was placed on the
running water side of said dam.

(g) Sufficient space was not provided between the pillars used in
construction of said dam to permit debris to pass over the dams,
and,

(7) No proper method was used in the construction of the said dams
to properly control the use thereof or the flow of water likely to
be impeded thereby.

That as a result of the improper construction of the
said dams, water rose above the natural or man-made
banks of said river, and flooded valuable portions of agri-
cultural and pasture lands and prevented suppliants from
sowing, tilling or harvesting crops or using said lands in
each of the years, 1942 to 1949, inclusive.

Furthermore, as a result of the said improper construc-
tion, and because of the water of said river overflowing, as
aforesaid, the said water was not able to return or enter
the river channel, but remained upon suppliants’ land, and
prevented them from sowing and harvesting crops there-
from, or, if sown, from harvesting the same, or tilling, or
otherwise using the lands in proper season, and it is alleged
that the suppliants would continue to suffer damage by
reason of said flooding, and the lands materially depreciated
in value.

It is also claimed that the sald dams were improperly,
carelessly and negligently supervised and operated by the
agents or servants of His Majesty, in that logs placed in
the said dams, to hold back the flow of water in the dry
months of the year, were permitted to remain in the said
dams when the spring floods were rising, and, in conse-
quence, the lands were flooded, and suppliants were pre-
vented from sowing and harvesting any crops therefrom
during the years 1942 to 1949 inclusive, and in consequence,
the suppliants have suffered damage thereby.
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It is also alleged that the said works are of no possible
benefit to suppliants but, on the contrary, have materially
depreciated said lands, which is rich, river-bottom land,
capable of producing heavy crops of wheat.

At the opening of the trial, Counsel for the Crown,
moved that clauses 3, 5, 6 and the words “construction or”
in the first line of paragraph 7 of the Petition, and the
words “construction or” on the seventh line of paragraph 7,
be struck out, on the ground that the same do not disclose
any cause of action against the respondent within the
jurisdiction of the Exchequer Court, which entitles the
suppliants to the relief sought, inasmuch as suppliants
failed to allege that the damage resulted from the negli-
gence of any officer or servant of the Crown while acting
within the scope of his duties or employment, and cited
the case of Rawn v. The King, (1), and Ruffy-Arnell and
Baumann Aviation Company Limited v. The King, (2).

Mr. Fillmore, counsel for the suppliants, whilst contend-
ing that the omitted words were unnecessary, moved to
amend the petition by adding such words. This was
objected to by Crown counsel, on the ground that a Petition
of Right for which a fiat had been granted, could not be
amended in the absence of a new fiat. Undoubtedly, where
a fresh cause of action would be the result of such an
amendment, it should not be allowed without 2 new fiat.
See dicta of the President of this Court in Rawn v. The King,
above, (supra) and of McCardie, J. in Ruffy-Arnell and
Baumann Aviation Co. Ltd. v. The King (supra). It is
argued that by implication, these words should be considered
as included in the pleading, but of this I am doubtful. How-
ever, with considerable doubt, as no new cause of action
is alleged, other than that set out in the petition, I am
inclined to allow such amendment. Since the amendment
to the Petition of Right Act of 1951, there could be no
objection to allowing such amendment. I propose, there-
fore, to deal with the case on the assumption that the
pleadings are in order and valid.

During the course of the trial, counsel for the petitioners
abandoned any claim for damages for the years 1942,
1943, 1944, by reason of the Statutes of Limitations, and
the years 1946 and 1949, leaving for consideration only

(1) (1948) 4 DL.R. 412. (2) (1922) 1 K.B. 599.

183
1951

——
RaMsay &
Penno

.

Tue Kixng

Hyndman
DJ.



184 EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA [1952

135_{ the years 1945, 1947 and 1948, the amount of damages

Ramsav & claimed for these years being $5,650; $5,650 and $5,650
PaNNo  respectively.

TeeKwe  The respondent denied all material allegations of negli-
Hyndman gence in the petition and, in addition, pleaded that the

DJ.  respondent did not and does not maintain or operate the
said dams; and that if said lands were flooded, such flood-
ing was due to the low-lying nature of said lands which
are “river bottom lands,” and designated as marsh lands
in the original survey of 1880; and that the extent and
overflow of the waters of the Souris river depend entirely
upon the extent, periodicity, and the rate of precipitation
in the whole watershed of the river; and such flooding
was caused by extraordinary rainfalls and floods in the
said watershed.

The dams in question were constructed under the
authority of the Prairie Farms Rehabilitation Act, being
ch. 23, 25-26 Geo. V. (1935). The Act provided in section
3(1) that the Governor in Council may establish & com-
mittee to be kmown as the Prairie Farm Rehabilitation
Advisory Committee, the members of which were to hold
office during pleasure and said Committee consisting of
representatives of various organizations in Manitoba,
Saskatchewan and Alberta. Section 4 of the Act reads:

4. The Committee shall consider and advise the Minister as to the
best methods to be adopted to secure the rehabilitation of the drought
and soil drifting areas in the Provinces of Manitoba, Saskatchewan and
Alberta and to develop and promote within those areas systems of farm
practice, tree culture and water supply that will afford greater economie
security and to make such representations thereon to the Minister as the
Committee may deem expedient.

The evidence discloses that farmers in the area depend
largely on the river for water for their animals, In the so-
called “dry years,” the river in many places completely
dried up, it being possible to walk across it, so that there
would be no water available for livestock. Consequently,
petitions from farmers and municipalities were forwarded
to the Government of Canada, asking for the building of
dams to hold and control the water of the river against
the dry periods.

In consequence of these petitions, it was decided by the
Government of Canada, that the dams hereinbefore men-
tioned should be constructed under the authority of the
said Act.
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The only expert witness for suppliants was Mr. Laughlin
MecLean, a professional engineer, graduate of MeGill
University in 1909 in civil engineering, with honours in
electrical engineering; prior to graduation worked on the
Grand Trunk Railway in Quebec and New Brunswick; the
Canadian Pacific Railway in Maine and New Brunswick;
and on Detroit River, Chaudiere Falls and other places;
was Deputy Minister of Public Works in Manitoba from
1922 to 1927, and at present is superintendent and engineer
for Greater Winnipeg Sanitary District. He is therefore
an engineer of wide experience and to whose evidence I
give every consideration.

The gist of Mr. McLean’s criticism of the dam is that
it is “old fashioned” and he prefers a solid or weir dam.
In 1947, he concluded that the dam caused the flooding of
suppliants’ land.

As opposed to Mr. McLean’s opinion is the evidence of
Messrs. Russell, Attwood and MecKenzie, all engineers,
with wide and varied experience.

Benjamin Russell is a civil engineer, graduated in 1909
from MecGill University. He worked in Cranbrook in
1909; was City Engineer for Lethbridge for a year then
worked with the Canadian Pacific Railway from 1911 to
1933; was in charge at Calgary of the Irrigation Branch
for the Dominion Government, and in charge of reservoir
services; was then engaged with Calgary Power Company
from 1935 to 1944; was Chief Engineer under the PFR.A.;
then Director of Water Courses for the province of Alberta,
and chairman of the Water Power Commission; also
secretary of the Irrigation and Drainage Council—which
latter position he still occupies.

Mr. Russell testified that in his official capacity, he signed
the plan or design of the “Napinka” dam, which was
approved by the appropriate authorities; that he had had
complete surveys made of the Souris Valley, with a close
study of water supply all along the river, and used all
available material and official records; also that he visited
the places once or twice with McKenzie and consulted all
persons with any information with regard to the river
and surrounding country.

As the result of these enquiries, consultations and
researches, with the concurrence of the other interested
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engineers, the design of the dam, later constructed, was
considered the most suitable for the purpose for which it
was intended.

Charles Hartley Attwood is a civil engineer, graduate of
Queen’s University 1911. In 1911 and 1912 was assistant
on Bow River Investigation for the Department of Interior,
Ottawa; from 1913 to 1919 was district engineer of the
Dominion Water and Power Branch in Alberta; in 1919
was district chief engineer, Dominion Water and Power
Branch for Manitoba dealing with collection of stream
flow data; was supervising engineer for the Dominion
Government at Great Falls on the Winnipeg river; in
1925 was engaged in connection with questions pertaining
to Lake of the Woods; and in 1929 and 1930 at Seven
Sisters’ Falls; in 1930 to 1937 was Deputy Minister of
Mines and Resources for Manitoba; and from 1937 to
1949, Director for Water Resources for Manitoba. He
retired in 1949,

Prior to the construction of the dam and whilst he was
Deputy Minister of Mines and Resources for Manitoba, he
carefully considered the question of design for the
“Napinka” dam, and concluded that the one subsequently
built was the most desirable, and all the other engineers
concerned with the matter, including Dagg, Russell and
McKenzie, shared his opinion. He testified that of the
thirteen other dams in the province, ten of them are of the
same design and have been entirely satisfactory. He testi-
fied that the overflow dam, spoken of by Mr. McLean, was
considered and rejected, as in his opinion, it would tend
to dam the river worse than anything that could be
expected from the one decided upon.

Gordon Leslie McKenzie is a civil engineer, graduate of
Queen’s University; member of the Engineering Institute
of Canada; registered Professional Engineer of Sas-
katchewan and a Dominion Land Surveyor. In 1934, he
worked on the South Saskatchewan and North Sas-
katchewan rivers for the Department of Public Works,
Ottawa. In 1937, he joined the staff of the P.F.R.A. as
district engineer and was official engineer in charge of
design. In 1945, he succeeded Russell as chief engineer,
which position he now holds. He is presently in charge
of flood relief on the Red river. In 1949, was a delegate
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to the United Nations meeting in connection with con-
servation of resources. He is also on three international
boards under the International Joint Commission.
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He testified that the “Napinka” dam was designed by a Tz Ko

staff under his direction; that he visted the “locus” several
times in 1937; that the river bed was dry in several spots,
and he was able to walk across it; examined all available
data over many years including that of floods and pre-
cipitation. He disagreed with McLean’s idea of an over-
flow or weir dam which he regarded as hazardous in case
of floods. In general, his opinion as to the desirability of
the dam coincides with that of Russell and Attwood with
whom he collaborated. He also testified that several other
dams of the same design had been constructed in other
localities and have proved entirely satisfactory.

I am satisfied that all reasonable investigations and con-
siderations were given to all material factors with regard to
the project prior to the type of dam decided upon.

A good deal was said about the accumulation of brush at
the dam as being something that should have been anti-
cipated, but in view of the fact that no trouble in that
regard had occurred previously in other dams, I do not
consider that any negligence can be imputed on that score.
At any rate, on the evidence, I do not believe the presence
of brush at the dam had any appreciable effect on the run-
off or flow of water.

As above mentioned, the dam was reconstructed in 1948,
by removing every second pier, thus widening the spaces
between the piers and also raising the “catwalk” some
6 feet. A possible inference from this fact might be that
the original dam was defective, and imputed as evidence
of negligence on the part of the engineers who originally
designed it. However, I am of opinion, that no such
inference should be drawn, but that on account of some
of the complaints of farmers who believed that accumu-
lation of brush was a cause of flooding, it was more or less
a gesture to satisfy their complaints. The fact is that
after this change was made, in the year 1949, there was a
flood as great as any before, which, in itself, is some, if
not strong evidence that the original structure was not
the cause of former floods.

Hyndman
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Whether or not there was negligence in regard to design
and construction of the dam is a question of fact. Engi-
neers are expected to be possessed of reasonably competent
skill in the exercise of their particular ealling, but not
infallible, nor is perfection expected, and the most that
can be required of them is the exercise of reasonable care
and prudence in the light of scientific knowledge at the
time, of which they should be aware. Every one of the
engineers responsible in any way for this project is a man
of good education, and I think, can be said to be competent,
and even eminent, in his profession, with long experience
in cognate matters. I have no hesitation in finding on
the evidence that they exercised all reasonable care and
prudence after ascertaining and investigating all available
material factors appertaining to the river, surrounding
country, and watershed. So far therefore as negligence in
design and construction is concerned, the action fails.

In addition to the allegation of negligence in design and
construction of the “Napinka” dam, as hereinbefore stated,
there is the further claim that the dam was improperly,
carelessly and negligently supervised and operated by the
agents and servants of His Majesty, in that stop-logs were
not removed at or before the period of floods, or run-off
in the valley, and that debris was allowed to accumulate
and was not removed, thus impeding the natural flow of
the water.

As any claim for damages for the years preceding 1945
and the years 1946 and 1949 was abandoned, as far as this
branch of the claim is concerned, it is necessary to consider
only the years 1945, 1947 and 1948,

Evidence adduced by suppliants with regard to removal
or non-removal of logs, and the effect of debris was to say
the least, vague and uncertain. On the other hand, the
witness, Mrs. James Stewart, gave convincing evidence
that prior to the first of April, 1945, all stop-logs were
removed; and in February and March 1947, at least 30.
Mrs. Stewart’s particular duty was to visit the dam every
day, read the gauge, and at the end of every week, report
the gauge readings to the Water Resources Branch, Depart-
ment of Mines and Resources of Manitoba at Winnipeg,
and including any remarks with reference to stop-logs,
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condition of the river, and rainfall, et cetera. These weekly
cards, for the years 1945 and 1947, were produced and filed
a8 exhibits T and U.

From a study of the cards, together with Mrs. Stewart’s
evidence, and data in the official government reports, I am
clearly of the opinion that there was in fact no flood in
the year 1945 and that witnesses for the suppliants in
that regard were mistaken.

It is also in evidence that in June 1945, as well as in
1947, rainfall was above normal in the valley and, in my
opinion, it was the rain and seepage from the higher
ground, lodging on this low-lying land that brought about
the condition complained of, and which affected or pre-
vented cultivation in those years.

In April, 1947, there was a flood throughout the whole
valley from purely natural causes, but the data discloses
that it lasted about three weeks and then receded.

Edward Kniper, an official of P.F.R.A., and an efficient
Hydro engineer, testified that the dam itself or brush had
no appreciable effect on the run-off from suppliants’ land;
also, that close to the river said land is higher than that
further back, which would have the effect of retaining at
least some of the flood as well as rainwater. Furthermore,
he testified that from the official records, the rainfall in
June 1945, and 1947, was above normal, and would neces-
sarily have considerable effect on the lands in question,
rendering it difficult of cultivation. Mr. Kniper’s opinion
was based on a most thorough study and examination of
the “locus,” and official government records.

In 1948, there was again a flood in the whole valley which
covered the lands for a distance of about half a mile from
the river and, according to the evidence, remaining on the
land for about three weeks, after which it receded as it
did in 1947. My remarks with regard to the effect of the
dam and brush for the year 1947 apply equally to 1948.

George T. Simpson, a witness for the Crown, who heads
the land division of P.F.R.A. for the Dominion Govern-
ment, an experienced valuator of farm lands, and a graduate
in agriculture of the Manitoba University, testified that
he had made a close examination and detailed study of
suppliants’ land, and found that it was very heavy alluvial
soil due to flood conditions; classified it as “coulter” clay,
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and that it was not “mature” for erop growth. It is under-
laid with bluish clay into which water cannot penetrate,
and he found a very high water state or condition; in dry
years this land will produce abundant crops, but in wet
years, plant roots cannot penetrate owing to too great
moisture and there would be little or no crop; is good for
grass but not for grain; there was evidence of a good many
old river channels throughout the property; and he states
that there was no grain cultivation of section 9 in 1950;
that water was struck at one foot below surface. He found
that in the sandhills, fifty feet above Ramsey’s land,
farmers could not cut hay owing to water which seeped
to the lower ground, and that such water could not have
come from the river. That between 1939 and 1949, rain
averaged 21 inches and varied from 15 inches in 1939 to
25 inches in 1948. Only three years in the period 1883 to
1938 exceeded the average of the last ten year period, and
that in 1945, 7-8 inches was the lowest of the eleven year
period. In general, Simpson’s opinion was that the trouble
was due mostly to rains and not flooding.

I have gone into considerable detail as to the facts in
regard to the operation and supervision of the dam, and
the effect of debris which probably was entirely unneces-
sary, in view of what I am now about to say.

The evidence is that as of the first day of April, 1945, all
four dams were transferred to, and taken over by, the
Government of the province of Manitoba from the Do-
minion Government and were thereafter under the gole
control of, and operated and supervised by, officials of
that province.

It therefore seems clear, on that ground alone, that
under no circumstances can the Federal Government be
held liable for damage which may or might have resulted
from negligence in the operation of the dams during 1945
and subsequent years. The Dominion Government had
nothing further to do with them after that date, and took
no part in their operation or supervision, it falling entirely
within the jurisdiction of the province of Manitoba. From
that time onward, all expenses with regard to operation
and supervision were paid entirely by the province of
Manitoba, and those operating it were employees of said
province, and not of the Dominion.
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In Lessard v. Hull Electric Company, (1), the headnote
reads:

Upon the evidence and the proper construction of a deed of sale by
the respondent company of its light and power system to another electric
company, not only was it established that the respondent ecompany, at
the time of the accident, was neither the owner of the wire nor had it
under its care, control or supervision, but that, on the contrary, the
ownership was proved 4o have been transferred to that other company.—
The respondent company, having disposed of the ownership of the wire
and not having afterwards assumed or undertaken any supervision or
control over it, cannot be held liable,

It seems to me, therefore, that on the authority of the
above decision alone, the conclusion must be that the
respondent in the action herein, cannot be held liable for
damage under the second branch of the case.

There are other grounds in the defence which I might
mention and which, in my opinion, are fatal to the sup-
pliants’ claim, but which I do not think it necessary to
refer to in view of the above findings.

The suppliants, having failed on both branches of the
claim, the Petition, therefore, must be dismissed with
costs.

Judgment accordingly.

BeTwEEN:
HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN...........PLAINTIFF;
AND
B.V.D. COMPANY LIMITED..........DEFENDANT.

Crown—Action to recover money paid as special subsidies to defendant—
Non-~compliance with condition on which subsidy paid—Crown not
bound by statement made by officer of Crown corporation without
authority—Right of Crown to sue—Defendant held liable to repay to
Crown amount of subsidy received by it.

The action is one in which the Crown seeks to recover from defendant
money paid it as special subsidies by the Commodity Prices Stabiliza-
tion Corporation, a Crown corporation, in respect of importations of
cotton fabrics in 1947, the defendant having been required to invoice
and ship the goods manufactured from such cotton fabrics not later
than December 31, 1947, The payment of all subsidies was within
the discretion of the Wartime Prices and Trade Board which had full
power to impose such conditions upon payment of subsidy as it might
consider proper.

(1) (1947) S.CR. 22.
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Held: That the Wartime Prices and Trade Board having imposed a con-
dition on payment of subsidy which condition was accepted by the
defendant, the defendant was neither entitled to receive the special
subsidy nor to retain it if paid unless that condition were fulfilled,
and unless the defendant in some legal manner was released from
the necessity of complying with that condition the subsidy received
by it must be repaid to plaintiff.

2. That a statement in a letter to defendant signed by a supervising
examiner of the Commodity Prices Stabilization Corporation made
without authority could not bind either the Wartime Prices and
Trade Board, the Commodity Prices Stabilization Corporation or the
Crown.

3. That the Commodity Prices Stabilization Corporation was the agent
of the Crown and the action is properly instituted in the name of the
Crown.

INFORMATION exhibited by the Deputy Attorney
General of Canada to recover from defendant money paid
it as special subsidies by the Commodity Prices Stabiliza-
tion Corporation, a Crown corporation.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Montreal.

Roger Ouimet, Q.C. and Luc Couture for plaintiff.
Jean Martineau Q.C. for defendant.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CameroN J. now (February 27, 1952) delivered the
following judgment:

In this information the Crown seeks to recover from
the defendant the sum of $39,126.54 paid to it as special
subsidies by a Crown corporation—the Commodity Prices
Stabilization Corporation (hereinafter to be called “the
Corporation”)—in respect of importations of cotton fabrics
in 1947, it being alleged that the subsidies so paid were
paid subject to the condition and undertaking of the
defendant that it would invoice and ship the goods manu-
factured from the said cotton fabrics not later than
December 31, 1947. The defendant admits that certain
portions of the goods for which it received special subsidies
were not invoiced and shipped until after that date, but
alleges inter alia that the said sum is not recoverable by
reason of a letter written by an official of the Corporation
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dated October 22, 1947 (Ex. A), and a notice by the 1951

Wartime Prices and Trade Board dated September 13, Tus Qo Qmmn

1947 (Ex. 24). BYD. Co.
Paras. 4 to 9 of the information set forth the various s

claims of the plaintiff which total $81,369.80; and by para. Camerond.

10 thereof, credit is given for $42,243.26, that sum appar- =

ently being made up in part of subsidies to which the

defendant was entitled, and in part by repayment of sub-

sidies by the defendant. The plaintiff now claims a balance

of $39,126.54 and interest.

At the opening of the trial, the parties filed an admission
as follows:

Should the defendant be found liable in respect of the claim for the
refund of special subsidies (C-28 Application) set out in paragraph 7
of the information herein, the panties have agreed to the exaciness of
the amount mentioned in the conclusion of said information and conceive
of judgment accordingly.

In view of that admission, I am relieved of the necessity
of inquiring into the particulars of the claims advanced in
paras. 4, 5, 6, 8 and 9 of the information.

Para. 7 thereof is as follows:

An amount of $38,128.27 became due as a necessary refund of special
subsidies on goods for which said special subsidies were paid by the
corporation to the defendant on the express condition that they be all
invoiced and shipped by the defendant, at the latest on the 31st of
December, 1947;

In order to understand the powers and duties of the
Corporation, it is necessary to set out certain facts. Under
the system of price control, maximum price regulations were
established on November 1, 1941. It was then found that
the administration and enforcement of such regulations
was affected by prices prevailing in foreign markets. By
Order in Council P.C. 9870, dated December 17, 1940
(Ex. 1), the Minister of Finance was authorized to cause
the incorporation of a private company to be wholly owned
by His Majesty and to be known as the Commodity Prices
Stabilization Corporation.

With the intent and for the purpose of facilitating, under the direction
of the Wartime Prices and Trade Board, the control of prices of goods,
wares and merchandise in Canada

Under that Order in Council, and as amended by P.C.
5863, dated July 7, 1942 (Ex. 2), it was provided that upon

incorporation of the said company “the said company shall
55452—2a,
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have such powers, in addition to those contained in the

Tn;d;mn Letters Patent and in the Companies Act, as are herein

BV.D Co.
L.

Camerond.

contained, and the said company shall further have power
to do all such things as may be deemed necessary and
expedient for the purpose of carrying out any of the objects
of the company and of carrying out the agreement between
His Majesty and the said company referred to in section 3
hereof.”

2.(1) The Wartime Prices and Trade Board is hereby authorized from
time to time to delegate to the said company such of the powers of the

said Board, as are now or may hereafter be conferred upon it, as the
said Board may deem advisable.

(2) The said company is hereby authorized

(a) subject to the terms of the agreement between His Majesty and
the said company referred to in section 3 hereof, to pay such
sum or sums by way of subvention, subsidy, bonus, or otherwise
to any person, firm or corporation as may be deemed advisable;
provided, however, that the said company shall not enter into
any agreement binding itself to pay any such sum or sums to any
person, firm or corporation except with the approval of the
Minister of Finance.

By the terms of the Draft Agreement attached to P.C.
5863, it was provided:

1. The payment by the company of any financial assistance to or
for the benefit of any person, firm or corporation by way of subvention,
subsidy, bonus or otherwise shall be in accordance with principles formu-
lated from time to time by the Wartime Prices and Trade Board and
approved by the Minister.

It will be seen, therefore, that the policy to be adopted
in connection with payments of subsidies to importers was
set by the Wartime Prices and Trade Board and that policy
was administered by the Corporation, which also received
applications for and paid the regular subsidies. From time
to time, the Wartime Prices and Trade Board issued state-
ments of policy and amendments thereto, and notice thereof
was given to importers, including the defendant.

Importers of goods into Canada who desired to apply for
a subsidy were required to complete and file with the
Corporation, Formm C4A, in respect of each application
(Ex. 11). Prior to using that form, they were supplied
with Form C4A-S1, entitled “Instructions and Conditions
Respecting the Use of Form C4A” (Ex. 10), which they



Ex.CR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA 195

were required to acknowledge on a detachable form at the }3?_{
end thereof, reading as follows: Tre QUEEN

I/We hereby acknowledge receipt of the “Instructions and Conditions” BY i’) Co.
relative to applications for subsidy (on C.P.S.C. Form C4A or any revised ™,

or substituted form) in respect of imported goods which have been or —
may be processed or manufactured prior to sale by the applicant in Cam&n.l’.
Canada.

I/We hereby acknowledge, undertake and agree

(1) that I/we have read and understand the said Imstructions and
Conditions and hold on file in our office a copy thereof, and

(2) that all applications for subsidy to which the said Instructions
and Conditions are applicable will be made in accordance therewith with-
out reservation or qualification.

On each C4A application thereafter, the instructions and
conditions were not repeated, but in the certificate of the
applicant importer, he certified:

(1) That I/we have received, read and understand the Instructions
and Conditions (Form C4A-81) or as may be amended (applicable to
this form).

(2) That all of the goods on which import subsidy is hereby applied
for . . . (e) have been or will be sold in compliance with Wartime Prices
and Trade Board regulations.

The defendant on very many occasions applied for and
was granted regular subsidies. On June 19, 1945, it com-
pleted and forwarded to the Corporation, duly executed,
the detachable portion of Form C4A-S1 (Ex. 14) containing
the acknowledgment and undertaking above set forth, and
which remained in effect at all relevant times,

Ex. 4 is a “Statement of Policy on Subsidies on Imported
Textiles” issued by the Wartime Prices and Trade Board
of February 22, 1947. By that statement, an import of
cotton fabrics from the United States was not eligible for
any subsidy unless a prior purchase approval had been
obtained for it on C.P.S.C. Form C28 before the purchase.
For the first time, the Board stated its policy to protect
importers in the event that the general subsidies were
removed or reduced. Is purpose was stated in para. 2 as
follows:

2. To give importers of cotton fabrics and cotton yarns, from the
United States and elsewhere, a means of obtaining a further protection in
regard to subsidy. Under the new provisions of this statement, importers
may get reasonable protection on their firm forward purchases in the
event (i) that price ceilings and existing subsidies are removed before
the goods arrive or (ii) that price ceilings are raised and existing subsidies
are reduced before the goods arrive.

55452—23a
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It further provided:

Any import of cotton fabrics or cotton yarns from the United States,
which is covered by a valid form ‘C28, is automatically eligible for this
protection. In addition, any import of such goods from countries other
than the United States may be made eligible for the same protection by
application to the Cotton Administration.

The protection given to the importer will be subject to the following
provisions: . . .
(d) A date or dates before which the goods, or the products made
from them, will be sold in Canada must be specified;

(e) Any subsidy payment will be subject to recovery by the corpora-
tion (i) to the extent that the actual selling prices of the imported
goods or the products made from them exceed the prices designated
under (b) above, and (ii) to the extent that the subsidized goods
are exported . . .

When existing subsidies on imported cotton fabrics or cotton yarns
are discontinued, no further subsidy will be paid to any importer of such
goods except under the terms of this statement.

This statement of policy shall be effective on and after February 24,
1947,

While that Statement of Policy was in effect, the defend-
ant on May 31, 1947, placed eighteen orders for cotton
fabrics in the United States. In each case it applied for
and was granted the necessary prior purchase price approval
by the Corporation. The goods so ordered, however, were
not brought into Canada until late September and October,
1947, the earliest date of entry being September 26, 1947.

In the meantime, the Wartime Prices and Trade Board,
by a government notice duly gazetted, and dated June 2,
1947, had issued a further “Statement of Policy on Import
Subsidies” effective on that date (Ex. 6). It replaced the
Statement of Policy of January 13, 1947, and amendments,
and also that of February 24, 1947. Therein it repeated
the statement contained in previous ones that payment of
subsidies was discretionary, as follows:

1. The payment of subsidies is discretionary, not obligatory; no person
has any legal right to an import subsidy or any other subsidy administered
by or under direction of the Board. It follows that subsidies shall not be
payable, and if already paid may be recovered, on any imports not falling
within the conditions of eligibility for import subsidy herein sel forth.

It also listed in Schedule I the “goods eligible for subsidy
subject to the limitations and conditions set forth in section

4(a) of the Statement of Policy on Import Subsidies,” and
in Schedule IT those eligible under section 4(b) thereof, the
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imported goods of the defendant being shown in Schedule Bﬂ
I; and it further provided that: THE QUEEN

3. Eligibility for subsidy within the above classes is limited to those B.V.lll)-. Co.
goods listed or described in Schedules I and IT hereto when sold in com~ T
pliance with regulations from time to time made effective by the Board, —_
and subject to the limitations set out elsewhere in this statement. The Cameron J.
Board may from time to time make additions to or deletions from the -
said Schedules; and goods classified by the Department of National

Revenue for Customs purposes under & tariff item not in effect on

January 1, 1946, are deemed to be included in Schedule II hereto and are

subject to all the limitations applying to that Schedule.

Under the heading “Special Subsidy Protection in the
Event Existing Subsidies are Removed or Reduced,” it
provided:

9. (a) General: From time to time goods may be made ineligible for
subsidy by removal from Schedule I or TI hereto or may be made eligible
for reduced subsidy, with higher maximum prices or suspension from
maximum prices being provided concurrently. In such cases the corpora-
tion is prepared to give consideration to applications for special subsidy
protection for such goods entered for consumption at Customs after the
effective date of the change in status provided such importations arise from
firm purchase commitments of reasonable character and amount entered
into prior to the date of such change but not prior to December 1, 1941.
The special subsidy protection which may be available is designed to
assure the importer that he will be subsidized, if subsidy is necessary, on
& basis appropriate to the price at which in the opinion of the Board such
goods can reasonably be expected to be sold in Canada in the changed
circumstances.

This special subsidy protection is subject to the following terms and
conditions:

(i) The importer must file notice of his intention to apply for the
special subsidy on goods imported after the date on which existing
subsidies on them have been reduced or removed. He must file
this notice with the Corporation at Ottawa on a form provided
by the Corporation during the 10 days immediately following
the date on which such goods are entered for consumption at
Customs.

(ii) The Board will designate a selling price at which in its opinion
such goods can reasonably be expected to be sold in Canada
under the changed conditions and a corresponding base cost for
subsidy purposes. The price so designated will in no case be
lower than the maximum price in effect immediately prior to the
change in subsidy regulations and will usually be higher,

(iii) A date or dates before which the goods, or products made from
them are to be sold in Canada if the goods are to qualify for special
subsidy protection will be specified by the Board.

(iv) Any subsidy payment under this special protection will be
subject to recovery by the Corporation.

(a) in an appropriate amount in relation to the extent that the
actual selling prices of the imported goods or products made
from them exceed the prices designated by the Board,
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(b) to the extent that the subsidized goods are exported, and

(¢) to the extent that such special subsidy contributes to profits
in excess of 116% per cent of standard profits for the applicant
during the fiscal period or periods ending within the 15 months
immediately following the date on which the particular goods
in question are made ineligible for subsidy.

(b) 8pecial note on Goods Covered by Validated C28 Forms: For the
past several months special subsidy protection similar to that described
in Clauge (@) of this section has been provided by the Statement of
Policy on Subsidies on Imported Textiles effective February 24th for
importations of cotton yarns and fabrics covered by validated C-28 forms.
For all purchases covered by properly validated C-28 forms issued on and
before May 31, 1947, this special subsidy protection is not. subject to the
profit limitation deseribed in Clause (¢) of paragraph (iv) above. However,
on all purchases covered by C-28 forms issued on and after June 2, 1947,
the special subsidy protection will be subject to the profit limitation
described in that clause. Importers are reminded that to claim the special
subsidy protection provided for goods covered by properly validated C-28
forms they must file notice of intention to apply for the special subsidy
with the Corporation at Ottawa on Form C-29 during the 10 days
immediately following the date on which such goods are entered for
consumption at Customs.

In the meantime, also, the Wartime Prices and Trade
Board had issued a further government notice entitled
“Statement of Policy on Import Subsidies,” dated Septem-
ber 12, 1947 (Ex. 25). That statement gave notice that
effective September 15, 1947, Schedule I of the Statement
of Policy of June 2, 1947, was deleted, the effect of which
was to discontinue the general subsidies previously payable
on the goods mentioned in that schedule, including cotton
fabrics. Under the heading “Important Notice,” it was
stated:

Applicants who may be interested in the special subsidy provided in
paragraph 9 of the Statement of Policy on Import Subsidies effective
June 2, 1947, respecting goods removed from Schedule I or Schedule II
of the statement should read carefully paragraph 9, particularly 9(a) (i)
which requires notification of intent to apply for subsidy within 10 days
from date the goods are entered for consumption at customs and 9(a) (iv)
(¢) which provides that special subsidy will not be paid if it contributes
to profits in excess of 116% per cent of standard profits.

As I have said above, the eighteen orders which had been
placed by the defendant in the United States on May 31,
1947, were not received in Canada until after September
15, 1947, and in respect of these goods the defendant could
not claim the general subsidy previously applicable. Subject
to due compliance with the regulations and to the under-
takings given by it, the defendant was entitled to apply
for the special subsidy. Accordingly, in respect of eighteen
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orders, it prepared Form C29 entitled “Notice of Intent to 1951
Apply for Special Subsidy in Accordance with Statement T Qo Qmmw
of Policy of Subsidies on Imported Textiles, effective gy 3 co.
February 24, 1947, as amended, or as may be amended,”  Lm.
and in each case under Item 4, stated that the date prior Cameron .
to which it would sell the goods mentioned was April 30, —
1948. These forms were sent to the Corporation and on

October 22, 1947, one D. 1. Shaver, the assistant supervising

examiner of the Corporation, wrote the defendant (Ex. A)

as follows:

We are in receipt of some 12 C. 29 Forms submitted in triplicate by
your good selves in which in Section 4 of the Form we note that you
have inserted the date April 30, 1948 as the “date prior to which applicant
will sell goods”. On the covering Advice Form on which you will be
designated appropriate basic costs for special subsidy purposes to be
used on any application for subsidy on our Form C4A to be submitted
covering these importations we would advise that we shall show in
Section (h) at the bottom of the Advice Form the date December 31,
1947 as the date prior to which the goods must be invoiced and shipped
in order to be priced for subsidy purposes at the figure designated in
Section (f) of the Advice Form.

At the present time we are able to designate the same basic costs
that you have been given by pre-decontrol Price Notifications which take
into account the selling price increases effective July 1, 1947. It is evident
that such Advice Forms as are issued at the present on this basis
allow you to sell the garments on the same basis of subsidy as that in
effect prior to decontrol, so long as the garments are invoiced and shipped
prior to December 31, 1947, and that such an agreement will stand
irregardless of any adjustments of the Canadian price level for com-
parable fabrics up to the date of December 31, 1947.

You will appreciate that we are unable to afford subsidy assistance
on the same basis as that in effect before September 15, 1947 for any
longer period than up to the first of next year, since it is our under-
standing that no agreement has been entered into with the Wartime
Prices and Trade Board by the Shirt Manufacturers to hold the price
Lne at the pre-decontrol level beyond the first of next year. If there is
any price increase on an industry-wide basis al that time basic costs for
special subsidy purposes will be adjusted upwards to reflect the amount
of such an increase.

‘We have the alternative of holding the Forms C. 29 in abeyance until
such time as the Canadian market level for the fabric covered is clarified
for the first quarter of 1948. However, we feel that you may wish to
invoice and ship some of the goods prior to December 31, 1947 and we
would advise that upon receipt of the Advice Forms covering the C. 29’s in
question, you are quite free to apply for subsidy on the bases designated
on the Advice Forms (showing in Col. J (a) of our Form C4A the basie
cost designated in Section (f) of the Advice Forms) on all garments
invoiced and shipped prior to December 31, 1947. On any garments in-
voiced, and shipped subsequent to that date we shall have to await elari~
fication of the Board’s policy.
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1951 It is upon that part of the letter I have underlined that
Tz Qu Qmmu the defendant relies in the main, and it will be referred to
B V D Co later. The C.29 forms were duly processed by the Corpora-

tion, and in the Advice Forms completed by the Cor-
CameronJ. Poration (and as referred to in Ex. A) the date prior to
—  which the goods must be invoiced and shipped was stated
to be December 31, 1947. Following the receipt of these
Advice Forms, the defendant made eighteen individual
applications for special subsidy on Forms C4A in the month

of November, 1947,

On December 18, 1947, the Corporation issued and
forwarded a Notice to Importers (including the defendant),
(Ex. 22), which included the following:

The Wartime Prices and Trade Board has advised the Corporation
that effective at the close of business December 31, 1947, no subsidy w:ll
be available on goods made ineligible for subsidy and not tnvoiced and
delivered by the tmporter on or before that date. The Board has in-
structed the Corporation to recover the subsidy content in the subsidized
imported goods listed below, held in inventory at that time (whether in
the same condition as imported, in process or in finished state) by the
persons or firms who received regular or special subsidy thereon—

Cotton goods, ie., goods chiefly by weight of cotton
Soya Bean Qil Meal,

Goatskins, Kidskins, Sheepskins, Lambskins, raw, whether dry,
salted or pickled.

In view of the foregoing it is necessary that this Corporation receive
from you on or before the 15th of January, 1948, a report of your inventory,
i.e., goods not invoiced and shipped by you on or before December 3%,
1947, in respect of the above noted goods which you have imported and
upon which you have received or have made application for either regular
or special subsidy, and also in respect of the above noted goods which
you have purchased from Commodity Prices Stabilization Corporation
Lid.

On December 27, 1947, the Corporation forwarded a
further Notice to Importers dated December 27, 1947,
extending the date for taking inventory and making filing
returns by one month. It stated, however, that “the fore-
going does not in any way affect Forms C.29” and it was
therefore wholly inapplicable to the defendant’s application
for special subsidy, inasmuch as Form C.29 related solely
to applications for special subsidy.

The evidence indicates that the Corporation had adopted
the practice of paying subsidies to companies as an account-
able advance and later reclaiming such as were found on
examination and inspection to have been unwarranted by.
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reason of non-compliance with the regulations and con-
ditions. It was considered necessary to do this in order
to avoid long delays in payment of the subsidies. That
practice was followed in each of the C.29 applications of
the defendant, and the full amount of the subsidy was paid
to it without waiting for proof of the fact that all the goods
manufactured had been invoiced and shipped prior to
December 31, 1947. In respect of five of the applications,
no difficulty arises as the goods in respect of which these
applications were made were invoiced and shipped prior to
December 31, 1947. Those applications are Exhibits 29
to 33.

Ex. 12 contains the other thirteen C4A applications, and
in each case there are attached the C.29 Notice of Intent
Forms and the Advice Forms specifying the date prior to
which the goods must be invoiced and shipped as December
31, 1947, the dates of the latter forms being October 22,
October 23 and October 31, 1947. The Advice Forms state
that it would now be in order to submit applications for
special subsidy on Form C4A, and also “nothing herein
contained is to be deemed to imply any assurance or guar-
antee that subsidy will be paid.” It is admitted that the
goods referred to in these thirteen applications were not
invoiced and shipped until after December 31, 1947.

When this was ascertained, the Corporation made a claim
upon the defendant for the full amount of the special
subsidies paid in respect of these thirteen items, and issued
two debit notes in respect thereof, each being dated May
27, 1948. The first one was for a return of $21,948.69 in
respect of Claims 179, 181, 184 and 185; and the other
for $38,128.27 in respect of the other nine claims. The
defendant declined to repay the said amounts and on
June 8, 1949, Mr. G. H. Glass, one of the vice presidents
of the Corporation, called upon Mr. Stewart, president of
the defendant company. Following the discussion, Mr.
Stewart wrote the chairman of the Wartime Prices and
Trade Board on the same date (Ex. 26), outlining what
had taken place and the nature of the defendant’s claim
to retain the unpaid balance of $38,903.72. That letter
states in part as follows:

As a result of correspondence between us, Mr. G. H. Glass was kind
enough to call on me this morning so that I could present our point of

view to him completely and fully. This I did, and at his request I am
writing this letter so that the whole picture will be clear to you.
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In May 1947, after receiving approvals we purchased certain fabrics
in the US.A. which were imported and cleared through Customs before
the 31st of October, 1947.

On September 13th, we received a notice from Mr. R. W. Main which
led us to believe that this merchandise could be sold at ceiling prices
then prevailing and the full subsidy would be paid. It also led us to
believe that if the goods were sold above ceiling prices that subsidy would
be recovered only to the extent that prices were increased.

On October 22nd, a letter was written to us by the CPS.C.L. con-
firming this opinion as they stated in their letter that if, after the 31st
of December, there was any price increase on an industry-wide basis that
basic costs for special subsidy purposes would be adjusted upwards to
reflect the amount of such an increase.

Having therefore formed this opinion and having had it confirmed
by the CPS.CL., we felt that we were perfectly safe-guarded on a just
and equitable basis and we, therefore, concentrated our manufacturing
efforts on producing merchandise which we had offered and sold to the
retail trade for Fall and Christmas delivery, and in this effort we were
successful as we shipped and delivered every twelfth of a dozen on time,
of the garments which we had sold.

On December 18th, a circular letter was sent to us by the C.P.S.C.L.
stating the conditions under which subsidy was to be recovered, and on
December 27th an amended notice was sent which specifically disclosed
the attitude of the C.P.S.C.L. regarding merchandise held in inventory
controlled by Forms C29.

It seems to us that to inform us in this way four days before the
order was to go into effect left us in a hopeless position and was absolutely
unreasonable.

During our interview yesterday Mr. Glass drew to our attention
the fact that on the C.P.8.C.L. basis we owed them $50,632.52, whereas
we took the attitude that if the C29 Form merchandise was adjusted
on our basis, we only claimed $38,903.72 and he wanted to know what
our attitude was concerning this balance. We told him that there was
nothing to discuss as we felt that the balance of their claim was
perfectly fair and just. He asked us, therefore, if we were prepared to
pay this amount and we assured him that we were, as the only other amount
in question at all was a small matter of $222.82. He then took up =
further claim of $955.78 which was not included in the large amount
of $50,632.52. This was for goods purchased from the CPS.CL. on
which an adjustment was necessary and we immediately acknowledged
the justice of this claim.

As a result of this part of the conversation we are enclosing with the
copy of this letter which we are sending to Mr. Glass a cheque for $955.78
covering this extra claim together with a cheque for $11,50598 which
covers the difference between $50,632.52 claimed by the CP.S.C.L. less
our claim of $38,903.72 less the amount of $222.82 which Mr. Glass allowed
us as he felt that our statements concerning this small difference were

fair and justified.

It could not be successfully contended that what took
place between Glass and Stewart was a settlement of the.
matters in dispute. The latter clearly indicates that as a
result of the discussion, Stewart was asked to place his view
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in writing before the Wartime Prices and Trade Board.
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However, that letter and Mr. Stewart’s evidence do indicate Tm QumeN

that what was left unsettled was not the claim for the
amount of $38,128.27 shown in the second debit note—as
urged by counsel for the Crown—but whether in respect
of all thirteen claims the defendant was entitled to retain
all of the special subsidy less the amounts received by the
defendant (who sold the goods after December 31, 1947)
in excess of the fixed prices applicable up to that date.
There is no evidence whatever that the claims in the first
debit note were settled in full at any time.

The sole question for consideration, therefore, is whether
the defendant was bound to invoice and ship the goods
referred to in Ex. 12 by December 31, 1947, as a condition
to its receiving and retaining the special subsidy. Were
it not for Shaver’s letter (Ex. A), there would be no
difficulty whatever. Counsel for the defendant admits
that it was within the powers of the Wartime Prices and
Trade Board or the Corporation to impose such a condition.
It was frequently brought to the notice of all importers that
payment of subsidies was diseretionary and not obligatory;
and Ex. 2 clearly provides that the payment of any subsidy
“shall be in accordance with the principles formulated from
time to time by the Wartime Prices and Trade Board and
approved by the Minister.”

In 1947, price controls were gradually being relaxed or
dropped. The Wartime Prices and Trade Board was there-
fore concerned with the necessity of limiting or eliminating
the payment of subsidies on goods which would not be sold
until after the maximum price regulations applicable
thereto had been relaxed or entirely lifted. It therefore
adopted the plan of requiring an importer who intended
to claim a subsidy to state the date prior to which it
intended to invoice and ship the goods. The date so given
was not necessarily accepted as satisfactory, but in the
Advice Notice sent by the Corporation to the importer, the
Corporation stated the date prior to which the goods must
be invoiced and shipped if subsidy was to be granted in
whole or in part, such date being determined by the War-
time Prices and Trade Board and communicated to the
Corporation. The first notice of this policy regarding
special subsidies, insofar as it would apply to the defend-
ant, was given by the Statement of Policy of February 27,

v.
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1947 (Ex. 4), long prior to the date when the goods in

Tn;é;;mx question were ordered. That statement intimated in very
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clear terms that the protection (i.e. special subsidy) to
be given to the importer would be subject to certain specific
provisions, including “a date or dates before which the
goods or the products made from them would be sold in
Canada must be specified.” Then, by the Statement of
Policy of June 2, 1947 (Ex. 6), it was provided:

This special subsidy protection is subject to the following terms and
conditions;
(iii) a date or dates before which the goods, or products made from
them, are to be sold in Canada if the goods are to qualify for
special subsidy protection will be specified by the board.

It is true that the defendant did ask to be allowed to sell
its goods prior to April 30, 1948, but that application was
disallowed, and in all the Advice Notices issued in October,
the defendant was formally notified that in each case the
goods must be invoiced and shipped before December 31,
1947. ‘The Advice Notice also contained the following:
“if extension of terminal date is desired, your application
must be made to your administrator of the W.P.T.B. not
less than ten days before the date shown in Item (h)
above.”

No application, however, was made by the defendant
under that provision. Finally, the further Notice to
Importers issued by the Wartime Prices and Trade Board
on December 18, 1947 (Ex. 22), gave formal and final notice
to the defendant that no subsidy would be available on
goods made ineligible for subsidy which were not invoiced
and delivered on or before December 31, 1947; and that
the Board had instructed the Corporation to recover the
subsidy content in the subsidized goods listed (including
cotton goods) and held in inventory at that date by those
who received regular or special subsidy. The defendant
received that notice also, but did nothing about the matter.
Each of the C4A applications for special subsidy contained
certificates that the defendant had received, read and under-
stood the instructions and conditions (Form C4A-S1—or as
may be amended), and that all the goods on which import
subsidy was applied for “have been or will be sold in com-
pliance with Wartime Prices and Trade Board regulations.”
These certificates by the defendant were given after it had
been notified that it must dispose of the goods before
December 31, 1947.
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It seems to me that as all subsidies were discretionary
and as the Board had full power to impose such conditions
upon payment of subsidy as it might consider proper; and
ag it did impose such a condition which was duly com-
municated to and accepted by the defendant, the defendant,
prima facie, was neither entitled to receive the special sub-
sidy nor to retain it if paid unless that condition were ful-
filled. The payments so made to the defendant were made
contrary to the declared policy of the Board. Unless, there-
fore, the defendant in some legal manner was released from
the necessity of complying with that condition, the subsidy
must be repaid.

Mr. Shaver’s letter of October 22, 1947 (Ex. A), is written
on the stationery of the C.P.S. Corporation, Ltd., and is
signed by him over the name of his office, “Assistant
Supervising Examiner.” After acknowledging receipt of
the C.29 Forms, and noting that the defendant wished to
have April 30, 1948, fixed as the terminal date, the letter
gives specific notice that the Advice Forms will fix Decem-
ber 31, 1947, as the terminal date; and such Advice Forms
when issued were in accordance with that statement. In
para. 3, he gives the reason for the terminal date being so
fixed, namely, that no agreement had been entered into by
shirt manufacturers with the Wartime Prices and Trade
Board to hold the price line beyond that date. Then he
adds the sentence which has given rise to the whole dispute:

If there is any price increase on an industry-wide basis at that time
basic costs for special subsidy purposes will be adjusted upwards to reflect
the amount of such an increase.

The defendant relied on that single sentence as being an
authoritative statement of policy under which it could
keep its goods in inventory after December 31, 1947, and
thereafter receive a special subsidy on the adjusted basie
costs if there were a price increase on an industry-wide basis
thereafter.

Now, there is no evidence that any such policy as is
suggested in that sentence was ever adopted by the only
policy-making body—the Wartime Prices and Trade Board
—and no supervising examiner of the Corporation would
have the right to set such a policy or anticipate that the
Board would do so. It is in evidence that in no such case
was the time extended beyond December 31, 1947, to any
importer. That statement of Shaver’s was made without
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any authority whatsoever and could not bind either the

e Qo me Board, the Corporation, or the plaintiff herein. The con-

BV.DCo
Lo,

Cameron J.

cluding sentence of the letter is of great importance and
states precisely the situation; namely, “On any garments
invoiced and shipped subsequent to that date we shall have
to await clarification of the Board’s policy.” That was a
clear warning to the defendant that if it did not ship and
invoice the goods prior to the terminal date, it would do
so at its own risk.

In the letter, Shaver stated in effect that the existing
policy of the Board was to require all goods to be disposed
of prior to the terminal date, but as to goods not so disposed
of, the Board’s policy had not yet been established. That
letter reasonably interpreted should have constituted a
warning to the defendant that it must dispose of the goods
by the date fixed or be faced with the loss of all the special
subsidy unless the Board later decided that the subsidy
would be paid on goods held in inventory at that date, on
some specific basis. Instead of heeding the clear warning
given in the concluding sentence, the defendant chose to
rely on the one sentence in para. 3. The whole letter might
conceivably have led to an uncertainty in the minds of the
officials of the defendant company as to their true position,
and that uncertainty could have been resolved by asking
for a formal ruling by the Corporation; or by an application
to its administrator as provided for in the Advice Notice.
In my opinion, the letter, insofar as it purports to settle
the policy to be applied to goods in inventory after Decem-
ber 31, 1947, was written without authority and was totally
insufficient to relieve the defendant from the full observance
of the prescribed condition.

To a minor extent the defendant relied also on the notice
of the Wartime Prices and Trade Board dated September
12, 1947, entitled “Notice to Users of Imported Cotton
Fabrics—Recovery of Subsidy in Inventories” (Ex. 24). I
have read it carefully and cannot find that it is of any
assistance whatever in supporting the defendant’s con-
tention. Its provisions relate solely to the subsidy content
of goods in inventory at the date of decontrol, i.e., Septem-
ber 15, 1947, and on that date the goods in question were
not in the defendant’s inventory. It merely provides that,
contrary to the usual practice of recovering the subsidy
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content in goods at the time of decontrol, the subsidy
content in goods in the hands of the cutting up trades on
September 15, 1947, would not be recoverable prov1ded the
importers lived up to their undertaking not to raise prices
until all such goods had been disposed of; but to the extent
that they did raise prices, subsidy would be recoverable.
1t is true that the attention of the importers is drawn to the
profit limitations placed on the special subsidy granted on
C.28 applications made after June 2, 1947, but it does not
in any way affect the other requirements of the Statement
of Policy of that date, one of which was that the goods
must be sold by the terminal date.

That statement (Ex. 24) was not intended and did not
affect goods which were not in inventory on September 15,
1947. The final paragraph requiring the Corporation to
obtain inventory figures as of that date establishes that
beyond question. The undertaking of the trade related only
to such inventories; and it was for that reason and the
further reason given by Shaver in the letter of October 22
(Ex. A), namely, that the shirt manufacturers had not
agreed to “hold the line” beyond December 31, 1947, that
a terminal date had to be established as of that date. I
can find nothing in that statement which would in any
way relieve the defendant from the condition laid down
by the Corporation with the approval of the Wartime
Prices and Trade Board and accepted by the defendant,
that to receive the special subsidy on goods imported after
decontrol, the goods must be invoiced and shipped by the
terminal date.

In argument, counsel for the defendant submitted that
the proceedings should have been instituted in the name
of the Corporation rather than in the name of His Majesty.
The Letters Patent incorporating the C.P.S. Corporation
Ltd. are not in evidence, but it is submitted that under the
provisions of clause (2) of the agreement attached to Ex. 1,
the Corporation could sue or be sued in its own name. In
my opinion, the defendant cannot at this stage raise any
such objection. The issue was not raised in the pleadings
and following the filing of the Admission of Parties, the
whole controversy at the trial was related to the single
question as to whether the defendant had been released
from the condition imposed by the Wartime Prices and
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Pﬂ Trade Board. In fact, the admission itself seems to indi-
TaE Qmm: cate that if that question were answered in the negative,
BVD.Co, the defendant consented to judgment as prayed. Moreover,

Lmw.  the Statement of Defence in para. 12 states that the
CameronJ. defendant has paid to the plaintiff certain sums in respect

— of the total claim, thereby recognizing the right of the

plaintiff to recover any additional amount that might be
found payable.

Quite apart from these considerations, I think the plain-
tiff is entitled to bring these proceedings. That the Cor-
poration was the agent of the plaintiff was well known to
the defendant. The information alleges that the subsidies
were paid by the Corporation “for and on behalf of His
Majesty” and that it is admitted by the Statement of
Defence. I think it cannot be questioned that whether or
not the agent (the Corporation) eould sue on its own behalf,
the principal (the plaintiff) would have a concurrent right
to sue. In Bowstead’s Digest of The Law of Agency, 11th
Ed,, p. 193, it is stated:

Every principal, whether disclosed or undisclosed, may sue or be sued
in his own name on any contract duly made on his behalf and in respect
of any money paid or received by his agent on his behalf. Provided always
that the right of the principal to sue, and his liability to be sued, on a
contract made by his agent, may be excluded by the terms of the contract.

Then, in Article 90 on p. 192 of the same volume, it is
stated:
The Crown may sue . . . on any contract duly made on its behalf
by a public agent.
and,
“Public agent” means an agent of the Crown or Government.

I think that the principles above mentioned are of equal
application to this case and I therefore reject the submis-
sion made by counsel for the defendant.

I find, therefore, that the defendant is liable in respect
of the claim for refund of special subsidies (C. 29 Applica-
tions) set out in para. 7 of the information; and in accord-
ance with the admission filed, there will be judgment
against the defendant for the sum of $39,126.54, with
interest at 5 per cent thereon from February 23, 1950, to
this date, together with costs to be taxed.

Judgment accordingly.
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BETWEEN:
JOEDIANO .......ooiiviii SUPPLIANT;
AND
HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN ......... RESPONDENT.

Crown—Petition of right—Suppliant’s motor vehicle struck by trailer and
gun which became detached from respondent’s iractor while latter
driven by a servant of the Crown acting within the scope of his duties
—Article 1054 of the Civil Code of the Province of Quebec not
applicable to Crown in the right of Canada—Ezxzchequer Court Act,
R.S8.C. 1927, c. 34, s. 19(c)—Onus on suppliant to establish negligence of
servants of the Crown—Action dismissed.

On January 30, 1946, suppliant’s truck was proceeding north of St. Lawrence
Blvd, in the city of Montreal, and respondent’s tractor towing a
Bofor gun mount was being driven south on the same boulevard by
a member of the military forces of Her Majesty acting within the
scope of his duties. Just before the two vehicles were about to pass
each other, the trailer and gun became detached from the tractor and
crossed the boulevard, at an angle, striking the left hand side of the
suppliant’s truck causing damage. Invoking the presumption of fault
created in his favor by Article 1054 of the Civil Code of the Province
of Quebec and alleging negligence on the part of those who had the
care and control of, and who were driving, that tractor and piece of
artillery, suppliant now seeks to recover the damages to his truck.

Held: That the provisions of Article 1054 of the Civil Code of Quebec do
not apply to the Crown in the right of Canada. Labelle v. The King,
(1937) Ex. C.R. 170 referred to and followed.

2. That under section 19(c) of the Exchequer Court Act the suppliant had
the onus of establishing that the breaking loose of the trailer and gun
was the result of the negligence of the servants of the Crown. The
King v. Moreau, (1950) S.CR. 18; Ginn et al v. The King, (1950)
Ex. C.R. 208 referred to and followed.

3. That the suppliant has failed to discharge that onus.

PETITION OF RIGHT by the suppliant seeking dam-
ages for injury to his motor vehicle struck by a trailer and
gun which became detached from respondent’s tractor while
the latter was being driven by a servant of the Crown
acting within the scope of his duties.

The action was tried before Mr. Guillaume Saint Pierre,
Q.C. Deputy Judge of the Court, at Montreal.

George I. Harris for suppliant.
Desiré Desbois, Q.C. for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.
55452—3a

209
1952
Jan. 16
Feb.28



210

1952
—
Diano

V.
Tur QUEEN

EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA [1952

SainT Pierge D.J. now (February 28, 1952) delivered the
following judgment:

Cette cause a d’abord été entendue devant le Juge
O’Connor, les 22 et 23 septembre 1949 et par suite de la
mort du dit Juge avant jugement, comme la preuve avait
été transcrite, une nouvelle audition a été présentée devant
moi. J'ai pris connaissance du dossier et des plaidoiries.

Le requérant dans sa requéte allegue ce qui suit:

1° Que le ou vers le 30 janvier 1946 il était propriétaire
enrégistré d'un camion portant le numéro de licence de
Québec F13-049 (1945).

2° Que 4 la dite date & 3:00 heures de Paprés-midi le dit
camion était conduit d’une facon légale et prudente, dans la
direction nord sur le boulevard St-Laurent dans la Cité de
Montréal.

‘3° Que dans les environs du numéro civique 9151, boule-
vard St-Laurent, le dit camion a été frappé et endommagé
par une piéce d’artillerie qui s’est détachée d’'un camion
portant le numéro de licence de ‘Québeec F3030 (1945) qui
procédait sur le boulevard St-Laurent dans une direction
opposée, du nord au sud.

4° Qu’au moment de 'accident, la dite piéee d’artillerie
et le camion portant le numéro de licence F3030 étaient la
propriété et enrégistrés au nom du département de la
Défense nationale, Armée, & une succursale située au dépot
de la Longue Pointe, dans la Cité de Montréal, qu’ils étaient
sous les soins et le contréle, étaient conduits par un ou des
membres des forces de Sa Majesté, qui étaient alors dans
Pexercice de leurs fonctions réguliéres pour lesquelles ils
étaient engagés.

5° Que le requérant invoque spécifiquement la pré-
somption de faute en sa faveur de Particle 1054 du code
civil de la province de Québec.

6° Que sans préjudice et strictement sous réserve, le
requérant allégue que le dit accident et les dommages
soufferts par lui sont dus 3 la seule faute, négligence, im-
prudence et manque de savoir de la part de la personne
ou des personnes qui avaient soin et le contrble et qui



Ex.CR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA 211

conduisaient la dite piéce d’artillerie et camion au moment 1952
de I'accident et d’une fagon particuliére, en ceci: Draro
a) La dite pitce d’artillerie et le camion étaient conduits Tug Gummy
& une vitesse excessive et illégale étant donné les conditions Saint Pie
aint Pierre
de la route; DJ.
b) Les dits véhicules n’étaient pas sous un vrai controle;
¢) Les personnes en charge n’ont pas bien regardé;
d) Le chauffeur du dit camion était incompétant et sans
expérience;
e) Les dits véhicules étaient équipés et conduits avec
des pneus et tubes défectueux;
f) Les dits véhicules étaient équipés et conduits et étaient
attachés par un crochet ou autre objet qui était défectueux,
mal placé dans sa position et ne pouvant servir 4 'usage
auquel il était destiné;
g) Ils ont permis & la dite piéce d’artillerie de se détacher
du camion et de traverser du mauvais c¢6té de la rue
St-Laurent par elle-méme et sans que personne en ait le
controle;
k) Ils n’ont rien fait pour éviter I'accident qui aurait pu
étre évité,

7° Que comme résultat de cet accident, le requérant a
souffert des dommages pour $303.58 qui sont détaillés au
dit paragraphe.

8° Que le requérant a requis le département de la Défense
nationale de lui payer cette somme de $303.58.

9° Que le requérant n’a pas contribué au dit accident
et est en droit de se faire rembourser les dommages men-
tionnés plus haut, et il conclut & ce que le montant de
$303.58 lui soit payé.

L’intimé a plaidé & cette requéte de la facon suivante:

1° L’intimé admet les allégations 1, 2, 3 et 4 de la
requéte.

2° L’intimé nie ’allégation 5 comme mal fondée en droit.

3° L’intimé nie DPallégation 6 ainsi que les sous-
paragraphes a, b, ¢, d, e, f, g et h de la dite allégation 6.

4° 1/intimé nie les allégations 7, 8 9 et 10 et l'intimé

ajoute:
55452—3%a
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5. On the 30th January 1946, private Gerard Gaudet was
driving the D.N.D. vehicle 60-893, F.W.D. tractor, on St.
Lawrence St., from north to south, in the city and distriet
of Montreal, province of Quebec, at a speed of 15 miles an
hour towing a 40mm gun, which was fastened to the chassis
of the said vehicle by a spring safety catch, commonly called
“Tow hook assembly”’, the function of which is to keep
solidly attached the gun to the vehicle;

6. The said private Gerard Gaudet was towing the said
gun from the warehouse of the D.L.L. on St. Lawrence St.,
to the depot of the Ordnance at Longue Pointe;

7. The said gun was hooked by its shaft to the said
“Tow hook assembly” by a safety hook joining the shaft
of the said gun to the vehicle.

8. All the parts of the said “Tow hook assembly” com-
prising the safety catch (or hook) were in good order, and
the shaft of the said gun had been solidly tied to the said
vehicle, but during the trip the spring of the tow hook
joining the shaft of the said gun to the vehicle suddenly
broke and the shaft of the said gun came out of the “Tow
hook assembly”, and the gun, towed as aforesaid, veered
to the left of the road and came in contact with the rear
end of the suppliant’s truck, which was accidental, without
fault on the part of the respondent or its employees within
the scope of their duties;

9. In fact, the driver of the said vehicle, Gerard Gaudet,
is an experienced and prudent employee, and he was driving
the said vehicle at a speed of not more than 15 miles an

hour, which was a fair speed considering the state of the
road;

10. The said driver had the said vehicle under his eontrol
and was driving it carefully; he could not in any way do
anything to prevent the accident;

11. The tires and tubes of the said vehicle had no defects
and were in good order and condition;

12. The assembly holding the gun to the vehicle, the
“Tow hook assembly” included, and the safety catch and
spring, was in good order and the usual type used for
the purpose and had been assembled by experienced soldiers
for that type of work;
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13. If the said gun unhooked itself from the said vehicle, 1962
this was accidental, as stated above, and was not due to any Diava
fault or negligence on the part of the driver of the said Trg C’i;mm
vehicle or other employees of the respondent who assembled = . —
the gun to the vehicle; the said collision was altogether Sa‘“ﬁﬂ{e‘"’e
accidental and the immediate and determinating CAUSA
CAUSANS of the accident is not due to their deed or to
their negligence or fault of the said employees;

14. Article 1054 of the Civil Code of the province of
Quebec is illegally invoked by the suppliant, and, in fact,
the said article 1054 cannot apply to respondent in the
present case because the latter cannot be responsible for
damages caused by “choses” under its care, unless negli-
gence is proved on behalf of the employees of the Crown,
in the exercise of their duty, or of their employees, which
is entirely denied in the present case, as already stated
above, and the said allegation 5 of the petition of right is
wrongly founded in law;

15. Without prejudice to the above allegations and with-
out admitting any responsibility, the said respondent
alleges that the damages sustained by the said suppliant in
the above circumstances amount to the utmost to the sum
of $125.

Le requérant a produit une réplique:

1° 11 prend acte des admissions contenues au paragraphe
1° de la défense;

2° Il se joint & I'intimée quant aux paragraphes 2, 3 et 4;
3° Il nie le paragraphe 5;
4° Tl ignore les paragraphes 6 et 7;

5° Il prend acte de l'admission mentionnée au para-
graphe 8 & leffet que le ressort du crochet s’est brisé et
que le canon a frappé le camion du requérant et quant au
surplus il nie le dit paragraphe;

6° Il nie les paragraphes 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 et 15;

7° Le plaidoyer de I’intimée est mal fondé en fait et en
droit.
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A Tenquéte le requérant a fait entendre les témoins
suivants:

1° Jean-Paul Desrochers, le chauffeur du camion ap-
partenant au requérant, qui était en charge du camion le
30 janvier 1946. Il se dirigeait vers le nord avec son
camion quand le canon trainé par un tracteur a laissé le
tracteur et est venu frapper arriére du camion du requérant
et il explique les dommages soufferts.

2° Marcel Martin, chauffeur, conduisait un camion rue
St-Laurent et suivait le camion du requérant et il a vu le
canon se détacher du tracteur et venir frapper le camion du
requérant.

3° Arthur John Gittins, gérant, General Motors, a
examiné les dommages subis par le camion du requérant
et il produit I'exhibit Pl étant un estimé des dommages.

4° Joe Diano, le requérant a fait examiner son camion
par General Motors, et il a vendu son camion sans le faire
réparer et il a dfi faire une réduction de $300.

La Couronne = fait entendre les témoins suivants:

1° Gérard Gaudet, en 1946 était chauffeur dans I'armée
et a conduit le camion N° 60-893 depuis un mois, ce camion
était en bonne condition. Il conduisait son camion & 15
milles & I’heure quand l’accident est arrivé & 200 pieds de
Pendroit ol il était parti. Le canon était attaché au camion
genre semi-tracteur par un crochet. IL’attachement se fait
par une équipe spéciale a cet effet. Quand il est parti, tout
semblait normal, quand soudainement, soit vibration ou,
vu que c’était en hiver, la route a pu briser le crochet.
Aprés que le crochet se fut détaché, il a immédiatement
arrété et il g'est rendu pour voir lofficier en charge du
dép6t qui a fait venir des hommes pour ramener le canon
au dépot.

Le matin de laccident il a examiné le ressort et il a
constaté que le ressort était en haut. Aprés l'accident il
a examiné le crochet et il a constaté que le ressort était en
bas, ce qui indiquait que le ressort était brisé. Le ressort
n’est pas visible de l'extérieur. Il a examiné le crochet le
matin et I’a trouvé en bonne condition mais il ne I'a pas
examiné dans I’aprés-midi.
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2° Le Capitaine Cooper explique que le “Stacey Tow 1952
Hook” est fait spécialement pour étre attaché au camion Duawo
qui traine un canon. Il explique le fonctionnement de ce Ty Gumex
crochet qui contient un ressort qui maintient le erochet dans _ . —

. Saint Pierre
88 position. DJ.

Voici ce qu’il dit & la page 32 de sa déposition: -

Now, the theory is, when we press down on the safety catch to permit
something to be hooked on the tow hook, the spring is compressed and,
as the spring is compressed, it puts an ever-increasing pressure on the
safety catch. As soon as the tow-eye, or whatever may be hooked to
this hook, is below the safety catch, the safety catch is released and the
spring re-asserts itself and pulls the safety catch back into place, and then
the tow-eye cannot be passed by, off the tow hook, because of the safety
catch.

I1 déclare de plus que le systéme employé par I'armée
pour attacher un canon 3 un camion est le “Stacey Tow
Hook” et il n’en connailt pas d’autre. Il ne peut expliquer
comment le crochet s’est détaché et a permis au canon de
traverser la rue. Il n’a pas examiné le crochet et son contenu
aprés I'accident.

3° Allan Weston a examiné le camion du requérant quant
aux dommages.

4° Marcel Martin a été ré-examiné quant aux dommages.

I1 résulte done des plaidoiries que le requérant base sa
cause:

1° Sur Particle 1054 du code civil;

2° Sur la négligence mentionnée au paragraphe 6 de sa
requéte.

La Couronne a plaidé:

1° Que Particle 1054 ne s’applique pas;

2° Que les officiers n’ont pas commis aucun acte de
négligence;

3° Et dans le cas ou I'article s’appliquerait le procureur
de la Couronne a plaidé qu’il §’agissait d'un simple accident
vu que le crochet et son contenu étaient en bon ordre.

La premiére question & résoudre est donc de savoir si
Particle 1054 s’applique.

Cet article 1054 du code civil de la province de Québec
se lit comme suit:

1054. Elle est responsable non seulement du dommage qu’elle cause
par sa propre faute mais encore de celui causé par la faute de ceux dont
elle a le contrble et par les choses qu’elle a sous sa garde.
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La responsabilité ci-dessus a lieu seulement lorsque la
personne qui y est assujettie ne peut prouver qu’elle n’a pu
empécher le fait qui a causé le dommage.

Dans la cause de Labelle v. le Roi (1) le Juge Angers dit
ceci & la page 174:

Contrairement & la prétention émise par les procureurs du pétitionnaire,
le cas qui nous occupe n’est pas régi par les articles 1053 et 1054 du code
civil de la province de Québec; il est assujetti aux dispositions du para-
graphe ¢ de l'article 19 de la loi de la Cour de 'Echiquier. Je noterai en
particulier que la Couronne n’est pas responsable du dommage causé
par le fait d’une chose sous sa garde & moins que la victime rattache le
fait de cette chose & la négligence d’un employé ou serviteur de la Couronne
agissant dans Pexercice de ses fonctions.

Je suis également d’opinion que l’article 1054 ne s’appli-
que pas.

Le requérant a-t-il fait la preuve de la négligence
mentionnée & 'article 6 de sa requéte?

Le requérant a fait entendre le chauffeur du camion du
requérant qui a expliqué comment I’accident est arrivé, 3
savoir que le canon s’est détaché du tracteur qui le trainait
et est venu frapper son camion. Le requérant n’a pas fait
entendre de témoin pour expliquer ce fait et pour démontrer
la négligence des officiers de la Couronne dans ’exercice de
leurs fonctions. Il prétend que le fait par le canon d’avoir
traversé la rue seul et d’étre venu frapper le camion con-
stitue une présomption qu’il y a eu négligence de la part
des officiers de la Couronne.

Est-ce bien ce qui résulte de I'article 19¢ de la loi de la
Cour de 'Echiquier. Voyons la jurisprudence sur ce point.

Dans la cause de His Majesty The King v. Moreau (2) 3
la page 24, 'Honorable Juge Rinfret s’exprime ainsi:

Or le raisonnement du juge de premidre instance, en posant le principe
qu’il incombait aux officiers militaires en charge de fournir une explication
ou une excuse pour la présence de la fusée dans le fossé, péche donc, &
mon humble avis, par deux cdtés essentiels: premitrement, il suppose que
la Couronne avait le fardeau de la preuve et qu’elle devait s'exculper,
alors que larticle 19 ¢ ne permet le maintien d’une réclamation contre
la, Couronne, & raison de la mort ou du dommage causé & la personne ou
& la propriété, que dans le cas ol elle résulte de la négligence de lofficier
ou du serviteur de la Couronne. Il faut évidemment, dés lors, que le
pétitionnaire, ou le réclamant, prouve cette négligence. Cette preuve ne
peut résulter de conjectures ou de suppositions comme celles que nous
avons ici. Je me trouve aucun fait qui puisse donner lieu 3 des pré-
somptions; et, en plus, il faudrait que telles présomptions fussent graves,
précises et coneordantes. Il n’y a rien de tel dans espdce actuelle.

(1) (1937) Ex. C.R. 170. (2) (1950) S.CR. p. 18.
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Dans une cause de Ginn et al v. The King (1) 'Honorable
Juge Thorson, président de la Cour de 'Echiquier, a suivi
le jugement de la Cour Supréme du Canada ci-dessus
mentionné, dans le cas oll des enfants avaient trouvé une
grenade qui avait explosé dans leurs mains. Il s’est appuyé
sur Particle 19¢ de la loi de la Cour de 1’Echiquier pour
déclarer que le requérant n’avait pas prouvé la négligence
des employés de la Couronne agissant dans les limites de
leur devoir et de leurs fonctions.

11 résulte donc de ces jugements qu’il appartient au
réquérant de prouver cette négligence soit par des témoins
soit par des présomptions qui fussent graves, précises et
concordantes.

Le requérant n’a pas fait entendre de témoins pour
prouver aucune faute contre I'intimée, il s’est contenté de
prendre acte de admission que le ressort qui retenait le
crochet s’est brisé et que le canon a frappé le camion du
pétitionnaire.

Est-ce que ce fait constitue une présomption grave,
précise et concordante, qu’une négligence avait été commise
par un officier ou serviteur de la Couronne agissant dans les
limites de ses devoirs et de ses fonctions?

Je suis d’opinion que ce fait ne constitue pas une négli-
gence pouvant engager la responsabilité de la Couronne
mais que le requérant devait prouver la négligence des
officiers de 1a Couronne.

Le requérant se base sur un jugement de ’'Honorable Juge
Thorson rendu le 23 février 1950 dans la cause de Root et al
v. The King (non rapportée) ol il s’agit d'une cause
analogue 3 la présente mais avec cette différence que dans
cette cause le requérant a fait la preuve de la négligence de
la Couronne.

Voici ce que dit le Juge Thorson:

In a claim under section 19(¢) of the Exchequer Court Act it is
necessary to show such negligence on the part of an officer or servant of
the Crown while acting within the scope of his duties or employment as
would render him liable if an action were taken against him personally.
It is only for such negligence that the Crown is made responsible. Its
liability is solely a vicarious one, ag Rand J. pointed out in The King v.
Anthony (1946) S.CR. p. 569 at p. 571, where he said: “It is vicarious
Iiability based upon a tortious act of negligence committed by a servant
while acting within the scope of his employment; and its condition is

(2) (1950) Ex. C.R. p. 208.
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that the servant shall have drawn upon himself a personal liability to the
third person.” This does not mean that the liability for which the Crown
is made to answer vicariously must be that of only one officer or servant of
the Crown. It may be that of more than one.

Dans la premiére requéte le Juge Thorson 'a rejetée avec
dépens parce que la négligence était attribuée au soldat
Monger et la preuve n’a pas été faite que le canon s’est
détaché par la faute du dit soldat Monger.

Dans la seconde requéte ‘la négligence était attribuée au
Capitaine Hawreliak, au Sergent Anderson, au Caporal
Sinclair et au soldat Freedy et les détails de la négligence
étaient indiqués et les requérants ont fait la preuve que le
jour de I'accident le Major McLean avait examiné le ressort
dans le crochet et avait constaté qu’il était dans une con-
dition inserviable. A la suite de cette preuve le Juge
Thorson a trouvé que les requérants avaient fait la preuve
de la négligence alléguée et il a condamné la Couronne.

Cette cause différe de la présente cause, car dans la
présente cause le requérant a bien allégué au paragraphe 6
que les officiers avaient équipé et conduit des véhicules qui
étaient joints par un crochet ou autre objet qui était
défectueux ou improprement placé dans leur position, mais
il n’en a pas fait la preuve.

Le requérant aurait pu comme dans la cause de Root et al
v. le Rot, mentionnée ci-dessus, alléguer que les officiers qui
ont placé le ressort dans le erochet I'avaient examiné avant
de Pemployer et I'avaient trouvé usé ou défectueux et &
I'enquéte faire, par ces officiers, la preuve de ces allégués
et alors il aurait prouvé négligence mais il ne I'a pas fait.

Je suis donc d’opinion, comme le Juge Rinfret, dans la
cause de Moreau v. le Roi, citée plus haut, et comme le
Juge Thorson dans la cause de Root et al v. le Roi, que la
premiére chose que le requérant doit faire c’est de prouver
négligence en vertu de P'article 19(c) de la loi de la Cour
de I'Echiquier et & défaut de preuve de cette négligence, il
ne peut réussir dans sa demande.

La Courenne ayant & faire face & l'article 1054 a plaidé
et a prouvé qu’il g’agissait d'un simple accident, ce plaidoyer
était-il suffisant pour repousser la responsabilité légale
attribuée par l'article 1054. Je suis d’opinion que non.
Dans la cause de la Cité de Montréal v. Lesage (1) rap-

(1) (1923) SC.R. 355.
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portée en Cour Supréme, celle-ci a décidé que l'ignorance
de la cause de laccident ne faisait pas repousser cette
responsabilité 1égale.

Vu que le requérant n’a pas prouvé la négligence de la
part des officiers de la Couronne dans l'exercice de leurs
fonctions, la requéte est rejetée sans frais.

Vu les conclusions auxquelles j’en suis venu dans la pré-
sente cause, je n’ai pas & me prononcer sur la question de
savoir si la doctrine res ipsa loquitur s’applique dans la
présente espéce.

Judgment accordingly.

BETWEEN:
WILLIAM F. ANGUS et al. ...... e APPELLANTS;
AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL
REVENUE © .o nveeeneennnnns. } RESPONDENT.

Revenue—Succession Duty—The Dominion Succession Duty Act, 8. of C.
1940-41, 4 Geo. VI, c. 14, ss. 4(1), 81—Civil Code of the Province of
Quebec, articles 607, 891-—General power to appoint any property
given to a person—Intent of section 81 of the Dominion Succession
Duty Act—Provisions of Civil Code not applicable since question
one of statutory law related to federal tazation—Appeal dismissed.

The appellants are the executors of the estates of Dr. W. W. Chipman
and his wife, the latter separated as to property of her husband, who
both died domiciled in the province of Quebec, Mrs. Chipman in
January, 1946, and Dr. Chipman in April, 1950. It was agreed that
the law of the province governs the administration and the devolution
of Mrs. Chipman’s estate. By her will Mrs. Chipman bequeathed
the whole of her property to her husband and two of the appellants as
trustees and in trust to be administered and disposed by them as
follows : —

“(f) to pay to my husband, the said Walter William Chipman, during
the remainder of his lifetime, the net interest and revenues from
the residues of my estate ond in addition thereto to pay to my
said husband from time to time and at any time such portion of
the capital of my estate as he may wish or require and upon his
simple demand, my said husband to be the sole judge as to the
amount of capital to be withdrawn by him and the times and
manner of withdrawing the same, and neither my said husband
nor my executors and trustees shall be obliged to account further
for any eapital sum so paid to my said husband.
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(g) upon her husband’s death to dispose of the estate, ‘as it may
then exist’ as follows:
6. To divide the capital of the residue of my estate between my
brothers, sisters, niece and nephews as follows:— . . .; and I
hereby constitute my said brothers, sisters, niece and nephews
my universal residuary legatees in the aforesaid proportions.”
* k%

Dr. Chipman was assessed for succession duties in respect of the power
to demand such portions of the capital as provided in clause (f) of his
wife’s will on the basis that such power was a succession to him.
The appellants appealed to this Court from the assessment.

Held: That the intent of section 31 of the Dominion Succession Duty Act,
4-5 Geo. VI, ¢. 14, is to include any person who has a general power
to appoint any property and to determine the succession duties this

person shall pay or when. Cossit v. Minister of National Revenue,
(1949) Ex. C.R. 339 followed.

2. That the provisions of section 31 apply to Mrs. Chipman’s will.

3. That the articles of the Civil Code of the province of Quebec are
not applicable since the question here is one of statutory law related
to federal taxation.

APPEAL under the Dominion Succession Duty Act.

The appeal was heard before Mr. Guillaume Saint Pierre,
Q.C., Deputy Judge of the Court, at Montreal.

James Mitchel, Q.C. for appellants.
Claude Prevost, Q.C. and I. G. Ross for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

SaiNT Pierre D.J. now (March 18, 1952) delivered the
following judgment:

11 s’agit de I’'appel d’une décision du Ministre du Revenu
National qui a, le 17 septembre 1946, fixé & $188,165.20
le montant des droits dus par le Dr Chipman sur la
succession de son épouse Maud Mary Angus.

Le 9 aolit 1946, $113,917.30 ont été payés mais le
montant réclamé par le Ministre est de $74,247.90 plus les
intéréts & la date du compte $1,249.92 soit un total de
$75,497.82.

La question qui est soumise est celle de savoir si le
paragraphe (f) de la clause 3 du testament de Maud Mary
Angus Chipman tombe sous les dispositions de l’article 31
de la loi ayant pour objet d’autoriser le prélévement de
droits successoraux.
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La clause 3 du testament se lit comme suit:

Tout d’abord la testatrice nomme comme fiduciaires son
mari, le Dr Chipman, son frére D. Forbes Angus et le The
Royal Trust Company pour administrer et disposer de la
facon suivante de la fiducie:

a) to pay all debts, funeral expenses and succession
duties,

b) to deliver a special bequest of jewellery to her niece
Mrs. Vanklynn,

¢) to give her husband the use of her home so long as he
may desire,

d) to give her husband the use of her furniture and
effects during his lifetime,

e) to divide the sum of $5,000 amongst her employees,

f) to pay to my husband, the said Walter William
Chipman, during the remainder of his lifetime, the
net interest and revenues from the residues of my
estate and in addition thereto to pay to my said
husband from time to time and at any time such
portion of the capital of my estate as he may wish or
require and upon his simple demand, my said husband
to be the sole judge as to the amount of capital to be
withdrawn by him and the times and manner of
withdrawing the same, and neither my said husband
nor my executors and trustees shall be obliged to
account further for any capital sums so paid to my
said husband.

g) upon her husband’s death to dispose of the estate,
“as it may then exist” as follows:

1. My jewellery, pictures, household furniture and household effects
shall be disposed of in accordance with any memorandum I may leave
with respect to the same and failing any such memorandum then the
same shall be divided among my residuary legatees hereinafter named
in the same manner as the residue of my estate.

2. To pay to The Royal Institution for the Advancement of Learning
(McGill University), of Montreal, the sum of fifty thousand dollars as
a special legacy.

3. To pay to the Royal Victoria Hospital, Montreal, the sum of fifty
thousand dollars as a special legacy.

4. To pay to The Art Gallery, presently situate at the corner of
Ontario Avenue and Sherbrooke Street West, Montreal, the sum of
fifty thousand dollars as a special legacy.
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5. To pay to The Church of St. Andrew and St. Paul, presently on
Sherbrooke Street West, Montreal, the sum of twenty-five thousand
dollars. The receipt of the treasurer for the time being of each of the
foregoing institutions shall be a good and valid discharge to my executors
and trustees.

6. To divide the capital of the residue of my estate between my
brothers, sisters, niece and nephews as follows: One-sixth thereto to my
brother, D. Forbes Angus, of the city of Montreal; one-sixth thereof to
my brother William Forrest Angus of the city of Montreal; one-sixth
thereof to my brother, David James Angus, presently of Victoria, British
Columbia; one-sixth thereof to my sister, Margaret Angus wife of Dr.
Charles Ferdinand Martin, of the city of Montreal; one-sixth thereof to
my sister, Dame Bertha Angus widow of Robert MacDougall Paterson, of
the ecity of Montreal; one-eighteenth thereof to my niece, Gyneth
Wanklyn widow of Durie MecLennan, of the city of Montreal; one-
cighteenth thereof to my nephew, David A. Wanklyn, of the city of
Montreal; and one-eighteenth thereof to my nephew, Frederick A.
Wanklyn, presently of Nassau, Bahamas; and I hereby constitute my
gaid brothers, sisters, niece and nephews my universal residuary legatees
in the aforesaid proportions.

The share of any of my brothers or sisters who may have predeceased
leaving lawful issue shall accrue in favour of such issue equally by roots
and failing issue such share shall be divided among my remaining brothers
and sisters or their lawful issue by roots.

The share of either of my said nephews or niece who may have
predeceased leaving lawiul issue shall accrue to such issue equally by
roots and failing issue such share shall be divided between my remaining
nephews or niece and the issue of any predeceased nephew or nieee by
roots.

Should any beneficiary become entitled to a share of my estate under
any of the foregoing provisions while a minor the net revenues therefrom
shall be expended for his or her maintenance, education and support by
my executors and trustees through such channels as they may think
advisable, but it shall not be necessary to spend the whole of such net
revenue unless my executors and trustees so decide and such net revenues
may be allowed to accumulate in whole or in part and spent later as may
be decided, the whole in the discretion of my executors and trustees, and
after such beneficiary attains the age of majority the capital of his or her
share or so much thereof as then remains shall be made over to him or
her in absolute ownership.

I1 résulte done de la clause 3(f) que le Dr Chipman avait
le pouvoir de s’adresser aux fiduciaires et de se faire payer
sur simple demande le capital qu’il désirait avoir et ni le
Dr Chipman ni les fiduciaires étaient tenus de rendre
compte des montants ainsi payés au Dr Chipman.

En face de cette clause le Dr Chipman avait deux
alternatives, 'accepter et se faire payer les montants qu’il
désirait ou la refuser. Il ne fait pas doute que §’il refusait
la clause les dispositions de larticle 31 ne pouvaient
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s’appliquer & lui. D’un autre cOté ayant accepté la clause
3(f) du testament, la clause 31 de la loi des droits succes-
soraux s’applique-t-elle?

Cette clause 31 se lit comme suit:

31. Lorsqu’l est donné & une personne un pouvoir général de trans-
mettre un bien soit par acte entre vifs, soit par testament, ou par les
deux A la fois, les droits prélevés au sujet de sa succession sont exigibles
de la méme manidre et dans le méme délai que si le bien lui-méme avart
été donné ou légué & la personne qui a re¢u ledit pouvoir.

Cet article 31 est complété par l’article 4, paragraphe 1
qui se lit comme,suit:

Une personne est répartie habile 4 disposer de biens si elle posséde un
avoir ou un intérét dams cet avoir ou tel pouvoir général, si elle était sui
juris, lui permettrait de les aliéner et lexpression “pouvoir général” com-
prend toute faculté ou autorisation permettant au donalaire ou autrs
détenteur de transmettre ou d’aliéner des biens selon qu’il le juge opportun,
qu'elle puisse Sexercer par un acle enire vifs ou par testament, ou les
deuz, mais & Vexclusion de tout pouvoir susceplible d’étre exercé & tlitre
judiciaire en vertu dune disposition qutl w'a pas faite lu-méme, ou
susceptible d’'étre exercé en qualité de créancier hypothécaire.

I1 résulte donc de ces deux articles que le pouvoir général
de transmettre un bien comprend la faculté ou ’autorisation
permettant au donataire ou autre détenteur de transmettre
ou d’aliéner des biens.

Or dans le cas de Particle 3 parag. (f) du testament
de Mme Chipman elle donne & son mari le pouvoir général
de se faire payer le capital qu’il désirera et comme consé-
quence de ce paiement du capital il s’en suit qu’il obtient
par le fait méme le pouvoir général de transmettre les
capitaux qu’il aura retirés soit par donation soit par
testament.

L’article 31 contient deux parties, la premiére pour
constater le fait d’'un état existant dans un testament et la
deuxiéme pour déterminer comment dans ce cas seront
prélevés les droits de succession.

Si un état de chose existe comme celui fixé par la
premiére partie 4 savoir qu'une personne par son testament
a donné 3 une autre personne un pouvoir général de trans-
mettre un bien soit par acte entre vifs ou par testament,
ou par les deux 3 la fois, alors la deuxiéme partie s’applique
et dans ce cas les droits prélevés au sujet de la succession
d’'une personne qui a-donné tel pouvoir général, sont
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exigibles de la méme maniére et dans le méme délai que
si le bien lui-méme avait été donné ou légué & la personne
qui a recu ce pouvoir.

Dans le présent testament de Madame Chipman, vu
qu'elle a donné 3 son mari un pouvoir général sur les
capitaux de sa succession, alors le Dr Chipman qui a
obtenu ce pouvoir doit payer les droits au sujet de la
succession de Mme Chipman de la méme maniére et dans
le méme délai que si le bien lui-méme lui avait été donné
ou légué.

L’article 31 a pour objet d’atteindre celui qui a un
pouvoir général de transmettre et de déterminer quels
droits il devra payer ou dans quel délai. Je suis done
d’opinion que les dispositions de l’article 31 s’appliquent
au testament de Mme Chipman.

Le procureur de la Couronne gappuie spécialement sur
la cause de Cossitt v. Ministre du Revenu National (1).
Il g’agit d’une clause de testament analogue & la présente
cause et 'Honorable Juge O’Connor a jugé que l’article 31
g’appliquait dans ce cas.

La clause dans le cas de Cossitt se lisait comme suit:

3(f). To invest and keep invested the residue of my estale and to
pay the net income derived therefrom to my said son Edwin Comstock
Cossitt during his lifetime, with power to him at any time to use for his
benefit such amount or amounts out of the capital of the said residue as
he may wish.

(g). Upon the death of my said son, the residue of my estate or the
amount thereof remaining shall be held in trust for the issue of my said
son or some one or more of them in such proportion and subject to such
terms and conditions as my said son may by his last will direct, provided.

L’Honorable Juge O’Connor déeclare ce qui suit a la page
343:

The effect of section 31, in my opinion, is that where a general power
to appoint any property is given to any person, such person shall be
deemed to have derived a succession of such property from the decease.

In my opinion, there was not a succession within section 2(m) but
there was a succession within section 31.

And under section 31, the duty levied in respect of such succession
is payable in the same manner and at the same time as if the property
itself had been given to the appellant.

Je partage les vues exprimées par l'Honorable Juge
O’Connor dans cette cause de Cossitt v. Ministre du Revenu
National.

(1) (1949) Ex. C.R. p. 339.
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En conséquence pour les raisons ci-dessus mentionnées je
renvoie 1'appel avec dépens.

J’ai examiné les autorités citées par les procureurs des
deux parties et je ne partage pas les vues du procureur de
I'appelant d’appliquer les articles du code civil dans cette
cause ol il s’agit du droit statutaire relativement 3 I'im-
position de taxes fédérales.

Judgment accordingly.

BETWEEN:
HARRY C. McLAUGHLIN..... Ceeeeeaes APPELLANT,;
AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL
REVENUE ........... } RESPONDENT.

Revenue—Income Taz—Income War Tax Act, R.8.C. 1927, ¢c. 97, ss. 8, 32(2)
—Transfer of property from husband to wife—Words of 8. 82(2) both
precise and unambiguous—Meaning of “substituted property’—
Language used in s. 32(2) so explicit as to exclude suggestion it means
only substitution made by transferor or those contemplated by trans-
jeror and transferee at time of original transfer—Meaning of the
words “as if such transfer had mnot been made”—S. 32(2) does not
provide basis of liability to continue to be on the income as it existed
at time of transfer—Appeal from decision of Income Taz Appeal
Board dismissed.

Tn 1939 the appellant transferred to bis wife 400 preferred shares of
McCaskey Systems Ltd. as a gift, but having been assessed and
having paid tax on dividends paid by the company on these shares
the appellant agreed with his wife to revoke the gift and the wife
purchased the same shares for which she gave a promissory note for
$40,000 to her husband. Because of the admission made by the
appellant that this agreement in no way affected his liability to tax on
income derived from such shares the Court was not called upon to
determine whether or not & bona fide sale of property from husband
to wife is within s. 32(2) of the Income War Tax Act. In 1942 one
C. sold to the appellant 500 common shares of Whitehall Machine
and Tools Ltd., part of the consideration therefor to C. being the 400

. preferred shares of MecCaskey Systems Ltd. that the appellant’s wife
transferred to C. in exchange of 400 shares of the Whitehall stock.
In 1948 the appellant’s wife received $30,000 in dividends on these
400 shares, which amount was added to the appellant’s declared
income for 1948, on the ground that it was taxable as part of his income
as being “income derived from property substituted for that which
be had transferred to her in 1939”. The appellant appealed to the
Income Tax Appeal Board which dismissed his appeal.
55452—4a
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Held: That the words of section 32(2) of the Income War Tax Act, RS.C.
1927, c. 97 are both precise and unambiguous. “Substituted property”
means that property which replaces, or takes the place of, that
property which was originally transferred.

2. The language used in the section is so explicit as to exclude the sug-
gestion that it can mean only substitutions made by the transferor or
substitutions contemplated by the transferor and transferee at the
time of the original transfer, To limit the inferpretation in that
manner would make it necessary to read into the section words which
Parliament has not seen fit to include, nor intended should be included.

3. That by virtue of section 32(2) the appellant was liable to be taxed
in respect of that income “as if the transfer to his wife had not
been made”.

4. That the provisions in section 32(2) of the Act that the transferor shall
be liable to be taxed “as if such transfer had not been made”, means
that he shall be liable to be taxed as though the property transferred
or that which was substituted for it, were his property and not that
of the transferee.

5. That section 32(2) of the Act also means that, while the property
originally transferred remains in its original form, the income therefrom
shall be taxable as income in the hands of the transferor, but that,
if other property be substituted therefor, then the income from such
substituted property shall be taxable as income in the hands of the
transferor.

APPEAL from the decision of the Income Tax Appeal
Board dismissing the appellant’s appeal against his 1948
assessment.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Toronto.

E. Bristol, Q.C. for appellant.
J.de N. Kennedy, Q.C. and J. E. Jackson for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CaMEeroN J. now (March 28, 1952) delivered the following
judgment:

This is an appeal from a decision of The Income Tax
Appeal Board dated August 28, 1951, by which that Board
dismissed the appellant’s appeal from a Notice of Assess-
ment dated June 30, 1950, for the taxation year 1948.

In that Notice of Assessment, the respondent had added
to the appellant’s declared income, the sum of $30,000,
which amount wag received by the appellant’s wife—and



Ex.CR.] EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA 227

not by the appellant personally—by way of dividends on 253
certain shares under the circumstances presently to be McLavemux
mentioned. Mivtsrer

It may be noted here that the appellant, under protest, Nu?gmx.
has paid the full amount of the assessment, including ReveNve
interest accrued. Cameron J.

In 1939 the appellant, a resident of Galt, Ontario, was
vice-president of MecCaskey Systems, Ltd. From the
Statement of Facts contained in the notice of appeal to
this court, it is shown that on January 24, 1939, the appel-
lant transferred from his own name to that of his wife 400
preferred shares of McCaskey Systems, Ltd., such transfer
being made as a gift, the purpose being to bring about a
possible savings in succession duties for his estate, if he
should survive the statutory period.

It is also shown that, in 1939, that company paid a
substantial dividend representing accumulated arrears on
its preferred shares and under section 32, of subsection 2,
of The Income War Tax Act, the appellant was assessed for
and paid tax thereon as though he had personally received
such dividend.

In view of that situation, that is, that the appellant was
required to pay income tax on the stocks which he had
transferred to his wife, the appellant and his wife agreed
verbally to revoke the earlier gift, and his wife agreed to
purchase the same shares from the appellant at their par
value of $100. As a result thereof, his wife gave to the
appellant her promissory note dated April 15, 1940, for
$40,000 payable on demand and without interest. Exhibit
“B” is an agreed copy of that note.

Section 32, subsection 2 of The Income War Tax Act,
Revised Statutes of Canada 1927, chapter 97, as it was
from 1927 to December 31, 1948, was as follows:

32(2). Where a husband transfers property to his wife, or vice verssa,
the husband or the wife, as the case may be, shall nevertheless be liable
to be taxzed on the income derived from such property or from property
substituted therefor as if such transfer had not been made.

Certain other facts will be later referred to, but I con-
sidered it advisable to quote the section at this point because
of certain admissions made at the hearing.

55452—43a
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(a) that had nothing further occurred beyond the facts
which I have above stated, the transaction would
have fallen within the provisions of Section 32, sub-
section 2, and the appellant would have been per-
sonally assessable to tax on dividends received by
his wife from the 400 shares of McCaskey stock so
transferred to her: and

(b) that the agreement with his wife to revoke the
original gift, and to sell the shares to her for $40,000
in no way affected the appellant’s liability to tax on
income derived from such shares, inasmuch as he was
satisfied that the word “transfer” was wide enough
in its meaning to include a “sale” for value.

Because of that admission I am relieved of the necessity
of determining whether or not a bona fide sale of property
from husband to wife is within Section 32, subsection 2.

There were certain other occurrences, however, on which
the appellant relies.

A short time prior to April 11, 1940, the appellant heard
that one, A. G. Colvin, was desirous of selling his con-
trolling interest in Whitehall Machine & Tools Limited.
He felt that, if he could gain control, and bring Whitehall
under his own efficient management, it would turn out to
be a successful investment. Negotiations to that end were
entered upon, and in the result Colvin and the appellant
entered into an agreement on April 11, 1940—Exhibit “A”.
By that agreement Colvin agreed to sell, and the appellant
to purchase, 500 shares, fully paid common stock of White-
hall. The consideration payable therefor to Colvin was
400 shares of the 7 per cent cumulative preferred stock of
MecCaskey Systems Ltd. and $35,000 payable as therein
provided. The appellant, however, then owned no pre-
ferred stock in McCaskey. He states that, in agreeing to
convey 400 such McCaskey shares to Colvin, he was acting
on behalf of and with the approval of his wife, and that
it was her 400 shares in McCaskey that were to be trans-
ferred to Colvin. He states also that, when his wife heard
of the negotiations with Colvin, she desired to participate
therein, and that she insisted that she receive an equal
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number of Whitehall shares for her 400 McCaskey shares. 125_24
Presumably this agreement between the appellant and his McLavemuas
wife was arrived at prior to April 11, 1940, the date of pywisrm
the agreement with Colvin, and, therefore, before the date N

of the note—Exhibit “B”. RevENur

A disagreement arose between Colvin and the appellant, gameron7.
the details of which are not here of importance. After a —
long period of litigation, the agreement of April 11, 1940,
was specifically carried out in June, 1942. At that time
Colvin received Mrs. McLaughlin’s 400 preferred McCaskey
shares, together with dividends which had accrued, and
the balance of the expressed consideration. Mrs. Me-
Laughlin received 400 shares of Whitehall stock, the remain-
ing 100 shares going to the appellant or his nominee.

Under the appellant’s management Whitehall apparently
prospered, but no dividends were paid on its stock until
December, 1948, when Mrs. McLaughlin received $30,000
in dividends on her 400 shares.

It was the amount of that dividend which was added to
the appellant’s declared income for 1948, on the ground
that it was taxable as part of his income, as being “income
derived from property substituted for the property which
he had transferred to her in January, 1939.”

It is shown that, in December 1949, the note given by
the appellant’s wife to him, was paid in full, together with
one year’s interest. I do not think, however, that that fact
is of any importance in this case in view of the admissions
made, nor do I think it is of any importance to determine
in this case the precise value of the 400 McCaskey shares
which Mrs. McLaughlin received from the appellant, or the
value of the 400 Whitehall shares which she got in exchange
therefor. !

The sole point I am called upon to decide is whether the
sum of $30,000 was properly added to the appellant’s
income.

The submissions on behalf of the appellant may be best
expressed by quoting a portion of his Notice of Appeal.
Paragraph 2 of the reasons are as follows:

2. (@) The Income War Tax Act does not, by Section 32 or otherwise,
in clear and express terms impose a tax upon the appellant in respeet of
income derived by his wife from the Whitehall Company shares substituted
for the McCaskey shares transferred to her by the appellant unless it is
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shown that the appellant at the time or by the terms of the transfer from
him to her was a party to such substitution:

(b) The uncontradicted evidence clearly establishes that the said
substitution took place long after the transfer of the McCaskey shares from
the appellant to his wife, and was not contemplated by either of them
at the time of said transfer, that said substitution was made by the wife
as her own act, and that the appellant was not a party thereto:

(¢) If the word “substituted” in Section 32(2) does not mean sub-
stituted by the husband or by agreement with the husband made at or
before the time of transfer, it would mean that the husband might be
liable over an indefinite period and even after the death of his wife, in
respect of any number of substitutions made by her or her personal
representatives or heirs.

In support of this submission, there is cited the case of
Attorney General v. Eyres (1). That was a case under
the English Succession Duty Act, 1853, in which the Court
was called upon to determine whether the compensation
payable to a substituted trustee of a trust settlement was
a disposition of property “by way of substitutive limita-
tion”. With respect, I do not think that the interpretation
placed on the words ‘“‘substitutive limitation” under that
English Act, affords any guide to the meaning of the words
“or from property substituted therefor” as found in Section
32, subsection 2 of the Income War Tax Act.

In the case of Commissioners v. Pemsel (2), Halsbury,
Lord Chancellor, stated in a few words the basic principle
to be applied in the interpretation of Statutes, where, at
page 543, he said:

The only rule for the construction of Acts of Parliament is, that they
should be construed according to the intent of the Parliament which
passed the Act.

If the words of the Statute are in themselves precise and unambiguous,
then no more can be necessary than to expound those words in their
natural and ordinary sense. The words themselves alone do in such
cases best declare the intention of the law-giver.

That precept of the Lord Chancellor is, in my view,
particularly appropriate to the circumstances of this case,
for, in my opinion, and so far at least as this problem is
concerned, the words of Section 32, subsection 2 are both
precise and unambiguous. The subsection provides, in the
clearest terms, that, when a husband transfers property
to his wife, or vice versa, the transferor shall be liable to
be taxed on the income derived from the property so trans-
ferred, or, if other property be substituted for that originally

(1) (1909) 1 K.B. 723. (2) (1891) A.C. 531 at 543.
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transferred, then upon the income derived from such 253
substituted property. “Substituted property” means that McLsvenux
property which replaces, or takes the place of, that property sz
which was originally transferred. In my view the language N
. . .. . ATIONAL

used is so explicit as to exclude the limitations suggested by Revenue
the appellant, namely, that it can mean only substitutions o7 o003
made by the transferor or substitutions contemplated by the —
transferor and transferee at the time of the original transfer.
To limit the interpretation in the manner suggested, it
would be necessary to read into the section words which
Parliament has not seen fit to include, and which I do not
think it intended should be included.

The intent of the subsection is clearly discernible, namely,
that the national revenue to be derived from income shall
not be lessened by transfers of property between husband
and wife. It provides, therefore, that if such a transfer
took place, the transferor shall continue to be liable on
income arising from the property so transferred “as if such
transfer had not been made.” No doubt realizing that, if
the provision went no further than that, its intention could
be completely frustrated by a quick sale or exchange of
the property transferred, Parliament did go further, and
provided that the same results would follow in respect
of income from property substituted for that originally
transferred.

Now in this case it is admitted that the 400 MeCaskey
shares transferred by the appellant to his wife constituted
a transfer of property within the provisions of Section 32,
subsection 2. The evidence establishes that the 400 shares
of Whitehall stock, later received by Mrs. MecLaughlin,
constituted property substituted for the original property
transferred; that the $30,000 received by Mrs. McLaughlin
in December, 1948, represented income from such sub-
stituted property.

By virtue of the subsection, therefore, the appellant was
liable to be taxed in respect of that income, “as if the
transfer to his wife had not been made.”

A further minor point is raised by the appellant in para-
graph 2(h) of his reasons, as follows:

2. (k) In any event, Section 32(2) while saying that the husband is
“liable to be tazed on the income derived” from the substituted property,
does not state or provide, as in other sections of the Act, that such income
shall be deemed to be received by, or deemed to be income of, the
husband.
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With that submission I cannot agree.
The subsection provides that the transferor shall be

Mmvsre liable to be taxed “as if such transfer had not been made”,
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which means, I think, that he shall be liable to be taxed
as though the property transferred or that which was sub-

Cameron J. Stituted for it, were his property and not that of the trans-

feree. Being his property the income derived therefrom
would constitute “income” as defined in Section 3 of the
Act.

Finally, it is contended in the alternative, that, if the
appellant be liable in respect of any income from the
property transferred, it would be limited to the sum of
$2,800, that being the annual dividend of 7 per cent payable
on the 400 McCaskey shares.

It is pointed out that the subsection provides that the
transferor shall be liable to be taxed “as if such transfer
had not been made”. Those words, however, refer to both
situations previously mentioned, namely, the property
originally transferred, and to the property substituted
therefor. The section does not provide that the basis of
the liability shall continue to be on the income as it existed
at the time of the transfer. It means merely that, while
the property originally transferred remains in its original
form, the income therefrom shall be taxable as income in
the hands of the transferor; but that, if other property be
substituted therefor, then the income from such substituted
property shall be taxable as income in the hands of the
transferor.

It may be noted that, in the present case, no income
was derived from the Whitehall stock for the years 1940 to
1947, and, therefore, the appellant was not liable through-
out that period in respect of any income from the property
transferred or property substituted therefor.

In my opinion this appeal must fail. The appeal will
be dismissed and the assessment affirmed. The respondent
is entitled to costs after taxation, and there will be judgment
accordingly.

Judgment accordingly.
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BETWEEN:
F. H  MULHOLLAND .................APPELLANT;
AND
HIS MAJESTY THE KING ...........RESPONDENT.

ANp BETWEEN:
JJLSPRATT ..............ccivevnee .. . APPELLANT;
AND
HIS MAJESTY THE KING ..........RESPONDENT.

ANp BETWEEN:
S.LLHOLLAND .................c.......APPELLANT;

AND

v

HIS MAJESTY THE KING ...........RESPONDENT;

Crown—Re-negotiation of supply contracts by the Minister of Recon-
struction and Supply—The Department of Munitions and Supply Act,
1939, Second Sess., c. 3, 8. 13 as amended by 8. of C., 1943-44, c. 8, 8. 7
and by The Depariment of Reconstruction and Supply Act, S. of C.
1946, ¢. 16, s. 11(1), (2) and (3)—Appeals from orders and directions
of the Minister—Onus on appellants to establish error in said orders
and directions—Whether or not relationship of master and servant
exisis a question of fact—Difference between relations of master and
servant, and of principal and agent—The Minister’s power of re-
negotiation of supply contracts not limited to those entered into
with the Crown or with those having a governmeni contract—"“Supply
contracts”—Evidence—Oral or written statements by persons not
parties and not called as witnesses inadmissible to prove truth of
matter stated—Practice—Rule 169 of the General Rules and Orders—
The Exchequer Court Act, R.8.C. 1927, ¢. 84, ss. 61, 78—Evidence
taken on commission can be used in evidence only by direction of the
Court or a Judge unless provisions of s. 72 of the Act complied with—
Commission evidence rejected as inadmissible since Commissioner’s
affidavit taken before a Justice of Peace and not before ome of the
persons mentioned in s. 61 of the Act—Appeals dismissed.

In January, 1940, certain verbal arrangements were made between a
company which manufactured and sold a large variety of cutting
tools in Canada and the appellants Spratt and Mulholland who had
previously been employed as salesmen by a manufacturers’ agent
representing the company. The arrangements were that the appellants
would have an office in Toronto, represent no firms other than the
company, sell the company’s products in all of Ontario except the
eastern portion, promote goodwill on the company’s behalf, provide
free space to store such of the company’s goods as were kept on
hand in Toronto and pay all their operating costs, including salaries
and expenses of their salesmen and office staff. In return for these
services the company agreed to pay them in equal shares a straight
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ten per cent commission on all sales made by the company in their
area, whether or not such sales were made by them. The appellants
Spratt and Mulholland carried on accordingly until December, 1941,
when new verbal arrangements were made, this time, with the three
appellants and by which the territory would now cover all of
Ontario and the commission would thereafter be divided in three
equal parts. These new arrangements were then continued. On
June 20, 1947, by a separate order and direction of the Minister of
Reconstruction and Supply served on each appellant and made under
the provisions of The Department of Munitions and Supply Act,
Statutes of Canada, 1939 (Second Session) ¢. 3 as amended, each
appellant’s costs of operation and profits in respect of certain contracts
during a period ending December 31, 1945, were fixed at a certain
amount and each was directed to pay the sum received by him in
excess of the amount so fixed. From this order and direction of the
Minister each appellant now appeals.

Held: That the onus is on the appellants to establish error in the orders

and directions of the Minister.

2. Whether or not in any given case the relationship of master and

servant exists is a guestion of fact; but in all cases the relation
imports the existence of power in the employer not only to direct
what work the servant is to do, but also the manner in which the
work is to be done. The difference between the relations of master
and servant, and of principal and agent, may be said to be this:
a principal has the right to direct what work the agent has to do;
but the master has the further right to direct how the work is to be
done.

3. That on the facts none of the appellants was at any relevant time

[~

an employee of the company, but on the contrary, they were in
business on their own account as manufacturer’s agents, but limiting
their activities to the one manufacturing concern—namely, the
company.

. That the Minister’s power of re-negotiation of supply contracts under

8. 13 of The Department of Munitions and Supply Act is not limited
to those entered into with His Majesty or with those having a govern-
ment contract.

. That the contracts or arrangements existing between the appellants

and the company were “supply contracts” which the Minister had
the power to re-negotiate.

. That insofar as the appellants Spratt and Mulholland are concerned

there were two supply contracts entered into by them with the
company, that of January, 1940 and the arrangements made in
December, 1941, with all three appellants must be considered as a
second contract and not merely as a variation of the first contract.

7. That notwithstanding a slight error in the Minister’s order and

direction as to the appellant Holland, the basis of the claim for
repayment has not been affected.

. That oral or written statements made by persons who are not parties

and are not called as witnesses are inadmissible to prove the truth
of the matter stated.
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9. That by reason of the provisions of Rule 169 of the General Rules
and Orders of the Court evidence of a witness taken on commission
can be given in evidence only by the direction of the Court or a
Judge, unless the provisions of s. 72 of the Exchequer Court Act,
RS.C. 1927, c. 34 have been complied with.

10. That as the affidavit which the commissioner was required to take
before proceeding with the examination of the witness was taken
before a Justice of the Peace and not before one of the persons
authorized by s. 61 of the Exchequer Court Act to take affidavits
which can be used in the Court, the whole of the commission evidence
must be rejected as inadmissible.

11. That each of the three appeals is dismissed.

APPEALS from orders and directions of the Minister
of Reconstruction and Supply made under the provisions
of The Department of Munitions and Supply Act, S. of C.
1939, Second Sess., ¢. 3 as amended.

The appeals were heard before the Honourable Mr.
Justice Cameron at Toronto.

John Jennings, K.C. and W. Z. Estey for appellants.
J. W. Pickup, K.C. for respondent.

" The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CaMmERON J. now (September 22, 1951) delivered the
following judgment:

At the request of the parties these three appeals were
heard together, it being agreed that the evidence adduced
should apply to all. In each case an appeal is taken from
an order and direction of the Minister of Reconstruction
and Supply, dated June 20, 1947, and made under the
provisions of the Dept. of Munitions and Supply Act,
Statutes of Canada, 1939, Second Sess., c. 3, as amended.
Section 13 of that Act confers powers on the Minister to
renegotiate certain supply contracts and when he is satisfied
that the total amount paid or payable thereunder is in
excess of the fair and reasonable cost of performing the
contract together with a fair and reasonable profit thereon,
he may fix the fair and reasonable cost of performing the
contract, the fair and reasonable profit thereon, and may
direct the person to whom the excess amount has been paid
to pay such excess to the Receiver General of Canada. Sec-
tions 13(6) and (7) provide for an appeal from such order
and direction of the Minister to this Court.
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Each of the appellants upon bemg served with an order

Mm,no:.mm) and direction of the Minister appealed therefrom. Plead-

THE Kma

Cameron J.

ings were directed by order of this Court and in their
statements of claim each appellant asked for a declaration
declaring the orders and directions null and wvoid, that
they be set aside and that it be declared that there is noth-
ing due and owing to the Receiver General of Canada
thereunder.

Ex. 1 is the order and direction given to the appellant
Spratt, and is as follows:

ORDER AND DIRECTION

WHEREAS Mr. J. L. Spratt was a party to two or more supply
contracts (as defined in Section 18 of the Department of Munitions and
Supply Act) and the undersigned is satisfied that the total amount paid
or payable to him thereunder is in excess of the fair and reasonable
cost of performing the said contracts, together with a fair and reasonable
profit;

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the powers conferred by the
Department of Munitions and Supply Act and the Department of
Reconstruction and Supply Act, 1945;

1. It is hereby ordered that the amount that Mr. J. L. Spratt is
entitled to retain or receive in respect of supply contracts during the
sixty month period ending December 31, 1945, as the fair and reasonable
cost of performing the said contracts together with a fair and reasonable
profit thereon during the said period be and it is hereby fixed at the sum
of $104,603.

Mr. J. L. Spratt is hereby directed to pay forthwith to the Receiver-
General of Canada the sum of $223,897, being the amount which he has
received in respect of the said supply contracts during the said period
in excess of the amount so fixed in respect thereof.

Dated at Ottawa this 20th day of June, 1947.

C. D. HOWE
Minister of Reconstruction and Supply.

That given to the appellant Mulholland (Ex. 3) is
identical in terms and amounts; and that given to the
appellant Holland (Ex. 2) differs only in that his contract
was stated to be for a period of forty-eight months, his
costs of operation and profit were fixed at $83,180 and he
was directed to pay $172,783.

The appellants sold a large variety of cutting tools on
behalf of Union Twist Drill Company, Butterfield Division,
of Rock Island, Quebec. The Union Twist Drill Company
is an American corporation having a Massachusetts charter,
but operating its Butterfield Division at two plants in close
proximity, one at Rock Island, Quebec, and the other at
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Derby Line, Vermont. These two plants operated under 1??_{
one management but it ‘appears that the goods which the MurzoLLano
appellants sold were manufactured at Rock Island. For o..%ma
purposes of brevity I will hereafter refer to the Union Ak —
Twist Drill Company, Butterfield Division, as “the com- Cameron J.
pany.” It is not disputed that each of the appellants

over the periods in question received from the company

the sum of the fixed costs and profit and of the amount

which each was directed to pay to the Receiver General.

After the statement of defence was delivered, the appel-
lants demanded particulars of para. 2 thereof and in reply
the respondent furnished the following particulars:

The Attorney-General of Canada on behalf of His Majesty says that
the contract or arrangement referred to in paragraph 2 of the Statement
of Defence was a contract or arrangement such as is described in said
paragraph 2 made between the Appellant and Union Twist Drill Company.
The tetms and details of such coniract or arrangement are unknown to
the Respondent but are known to the Appellant.

It will be seen, therefore, that the “supply contracts”
mentioned in the orders and directions refer not to the
selling contracts negotiated by the appellants for the sale
of the company’s products, but to the contract or contracts
entered into between the appellants and the company. The
dispute centres around the interpretation to be placed on
the words “supply contraet,” it being submitted by the
appellants that their arrangements or contracts with the
company were not “supply contracts” within the meaning
of that term as defined in section 13(1).

The first point to be determined is whether the onus
is on the appellants or the respondent. Mr. Jennings,
counsel for the appellants, submits that it lies on the
respondent and that he must not only satisfy the Court
that the contracts of the appellants with the company were
“supply contracts,” but also must prove affirmatively that
the amounts fixed by the Minister for costs of performance
and for profits were, in fact, fair and reasonable under all
the circumstances.

The appeal provisions are as follows:

13. (6) A person affected by an order or direction made by the
Minister under this section may within thirty days after the receipt of
a copy of such order or direction inform the Minister of his intention to
appeal against such order or direction to the Exchequer Court of Canada
and within such period of thirty days file a notice of such intention in
the Court, whereupon all proceedings under such order or direction shall
be stayed pending the disposition of the appeal by the Exchequer Court.
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1951 (7) On the filing of the notice of appeal, the Exchequer Court shall,
— on the application of the Minister or of the appellant give directions
MuLzoLLAND

relative to the disposition of the appeal, and shall upon the hearing of

Tee King the appeal have jurisdiction to review any direction or decision of the
_— Minister under this section and may confirm the Minister’s order or

CameronJ. direction or vary the same as it deems just and the decision of the
- Court shall be final and conclusive.

In my opinion, the onus is on the appellants to establish
error in the orders and directions of the Minister. These
matters are before the Court by way of an appeal from
such orders and directions made after the Minister is
satisfied of the existence of certain facts (section 13(3)
(4)). Then subsection (6) provides for the giving and
filing of notice of intention to “appeal” and subsection (7)
refers to the disposition of the “appeal.” It seems to me
that in using the word “appeal” throughout, Parliament
indicated that upon the hearing of the appeal, the pro-
cedure to be followed would be the same as normally follows
from an appeal from an inferior court to a superior court,
namely, that when the legislation does not otherwise
provide, the one making the appeal is required to establish
error in fact or in law in the order or judgment from which
the appeal is taken.

I have given the most anxious consideration to this
question, more particularly because of the provision in
section 13(7), that “the decision of the Court shall be final
and conclusive,” and because the matter has not previously
been the subject of judicial interpretation. A careful
examination of all the provisions of section 13 has con-
vinced me that Parliament conferred on the Minister very
wide powers in the re-negotiation of supply contracts—
including the power when satisfied that the total amount
paid thereunder is in excess of a fair and reasonable cost
of performing the contract, together with a fair and reason-
able profit thereon—to make an order and direction fixing
the amount which a contractor is entitled to retain and
ordering the repayment of any excess. It is a ministerial
order made under statutory authority and is valid until,
upon appeal, it is established by an appellant upon affirma-
tive evidence that it contains errors in fact or in law. The
extent to which the order and direction is made valid is
shown by the provisions of ss. (8) and (9) of section 13.
Under the former, one who fails to comply with any order
or direction is declared to be guilty of an offence under the
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Act; and in the latter the amount directed to be paid to 35_1
the Receiver-General in such an order and direction isMuLmoanp
recoverable with costs as a debt due to His Majesty, not- 1.k
withstanding that proceedings have been taken under = —

1 C J.
subsection (8). ameron

At first sight the powers conferred on the Minister would
seem to be somewhat arbitrary, but it is to be noted that
section 13(2) requires any person entering into a supply
contract to keep detailed records and accounts of the cost
of carrying out the contract and to make them available
to the Minister’s representative. It may be assumed,
therefore, that if the subsection were complied with, an
appellant would have no great difficulty in presenting such
evidence as would enable the Court to properly review the
Minister’s order and direction.

It may be noted, also, that in this case formal pleadings
were directed and that the appellants were ordered to
deliver a statement of claim. They are, therefore, in the
position of plaintiffs and must prove the allegations in
their statements of claim.

In many ways the right of appeal here granted is similar
to that found in Part VIII (Appeals and Procedure) of the
Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, ¢. 97, as amended. It
is well established that in an appeal under that Act, and
notwithstanding the language used in section 63(2) thereof
(that upon the Minister transmitting certain documents to
the Court “the matter shall thereupon be deemed to be an
action in the said Court ready for trial or hearing”) the
burden of proof is upon the appellant and the taxpayer
must establish the existence of facts or law showing an
error in relation to the tax imposed upon him (Johnson v.
Minister of National Revenue (1)).

In the present appeals I am also of the opinion that the
burden of showing error in the orders and directions of the
Minister lies upon the appellants.

As I have said, the appellants’ submission is that their

arrangements or contracts with the company did not fall
within the definition of “supply contract” and that, there-

(1) (1948) S.C.R. 486.
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fore, the Minister had no power to direct repayment of any

Murrouzans amounts. The applicable parts of section 13 are as follows:

V.
TuE KiNa

Cameron J.

13. (1) In this section,

(a) “supply contract” means a contract, including a sub-contract,
entered into on or after the ninth day of April, 1940, or entered
into but not fully performed and completed before the said day,

(i) to manufacture, produce, finish, assemble, transport, repair,
maintain, service, store or deal in or which in any way
relates to munitions of war or supplies; or

(ii) to construct or carry out or which in any way relates to a
project;

(b) “sub-contract” includes any contract or arrangement

(i) to perform all or any part of the work or service, or to
make or furnish any article or material, for the performance
of any other supply contract; or

(ii) under which any amount payable is contingent upon the
entry into of any other supply contract or determined with
reference to any amount payable under or otherwise by
reference to any other supply contract; or

(iii) under which any part of the services performed or to be
performed consists of soliciting, attempting to negotiate or
negotiating any other supply contract; and

(¢) “contract” includes sub-contract.

(3) If the Minister is satisfied ejther before or after the performance,
in whole or in part, of a supply contract, that the total amount paid or
payable thereunder to any person is in excess of the fair and reasonable
cost of performing the said contract together with a fair and reasonable
profit, he may by order reduce the amount that the said person is
entitled to retain or receive thereunder to such amount as he may fix
as the fair and reasonable cost of performing the said contract
together with a fair and reasonable profit thereon and the Minister may
direct the said person to pay to the Receiver General of Canada forthwith
any amount which the said person has received under the said contract in
excess of the amount so fixed.

(4) If any person is a party to two or more supply contracts the
Minister may

(a) by one order reduce the total amount that the said person is
entitled to retain or receive under any two or more or all of
the said contracts to such amount as he may fix as the fair and
reasonable cost of performing the said contracts together with a
fair and reasonable profit thereon; or

(b) by order fix the amount that the said person is entitled to retain
or receive in respect of supply contracts during such period as
may be designated by the Minister as the fair and reasonable cost
of performing the said contracts together with a fair and
reasonable profit thereon during the said period, and, if the said
person has during the said period carried on business other than
the performance of supply contracts the Minister may, for the
purpose of determining the fair and reasonable cost of performing
supply contracts, or the fair and reasonable profit thereon,
during the said period, determine the share or part of the gross
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income of the said person, or of the costs mncurred by him, during
the said period that is to be regarded as being attributable to
such other business;
and the Mmister may direct the said person to pay to the Receiver
General of Canada forthwith any amount which the said person has
received under the said contracts or 1n respect of supply contracts during
the said period 1n excess of the amount so fixed in respect thereof,

Much of the evidence adduced by the appellants had to
do with the terms of the contracts between them and the
company, it being submitted on their behalf that on that
evidence the Court shjppuld find that they were mere
servants or employees of the company. The matter is of
importance in that, presumably, if they were servants of
the company, the only re-negotiation which the Minister
could then enter into would be the contracts of the com-
pany and by disallowing to the company any excess
amounts paid by it to the appellants as being in excess of
the fair and reasonable cost of performing its contracts.
As a matter of fact, the contracts of the company were re-
negotiated and all the amounts paid to the appellants, as
well as to the three other firms representing the company
in other parts of Canada, were allowed in full.

None of the arrangements or contracts with the appel-
lants was in writing. It becomes necessary, therefore, to
consider carefully the evidence as to the formation of the
agreements and what was done thereunder insofar as they
indicate the relationship between the appellants and the
company.

Whether or not in any given case the relationship of
master and servant exists is a question of faet; but in all
cases the relation imports the existence of power in the
employer not only to direct what work the servant is to do,
but also the manner in which the work is to be done. The
difference between the relations of master and servant, and
of principal and agent, may be said to be this: a principal
has the right to direct what work the agent has to do;
but the master has the further right to direet how the work
is to be done (Halsbury, Second Edition, Vol. 22, p. 113).

The company has sold its products for many years in
Canada. In January, 1940, it sold them through four
agencies, all being manufacturers’ agents handling not only
the company’s products but those of other manufacturers
as well. Its Ontario representative was one Harrison, a
manufacturers’ agent who handled several other lines as

55452—5a

241

1951
—y—
MuLHEOLLAND

v.
Tar King

Cameron J.



242 EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA {1952

1951 well and was interested in a manufacturing concern also.

Mureouano His territory covered all of Ontario except the eastern
Tapkmg PoOrtion. His contract with the company was similar to
CammoronJ those of the other three agencies, namely, that he was to

——  sell the company’s products in his area, promote goodwill
on its behalf, provide free space to store such of the com-
pany’s goods as were kept on hand in Toronto, and pay
all his operating costs, including salaries and expenses of
his salesmen and office staff. His premises and offices were
at Mimico adjacent to Toronto. In return for these services
he was paid a straight 10 per cent commission on all sales
made by the company in his area, whether or not such
sales were made by him. Harrison died in January, 1940,
and upon his death Mr. G. F. Holland, the General Manager
of the company, made verbal arrangements with the appel-
lants Spratt and Mulholland (both of whom had previously
been salesmen employed by Mr. Harrison) to represent the
company for the same area and on the same terms as to
payment, and with the same duties as were carried out
previously by Harrison. The arrangement was subject
to three conditions, all of which were agreed to, namely,
that those appellants would move their office to Toronto,
that they would represent no firms other than the company
and that the commission of 10 per cent would be divisible
between them in equal shares. Spratt and Mulholland
carried on accordingly. They secured quarters on King
Street, Toronto, taking the lease in their own names or
in the name of Spratt and Mulholland Tool Sales. They
purchased office equipment and supplies, having first
secured a loan for that purpose from the company. Upon
the door of that office and in the telephone directory they
used the mames “Union Twist Drill Company, Butterfield
Division,” and also “Spratt and Mulbholland Tool Sales,
Co-distributors.” At their own expense they provided
space for storage of the company’s products in Toronto,
but the company paid insurance on such goods. They
paid all the costs of operation, including the rent, office
and salesmen’s salaries, and all travelling expenses. They
sold the produets of the company, in very large quantities,
all in the name of the company, and selling nothing on
their own account. They shipped such goods as they had
on hand in Toronto direet to purchasers, but otherwise the
orders were filled by the company and shipped direet to
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the customers. All invoices and accounts were rendered l_r95_11
by the company to the customers and the company collected MurmoLLAND
all its own accounts. If freight were paid by the appellants, 1. % q
they were re-imbursed by the company which also supplied oo

. . ameron J,
the appellants with its own order forms and letterheads

and for a time paid certain telegraph and telephone charges.

Shortly after the end of each month the appellants Spratt
and Mulholland each received individually from the
company a cheque for 5 per cent of the commission earned
in the preceding month. These cheques were then deposited
by them in a joint account which required the signatures
of both Spratt and Mulholland; and after all operating
expenses were paid therefrom, the balance was divided
equally between them.

Spratt and Mulholland carried on together in this way
until December, 1941. At that time they had an interview
with the general manager of the company, Mr. G. F.
Holland, father of the other appellant. He intimated to
them that as their territory was large it would be desirable
to have additional help. He then proposed that, if agree-
able to them, his son, the appellant Holland, would join
them and that in that case he would add to their territory
that part of Eastern Ontario which had previously been
covered from Montreal. The suggestion in this regard
did not emanate from Spratt or Mulholland, but they
agreed at once, and also to Holland’s suggestion that there-
after the 10 per cent commission would be divided equally
between the three appellants. This new arrangement
continued in effect until 1947 and, except for the fact that
the territory was increased so as to cover all of Ontario
and that the commission was then divided into three equal
parts, all other arrangements and duties were the same
as before. In February, 1947, the appellant Holland
succeeded his father as general manager of the Butterfield
Division and he in turn was followed in Toronte by a
younger brother, the same arrangements being then
continued.

I have considered most carefully all the evidence as to
the relationship between the appellants and the company,
and while at first T had some doubts on the matter, I have
now reached the firm conclusion that the appellants were
not employees of Union Twist Drill, but were, in fact, at

55452—53a
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Ei{ all relevant times in business as agents or manufacturer’s
MurzoLanp agents, although their activities were limited to the products
Tnkme Of one firm.

Careron J. It is admitted that throughout the entire period the
——  company made no deductions in respect of income tax
from the amounts paid to the appellants as they were
required to do for all employees, whether paid by salary
or commission. Then it is admitted that until Harrison’s
death, all four of the company’s sales representatives
throughout Canada (including Harrison) were, in fact,
manufacturers’ agents and not employees, and that after
Harrison’s death the other three were still manufacturers’
agents. It is also shown that following Harrison’s death,
the work performed and services rendered by the appellants
to the company were precisely the same as those of Harri-

son, except that in 1941 the territory was increased.

The change in office from Mimico to Toronto and the
division of the same commission into two equal parts,
and the agreement that Spratt and Mulholland would earry
no other line of goods, did not in any way change the
nature of the relationship that had previously existed
between the company and Harrison. The duties to be
performed remained essentially the same.

Many of the other things which Spratt and Mulholland
did, lead me to the same conclusion. They personally
selected the new Toronto office and later on, with the
appellant Holland, selected the quarters to which they
moved in 1943. The lease was taken in their names and
they paid the rent and bought the necessary furniture and
equipment. They employed their own staff of assistants
and paid all office and travelling expenses. For some years
they used the name “Spratt and Mulholland Tool Sales”
on their office door and in the telephone directory. Spratt
said that this was done as for a time they contemplated
taking on other agencies as well. This may be doubted,
however, because of the evidence that from the inception
of the matter it was clearly understood by all that they
could represent no one except Union Twist Drill. They
secured a loan from the company to assist in the purchase
of office equipment, which suggests that the company was
not equipping a branch store for the use of its own em-
ployees. It was said that Holland, Sr. had stipulated that
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the commission would be divisible in equal shares between 3355
Spratt and Mulholland, but that he gave no reasons for MurzouLaxp
that requirement. On the other hand, it is shown that 5_ % ..
the arrangements for separate cheques were made with the = —
approval—and probably the suggestion—of the appellants’ Cameron J.
auditors, an arrangement which would be beneficial from
the income tax point of view. As I have said above, the
whole of the commission cheques, when received, were at
once put into a bank account in the names of the appel-
Jants. The company’s goods on hand in Toronto were stated
to be “on consignment,” a term which seems inappropriate
if the appellants were employees of the company and if
the Toronto office were in fact “a branch store” of the
company, as is suggested.

Nor can I find on the evidence that the company had
power to direet how the work of the appellants was to be
done. A number of instances were cited by the appellants
as to certain “directions” and “requirements” of Holland,
Sr. which at first might indicate that the appellants were
under his direct control; but in cross-examination it was
made clear in practically every case that these were
“requests’”” which were subject to the approval of the appel-
lants. It is clear that the general manager was to some
extent a dominating personality and that when he
expressed a wish for something to be done or acquiescence
on the part of the appellants in some scheme or suggestion,
they would usually feel it advisable to concur. Their
position was somewhat precarious in that they had no
written contract with the company, the contract contained
no terms as to its duration, and inasmuch, also, as they
carried no other lines of goods. While, therefore, they
were not obliged to concur in his suggestions, it was highly
advisable for them to do so. One instance of that sort is
the request for their approval to take in the appellant
Holland (a matter which originated with Holland, Sr.), to
which request they at once acceded. Other instances were
given, such as his dislike of a particular typewriter which
was their property and which he suggested they should
change, and which they did change; another instance was
his dislike of one of their salesmen, Ward, and his repeated
intimations that he did not like him, resulting finally in
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Ward’s discharge by the appellants, although they per-

MULTOLLAND sonally had no fault to find with him. In neither case were
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orders given by Holland, although his wishes were made
quite clear,

Then, too, much is made of the contacts kept with the
company through its general manager. He visited them
on three or four occasions each year and would sometimes
take them to call on prospective customers. They were in
telephone communication with him four or five times a
week and he would urge them to see certain prospects, to
check on the business of rival firms and to promote the
interest of the company. The appellant Holland said that
they were to use their own discretion in the fulfilling and
handling of the company’s interests. When Spratt was
asked whether any one gave him instructions as to how
often he should go, or where he should go at a particular
time, or whether that was left entirely and absolutely to
his own judgment, he said, “Not always, no. I have been
specifically requested to look after a certain complaint or
check into a fall-off in business, or things of that nature
(by Mr. Holland) ; he visited Toronto perhaps every three
months and we were in frequent telephone conversation
with him, perhaps three to six times a week; those con-
versations were to resolve problems that had arisen in
connection with our business.”

The appellant Holland, Jr. repeatedly spoke of the
“instructions” given by the company. Referring to the
period following Harrison’s death in 1940, while he was
still at the company office, he said that “the company
would give detailed instructions to any of the four offices
that we so thought; this one (referring to the Toronto
office) would receive more attention.” When it is recalled
that this witness considered the other three agencies as
manufacturers’ agents, it will be seen from the statement
above that generally speaking they were treated in the
same way a8 the Toronto agent, although the latter received
some more attention. He also said, “The specific carrying
out of such work is given to the people in these areas on
the assumption, of course, that they will be earried out to
the company’s advantage. So long as such operations are
carried out to what the company considers their advantage,
there will be no further directions from Rock Island to
alter the course of the situation.”
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That witness also stated that when he came to Toronto 1;9&{
and while there, he had severed his relations and engage- MuLroLLanD
ment with Union Twist Drill Company. Ten Kixa

My conclusion on this point, therefore, is that none of o, oo +
the appellants was at any relevant time an employee of —
the company, but on the contrary that they were in business
on their own account as manufacturers’ agents, but limiting
their activities to the one manufacturing concern—namely,
the company.

It may be convenient at this point to dispose of a number
of questions as to the admissibility of certain evidence
which I admitted at the trial, subject to the objection of
counsel and which I reserved for further consideration.

Counsel for the appellants tendered, through the appel-
lant Spratt, a catalogue (Ex. 12) issued by the company
in 1939 and apparently circulated to its customers and
used by its agents (including the appellants) in making
sales. It was produced from the custody of Mr. Spratt who
received it in March, 1939, while he was still a salesman in
the employ of Harrison. On one of the front pages refer-
ence is made to the Montreal, Toronto and Vancouver
stores, and to the Winnipeg office, in each case with its
address. The sole purpose of tendering this catalogue is,
as stated by counsel, that it tends to prove that the com-
pany recognized that the business in Toronto was their
store and that it was a recognition by the company of the
relationship that existed between the appellants and the
company—a matter which is here in issue.

This document is inadmissible on several grounds. In
the first place, it was issued in 1939 and could have no
reference to the status of the appellants and is therefore
irrelevant to this issue. Even if admitted in evidence, it
would be of no effect as against the oral evidence that in
1939 all the sales were made through manufacturers’
agents. But it is also inadmissible through the witness
Spratt as being merely hearsay and not within any of
the exceptions to the hearsay rule. The general principle
is that oral or written statements made by persons who
are not parties and are not called as witnesses are inadmis-
sible to prove the truth of the matter stated. The question
of the publication of the catalogue is not in issue; but the
question of the status of the appellants to the company
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is in issue and therefore, when it is proposed to use the

Muimouranp assertions in the catalogue that the Toronto store was
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the store of the company, it is inadmissible through the
witness Spratt. It might be otherwise if tendered through
another witness such as an officer of the company who had
caused its publication and circulation, as an act cor-
roborating his evidence as to the status of the appellants.
It must, therefore, be rejected.

Counsel also tendered a posteard (Ex. 10) sent to the
appellant Spratt by the general manager of the company.
It is a printed card which had been sent out by the company
to the trade at or about the time Spratt and Mulholland
became the agents of the company in January, 1940. Over
the name of the company it announces the transfer of the
company’s stock and offices from Mimico to the new address
in Toronto, and adds—*Under the Management of Messrs.
J. L. Spratt and F. H. Mulholland.” This ecard, in my
opinion, is also inadmissible through the witness Spratt as
proof of the truth of the statement that Spratt and Mul-
holland were managers of the company office in Toronto,
on the ground that it is hearsay evidence and for that
reason is in exactly the same position as the catalogue
above mentioned.

A further question which I reserved was the admissi-
bility of certain questions put to Mr. Spratt in cross-
examination as to his knowledge of the re-negotiation of
the company’s contracts. That question need not be
further considered as the appellant Holland stated in direct
examination to his counsel that all the costs of the four
selling agents of the company, including those of the
appellants, were then allowed in full as deductible expenses
of the company.

The only evidence tendered on behalf of the respondent
was that of George F. Holland of Worcester, Massachusetts,
an official of the Union Twist Drill Company, and taken
on commission at Worcester. Counsel for the appellants
objected to the use of this evidence on several grounds,
but at the hearing I permitted it to be read reserving my
finding as to its admissibility.

I have considered the matter very carefully and have
reached the conclusion that, in every respect but one, the
application for the order to take the evidence on com-
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mission and the conduct of the examination itself were — 1951
—
strictly in accordance with the provisions of the Exchequer Murmorraxp
Court Act and with the General Rules and Orders and the g %ica
practice of this Court. The one matter to which I have Camerond
referred was that the affidavit which the commissioner was ~ —
required to take before proceeding with the examination
was sworn before a Justice of the Peace. Counsel for the
appellants submits that for this reason the evidence is
inadmissible inasmuch as the provisions of section 61 of

the Exchequer Court Act have not been complied with.

The writ of commission was issued in the terms of Form
29 pursuant to Rule 169, and attached thereto were the
instructions and Directions to the Commissioner, one of
which was as follows:

4. Before you in any manner act in the execution hereof, you shall
take and subscribe, before any person authorized under The Exchequer
Court Act, ch. 34 of the Revised Statutes of Canada, 1927, to administer
such oath, the oath hereafter mentioned, upon the Holy Fvangelists or
otherwise, in such manner as shall be sanctioned by the form of your
religion and shall be considered by you to be binding on your conscience.

The manner in which affidavits to be used in this Court

may be sworn outside of Canada is provided in section
61 of the Act as follows:

61. Any oath, affidavit, affirmation or declaration concerning any
proceeding had or to be had in the Exchequer Court administered, sworn,
affirmed or made out of Canada shall be as valid and of like effect to all
intents as if it had been administered, sworn, affirmed or made before a
commisgion appointed under this Act, if it is so administered, sworn,
affirmed or made out of Canada before

(a) any commissioner authorized to take affidavits to be used in
His Majesty’s High Court of Justice in England;

(b) any notary public and certified under his hand and official seal;

(¢) 2 mayor or chief magistrate of any city, borough, or town
corporate in Great Britain or Ireland or in any colony or possession
of His Majesty out of Canada or in any foreign country and
certified under the common seal of such city, borough, or town
corporate;

(d) a judge of any court of superior jurisdiction in any colony or
possession of His Majesty or dependency of the Crown out of
Canada; or

(¢) any consul, vice-consul, acting consul, pro-consul or consular agent
of His Majesty exercising his functions in any foreign place
and certified under his official seal.

A Justice of the Peace does not fall within any of the
classifications mentioned. It is urged by counsel for the
respondent that there is no evidence that the Justice of the
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Peace who took the Commissioner’s affidavit was not also

Muzzorzann & Notary Publie. There is no evidence, however, that he is,
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in fact, a Notary Public and from the record it is patent
that he acted only in the capacity of a Justice of the Peace.
The attached certificate of a clerk of the Superior Court
shows that he was, in fact, a Justice of the Peace, and 1
cannot assume that he had any other status.

Counsel for the respondent submitted that it would be
highly improper to consider such an objection at the time
when the evidence was tendered at the trial and that such
objections should have been raised earlier. No application
was made for leave to use the evidence until it was
tendered at the trial. I am of the opinion that by reason
of the provisions of Rule 169, such commission evidence
can be given in evidence only by the direction of the Court
or a Judge, unless the provisions of section 72 of the Act
have been complied with.

Rule 169. The Court or a Judge may, in a cause where it shall
appear necessary for the purposes of justice, make any order for the
exammation upon oath before any officer of the Court, or any other
person or persons duly authorized to take or administer oaths in the
said Court, and at any place, of any witness or person, and may order
any deposition so taken to be filed in the Court, and may empower any
party to any such cause or matter to give such deposition in evidence
therein on such terms, if any, as the Court or a judge may direct.

An order for a commission to examine witnesses may be in the
terms of Form 28 in the Appendix to these Rules, and the writ of com-
mission may be in the terms of Form 29 thereof, with such variations as
circumstances may require.

Section 72 of the Exchequer Court Act is as follows:

72. When any examination has been returned, any party may give
notice of such return, and no objection to the examination being read
shall have effect, unless taken within the time and in the manner
prescribed by general order.

There is no indication that either of the parties gave
notice of the return of the examination, and therefore the
appellants had no opportunity of raising objections to the
the examination being read until it was tendered at the
trial.

For these reasons I have reached the conclusion that as
the Commissioner’s affidavit was taken before a Justice of
the Peace and not before one of the persons authorized by
section 61 of the Act to take affidavits which can be used
in this Court, the whole of the commission evidence must
be rejected as inadmissible. I have carefully considered
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the Act and the Rules and I cannot find that the Court has 1951
any power to remedy the defect when, as here, the evidence MULHOLLAND
is tendered at the trial without any notice of return of the 5 % 4
commission having been served. Section 63 of the Aet = —
gives certain powers to the Court to receive affidavit Cmﬂm I
evidence notwithstanding informalities in the heading or

other formal requisites “when made or taken before any

person under any provisions of this or any other Act.”

But that provision does not extend to such a case as this.

In this connection, reference may be made to re Golden-
berg and Glass (1) where Middleton, J.A., in the Court
of Appeal of Ontario, said at p. 416:

This affidavit unfortunately was sworn at Toledo, Ohio, before a
Justice of the Peace, and was consequently not so sworn as to be
admissible in evidence.

Having determined that the appellants were not em-
ployees of the company, I turn now to the contention that
their contracts with the company were not “supply con-
tracts” which the Minister had power to re-negotiate under
section 13.

One of the submissions made on behalf of the appellants
is that the Minister's power of re-negotiation of supply
contracts is limited to those made with the Crown or one
of the departments of Government, or with a government
contractor. The evidence is not quite conclusive on this
point but I think on the whole I may assume (but without
deciding) that all of the sales made by the company
through the appellants were sales to private manufacturers
or jobbers. It may be noted that the amounts directed to be
paid are in all cases to be paid to the Receiver General of
Canada. A careful reading of the whole Act has convinced
me that this submission cannot be upheld. The general
powers conferred on the Minister are very broad and in
very many cases extend beyond contracts made with His
Majesty. It is not necessary to set out these powers in
detail, but one or two instances will suffice to indicate their
extent. For example, in section 11 the Minister is given
certain powers to give directions “to any person who, by
virtue of any contract, whether made with the Minister
or any Government department or authority or any other
person.” Then, by section 8, certain provisions are made

(1) (1925) 56 O.L.R. 414.
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applicable only “in respect of all contracts to be entered

Murnoreany into by the Minister on behalf of His Majesty the King in
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right of Canada.”

In section 13—the re-negotiation section—there is noth-
ing which limits the power of the Minister to contracts
entered into with His Majesty or with a government con-
tractor. On the contrary, it is made applicable to all
supply contracts as defined in ss. (1), and by that definition
it means a contract, including a sub-contract (entered into
as therein provided), and sub-contract includes “any
contract or arrangement” as therein defined. Had Parlia-
ment intended to limit the power of re-negotiation to
contracts with His Majesty, or with those having a govern-
ment contract, that intention would have been clearly
expressed in the definitions of “supply contract” and “‘sub-
contract” in ss. (1). It seems clear to me, therefore, that
the Minister’s power of re-negotiation of supply contracts
1s not limited to those entered into with His Majesty or
with those having a government contract.

The next submission of the appellants is that their
arrangements or contracts with the company were not, in
fact, “supply contracts.” It is urged on their behalf that
they were merely negotiating sales of cutting tools in
precisely the same way and for the same purpose as Harrison
had done prior to the war; that they had no precise knowl-
edge as to whether the tools when sold were or were not
used in the produetion of munitions of war, or on projects;
and that in many cases their sales were made to jobbers
who in turn would sell to persons unknown to them; that
they did not keep records of each sale, leaving that duty
to the company itself; and that they were not parties to
any contract relating to munitions of war or supplies.

Now the supply contracts which the Minister has power
to re-negotiate are those defined in section 13(1) (supra)
and they include not only “supply contracts,” but also
“sub-contracts” as therein defined. It is apparent from the
statement of defence that the respondent relies in the main
on its allegation that the appellants were in the position
of sub-contractors, para. 2 being as follows:

2 He demies the allegations in paragraphs 2 and 3 of the Statement
of Claim and says that during the sixty month period ending December
31, 1945, the appellant, with the meaning of Section 13 of the Department
of Munitions & Supply Act, being Statutes of Canada, 1945, Chapter 16
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was a party to a contract or arrangement whereby he furnished articles
or material for the performance of one or more supply contracts and/or
received moneys, payment of which was contingent upon the entry mto
of one or more supply contracts or was determined with reference to
one or more supply contracts and/or performed services consistng of
soliciting, attempting to negotiate or negotiating one or more supply
contracts.

The allegations in that paragraph are designed to bring
the appellants’ contracts or arrangements within one or
more of the three definitions of “sub-contract” in section
13(1) (b). If they fall within any one of the three classifi-
cations, then as “sub-contracts” they are by section 13(1)
(a) also “supply contracts” which by section 13(3) and (4)
may be re-negotiated. I do not find it necessary, therefore,
to determine whether in negotiating sales on behalf of the
company they were parties to a contract whereby they
furnished articles or materials for the performance of any
other supply contract (s. 13(1) (b) (i)). The evidence of
the appellants themselves clearly establishes that their
contracts or arrangements with the company were of such
a nature that, thereunder (1) the amount payable to them
was (a) contingent upon the entry by the company into
a sales contract in the sale of cutting tools; and (b) was
determined with reference to the amount payable by the
purchasers of such tools to the company (s. 13(1) (b) (ii));
(2) the services performed or to be performed consisted of
soliciting, attempting to negotiate or negotiating sales of
cutting tools on behalf of the company (s. 13(1) (b) (iii)).

To be “sub-contracts’”’ however, such contracts as I have
deseribed must relate to “any other supply contract,” and
the “other supply contract” relied on by the respondent is,
of course, the contract for sales of cutting tools made by
the company to the purchasers thereof, as a result of which
10 per cent of the sales price was divisible between the
appellants in the proportions I have mentioned. Were
these contracts within the definition of supply contracts
provided in seetion 13(1) (@¢)? The appellants have not
attempted to satisfy the onus which lies on them to prove
that they were not. There was evidence that the appellants
had not kept complete records of the sales made but had
left that duty to the company. I cannot escape the con-
clusion that had it been to their interest to do so, the appel-
lants could and would have produced evidence on this point
so that the nature of the sales, names of the purchasers
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and of the ultimate users of the fools would have been

Muzmorzans before the Court. The appellants were under a statutory
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duty to keep full records, they had their own auditors and
one of the appellants—Holland—is now general manager
of the company, which undoubtedly would have complete
records. At one stage of the proceedings, counsel for the
appellants stated that their auditors would be called, but
he closed his case without any evidence from them.

On the positive side, however, there is evidence which is
sufficient, in my opinion, to establish that the contracts
for the sales of cutting tools by the company were, in fact,
within the term “any other supply contract.” The appel-
lant Spratt stated in cross-examination that as many of
the plants he called on were doing secret work, he had no
idea what they were turning out; that he and the other
appellants took orders for tools “which may or may not
have been used for war purpose”; and that he really did
not know what they were used for. But he finally agreed
that the appellants were selling or supplying “the kind of
tools which war plants would require.”

I consider these statements to be of great importance,
more particularly the final admission made by Spratt which
I think is sufficient to bring the sales by the company within
the definition of “supply contracts” contained in section
13(1) (a) (i), in that they were contracts to “manufacture,
produce . . . or deal in or which in any way relates to
munitions of war or supplies.” The latter two terms are
defined in the Act as follows:

2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires, the expression,

(d) “munitions of war” means arms, ammunition, implements of war,
military, naval or awr stores, or any articles deemed capable of
being converted thereinto, or made wuseful mm the production
thereof;

(e) “supphes” includes materials, equipment, ships, aircraft, auto-
mobile vehicles, amimals, goods, stores and articles or com-
modities of every kind including, but without restricting the
generality of the foregomng, anything which, in the opimion of
the Minmster is, or 18 likely to be, necessary for or in connection
with the production, storage or supply of any munitions of war
or necessary for the needs of the Government or of the com-
munity in war or for reconstruction as defined in The Department
of Reconstruction Act, 1944.

On the evidence of Mr. Spratt that the appellants and
the company were supplying tools that war plants would
require, it is apparent that “cutting tools” would be made
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useful in the production of arms, ammunition and imple- E?il

ments of war, and that therefore they fall within the MuLmoLLaxp
definition of “munitions of war.” In any event, they would % q

fall within the very broad definition of “supplies” as being = —

« . ‘s < 1 ¢« Camerond.
goods and articles or commodities of every kind,” or “as — —

being mecessary for or in connection with the production

or supply of any munitions of war . . . or necessary for

the needs of the Government or of the community in war.”

Applying the broad meaning of “munitions of war” and
“supplies” to the provisions of section 13(1) (a) (i), I find
that the sales of cutting tools by the company were, in
fact, within the term “supply contracts” and that such
sales constituted “any other supply contract” referred to in
section 13(1) (b) (ii) and (iii). The original contract of
Spratt and Mulholland with the company, dated January,
1940, was entered into before April 9, 1940, but not then
completed; and the second contract with all three appel-
lants was entered into after the said date, and, therefore,
both contracts are within the time limits referred to in
section 13(1) (a).

It follows, therefore, that the contracts or arrangements
existing between the appellants and the company were
“supply contracts” which the Minister had power to re-
negotiate.

The appellants did not see fit to put in any evidence as
to the commissions earned by them, as to the fair and
reasonable cost of performing the contract or as to what
could be considered a fair and reasonable profit thereon.
There is, therefore, no evidence before me by which I could
review the findings of the Minister as to what constitutes
the fair and reasonable cost of performing the contract,
together with a reasonable profit thereon, or as to the
amount which each of the appellants was directed to pay
to the Receiver General.

It is submitted for the appellant Spratt and Mulholland
that they had but one contract with the company, namely,
that of January, 1940, and that therefore as the Minister
proceeded under section 13(4) and found that they were
parties to “two or more supply contracts,” the orders and
directions as to them should be set aside. I find no
difficulty, however, in reaching the conclusion that as to
these two appellants, there were in fact two contracts with
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the company. That of January, 1940, is admitted. The

MULHOLLAND arrangements made in December, 1941, W1th all three appel-
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lants must be considered as a second contract and not
merely as a variation of the first contract. In the arrange-
ments then made, the company made its bargain with
the three appellants in place of the former bargain with
Spratt and Mulholland; the former commission of 10 per
cent which had previously been divided equally between
Spratt and Mulholland was thereafter to be divided equally
between all three appellants; and additional territory was
added in which the appellants could operate. Insofar as
the appellants Spratt and Mulholland are concerned, I find,
therefore, that there were two supply contracts entered
into by them with the company. The orders and directions
as to Spratt and Mulholland are therefore affirmed.

As to the appellant Holland, there was but one contract,
namely, that of December, 1941, It is urged, therefore,
on his behalf that the Minister’s order and direction as to
him (Ex. 2) was wrong in reciting that he was a party
to “two or more supply contracts’” and that therefore it
should be set aside.

Now there is no essential difference between the powers
conferred on the Minister under section 13(3) and those
conferred on him under section 13(4). TUnder section
13(4), where two or more supply contracts are involved,
the Minister, instead of treating each supply contract
separately, may either (a) deal with them ag a unit and by
making but one order and direction; or (b) by one order
fix the amount payable to a contractor in a designated
period and also make certain other adjustments where the
contractor has been engaged during the period on business
other than the performance of supply contracts. Under
both subsections, the Minister’s duties are the same, namely,
to fix (1) the fair and reasonable cost of performing a
contract or contracts together with the fair and reasonable
profits thereon, and (2) to direct what amount shall be
payable to the Receiver General. In my opinion, these
two subsections must be read together, certain essential
duties of the Minister being set out only in subsection (3)
and being carried forward into subsection (4) only by
implication.
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It is not shown that the Minister in fixing the amounts 35_{
which the appellant Holland could retain and the amountMurmorrans
which he was required to pay, took into consideration any o % ..
contract other than Holland’s contract of December, 1941, = —

. . . . CameronJ.
or that in any way his computations in regard thereto were =~ __
inaccurate. The mere inaccuracy of the reference in the
order and direction to “two or more contracts” did not
result in any finding other than that which would have
followed from & recital of “one supply contract.” For that
reason I do not think that in the result the appellant
Holland has been misled or has suffered any injustice by
reason of such mis-recital. Had the order and direction
referred only to section 13 and recited that Holland was a
party “to a supply contract or contracts,” the result would
have been precisely the same. It may well be that at the
time this order and direction were given, the situation as
to the number of contracts entered into by Holland was not
at all clear. The statement of defence states that the
appellant Holland was a party “to a contract or agreement”
and so he has not been in any way misled by the slight
error in the Minister’s order and direction. In my opinion,
it would be quite improper and unjust to set aside that
order and direction merely because of a slight inaccuracy
in referring to “two or more contracts” where but one
contract existed. I must find, therefore, that notwithstand-
ing the error in that order and direction, the basis of the
claim for repayment has not been affected and the order
and direction for payment by Holland will be affirmed in
his case as well.

Each of the three appeals will therefore be dismissed
with costs,

I think I should add that the evidence indicated that
each of the appellants had paid income tax in each year
on his total income. I assume, therefore, that as their
incomes in each year have been greatly reduced by reason
of the Minister’s orders and directions, which are hereby
affirmed, that the necessary adjustments of income tax will
in each case be made at the proper time.

Judgment accordingly.

57892—13a
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BrTWEEN:
BYRON B. KENNEDY ................. APPELLANT;
AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL
REVENUE ..........covvven.. } RESPONDENT.

Revenue—Income Tax—Income War Tazx Act, RS.C. 1927, c. 97 s. 3(1)—
Transaction so nearly identical and closely associated with appellant’s
operations not to be considered as an isolated transaction—Failure by
appellant to satisfy burden that the Minister's decision is erroneous—
Appeal from decision of Income Taz Appeal Board dismissed.

In 1944 the appellant bought thirty lots of land located north west of
the city limits of Toronto, sixteen of which were in 1948 expropriated
by the Province of Ontario; the amount of compensation money
resulted in a net profit to the appellant of $12,117.52. The appellant
did not report that amount in his income tax return for 1948 on the
ground that the purchase of said lands was for the purpose of an
investment and not, in any way, related to his business of speculative
builder of high class residential houses in Toronto and vicinity. The
amount was added to the appellant’s income by the Minister and the
former appealed to the Income Tax Appeal Board which dismissed
his appeal.

Held: That the purchase by the appellant of the lots of land is so nearly
identical and closely associated with his business operations that it
should not be considered as an isolated transaction or completely
divorced from the business normally carried on by him.

2. That the appellant has not satisfied the burden on him to demonstrate
that the decision of the Minister was erroneous.

APPEAL from the decision of the Income Tax Appeal
Board dismissing the appellant’s appeal against his 1948
assessment.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Archibald at Toronto.

0. J. D. Ross for the appellant. »
Gerard Beaudoin, Q.C. and T. Z. Boles for the respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

Arcuisarp J. (now March 14, 1952) delivered the follow-
ing judgment: .

This is an appeal by Byron B. Kennedy of Toronto,
Ontario, from the Income Tax Assessment made by the
Department of National Revenue for Canada, against him
for the year 1946. The appellant complains that there
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was added to his Income Tax the sum of $12,114.13. The
said sum was added to his Income Tax by reason of the
profit received by the appellant from the sale of certain
lots of land owned by him, which land had been expro-
priated by the Ontario Department of Highways for the
purpose of constructing a highway.

The appeal was heard before me in Toronto on the 22nd
day of January, 1952

The record shows that the Notice of Assessment was
dated the 20th February, 1950. The Notice of Objection
was duly filed by the appellant and the reply of the Minister
of National Revenue was dated the 19th July, 1950. In the
said reply of the said minister, a claim respecting disposal of
a car was allowed, but the said assessment on the profit
received from the said expropriation of the lands, amounting
to $12,117.53, was confirmed. This decision of the said

minister was appealed to the Income Tax Appeal Board

and by that board was heard on the 24th day of January,
1951. The appeal was dismissed by the Income Tax Appeal
Board on the 28th day of February, 1951, and the decision
of the Income Tax Appeal Board was duly appealed to this
Court.

The facts as I find them are as follows:

(i) That according to appellant he became interested in
acquiring the lands hereinafter referred to as the
“Challenor Estate,” in 1943, and that on the 20th
day of January, 1944, the appellant offered to pur-
chase from the Challenor Estate, thirty lots of land
and paid for the same the sum of $7,000 on the 13th
day of April, 1944.

(ii) That the said lands are located north west of the
city limits of the city of Toronto in North York
township, and are between Avenue road and Bath-
urst street, and that said lands had been in possession
of the Challenor Estate for a period of more than
twenty years prior to the sale to the appellant.

(iii) That some time (the dates are not certain) during
the years 1946 and 1947, the appellant had discus-
sions with the representatives of the Province of
Ontario, and learned from them that said province
had under consideration the construction of additions
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to the Toronto to Barrie highway and, that a portion
of said lands would be required by said province for
the construction of said highway, and negotiations
followed as to the compensation which should be
paid by the said province to the appellant.

(iv) That on the 16th day of February, 1948, the appel-
lant was paid by the said Province of Ontario, the
sum of $16,802.05, as compensation for the portion
of the land later conveyed by the appellant to said
Province of Ontario, and amounting, in all, to sixteen
lots, and that there then remained unsold by the
appellant, fourteen lots out of the lands purchased
by him from the said Challenor Estate.

In his Income Tax return submitted for the year 1948,
the appellant did not report the said sum of $12,117.53 as
part of his taxable income. The reason given by him for not
doing so, and which was urged with great force by his
counsel before me, is that he had for upwards of twenty-
two years been engaged in the business of “speculative
builder” in the city of Toronto and that the purchase of
the said lands by him from the Challenor Estate was for
the purpose of an investment and not, in any way, related
to his business.

In the course of the representations made by the appel-
lant’s counsel to me, it was represented that the Income
Tax Appeal Board was in a large measure influenced by
reason of the failure of the appellant to appear in person
before that Board and eclarify his intentions as to the
purpose for which said lands had been purchased by him.
The appellant did, however, appear before me, and after
having given careful consideration to his evidence, I am
of opinion that he failed completely to clarify his inten-
tions respecting the purchase of these lands.

His evidence as to the purpose for which the lands were
acquired is far from satisfactory. He endeavoured to show
that he paid the sum of $7,000 for these lands to assist a
friend, whose friends in England were unable to bring to
Canada sufficient money to pay the taxes and, that his
action in purchasing the property, prevented a tax sale of
said lands. He repeatedly refers in his evidence to this
as his purpose in buying said lands. However, later in his
evidence, and particularly on cross-examination, he states
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that the purchase of the Challenor Estate lands for $7,000
was a “good buy”; that he felt it could be later disposed of
at a “profit,” and again indicated his intention of building
at some later date apartment houses on the said lands.
Indicating that his business comprised inter alia, that of
buying lands to be re-sold for homes or other buildings.
In short, the purchase by him of the Challenor Estate lands
is so nearly identical and closely associated with his business
operations, that it should not be considered as an isolated
transaction or completely divorced from the business norm-
ally carried on by the appellant.

Furthermore, it should be borne in mind that there was
filed with me an exhibit to his evidence indicating the oper-
ations as builder carried on by him for the years 1927 to
1946 inclusive. This exhibit, filed before me and marked
“1”, clearly indicates that during the years 1940, 1941, 1942,
1943, 1944 and 1945, the buildings constructed by the appel-
lant and sold by him showed a striking decrease in cost of
the houses so constructed. It is apparent that the costs of
buildings constructed during those years, bear little resemb-
lance to the costs of the buildings previously constructed by
him. The appellant endeavoured to explain this by indi-
cating that the difficulty in obtaining materials and govern-
ment restrictions as to the size and costs of the buildings,
made it necessary for him to adopt a building of much
lower cost. The lowest point in his building costs and
operations apparently was reached by the appellant about
the year 1943, and that is the year in which discussions
were had by him with respect to the purchase of the
Challenor Estate lots.

It should be noted also, that during the years 1943 and
1944, the appellant became interested with three other
gentlemen in acquiring and developing for sale as building
lots, thirty other lots on the outskirts of Toronto, in the
Hunt Club Golf Course property, so called; that he par-
ticipated with his colleagues in the various meetings held
from time to time with respect to this property, and that
after having contributed large sums of money towards the
purchase of this property, he participated in the develop-
ment and sale of the lands at a profit. It is also in evidence,
that he subsequently purchased six lots of land in the
Summit property, so called, and when it was later discovered
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that the municipality had made changes in the building
restrictions, he sold these lands, again at a profit, and
without having built houses thereon.

His counsel, in the course of his skilful argument, urged
that the transaction with respect to the Challenor Estate
lands, was an investment, pure and simple, and that it was
quite apart from the business which he normally conducted.
As T have already indicated, I am satisfied such was not
the case, and I am confirmed by the appellant’s own
evidence, both in the manner in which it was given, and
in the actual testimony itself.

Having regard also to the trend in the quality and type
of houses he had under construction, and having regard
to his interests at or about the same time, in transactions
affecting lands of similar type, it is clear to me that he has
not satisfied the burden on him to demonstrate that the
decision of the Minister of National Revenue was in error.

My decision is that this appeal should be dismissed
with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

BerwEEN:
FREDERICK JAMES WALSH .......... SUPPLIANT;
AND
HIS MAJESTY THE KING ............ RESPONDENT.

Croun—Petition of Right—Damages—Exzchequer Court Act, R.S.C. 1927,
¢. 34, 8. 19(¢)—Onus of proof on suppliant—Crown not responsible until
statutory conditions of liability proved to have been present—Action
dismissed.

Suppliant seeks to recover from respondent damages for injuries caused
through the negligent operation of an army vehicle by one Sonmor
who was employed in a civilian capacity in an army camp at Dawson
Creek, British Columbia. Sonmor was employed on a 48 hour per
week basis, his day’s work ending at 5 p.m. He was supplied with a
house, heat and light by the army but not provided with kitchen fuel,
wood being used, and for the supply of which he was solely respon-
sible. It was on a trip in search of fuel after working hours, in an
army vehicle, lawfully borrowed for the purpose, that the accident
occurred causing the suppliant’s injuries. The Court found that
Sonmor was engaged solely on his own business and the expedition
was not in any way incidental to his employment.

Held: That the action must be dismissed since there is no evidence of
any mnegligence of an officer or servant of the Crown while acting
within the scope of his dulies or employment as provided in s. 19(¢)
of the Exchequer Court Act.
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PETITION OF RIGHT by suppliant seeking damages
from the Crown for injuries allegedly caused by negligence
of a servant of the Crown.

The action was tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Hyndman, Deputy Judge of the Court, at' Edmonton.

W. Arthur McClellan for suppliant.
Herbert King and K. E. Eaton for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

Hyxpman D.J. now (December 12, 1951) delivered the
following judgment:

By petition of right, Frederick James Walsh of Dawson
Creek in the province of British Columbia, clerk, claims
against His Majesty the King, in right of Canada, damages,
general and special, caused by the negligence of Arnold
Sonmor, alleged to be a civilian employee of His Majesty
the King, in the Department of National Defence.

On the first day of September, 1950, the suppliant was
the owner and driver of a Ford one ton truck, licence
number C 17583, proceeding north on the Alaska highway,
in said province of British Columbia. At about mile 23
on said highway, some 20 miles north of the village of
Dawson Creek, at about 7.30 p.m. Pacific daylight saving
time, the suppliant stopped and pulled to the right hand
side of the said highway for the purpose of changing a
deflated tire. A few minutes after so stopping, a National
Defence vehicle, licence number M 988, driven by the said
Arnold Sonmor, a civilian employee of His Majesty, afore-
said, who was also proceeding north on the said highway,
ran into the rear of the suppliant’s vehicle, damaging the
truck and severely injuring the suppliant. Visibility at the
time was good and it is claimed that it was solely through
Sonmor’s negligence in not keeping a proper lookout that
the said accident occurred.

The suppliant claims that he sustained the following
personal injuries:
1. Shock and concussion;
2. Deep lacerations of the scalp;
3. Right ear almost totally severed;
4. Multiple bruises and contusions to the body, from head to feet, and
5. Injuries to cartilages of both knees.
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353 It is claimed that the above injuries have left some
wase permanent disability and have disfigured the suppliant.
Tas Kmvg LR suppliant’s truck was also badly damaged. The special
~—  damages claimed are:

Hyndman
DJ. 1. Physician’s fee ....cvveirinriniinriinaieninenecnies $ 100.00
- 2. Damage to truck and box ....cccviiviiriiiienncnenes 281.29
3. Dental work ... i, 26.00
4. Hospital expenses ......cecvvecernenneneneersencnsnns 176.00
5. Loss of earning for four months at $189 per month .... 756.00
$1,339.29

The above item 2 of $281.29 was, by amendment at trial,
increased to $318.18, thus increasing the total to $1,376.18.

In answer to the claim, all the material allegations in
the petition are denied, and, in the alternative, it is claimed
that if the driver of His Majesty’s car was negligent, the
damage suffered by the suppliant was caused by the fault
of the suppliant as well as by the said Sonmor, and the
Contributory Negligence Act of British Columbia is pleaded.

The Crown further pleads that the said Arnold Sonmor
was not, at the time of the collision, acting within the scope
of his duties or employment as an officer or in the service of
His Majesty, referred to in the petition of right.

The evidence discloses that the suppliant parked his car
on the right hand side of the road, the left hind wheel being
about 9 feet from the edge of the gravel portion of the
road, leaving 26 feet to the other side. In the centre gravel
had been accumulated and there were well marked tracks
on either side of such gravel, used by cars coming and going.
I find that there was plenty of room for cars to pass each
other, either coming or going, if properly and carefully
driven. About 530 feet south of the parked car there was
a curve at the crown of an up-hill grade, and a straight road
from the top of the curve to the suppliant’s car. Sonmor
was driving at the rate of about 30 miles per hour, and just
as he rounded the curve the sun caught him in the eyes and
he was unable to see just where he was, but kept on going,
all the time blinded by the sun, until he collided with the
suppliant’s car. The left side of the suppliant’s car was
smashed, suppliant thrown to the ground, knocked un-
conscious, and was cut, bruised and bleeding.
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In my opinion, there was clearly negligence on the part
of Sonmor in proceeding 500 feet or more, unable to see
just where he was on the road, and when he realized this
situation, it was his duty to stop as soon as possible, and
he had plenty of time in which to realize this, as a prudent
and reasonable man should. His proceeding on as he did,
in my opinion, was pure negligence. That he was going
at an unreasonable rate under the circumstances at the time
of the collision, is evidenced by the fact that his car was 187
feet further on from the point of the accident, and if the
driver, Sonmor, was acting in the course of his duties and
employment, I would not hesitate to give judgment for the
suppliant against the Crown. I do not consider that there
was any contributory negligence on the part of the sup-
pliant, as he was reasonably close to the shoulder of the
road, with plenty of space left for cars to pass going in the
same direction.

However, the difficulty in the eclaim is that on the
evidence, Sonmor, was not acting within the course of his
duties or employment, but was on a purely personal journey.

The facts are that Sonmor was employed in a civilian
capacity in the army camp at Dawson Creek, on a forty-
eight hour per week basis, his hours of work ending about
500 p.m. He testified that on the day in question, he
locked his shop at 5.45 p.m.

Under the arrangements with him, as apparently with
other civilian employees, & house, heat, and light were
found for him by the army, but no provision made for
kitchen fuel, for which wood was used, and for the supply
of which he himself was solely responsible.

It was on a trip with his three sons to secure this kitchen
wood that he was engaged at the time—clearly after his
working hours—and had borrowed the army car for the
purpose, in a lawful way. His employer was in no way
responsible for providing, or securing this fuel for him.
The evidence is undoubted that he was engaged solely on
his own business and not on duty when the accident
occurred. Nor can I see that under the terms of his contract
it was in any way incidental to his employment: instead of
going for this wood himself he might well have purchased
it from some one else.

-
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This being the position of affairs, on the authorities, his
claim against the Crown must fail, and the action be dis-
missed.

The claim is made under section 19(c) of the Exchequer
Court Act, R.S.C. 1927, c. 34, as amended, and reads:
19. The Exchequer Court shall also have exclusive original jurisdiction
to hear and determine the following matters:

(¢) Every claim against the Crown arising out of any death or injury
to the person or to property resulting from the negligence of any
officer or servant of the Crown while acting within the scope of
his duties or employment.

There are many decisions on this point, a recent one being
that of the president of this Court, Ginn et al. v. The King,
(1) in which he said:

To succeed in their claims the suppliants must prove not only that
the injuries suffered by the suppliant Robert John Ginn resulted from
the negligence of an officer or servant of the Crown but also that such
negligence occurred while the officer or servant was acting within the scope

of his duties or employment. The onus of proof of these matters lies
on the suppliants. The onus is not a light one.

The president cites the case of The King v. Moreau, (2),
in which Rinfret, C.J., said:

Deuxiémement, toujours en vertu de l'article 19(c), il ne suffisait pas
4 lintimé de prouver la négligence d’'un officier ou d’un serviteur de la
Couronne, mais il fallait, en plus, qu’il prouvét que cet officier ou ce
serviteur négligent, agissait dans les limites de ses devoirs ou de ses
fonctions.

Other decisions I might mention are, Hewitt v. Bonvin
(3); Gibson v. British Columbia District Telegraph and
Delivery Company Limited, (4); McKay v. Drysdale, (5);
Rawn and Strath v. The King, (6).

There will therefore be judgment dismissing the sup-
pliant’s claim with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

(1) (1950) Ex. C.R. 208 at 211. (4) (1936) 3 W.W.R. 241.
(2) (1950) S.C.R. 18. (5) (1921) 2 W.W.R. 592.
(3) (1940) 1 KB, 188. (6) (1948) 4 D.L.R. 412.
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BETWEEN: 3’5_2,
Jan. 24,
JOHND.FORBES ......coiviiieinannnes APPELLANT; 28,29,30
AND May 14
N REvENUE o TONAL ) esoxme.

Revenue—Income tax—Income War Tax Act RS.C. 1927, c. 97, 5. 41—
Onus i3 on appellant to show assessment is invalid—Failure to discharge
onus—Appeal dismissed.

Held: That the onus is on the appellant to prove that the arbitrary
assessment for income tax made against him and affirmed by the
Minister of National Revenue is erroneous and when that onus is not
discharged either by the appellant or by any evidence adduced at the
hearing the appeal must be dismissed.

APPEAL under the Income War Tax Act.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Archibald at Toronto.

Joseph Sedgewick, Q.C. and Stuart Thom for appellant.
G. B. Bagwell, Q.C. and D. K. Petapiece for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

ArcHIBALD J. now (May 14, 1952) delivered the following
judgment:

This is an appeal against the arbitrary assessment made
against the appellant, which assessment was affirmed by
the Minister of National Revenue, on the 15th day of May,
1950. The assessment is for the years 1941 to 1948 in-
clusive. The appellant had filed his income tax return for
each of the years in question, and no exception was taken
by the income tax inspector until receipt by him prior to
December 15, 1949, of a book containing daily records of
receipts for the appellant respecting his hotel during the
period August 1, 1946 to December 26, 1948. This book is
Exhibit “A” in the evidence, and is referred to in the
minutes of evidence as the “Black book.” It will be so
referred to by me throughout this decision. The entries in
the Black book corresponded in many details with those
in the Day books and Cash books kept by the appellant, but
there were many discrepancies as well, and the sum total
of the entries in the Black book greatly exceeded those of
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fff the sum total of the entries shown for a comparable period
Fommes  and corresponding dates in the Day books and Cash books,
Mimemze 26 Shown to the appellant’s auditor from time to time and

oF which were employed by the appellant in preparing his
Naronan
Revenvz  iDCOmMe tax returns from year to year.

ArchibaldJ. The appeal was heard before me at Toronto on the 28th,
T 29th and 30th days of January, 1952.

Owing to the unusual circumstances detailed in the
evidence given on the hearing of this appeal, I will refer
briefly to the facts involved and comment on the evidence.

The appellant’s hotel, hereinafter referred to as the
“Forbes’ hotel,” is located at Shuter and Mutual streets in
the city of Toronto. It consisted, at all times relevant to
the dates covered in the assessment, of about twenty rooms
available for permanent and transient guests, in addition
to dining rooms, kitchens, beverage rooms and other rooms
required in the operation of the hotel. The property, or at
least the major portion of it, was acquired by the appellant,
according to his auditor, about fifteen years ago. The
appellant was residing in the Forbes’ hotel at the time of his
marriage to Mrs. Linton Forbes, in May, 1939. For some
time after their said marriage, the books of account (Day
book, Cash book, etc.), were kept by the appellant, his son
“Mickey” Forbes (a son by appellant’s first marriage), and
others, up to February, 1943, when Mrs. Linton Forbes
took charge of the bookkeeping, and the entries are in her
handwriting to June 27, 1945. Subsequent to that date,
and up to approximately November, 1948, the entries in
the books appear in the handwriting of “Mickey” Forbes,
who acted as manager for the appellant of the Forbes’ hotel
operations, the bookkeeping, the returns and other matters
affecting the business of Forbes’ hotel. Subsequent to that
date, according to Mrs. Forbes, the handwriting in the
books is that of one, Norman Vale.

The appellant’s auditor, Walter Smith, set up a set of
books—Day book, Cash book and other records—which he
considered adequate for the purpose of the manager of a
small hotel and beverage rooms. Each month the books
were taken to Smith’s office and audited by him and, based
on this audit, income tax returns were prepared from year
to year. The check of the books made by Mr. Smith from
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month to month, seems to have been careful and conscien-
tious, subject to the observation that he depended entirely
on the entries and records made by the appellant or some
one or other of his managers, bookkeepers or servants, and
he, Smith, did not make any adequate independent check
of the records so handed him. I should add that I was not
impressed by his evidence when, in his evidence, he
attempted to estimate the revenue which should have been
produced by the sale of the quantities of beer and wine sold
by the appellant at his hotel and in the beverage rooms
operated by him, as well as the revenue which should have
been received from room rentals and other receipts. I
should add that Mr. Smith was not convincing as an expert.

Due to the condition of his health, the appellant himself,
afforded little or no assistance to the Court in considering
his appeal. He was examined for disecovery on November
14, 1951, and while the evidence given by him at that time
does not, in the written transcript then made, disclose any
serious mental disability or impairment, however, prior
to being called to the witness box, his doctor, a specialist in
neurology and psychiatry, testified that the appellant had
been under his care and later in hospital under his obser-
vation, in March and April, 1951. He diagnosed appellant
as “suffering from a degenerative disease of the brain to
such an extent that he had a very serious memory disease”
and that in his opinion, “appellant was entirely incapable,
as far as being able to look after his affairs, is concerned.”
In his opinion, reliance could not be placed on appellant’s
recollection of what happened since 1940 or 1941. Counsel
for appellant then called appellant to the witness stand—
] assume either to demonstrate to me the force of the
doctor’s diagnosis, or to discredit and nullify the effect his
evidence given on discovery might have on me. In any
event, as he appeared before me, his is a sad case, and I do
not feel justified in accepting the evidence given by him
on discovery, particularly, as his counsel before the examiner
called attention to the mental condition of his client.

Comment should also be made respecting the evidence
given by Mrs. Linton Forbes, the appellant’s present wife.
Much of her married life to appellant has been spent in
residence at the Forbes’ hotel. In faet, she lived there all
the time, with the exception of the period beginning 1946
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1952  and continuing to November, 1948, when she, with her

Fons  husband and her two infant children, lived at Port Credit.
Mmmerme 1160 evidence satisfies me that while she was living at the

NaaL Forbes’ hotel, and particularly during the time she kept
Revenue the books, the entries made by her, were, in the main, those
Archibald J. supplied to her by other members of the staff or hotel
—  organization, and that she did nothing to verify the correct-
ness or accuracy of the information given her. For example,
the records she furnished the auditor as to beverage room
receipts were based on slips and verbal reports from tap .
men and other servants. She did not check in the cash
register receipts or otherwise. So also her information
respecting room rentals was vague and uncertain—and the
charts and slips respecting them and allegedly kept by her,
were not produced to the Court. If the appellant relied on
her evidence to show that during any portion of the time
the records were so kept and to disprove the Minister’s
assessment in any particular, then I must say her evidence
is woefully inadequate and does not convince me that
the records so kept by her tell the whole story of the opera-~

tions of the Forbes’ hotel.

I find that in all the circumstances of this appeal, there
is no evidence taken by itself to indicate that the Minister’s
assessment is erroneous. This brings me to consider whether
or not the burden on the appellant is discharged by an
examination of the evidence adduced on behalf of the
Minister of National Revenue. Counsel for the appellant
stresses the importance of the effect of the evidence given
by “Mickey” Forbes. I do not see that the evidence given
by “Mickey” Forbes can be said to be of assistance to the
appellant. “Mickey” Forbes did, if further proof was needed,
establish that the Black book was written in his hand-
writing; that it was a book kept by him and in his custody
during the time when he was managing the Forbes’ hotel
for the appellant, but when he (“Mickey” Forbes) at-
tempted to explain the purpose for which the book was
kept, when I had given counsel who called him, leave to
cross-examine his own witness, he told a story so fantastic
and so inconsistent and utterly improbable, that I cannot
accept it as the proper explanation. I reject it and all
evidence relied on by counsel for the appellant in support
of the contention that “Mickey” Forbes’ evidence, or any
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part thereof, supports the argument that appellant had E?f
discharged the burden required of him to show the Minister’s Fomms

assessment was erroneous. Mmsm

There remains for comment the evidence given by E. G. Numowas

Gowen, an assessor for the Income Tax Department. This Revenve
witness was called by the respondent. He examined the Archibald J.
Black book and compared the entries in it with those in the ™
Day books and Cash books kept by the appellant for the
corresponding dates and periods. His investigations were
followed by the amended assessment. His examination of
the relevant documents and his research were thorough,
painstaking and exhaustive. He did not leave his assess-
ment to guess or speculation. His examination of the docu-
ments was made with meticulous care and his investigation
into returns to the Liquor Control Board of Ontario con-
firmed in my mind the inescapable conclusion that the
entries in the right hand column of the relevant pages in
the Black book, referred to as the “Snaff” or “Snuff”’ ecolumn,
properly and correctly represented the additional amounts
of revenue received by the appellant. This witness was
submitted to a searching and exhaustive cross-examination
by counsel for the appellant and his evidence was not
shaken. One could not fail to be impressed by the accuracy
of his evidence and by his fairness to the taxpayer, both in
the method followed by him in making his investigations,
and also in the manner in which he gave his evidence. His
reconstructions and projections of the information and
records contained in the Black book to other periods and
years not covered by the Black book, were carefully ex-
plained by him and conclusively demonstrated to me the
accuracy of the arbitrary assessment. I accept his evidence
as immeasurably superior to that given by the appellant’s
auditor, and in all instances, where there is conflict between
the two, I aceept Mr. Gowen’s evidence in preference to
that of the auditor.

It is clear that the appellant has not discharged the
burden on him to show that the arbitrary assessment
affirmed by the Minister of National Revenue, pursuant to
the provisions of section 47 of the Income War Tax Act of
Canada, is invalid or in error. That the burden is one which
the taxpayer must discharge has been clearly set forth in
several leading cases. I will refer only to the decision of

57892—2a
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Thorson, P. in Dezura v. Minister of National Revenue (1);
to the decisions of Rand J. and Kellock J. in B. W. S.
Johnston v. Minister of National Revenue (2); see also
Cameron, J. in Chernenkoff v. Minister of National Revenue
(8). Counsel for the appellant stressed the effect of the
decision of Thorson P. in Goldman v. Minister of National
Revenue (4). I am of opinion that the language of the
learned President in his decision does not assist counsel in
this case. The learned President did not vary in any
respect the statements of the law already referred to in
Johnston v. Minister of National Revenue (supra).

This appeal will be dismissed with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

BeTwEEN:
ALLOY METAL SALES LTD. .......... APPELLANT;
AND
THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL } RESPONDENT.
REVENUE ..........ccvvvnnnn.

Revenue—Excess Profits Tax Act 1940, s. 16A—Standard profit—Controlled
company—No ambiguity in the wording of Section 16A—Meaning of
the wording of Section 16A—Appeal dismissed.

The appellant company was incorporated in 1940, and has been since its
inception a wholly owned subsidiary of the International Nickel
Company of Canada Limited for the purpose of distributing the latter
company’s products. Appellant company’s standard profit was fixed
by the Board of Referees under the Excess Profits Tax Act, prior to
the enactment of Section 15A of that statute, at the sum of $60,000.
Subsequent to the enactment of that section, in May 1943, and in
accordance with its provisions the appellant’s standard profit in respect
of the taxation years of 1942, 1943, 1944 and 1945 was fixed by the
Minister at the sum of $5,000. Hence the appeal.

Held: That there is no ambiguity in the wording of Section 15A of the
Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940.

2. That the wording of the section simply means that the standard profit
of a controlled company cannot exceed $5,000 a year, notwithstanding
any provision in the Act. The Royal City Sawmills Limited v. The
Minsster of National Revenue, (1950) Ex. C.R. 276 followed.

(1) (1948) Ex. C.R. 10. (3) (1950) Ex. C.R. 15 at 23.
(2) (1948) S.C.R. 486 at 490 and (4) (1951) Ex. C.R. 274.
492,
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APPEAL under the Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940. Bi%
The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice p AT
Archibald at Toronto. Lnurren
v.
H. C. F. Mockridge, Q.C. for appellant. Muvismag
. NaroNsn
J. W. Pickup, Q.C. and T. Z. Boles for respondent. REVENUE

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

ArcrEBALD J. now (March/ 14, 1952) delivered the
following judgment:

The appellant, Alloy Metal Sales Limited, was incor-
porated on December 27, 1940, to become the organization
for the distribution of certain produets of the International
Nickel Company of Canada, Limited. Prior to that date,
the International Nickel Company of Canada, Limited,
had attended to the distribution of its own products.

Paragraph 6 of the appeal contains the following words:

6. The appellant has accordingly since the first of January, 1941, carried

on the business of distributing and selling the products of The Inter-

national Nickel Company of Canada, Limited and its subsidiaries such as

nickel alloys and rolled nickel and nickel alloy shapes and in addition has

distributed certain metals such as stainless steel produced by others and

its standard profit was fixed by the Board of Referees under The Excess

Profits Tax Act, prior to the enactment of Section 15A of that Statute at
the sum of $60,000. .

Section 15A of the Excess Profits Tax Act reads as

follows:

15A. Notwithstanding anything in this Act contained in any case where
a company has a controlling interest in any other company or companies
(hereinafter called controlled company or companies) incorporated in
1940 or thereafter . . . and the sum of the capital employed by such
company and such controlled company or companies at the time of incor-
poration is not in the opinion of the Minister of National Revenue sub-
stantially greater than the capital employed by such first~-mentioned
company prior to the incorporation of such controlled company or com-
panies, the standard profits of all such controlled companies taken together
shall not exceed $5,000 in the aggregate, and shall be allocated to each
of such controlled companies in such amounts as the Minister of National
Revenue may direct.

In any such case a reference to the Board of Referees shall not be
made notwithstanding the provisions of section five of this Act.

The contention on behalf of the appellant is that inas-
much as this legislation is retroactive and has retrospective

effect, this section must be strictly construed and that
57892—23a
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E’f ambiguity being evident by reason of the second paragraph
Auoy  Oof the section the Court should, in construing the whole of
Merar Satms gontion 15A resort to discussions in Parliament to assist

Livrrep 7YY o h .

v. it in determining the reason for the legislation.
MiNISTER . .

oF After giving careful thought to the wording of the sub-
NarronaL

Rmvewue  Section, I am unable to see that there is any such ambiguity

Archibalqy. 10 the wording of the section as to justify resort to the

—  discussions in Parliament at the time when consideration
was being given to the legislation.

The argument on behalf of the appellant is that if resort
is had to the Hansard debates at the time of the enactment
of this legislation, it will be apparent that the purpose of
the Act was to prevent an abuse from creeping in which
would permit companies to incorporate wholly owned sub-
sidiaries for the purpose of limiting income tax assessments.
There is certainly nothing in the section itself containing
any reference to such an abuse. There is no recital nor any
preamble to indicate anything of the kind. If the wording
of the section means anything at all, it means that the
standard profits of the Alloy Metal Sales Limited cannot
exceed $5,000 a year, notwithstanding any provision in the
Act.

The point was squarely before this Court in the appeal of
The Royal City Sawmills Limited v. The Minister of
National Revenue (1). That case was tried before Sidney
Smith, D.J.,, and at p. 278, the learned judge states:

In my opinion there ean be no doubt that, from first to last, this was
a controlled company in the sense of this section (indeed the point was
not contested) ; that in the opinion of the Minister of National Revenue
(and, I may add, in my own as well) the sum of the capital of parent and
offspring was not substantially greater than the capital of the parent
company at the relevant time; and that its date of incorporation and
chargeable accounting periods come within the statutory time. How, then,
can it be said that the company falls outside the wide net of this section?

The main argument was that having had its standard profits fixed at
$28,500 in 1941, the section could not now operate to reduce them to
$5,000; that this would be tantamount to retrospective legislation; and
that the section left much room for doubt as to whether this was the
intention.

But the section introduced a new standard profit for certain companies
of which this was one. It contains no hint that Parliament intended that
the section should not apply to companies within its ambit whose standard
profits had previously been fixed by some other measure. If such had

(1) (1950) Ex. C.R. 276.
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been the intention nothing would have been easier than to say so. In
the absence of such language the qualification of its terms by any such
implication is not legitimate. The provision may seem harsh to the
appellant company, but if the provision is clear the Court has no juris-
diction to mitigate such harshness, if any there be.

In my opinion this statutory provision interpreted according to income
tax principles and to the actual terms of the language used amounts to
saying: “If you are a controlled company your standard profits shall
not exceed $5,000 notwithstanding any machinery in the Act which may
hitherto have given you a greater standard profit.”

The appeal must be dismissed with costs.

In this appeal, it is complained that the result has worked
hardship on the appellant because the income tax as assessed
is greatly in excess of any assessment that would have been
made had no wholly owned subsidiary been established for
the purpose of attending to the sales of the various products
referred to in its Letters Patent, and, while it may be
regretable that this condition has resulted, nevertheless, in
my view, proper construction of the statute does not permit
the interpretation sought by the appellant.

The appeal will be dismissed with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

BerweeN:
HYMAN RUBENSTEIN et al .......... APPELLANTS;
AND
THE REGISTRAR OF TRADE MARKS . RESPONDENT,
AND

Btlle\JIgVA WATCH COMPANY }OBJECTING PARTY.

Trade Mark—“Bulla”—“Bulova”—The Unfair Competition Act, 1932,
8. of C. 1932, c. 38, ss. 2(k) (m) (o), 26(1) (f), 61—Whether “Bulla”
stmalar to “Bulova”—Whether two trade marks are similar within
meaning of 8. 2(k) of the Act a question of fact to be determined upon

facts and particulars of each case—Test to be applied that of sound
—8ound of words “Bulova” and “Bulla” likely to confuse users of
wares—Evidence of actual confusion not necessary—Appeal dismissed.

The Registrar refused the appellant’s application to register the word mark
“Bulla” for use in association with watches on the ground that the
proposed word mark is confusingly similar to the objecting party’s
registered trade mark “Bulova” for use in association with watches,
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1952 watch movements, watch cases and watch parts. The appeal is from
- the Registrar’s refusal and the objecting party was added as a party
RU?;ZTEIN to the proceedings in appeal.

v. Held: That whether two trade marks are similar within the meaning of
R,E’It;g];mn 8. 2(k) of the Unfair Competition Aet, S. of C. 1932, ¢. 38, is a
oF TRADE question of fact to be determined upon the particular facts and
MARKS circumstances of each case.

- 2. That the only test that need be applied herein is that of sound. In
each case, the word mark is comprised of one word only; in each case,
when spoken in English, the accent is on the first syllable, which is
identical for both words; and in each case the first and last syllables
are exactly alike both in spelling and pronunciation.

3. That the sound of the two words “Bulova” and “Bulla” is such that
users of the wares would likely confuse them and be led “to infer that
the same person assumed responsibility for their character or quality”,

4. That when there has been no substantial contemporaneous use of the
two marks, the fact that there is no evidence of actual confusion
through such use as there has been, is not of much importance. Freed
and Freed Ltd. v. Registrar of Trade Marks et al (1950) Ex. C.R. 431
followed.

APPEAL from the Registrar’s refusal to register the
appellant’s proposed word mark “BULLA”.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Ottawa.

Henri Gerin-Lajoie, Q.C. for appellant.
W.P.J. OMeara, Q.C. for Registrar.
J. C. Osborne for objecting party.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CaMERON J. now (March 18, 1952) delivered the following
judgment:

This is an appeal under section 51 of the Unfair Com-
petition Act, 1932, from the refusal of the Registrar of
Trade Marks to register the word mark “BULLA.” On
November 21, 1949, the appellants filed an application to
register that mark, alleging that they had used it on wares
described as “watches” to indicate that such wares were
sold by them.

At that time, Bulova Watch Company, Inc., was the
registered owner of two specific trade marks as follows: (1)
Registration No. 235/50875, consisting of the word mark
“BULOVA” for use with watches and watch movements,
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which was registered on November 5, 1930; (2) Registra- 253
tion No. 194/42775, consisting of the word mark Rusmwsran
“BULOVA,” together with certain design matter for use etv‘fl'
with watches, watch-cases and watch parts, which was _ Tmz

. R
registered on November 2, 1927. o?’f‘iii?

Bulova Watch Company opposed the appellants’ appli- MA=S
cation and after some correspondence the Registrar, on Camerond.
December 22, 1950, refused the application, his grounds _
being stated as follows:

Tt is my opinion that the word “BULLA” and the registered Trade
Marks “BULOVA?” are confusingly similar within the meaning of Section
2(k) of the Unfair Competition Act, 1932, and that in the mind of the
public, the marks so resemble each other or so clearly suggest the idea
conveyed by each other that the contemporaneous use of both in the
same area in association with wares of the same kind would be likely to
cause dealers in and/or users of such wares to infer that the same person
assumed responsibility for their character or quality.

Accordingly, the application of your client is refused. This is a final
action.

Upon the application of Bulova Watch Company, it was
added as an objecting party in the appeal and in its State-
ment of Objections it relied substantially on the reasons
agssigned by the Registrar for refusing the application.

The Registrar’s decision was based on the provisions of
section 26(1) (f) of the Unfair Competition Act, as follows:

26. (1) Subject as otherwise provided in this Act, a word mark shall
be registrable if it

(f) is not similar to, or to a possible translation into English or
French of, some other word mark already registered for use in
connection with similar wares;

It is admitted that the wares sold by the appellants and
the wares manufactured and sold by the objecting party are
“similar” as that term is defined in the Unfair Competi-
tion Act, s. 2(1). The sole question for determination,
therefore, is whether “BULLA,” the proposed word mark
of the appellants, is similar to “BULOVA,” the word mark
of the objecting party, already registered.

Section 2 of the Act defines “similar” in relation to trade
marks, “trade mark” and “word mark,” as follows:

2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires:

(k) “Similar,” in relation to trade marks, trade names or distinguish-
ing guises, describes marks, names or guises s0 resembling each
other or so clearly suggesting the idea conveyed by each other
that the contemporaneous use of both in the same area in
association with wares of the same kind would be likely to cause
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dealers in and/or users of such wares to infer that the same person
assumed responsibility for their character or quality, for the con-
ditions under which or the class of persons by whom they were
produced, or for their place of origin;
(m) “Trade mark” means a symbol which has become adapted to
distinguish particular wares falling within a general category from
other wares falling within the same category, and is used by any
person in association with wares enfering into trade or commerce
for the purpose of indicating to dealers in, and/or users of such
wares that they have been manufactured, sold, leased or hired by
him, or that they are of a defined standard or have been pro-
duced under defined working conditions, by a defined class of
persons, or in a defined territorial area, and includes any dis-
tinguishing guise capable of constituting a trade mark;
“Word mark” means & trade mark consisting only of a series of
letters and/or numerals and depending for its distinctiveness upon
the idea or sound suggested by the sequence of the letters and/or
numerals and their separation into groups, independently of the
form of the letters or numerals severally or as a series.

(o

~

The appellants have been carrying on business as whole-
sale jewellers and importers in Montreal since August, 1949,
selling watches wholesale in Canada, but mostly in the
province of Quebec. Since October, 1949, they have been
selling watches exclusively under the trade mark “BULLA,”
as imported from Switzerland from the firm “Manufacture
de Montres Bulla, Emile Juillard, S.A.” 1t is shown that
the latter firm has been in existence since 1872 and has
continuously carried on the business of the manufacture,
sale and export of watches, using the trade mark “BULLA”
in connection therewith. There is no evidence that any of
its watches were sold at any time in the United States or
that any of such wares with the word mark “BULLA” were
ever sold in Canada until October, 1949, when the appel-
lants first commenced to import and sell them. The appel-
lants are not shown to have acquired any rights in the
word mark from the Swiss manufacturer of the watches.
Their good faith in attempting to register as their word
mark the actual mark appearing on watches imported by
them is not challenged.

The objecting party is a New York corporation. Its
business was originally founded about 1875 by Joseph
Bulova and was incorporated in 1911 as “J. Bulova Com-
pany,” but its present name was adopted in 1923. As early
at least as 1907, the word “BULOVA” was adopted as its
trade mark and has been used continuously since that time
In association with watches, watch movements, parts
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thereof and watch cases. It was first used in Canada as a 1952
trade mark with respect to watches and watch movements T —
at least as early as 1927, and such use has been continuous etv‘fl'
since that date. It is the principal trade mark of the _ TmE

objecting party and that it is a very valuable asset is 1;\';:91{8;”3;3
established beyond question. From 1941 to 1951, it sold Masks
wares bearing that mark throughout every state in the CameronJ.
United States and every province in Canada, sales in the =
United States aggregating over 389 million dollars and in

Canada over 21 million dollars. For the same period, its

direct advertising costs in connection therewith totalled

over 39 million dollars in the United States and over 3

million dollars in Canada. In the United States and

Canada there are respectively over twelve thousand and

two thousand active outlets for its sales. Its advertising

has been conducted in all media, including magazines, trade

papers, newspapers, radio, television, window displays, ete.,

the details of which are supplied in the affidavits of H. E.

Henshal and R. F. Warren, two of its vice-presidents.

Whether two trade marks are similar within the meaning
of section 2(k) is a question of fact to be determined upon
the particular facts and circumstances of each case. The
matter has been frequently before the courts, but it is well
established that except where some general principle is laid
down, cases on the similarity of other marks under other
circumstances are of little assistance (vide Coca-Cola Com-
pany of Canada, Ltd. v. Pepsi-Cola Company of Canada,
Lid. (1)).

The general approach to this problem was stated by
Parker, J. in the Pianotist Co. Ld’s. Application (2), as
follows:

You must take the two words. You must judge of them, both by
their look and by their sound. You must consider the goods to which
they are to be applied. You must consider the nature and kind of
customer who would be likely to buy those goods. In fact, you must
consider all the surrounding circumstances; and you must further consider
what is likely to happen if each of those trade marks is used in a normal
way as & trade mark for the goods of the respective owners of the marks.
If, considering all those circumstances, you come to the conclusion that
there will be a confusion--that is to say, not necessarily that one man
will be injured and the other will gain illicit benefit, but that there will
be a confusion in the mind of the public which will lead to confusion in
the goods—then you may refuse the registration, or rather you must
refuse the registration in that case.

(1) (1942) 2 D.L.R. 657 at 661. (2) (1906) 23 R.P.C. 774 at 777.
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1952 This statement was quoted with approval by Davis J.

Rusenseens 10 the Pepsi-Cola v. Coca-Cola case (1).
et al.

v. In the case of British Drug Houses Limited v. Battle
Reos « Pharmaceuticals Limited (2), certain general principles

o’ 'E:;D: were laid down both in this Court and on the appeal. In
— the Supreme Court of Canada, Kerwin, J. followed the
CameronJ. iydgment of the House of Lords in Aristoc Ld. v. Rysta Ld.
(3), which adopted a passage in the dissenting judgment of
Luxmoore, L.J., in the Court of Appeal as a fair statement
of how the Court should approach the question of the
similarity of trade marks. The passage appears in the

speech of Viscount Maugham at p. 86:

The answer to the question whether the sound of one word resembles
too nearly the sound of another so as to bring the former within the limits
of s. 12 of the Trade Marks Act, 1938, must nearly always depend on first
impression, for obviously a person who is familiar with both words will
neither be deceived nor confused. It is the person who only knows the
one word, and has perhaps an imperfect recollection of it, who is likely
to be deceived or confused. Little assistance, therefore, is to be obtained
from a meticulous comparison of the two words, letter by letter and
syllable by syllable, pronounced with the clarity to be expected from a
teacher of elocution. The court must be careful to make allowance for
imperfect recollection and the effect of careless pronunciation and speech
on the part not only of the person seeking to buy under the trade des-
cription, but also of the shop assistant ministering to that person’s wants.

In this connection, reference may also be made to S.
Cohen v. Registrar of Trade Marks (4) and to Union Oil
Co. of California v. The Registrar of Trade Marks (5).

The evidence given on the appeal (with one exception
to be later noted) was entirely by affidavit and it related
almost entirely to the manner in which “BULLA” and
“BULOVA” were pronounced. There is no disagreement
as to the manner in which the proposed mark “BULLA”
is pronounced. The affidavits filed by the appellants state
that when used by an English-speaking person, it is pro-
nounced with the accent on the first syllable, thus, “Bull’-a,”
and when used by a French-speaking person, it is pro-
nounced without accent, thus: “Bul-a.” The objecting
party’s affidavits do not deal with the matter at all and
I therefore accept the applicant’s evidence on that point.

(1) (1940) S.C.R. 17 at 32. (3) (1945) A.C. 68.

(2) (1944) Ex. CR. 239, (4) (1948) Ex. C.R. 513.
(1946) 8.C.R. 50. (5) (1949) Ex. C.R. 397.
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The evidence as to the manner in which “BULOVA” is 3’53
pronounced is contradictory. For the appellants there are Rusewsmein
sixteen affidavits from jewellers carrying on business in the Etv‘f'l'
cities of Montreal and Quebec and other cities in the _ T=e
province of Quebec. In each case, after stating the ex- %:%mn
perience which the deponent had in the sale of watches and = Magxs

the length of time which he had known the marks CameronJ.
“BULOVA” and “BULLA,” he stated: -

When I first learned of the existence of the trade mark “BULLA”
in connection with the sale of watches, I already knew the trade mark
“BULOVA” and no confusion arose in my mind between the two trade
marks which I have always distinguished without difficulty.

As to the word “BULOVA”, 1 have always pronounced and have
heard it pronounced in trade and by the general puble, in English with
the letter “o” pronounced as in “low” and with the accent on the second
syllable, as follows: “Boo-low’-va.”

In French I pronounce the word “BULOVA” without accent on any
gyllable, and with the first syllable pronounced “Bu,” following its French
pronunciation, in place of “Bou.”

In each case, also, there is a statement that the deponent
knows of no instance of confusion ever having arisen in the
trade or among the purchasing public, or otherwise, between
the two marks “BULLA” and “BULOVA.”

In addition, there is an affidavit of Sol Mayoff, a jewellery
salesman from Montreal, in English, in which he states
that no econfusion arose in his mind between the two marks
which he has always distinguished without difficulty; and
that he has always pronounced “BULOVA” and heard it
pronounced as above set forth, namely, “Boo-low’-va.” The
affidavit of S. Bigner, Quebec City, in English, is to the
same effect. In addition, there are four further affidavits
in English, three by jewellers carrying on business in Van-
couver and one by a bookkeeper-accountant of the city of
Toronto, in which the same statements are made. There
are also four affidavits taken by residents of Montreal, a
teacher, two engravers, and a furrier, all in English, and
all to the same effect.

The remaining evidence of the appellants consists of the
affidavit of Hyman Rubenstein, one of the appellants, and
C. E. Demers, a representative and sales agent of Elite
Jewellery Company, each stating that no confusion has
arisen in his mind between the marks “BULLA” and
“BULOVA,” and each stating that when “BULOVA” is
pronounced in English, it is pronounced with the accent



282 EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA [1952

Bf_% on the second syllable, as “Boo-low’-va.” In addition, Mr.
Rusenstery Demers states that when pronounced in French “BULOVA”
etal. g pronounced without accent on any syllable and that the

v

Ten  first syllable is pronounced “Bu” instead of “Bou.”
RecisTrRAR

OﬁiA‘:AKILE The evidence for the objecting party as to the pronuncia-
——  tion of its mark “BULOVA” is most cogent and convincing,
Camerond. o, much so that I aceept it without question as establish-
ing affirmatively that throughout the greater part, if not

all, of Canada, and throughout all of the United States, it is
pronounced as stated in their affidavits, namely, with the
accent on the first syllable as in “Bull,” and with the “o0”
pronounced as in “love,” thus, “Bull’-love-a.” As is well
known, much of the objecting party’s advertising is done by

spot advertising over radio and television networks, a large

part of it being in connection with time signals—given many

times daily—and on each occasion the word “BULOVA” is
repeated several times and usually spelled. It is shown

that instructions are given to announcers of the radio and
television programs advertising “BULOVA” watches that

the word should be pronounced as above. Their broadcasts,
whether originating in Canada or originating in the United

States and heard in Canada, are heard almost daily through-

out the whole of Canada. The affidavits of H. D. Henshel,

a vice-president, and of R. F. Warren, a vice-president in
charge of advertising and sales promotion of the objecting

party, state that they have never heard the word pro-
nounced at any time other than as above, and have never

heard it pronounced as stated -in the affidavits filed on
behalf of the appellants. Because of their positions, both

these witnesses would have a special interest in noting the
manner in which the word was pronounced and I accept

their statements without question.

There are also seven affidavits filed by radio announcers
employed in radio stations located in St. John’s (Newfound-
land), Vancouver, Montreal, Winnipeg, Hamilton and
Toronto, all of whom have been broadcasting from eleven
to seventeen years. In each case, they state:,

2. In the course of my duties as a radio announcer, I have frequently
broadeast the BULOVA time announcements which are issued over
stations located throughout the Dominion of Canada and in each case, I
have pronounced the word BULOVA with the accent on the first syllable
and with the letter “o” pronounced as in “love,” thus “Bull’-love-a”.
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Hugh Horler, who is in charge of the radio advertising 1952
division of the MacLaren Advertising Co. Ltd. of Toronto, RUBENSTEIN
and is familiar with the advertising of watches (including "“fl'
Bulova watches) throughout Canada, gave instructions to _ Tz
the various broadecasting stations for the diffusion of Bulova, ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ;“‘
watch advertising throughout Canada, and he states as MaBEs

follows: Cameron J.

v

4. I have never heard the name “Bulova” pronounced in the manner
set forth in the affidavit filed on behalf of the appellants herein, but have
always heard it pronounced with the accent definitely upon the first
syllable. If I had heard any radio announcer making an announcement
of “Bulla” watches, I would have been certain that he had made a slip
and was in fact broadcasting in connection with Bulova watches.

5. I am the person who gave instructions to the various radio broad-
casting stations for the diffusion of Bulova watches throughout Canada.
I have not at any time authorized the use of any other pronunciation of
the name of the said company or of its registered trade mark, except
with the accent very clearly upon the first syllable.

6. If at any time I had been in the provinece of Quebec and had heard
any announcer on the French network pronouncing the word “Bulova”
accentuated as referred to in the affidavits filed on behalf of the appel-
lants, I would have communicated at once with the said station and
have directed that the announcer should thereafter pronounce the word
“Bulova” in the accepted manner and in the only way known to me,
namely, with the accent on the first syllable.

The affidavit of Mr. E. V. Rechnitzer, a vice-president of
the said MacLaren Advertising Company, is to the same
effect.

The objecting party also put in evidence twenty affidavits
by retail jewellers resident in every province of Canada, and
each of whom has been familiar with Bulova watches for
many years. Each states as follows:

2. In the course of such business, I have sold a very large number
of time pieces including watches of many varieties and I have become
thoroughly familiar with the trade and the majority of the well-known
trade marks used in it.

3. In particular, I have been familiar with the internationally known
trade mark BULOVA for—years and I recognize it as a symbol identifying
watches of high quality which are in constant and extensive demand by
Canadian purchasers not only in my own establishment but in many
other outlets of which I have personal! knowledge.

4. T have never seen the word BULLA used in Canada as a trade

mark or otherwise in association with watches or other time pieces nor
have I seen it used in advertising in connection with such wares.

6. I have always pronounced the word BULOVA, and heard it pro-
nounced, with the accent on the first syllable and with the letter “o” pro-
nounced as in “love”, thus “Bull’love-a”.



284 EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA [1952

1952 6. The words BULLA and BULOVA so resemble each other that the
= contemporaneous use of both i the same area in association with watches

RUZ?LSZTEIN would- cause me to infer that the same person assumes responsibility for
v their character or quality.

REEIHSI;RAR There are also five affidavits from the general public,
orF Trape .
Marxs namely, an appliance salesman from Toronto, a stenogra-
Cameron J. Pher from St. John’s, Newfoundland, a clerk from Montreal,
—  a bank clerk from Vancouver, and an assistant manager
from Winnipeg, each of whom has had oceasion to interest
himself in the sale of watches and has been familiar with
a number of different trade marks used in association with
the watches. Kach has been familiar with the trade mark
“BULOVA” for many years and each gives evidence to
the same effect as in paragraphs 4, 5 and 6 of the affidavits
of the retail jewellers just quoted.

As I have said, the evidence as to the manner in which
“BULOVA” is pronounced in Canada is somewhat con-
flicting. However, I prefer that of the objecting party,
supported as it is by the evidence of those having a par-
ticular interest in and knowledge of the manner in which
it is pronounced, namely, the officials of the company, the
advertising agents, broadcasters throughout all of Canada,
and jewellers from every province of Canada who have sold
Bulova watches for many years, and also from the general
public. 1 am satisfied that its normal and generally used
pronunciation is with the accent on the first syllable and
with the “o” pronounced as in “love,” thus, “Bul’-love-a”;
and that it is only in a comparatively few and exceptional
cases, if at all, that it is pronounced with the accent on
the second syllable as in “low.”

At the hearing, counsel for the objecting party asked
leave to submit to the court the phonograph recordings of
certain radio broadcasts advertising Bulova watches and
in which the announcer repeatedly used the word
“BULOVA”. Rubenstein, one of the appellants, had stated
in his affidavit that to his personal knowledge the word
when used by radio broadcasters was pronounced as “Boo-
low-va.”” To meet this allegation, the objecting party
secured the affidavits of the seven radio announcers above
referred to, and each, after stating that he had always
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pronounced the word as contended for by the objecting L%E
party, added: RuBENSTEIN

3. Submitted herewith and marked as Exhibit A is a recording of ei}al.
such a time announcement broadcast by me in the ordinary course of my THE
duties over station on the day of December, 1951, which said Recistrar
recording was taken on my instructions, and having listened to the same, OF TRADE
I verify that it is a reproduction of my voice. Marxs

Cameron J.

In each case the date of the recording was in December,
1951, after this appeal was taken. The application also
extended to two other records referred to as Exhibits A and
B in the affidavit of R. F. Warren, and while the details of
these recordings are mot specifically stated, it is probable
that they also were taken after the present appeal was
launched.

Counsel for the appellants objected to the use of these
recordings both on principle and because they were taken
after the commencement of the appeal, and might, there-
fore, have been especially prepared so as to assist the object-
ing party’s contention. Had they been taken prior to the
dispute between the parties hereto, I would have admitted
them without question, as perhaps the best evidence of the
manner in which broadcasters actually pronounce the word,
and as that matter had been brought in issue by the affidavit
of one of the appellants. I have given consideration to the
objections and have decided that the playing of these
records is admissible evidence. The affidavits show that
the recordings as submitted were of broadecasts “in the
ordinary course of my duties” and are in confirmation of
a statement in the previous paragraph that the deponent
had always pronounced the word “BULOVA” as “Bull’-
love-a.” At the hearing, I admitted the recordings subject
to counsel’'s objections, which I now over-rule. When
actually played, these records confirmed the other evidence
contained in the affidavits filed for the objecting party the
announcer in each case pronouncing the word as I have just
stated, with the accent on the first syllable, and the “0” as
in “love.”

In view of these conclusions, considering all the surround-
ing eircumstances, and applying the principles laid down in
the cases which I have cited, I have no hesitation in reach-
ing the conclusion that the first impression of users of or
dealers in watches in association with which the words
“BULOVA” and “BULLA” are used, would likely be that
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they are confusingly similar. In this case, the only test

Rusewsmery that need be applied is that of sound. In each case, the

et al.
V.
TaE
REecisTRAR
oF TRADE
Marxks

Cameron:J.

word mark is comprised of one word only; in each case,
when spoken in English, the accent is on the first syllable,
which is identical for both words; and in each case the first
and last syllables are exactly alike both in spelling and
pronunciation. The importance of the first syllable of a
word mark was referred to in the case of In the Matter of
London Lubricants, (1920) Limited’s Application to Regi-
ster a Trade Mark (1), where in the Court of Appeal
Sargant, L.J. said at p. 279:

The termination of the new word is different. Though I agree that,
if 1t were the only difference, having regard to the way in which the
English language is often slurred at the termination of words, that might
not alone be sufficient distinction. But the tendency of persons using the
English language to slur the termination of words also has the effect
necessarily that the beginning of words is accentuated in comparison, and,
in my judgment, the first syllable of a word is, as a rule, far the most
important for the purpose of distinction.

It seems to me that a person who had some knowledge of
the mark “BULOVA,” but remembered the name somewhat
imperfectly (and possibly only the first syllable thereof)
would be easily confused when buying a watch which was
described by the seller as one made by “BULLA,” or as
a “BULLA” watch, and thus there would be confusion in
the goods themselves. It is to be kept in mind, also, that
when the watches of the appellants and the objecting party
are sold by the same dealer, it is highly probable that they
would be displayed and sold over the same watch counter.
The sound of the two words is such that in my opinion
users of the wares would likely confuse them and be led
“to infer that the same person assumed responsibility for
their character or quality.”

AsT have said, there has been no proof that eonfusion has
arisen because of the actual use of the two marks in ques-
tion. That would be an element to be taken into con-
sideration if there had been a long contemporaneous user
of the two marks in the same area, but that is not the case
bere. The appellant first used their mark in October, 1949,
but they have not seen fit to state the extent of its sales or

(1) (1925) 42 R.P.C. 264.
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of any advertising used in connection therewith. None of
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the persons who supplied affidavits for the objecting party G

had ever heard of the word “BULLA” in connection with
watches until these proceedings were commenced. I think
I can infer that such use as the appellants have made of
their mark has been extremely limited. When there has
been no substantial contemporaneous use of the two marks,
the fact that there is no evidence of actual confusion through
such use as there has been, is not of much importance, and
in this case I attach no great weight to it. (Freed and
Freed Ltd. v. Registrar of Trade Marks et al (1)).

It is admitted that the onus is on the appellants to show
that the decision of the Registrar was wrong. In my opinion,
the appellants have failed to establish that the proposed
mark is not calculated to deceive and to cause confusion.
I think that the decision of the Registrar was right and
should be affirmed.

The appeal will therefore be dismissed. The objecting
party will be entitled to its costs after taxation. While the
Registrar of Trade Marks was represented by counsel at the
hearing, the latter took no part in the proceedings and in
accordance with the usual practice, no order will be made
as to his costs.

Judgment accordingly.

(1) (1950) Ex. C.R. 431.
57892—3a
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1951 BrTWEEN:

Ro.2¥  SEVEN UP OF MONTREAL } R

— LIMITED «...vovesananannnnsn ;
ApT'Eé AND
MINISTER OF NATIONAL

REVENUE} REsPONDENT.

Revenue—Income War Tax Act 1927, c. 97, s. 6(1) (a) (b)—Ezpenditure
on account of capital or revenue—Qutlay on account of capital not
deductible from income as a “disbursement or expense wholly, ex-
clusively and necessarily latd out for earning the income”—Appeal
dismassed.

Held: That the purchase by appellant of the goodwill of another’s business,
and the covenant by the vendor to go out of business
together with the property and assets of the vendor’s business as
a going concern, is an outlay of money on account of capital and not
on revenue account, and as such is not deductible from income by
virtue of 8. 6(1) (b) of the Income War Tax Act R.S.C. 1927, c. 97,
and is not a disbursement or expense wholly, exclusively and neces-
sarily laid out for the purpose of earning the income as provided for
in 8. 6(1) (a) of the Act.

APPEAL from a decision of the Income Tax Appeal
Board.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Cameron at Montreal.

H. H. Stikemon, Q.C. and E. A. L. Bissonnette for
appellant.

C. Provost, Q.C. and R. G. Decary for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

CameroN J. now (April 28, 1952) delivered the following
judgment:

This is an appeal by the taxpayer from a decision of the
Income Tax Appeal Board dated September 28, 1950,
affirming the income tax assessment made upon the appel-
lant for the taxation year 1947. In assessing the appellant,
the respondent had disallowed as a deduction the sum of
$28,725 (including $225 legal expenses) which the appellant
claimed was a disbursement or expense wholly, exclusively
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and necessarily laid out for the purpose of earning its in- 1952
come, and therefore deductible under the provisions of Suvex U
"8. 6(1) (a) of the Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, ¢. 97, op MIJNTREAL

as amended. AL v,
JVIINISTER

The appellant company manufactures and distributes a NATSON AL

carbonated beverage known as “Seven Up,” of which sugar REEUE
is a very important ingredient. During the war years and Camerond.
for some time thereafter, sugar was rationed by the Govern-
ment of Canada and was under the control of the Sugar
Administrator of the Wartime Prices and Trade Board.
For industrial purposes—such as that of the appellant—
sugar was rationed on a basis of declaration of user in the
year 1941; then from time to time and consistent with the
available supplies, a percentage of that quota basis was
given as a quarterly quota. If at the end of the year it was
found that an industrial consumer had been receiving a
quota substantially in excess of his normal requirements,
his subsequent quotas could be reduced to a lesser per-
centage of the quota basis.

The appellant had been in business in 1941 and therefore
was in receipt of quarterly quotas of sugar ration permits,
and its output of “Seven Up” was limited by the amount of
sugar which it could purchase with those permits. Lack
of sugar alone prevented it from meeting the increased
demands for its product, its plant facilities being capable of
greatly increased output. Under the regulations established
by the Sugar Administrator, the only way in which an
industrial user of sugar could increase its quota basis was
by purchasing as a going concern the business of another
industrial user of sugar and thereafter by applying to the
Sugar Administrator to add to its quota basis that formerly
held by the vendor.

Having in mind the desirability of placing itself in a
position to secure more sugar, the appellant entered into
negotiations with another beverage manufacturer in the
Montreal area, Rocket Cola Co. Ltd. (hereinafter to be
. called “Rocket”), which also had an industrial quota for
sugar, but which desired to discontinue its business. In
the result, the appellant and Rocket, on February 6, 1947,
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1952 entered into a bulk sales agreement (Ex. 1) by which for
‘*—l . .
Sevew Ue the expressed consideration of $30,699.61, Rocket sold,
oF MI{,?T'REAL conveyed and transferred to the appellant:

MINza.sm The ownership of and all its rights and title to the assets presently
OF used by the vendor as a going concern under the name of Rocket Cola Co.
gg%‘;ﬁg‘ 1td., carrying on the business of manufacturing and bottling soft beverages
- at 3870 Cote St. Michel, Ville St. Michel, Quebec, including goodwill, sugar
CameronJ. gupplies and rights to sugar quota and contracts, the whole as more fully
— described on the sheet attached hereto, marked “A” and signed by the

parties.

Ex. A to that agreement, which was signed by both
parties, was as follows:

ASSETS OF ROCKET COLA CO. LTD.

Right to purchase sugar under sugar quota SA 013119 Q of the Wartime
Prices and Trade Board.

A. STOCK
Sugar on hand ......cvevvvinvinennnnn 2,500 1bs. 17250
Sugar purchased from and on order for
delivery from Canada & Dominjon
Sugar Co. Ltd. under sugar quota SA
013119 Q being balance of last quarter

of 1946 and first quarter of 1947 ...... 29,450 lbs. 2,027.11
B. Sundry Inventories

SUPPHES .ivvrernrenecneenrnentenrans 358.69

=) 50.00

Finished Goods ......cvvvvevveinnnnnns 39840

Bottles & Cases ......ovvvvvvvnvannns 3,031.80 3,838.89
C. Boitling Equipment ........c.ccvveenns 19,721.97

Less allowance for depreciation ....... 10,144.35 9,577.62
D. Trucks & Equipment .......c.ccvveuees 1,486.00

Less allowance for depreciation ....... 1,485.00 1.00
E. Furniture & Fiztures .....covvveeeinss 1,436.85

Less allowance for depreciation ....... 517.16 919.69
F. Shop Equipment .....coovsvessncannns 1,508.48

Lease on manufacturing premises at 3870 Cote St. Michel, Montreal,
Quebec.

Finally, by para. 6 it was provided:

6. The vendor undertakes to cease carrying on its business described
above and to take immediate steps to wind up its affairs.
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On the same date the appellant and Rocket executed 1952
Form 445 supplied by the Sugar Administrator of the Smn Ue
Wartime Prices and Trade Board, entitled: “Industrial oFMommm
Sugar Quota Transfer Declaration” (Ex. 5). Therein, 5> -
Rocket stated by the oath of its president: OF

NaTioNAL
Effective on the 6th day of February, 1947, I/we Rocket Cola Co. Ltd. Revenue

hereby transfer and assign all present, past and future sugar and preserve
rights as applied to my/our authorized respective quotas, to Seven Up of
Montreal, Ltd.

I/we also advise that my/our business was transferred as a going
concern.

Cameron J.

This declaration was duly forwarded to the Sugar
Administrator who, on February 8, 1947, wrote the appel-
lant as follows:

‘We have received from your solicitors, Messrs. Bumbray & Carroll, the
Industrial Sugar Quota Transfer Declaration confirming to us that you
purchased on February 6th, 1947 the soft drink business of Rocket Cola
Co. Ltd. 3870 Cote St. Michel, Montreal.

We are transferring to you the sugar quotas of Rocket Cola Co. Lid.

At the time of the sale, a balance of 29450 coupons remained at the
credit of Rocket Cola Co. Ltd. at their bank for which & ration cheque
of same amount has been handed to us. In order to replace this cheque,
we enclose a Supplementary Industrial Sugar Quota Authorization for
29,450 coupons, which kindly deposit at once at your bank, entitling you
to use this quantity of sugar during the present quarter.

That, however, did not conclude the matter. The appel-
lant, having received the administrator’s letter of February

10, 1947, wrote Rocket on the same date as follows (Ex. 2):

In respect to the Bulk Sale Agreement entered into on February 6th,
1947 between yourselves as vendors and ourselves as purchasers, it is agreed
that in consideration of the sum of $1.00, we hereby waive all claim and
title to items (b), (¢), (d), (e) and (f) of the assets mentioned in the said
agreement, all said items to remain your property for all legal purposes.

We are also waiving all rights for the lease for the premises presently
occupied by your company at 3870 Cote St. Michel Road, Ville St. Michel.

It will be seen, therefore, that as a result of all the trans-
actions with Rocket, the appellant retained as tangible
assets only sugar on hand and sugar in transit, of an aggre-
gate agreed value of $2,199.61. In addition, the appellant’s
sugar quota basis was increased to the extent of Rocket’s
former quota basis and it was therefore in a position, while
rationing remained in effect, to purchase larger amounts of
sugar than it could otherwise have done. Sugar was decon-
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trolled in November, 1947. The appellant says that this
right to acquire additional sugar was obtained at a cost of

oF Mlémmm $28,500, that is, the difference between the total considera-

.
MiNisTER
OF
NATIONAL
REVENUE

Cameron J.

tion of $30,699.61 and the value of the sugar on hand and
in transit; that it represented the actual additional cost
of acquiring additional sugar and is just as much a de-
ductible expense as the cost of the sugar itself. It says that
in substance it purchased a rating to acquire further sugar,
which rating, by reason of the regulations of the Wartime
Prices and Trade Board, was an absolute prerequisite to
the purchase of sugar.

What, then, is the true nature of this outlay of $28,5007
The respondent submits that it is a disbursement or expense
which is not deductible by reason of the provisions of
8. 6(1) (a) and (b) of the Income War Tax Act, while the
appellant contends that it was a disbursement wholly,
exclusively and necessarily laid out for the purpose of
earning the income and was not a capital outlay. Those
sections are as follows:

6. In computing the amount of the profits or gams to be assessed, a
deduction shall not be allowed in respect of

(a) disbursements or expenses not wholly, exclusively and necessarily
laid out or expended for the purpose of earning the income;

(b) any outlay, loss or replacement of capital or any payment on
account of capital or any depreciation, depletion or obsolescence,
except as otherwise provided in this Act.

There are two main reasons why the appellant’s outlay
of $28,500 cannot be said to have been for the purchase
from Rocket of a rating or right to acquire sugar. The
first is that such a purchase would have been illegal and
the second is that there is no admissible evidence to estab-
lish that such was the case.

It is abundantly clear from the evidence that “the rights
to purchase sugar under Sugar Quota SA013119Q” (the first
item in Schedule A) was not something which could be sold
by Rocket to the appellant. It was a right, issued by the
Sugar Administrator, to a particular industrial user and for
his own use only. At the trial I asked for the produection
of the applicable regulations and orders, but they were not
produced. Since then, however, I have found certain orders
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of the Wartime Prices and Trade Board which appear to be E?iz
applicable. For example, Order No. 242 of the Wartime Sgven Up
Prices and Trade Board respecting sugar rationing, dated op Mo iraAL
February 27, 1943, provided as follows: v

MINIsTER
OF
NartoNaL
(a) forge, counterfeit, utter, endorse, transfer, trafiic in, alter, deface, Revenve

mutilate, obliterate or destroy any sugar coupon, canning sugar Cgmeron J.
coupon, ration book, ration eard, requisition, certificate, permit, e
ration cheque, transfer voucher, or any other document relating
to a purchase or use of sugar, or anything printed or written

thereon;”

41. No person, except as provided by this order, shall

From the evidence as a whole, I am satisfied that that
order or a similar order or regulation remained in effect
throughout. It would have been illegal to sell such a quota
or for the purchaser thereof to make any use of it. Rocket
therefore could not sell and the appellant could not purchase
any right to purchase sugar. All that the appellant could
do to increase its sugar quota basis was to buy the assets
of Rocket as a going concern, satisfy the Sugar Adminis-
trator that that had been done, and then make application
to the administrator—not to transfer Rocket’s sugar quota
authorization to it, but—to increase its own to the extent
formerly enjoyed by Rocket. These were the actual steps
taken by the appellant. In the result, its application was
approved. Rocket’s former quota SA013119Q was sur-
rendered for cancellation and the appellant’s quota basis
was increased. What the appellant had to purchase and
did, in fact, purchase, were the assets and property of
Rocket. It was upon the appellant as purchaser of such
assets that the Sugar Administrator conferred the additional
rights to purchase sugar.

On the second point, the evidence clearly establishes that
for a consideration of $30,699.61, the appellant bought out
all the assets of Rocket Cola Co. Ltd. as a going concern.
Their contract was embodied in the Bulk Sales Agreement
(Ex. 1) which was not an agreement to sell but an actual
sale, transfer and conveyance of all Rocket’s right and title
to the assets mentioned in Schedule A thereto, the details
of which have been set out above. In argument, counsel
for the appellant admitted that the Bulk Sales Agreement
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1952 did, in faet, constitute a sale to the appellant of the assets
»m:u U Setout therein; and also that the letter of February 10, 1947
or Mosormmaz, (BX. 2) constltuted a resale by the appellant to Rocket of
Mo e the assets therein mentioned for a consideration of one
OF dollar. He submitted, however, that the results of the sale
gﬁ;‘ﬁ;‘; and resale made it apparent that the true intent of the
—— _ parties was the sale and purchase of sugar and rights to
Cameron J. purchase sugar, and that it was never the intention that the
appellant should ever acquire the ownership of anything

else. At his request, but under reserve of objections raised

by counsel for the respondent as to its admissibility, I heard

evidence by officials of the appellant who took part in the

negotiations with Rocket.

By s. 35 of the Canada Evidence Act, the Laws of Evi-
dence in force in the provinece of Quebec are made applicable
to these proceedings. By Articles 1206 and 1234 of the
Civil Code of that provinee, it is provided:

1208. The rules declared in this chapter, unless expressly or by their
nature hmited, apply in commercial as well as in other matters.

‘When no provision is found in this code for the proof of facts con-
cerning commercial matters, recourse must be had to the Rules of Evidence
laid down by the laws of England.

1234. Testimony cannot in any case, be received to contradict or vary
the terms of a valid written instrument.

I think there can be no doubt that the evidence of these
witnesses, insofar as it tends to show that at the time of
the execution of the main contract embodied in the Bulk
Sales Agreement there was also an oral contract that after
the happening of certain events the appellant would resell
to Rocket a portion of the goods comprised in the original
sale for the sum of one dollar, would be admissible. Such
an agreement would not be inconsistent with or tend to vary
or contradict the terms of Ex. 1 (Phipson on Evidence,
8th Ed., p. 568). But insofar as that evidence would tend
to show that Rocket did not sell the whole of its business
and assets as a going concern, or that the whole of the
consideration of $30,699.61 was referable to sugar and the
right to purchase sugar, and not to all the assets mentioned
in the agreement and its schedule, or that the appellant did
not, in fact, become the owner of all such assets upon
executing the Bulk Sales Agreement, it is in my view
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inadmissible as tending to contradict or vary the terms of 1953
that written agreement (Art. 1234 of the Civil Code), and SEVEN Up
I therefore reject it as inadmissible. oF Momm

For the reasons which I have stated, therefore, I find that Mmisres
the appellant could not legally have purchased from Rocket , o
the right to purchase sugar, and that there is no admissible Revexus
evidence to establish that in attempting to acquire it, the CameronJ.
appellant paid $28,500 or any other specific amount therefor, ——

I think that it cannot now be disputed that for the outlay
of $30,699.61, the appellant acquired not only the goodwill
of Rocket’s business and a covenant that Rocket would go
out of business, but also the property mentioned in Schedule
A to the agreement, including the lease, bottling equipment,
trucks and equipment, furniture and fixtures, and shop
equipment. (Nothing need be said about the value of the
stock of sugar on hand and in transit totalling $2,199.61,
the acquisition of which by the appellant was approved
by the Sugar Administrator and which amount the respond-
ent herein has quite properly treated as an expense attribut-
able to the acquisition of stock). These physical assets
were doubtless of considerable value as indicated by the
amounts placed opposite them in Schedule A. The agree-
ment and the schedule were both prepared by the appel-
lant’s solicitors, and signed by the appellant. There is no
evidence that the values therein given were not, in fact
the real market values of the various items. The value
of the lease is not stated and there is no evidence whatever
to indicate whether or not it had any real market value.

There can be no doubt, therefore, that on the admissible
evidence the appellant’s outlay was for the purpose of
acquiring the assets of Rocket as a going concern. Its
officers were told by their legal advisors that under the
existing controls such a bona fide purchase would have to
be made and that in no other way could it hope to increase
its sugar quota basis, and that is what the appellant did.

The appellant’s business was that of manufacturing and
distributing beverages. The purchase of another business
as a going concern with the assets I have mentioned, was
made by it as owner and not as a trader and undoubtedly
resulted in the acquisition of enduring assets. In my
opinion, the outlay in respect thereof was just as much an

60381-—1a
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outlay on account of capital as it would have been had
the appellant been a new corporation formed for the pur-

wMI;fj’ém pose of acquiring Rocket’s business as a going concern. As

v.
MINISTER
OF
NATIONAL
NUE

CameronJ.

an outlay on account of capital, its deduction is barred by
the provisions of s. 6(1) (b) of the Income War Tax Act
(supra). In my opinion, the mere fact that within a few
days the appellant made a resale of most of the assets for
the price of one dollar cannot change the nature of the
original outlay from one on capital account to one on
revenue account. In so re-selling at a loss, the appellant
incurred a capital loss.

In view of these findings, it is not necessary to consider
the evidence of certain accountants as to what would have
been proper accounting practice had the appellant, in fact,
paid $28,500 for the right to purchase sugar. The outlay
on account of capital being specifically debarred from
deduction by the provisions of the Act, the question of
proper accounting practice does not here arise.

For these reasons, I must affirm the conclusions of the
Income Tax Appeal Board and dismiss the appeal there-
from. The respondent is entitled to be paid his costs after
taxation.

Judgment accordingly.
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BETWEEN : 1950

ANACONDA AMERICAN BRASS June 19-23,

. 26,
LIMITED......................} ArpELLANT; %7
1952

AND June 7

THE MINISTER OF NATIONAL

Revenue—Ezxcess profits tar—Exzcess Profits Tax Act, 1940, 8.C. 1940, c. 82
ss. 2(1) (c), 2(1) (i), 2(1) (f), 3—Net tazable income—Income War
Tazx Act, R.8.C. 1927, ¢. 97—Determination of income through match-
ing appropriate costs against revenues—Cost of sales—Value of closing
inventory—Last-in first~-ou! or Lifo method of inventory accounting.

} RESPONDENT.

The appellant operated a primary mill and produced copper and copper
alloys in the form of sheets, rods and tubes. It sought to make its
profits by processing its metals into its finished products and did not
trade or speculate in its raw materials. It maintained a policy of
having the sales price of its finished products closely reflect the
replacement cost of their metal content and it matched its metal
purchases to its sales so that the inward flow of metals matched the
outward flow of the metal content of its finished products. Its
business required a large inventory and the rate of turnover of its
inventory was slow. It made no attempt to use its raw materials
in the order of their purchase or in any particular order. The
appellant had used the last-in first-out or Lifo method of inventory
accounting for its own corporate purposes ever since 1936 but first used
it in computing its income tax and excess profits tax in its returns
for 1946 and extended its use in its returns for 1947. The Minister
refused to recognize the method and on his assessment for 1947 added
a large amount to the amount of taxable income reported by it.
From this assessment the appellant appealed.

Held: That the proper determination of income through matching
appropriate costs against revenues is a major objective of accounting.

2. That there is no single inventory method that is applicable in all
circumstances and the method that ought to be selected for any
company is the one that is in accord with its genius of profit making
and most nearly accurately reflects its income position according to
the manner in which it carries on its business.

3. That the Lifo method of inventory accounting and ascertaining the
materials cost of sales is a recognized and acceptable method in the
circumstances that are appropriate to it.

4. That where a manufacturing company avoids speculation or trading
in its materials and makes the sales price of its finished products
clogely reflect the current replacement cost of their materials content
and matches its purchases of materials to its sales of finished products
so that the inflow of the materials equals the outflow of the materials
content of the finished products and it must continuously maintain a
large inventory and the rate of its turnover is slow the Lifo method of
inventory accounting and ascertaining the materials cost of its sales
for the year is the method that most nearly accurately reflects its
60381—13a
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income position according to the manner in which it carries on its
business and is the method that ought to be appled in ascertaining
the materials cost of its sales and determining its net taxable income.

5. That the Lifo method of inventory accounting was appropriate in the
circumstances of the appellant’s business.

APPEALS under the Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940.
The appeals were heard before the President at Toronto.

A. 8. Pattillo Q.C., W. C. De Roche and A. J. MacIntosh
for appellant.

J. W. Pickup Q.C. and F. J. Cross for respondent.

The facts and questions of law raised are stated in the
reasons for judgment.

THE PRESIDENT now (June 7, 1952) delivered the follow-
ing judgment:

The appeals herein were brought against the Appellant’s
assessments under The Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940,
Statutes of Canada, 1940, chap. 32, for the years 1946 and
1947 but at the hearing it developed that the dispute over
the assessment for 1946 turned on a question of serap
allowance and it was agreed that the appeal against it
should be dismissed without costs. The Court is thus
concerned only with the appeal against the assessment for
1947,

The tax in question was imposed by section 3 of The
Excess Profits Tax Act, 1940, which read:

3. In addition to any other tax or duty payable under any Act, there
shall be assessed, levied and paid a tax in accordance with the rate set
out in the Second Schedule to this Act upon the excess profits of every
corporation or joint stock company residing or ordinarily resident in
Canada or carrying on business in Canada:

And “excess profits” was defined by section 2(c) as:

2. (1) (¢) “Excess profits” means

(i1) in the case of a corporation or joint stock company that has
not filed a consolidated return for the taxation period, the amount
by which the profits of the taxpayer exceed one hundred and
sixteen and six hundred and sixty-six one thousandths per centum
of the standard profits of the taxpayer;

And “standard profits” was defined by section 2(%) as:

2. (1) (3) “Standard profits” means the average yearly profits of a
taxpayer in the standard period in carrymg on what was in the opinion
of the Minister the same class of business as the business of the taxpayer
in the year of taxation or the standard profits ascertained in accordance
with section five of this Act:
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And finally “profits” was defined by section 2(f) as:

2. (1) (f). “Profits” in the cage of a corporation or joint stock company
for any taxation period means the amount of net taxable income of the
said corporation or joint stock company as determined under the pro-
visions of the Income War Taz Act in respect of the same taxation period,

Thus what falls to be determined is the amount of the
appellant’s net taxable income in 1947 as determined under
the Income War Tax Act, R.S.C. 1927, chapter 97.

The issue in the appeal is whether the appellant in com-
puting its net taxable income for 1947 was entitled to deduct
from its gross revenue from the sale of its finished produects
the cost of their metal content as ascertained by the last-in
first-out method of accounting, commonly called the Lifo
method. The appellant contends that it was entitled to
use this method in ascertaining such cost. The Minister,
on the other hand, asserts that the appellant’s cost of sales
for the year must be determined according to the first-in
first-out method, commonly called the Fifo method. This
would result in a much higher valuation of the appellant’s
closing inventory for 1947 than under the Lifo method.
The Minister asserts that the increase in value of this
closing inventory caleulated on the basis of cost or market
whichever is lower over the value of the opening inventory
for 1947 calculated on the same basis must be regarded
as inventory profit in 1947 and included as an item of the
appellant’s taxable income. Under the Lifo method there
would be no such addition. The question whether a com-
pany such as the appellant may ascertain the materials
cost of its sales by the Lifo method is a novel and important
one that is not free from difficulty. This is the first case
in which the question has arisen for decision in Canada.

Proper understanding of the issue requires knowledge of
the nature of the appellant’s business and its policy and
practice in selling its finished products and purchasing its
raw materials, an analysis of the accounting methods in
dispute and an examination of the conditions of their
respective applicability.

Evidence of the nature of the appellant’s business and its
business policy and practice was given by Mr. A. H. Quigley,
its president, Mr. J. S. Vanderploeg, its general manager,
and Mr. U. M. Evans, its works manager.
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The appellant was incorporated under the laws of Canada
in 1922 and has carried on its business at New Toronto
since that date. It operates what is called a primary mill
and produces copper and copper alloys in the form of
sheets, rods and tubes, which it sells to its customers for
further manufacture by them. Its produets, although
referred to ag its finished products, are, strictly, speaking,
only semi-finished. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of its
United States parent, the American Brass Company. The
parent, company operates in the United States through six
primary mills similar to the appellant’s and considers the
appellant as one of its branches in the same way as it
does its United States mills. They all operate in the same
manner and follow the same business policy and practice.

Over 80 per cent of the metal content of the appellant’s
finished products consists of copper and zine is its main
metal for its alloys. Copper and zinc between them account
for about 98 per cent of the metals used by it. Lead, nickel,
tin and a little silicum and magnesium make up the remain-
ing 2 per cent. With the exception of tin, which it imports,
the appellant purchases all its supplies of metals from
Canadian refineries which are independent of it. Indeed,
the appellant is dependent on them for its supplies.

It was asserted by the appellant’s witnesses that its
business is that of a primary producer of copper and copper
alloy products, that it does not trade in its raw metals and
deliberately avoids speculation in them and that it makes its
profit, if any, solely by processing its metals into its finished
products. The appellant’s objective was said to be achieved
by its policies of selling its finished products at sales prices
based on the replacement cost of their metal content to-
gether with a processing charge covering all the expenses
of manufacture, other than such replacement cost, and
an allowance for profit, changing the sales price of its
products whenever necessary in order to reflect any change
in the purchase price of their metal content and matching
its purchages of metals as closely as possible to its sales of
finished products so that the inflow of metals should equal
the outflow of the metal content of the produects. By
following these policies the appellant was not concerned
with the rise or fall in the price of its raw metals since
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that would be reflected either up or down in the sales price
of its finished products, and its profit from processing would
remain unaffected thereby, and it incurred no risk through
being left with an excessive closing inventory.

Prior to the war the appellant sold its produets for
delivery within 90 days at a firm price based on the price
of copper at the date of acceptance of the order because it
could purchase its requirements of copper from the refineries
for delivery within 90 days at the price prevailing at the
date of the order. Later, however, this became impossible
and the appellant followed the practice of making the sales
price of its products reflect the purchase price of their
metal content and determining its sales price at the date
of shipment of the produets according to the purchase price
of the metals at the date of such shipment. For example
while the price of copper was controlled at 11-5 cents per
pound and that of zine at 5.75 cents the appellant’s Base
Price List No. 1, dated July 16, 1945, was in effect showing
the sales price of its various products. But when the price
of copper was permitted to be increased to 16-625 cents
per pound on January 22, 1947, and that of zine to 10-25
cents the appellant immediately issued its Base Price List
No. 2, dated January 22, 1947, with its new sales prices.
And when the controls on metal prices were lifted on June
10, 1947, and copper rose to 215 cents per pound and zine
to 11 cents the appellant immediately issued its Base
Price List No. 3, dated June 10, 1947, reflecting the in-
creases in these prices. There was a further Bage Price
List No. 4, dated September 1, 1947, but this was not
related to any change in the prices of metals. There were
two exceptions to this general practice. The appellant did
a small amount of Government and export business on 2
firm price basis using the price list in force at the date of
acceptance of the order. The appellant also had some
customers who purchased its products on what was called a
commodity price based on a special processing charge and
the replacement cost of their metal content at the date
of shipment. Subject to these exceptions, the appellant’s
sales price for its products was based on the replacement
cost of their metal content and a processing charge to
cover all its other expenses of production and provide an
allowance for profit. While the factor in the sales price
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dependent upon the replacement cost of the metals was
subject to fluctuation as such cost went up or down there
was much less variation in the factor of the processing
charge. A change in the replacement cost of the metals
would, therefore, not affect its processing charge or the
profit from its business.

The close relationship between the terms on which the
appellant purchased its supplies of raw copper and those
on which it sold its finished produets appears from Exhibit
4. During the war years and until April 30, 1946, the
appellant purchased its copper at firm prices which were
controlled. From May 1, 1946, to November 30, 1946, it
purchased at the prices which were in effect on the first day
of the month in which the copper was shipped. From
December 1, 1946, to June 30, 1947, the prices paid were
those that prevailed on the date of shipment. Then from
July 1, 1947, the appellant purchased at prices for delivery
in the following month. The terms of sale corresponded
closely. During the war years and until May 31, 19486,
the appellant sold its products at prices from the price list
in effect on the date of acceptance of the order if accepted
for delivery within 90 days. From June 1, 1946, to February
28, 1947, the sale price was from the price list in effect on
the first day of the month in which the shipment was made.
And from March 1, 1947, to December 31, 1947, the sale
price was from the price list prevailing on the date of
shipment. There was thus only a very slight lag on two
occasions in the correspondence between the sale price of
the finished products and the replacement cost of their
metal content. The close correspondence between such
sales price and replacement cost and the slight lag in such
correspondence was illustrated in graph form by a series
of charts, Exhibits 12 to 20, prepared by Mr. D. L. Gordon,
the appellant’s auditor. Notwithstanding the lag referred
to I find that the appellant’s policy of having the sales
price of its finished products closely reflect the replacement
cost of their metal content was carried out in practice.

The appellant carried out its policy of matching its
purchases of metals to its sales of finished products by
monthly estimate and orders. During the first nine days
of each month it estimated from the orders already received
and those that might be expected the amount of the metal
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content of such orders, calculated the amount of scrap that
might be engendered in processing them and estimated the
amount of scrap that might be expected from its customers
and dealers. It was then able to determine the amount of
raw metals required to replace what was taken out of its
inventory for processing and its practice was to order for
delivery in the following month the amount of metals that
would be needed to make the inward flow of metals match
the outward flow of the metal content of the finished
products. This was a quantity matching with no regard
being had to the factor of price. There could not, of course,
be an exact matching for their might be delays in the
delivery of the incoming metals or in the shipment of the
finished produects or errors in proeessing that would engender
more scrap than had been calculated or in estimating the
amount of scrap that would be brought in by customers or
dealers or special circumstances, such as threatened strikes,
might dictate the desirability of purchasing metals in
advance of actual requirements and there might also be
some fluctuations in the amount of the orders that could
be filled from stock. But, apart from these factors, the
general objective and practice was to maintain the inven-
tory of metals and match the amount of metal coming in
with that required for the out-going production subject to
plus or minus adjustments according to the rise or fall in the
volume of production. There was a natural tendency on
the part of workmen to have somewhat more in the inven-
tory than was actually required but this was held within
close hands. The purchase price of the metals had nothing
to do with the quantity of the purchases.

It was also established that the appellant did not attempt
to use its raw materials in the order of their purchase or in
any particular order. The raw metals could be identified
up to the time they went into process but thereafter their
identity was lost. It was impossible to maintain identifica-
tion of the serap. And it was not possible to identify the
raw materials that had been used in processing a particular
order. As the raw metals came in they were stored in the
most convenient position and as they were required for
use in production they were taken from the most con-
venient source. The metals did not deteriorate with age
and it did not matter when they had come into the plant.
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One pound was as good as another. The appellant had no
policy of using first the metals that had been first purchased
or of using first those that had been last purchased. There
was no attempt to maintain or follow the physical flow
of the materials according to any particular order. Con-
venience of storage or source of use was the governing
consideration.

The rate of turnover of the appellant’s inventory was
slow. About 80 per cent of its processing was according to
its customers’ specifications, the balance of its orders being
filled from finished stock. The processing according to
specifications required exactness and made for slowness of
production. There was also a large amount of scrap
engendered in the course of processing. This was put at
30 per cent. The evidence indicated that the inventory
turned over three or four times a year. This was a slow rate.

It was also shown that the nature of the appellant’s
business was such that a large inventory of metals had to
be kept on hand. About 60 per cent of every sales dollar
represented the cost of the metal content of the finished
products. The business was not seasonal but steady. About
ten to twelve million pounds of metal were continuously
in process, and enough metal had to be kept on hand
to maintain production for from two and a half to four
months.

On the facts, I find that in 1947 the appellant maintained
a policy of having the sales price of its finished products
closely reflect the replacement cost of their metal content,
that it matched its purchases of metals to the metal content
of its finished products, that its business required a large
inventory and that the rate of turnover of its inventory
was slow.

The manner in which the appellant kept its inventory
accounts and ascertained the metals cost of its sales was
described and explained by Mr. A. R. MeGinn, its con-
troller, and Mr. D. B. Crowley, its assistant controller.
Mr. D. L. Gordon, the appellant’s auditor, also gave
evidence of its accounting methods and annual statements.

The appellant’s fiscal year coincided with the calendar
year and each year was regarded as a unit. It kept a
perpetual inventory account of its metals, in their raw
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state, in the course of process and in their finished con-
dition. This recorded the amounts of metal received and
the amounts taken out. The account was credited with the
amounts of the metal content of the finished produects only
when they were actually shipped out. The accuracy of
the perpetual inventory account was verified from time to
time by physical check. The appellant also kept a purchase
record showing the prices at which the metals had been
purchased. With these two accounts the cost of the metals
in the inventory at any given time could be determined.
At the end of each year the amount and the cost of the
inventory was ascertained. The manner in which the
appellant ascertained its metals cost of sales for the year
can be stated briefly. The opening inventory for the year
was carried at the same cost as that of the closing inventory
of the previous year. The purchases during the year at
the prices paid were added to the opening inventory and
from the total of this addition the amount of the closing
inventory at the same cost as that of the opening one was
deducted. The resultant figure was the metals cost of the
sales during the year as ascertained by the Lifo method.

The Lifo method was first used by the appellant in 1936
and has been used by it ever since. But this use was only
for its own corporate purpose of determining its income
position and extended only to copper and zine. The first
time that it filed its income tax and excess profits tax
returns on the Lifo method basis was in its return for
1946. In 1947 it extended the method to the ascertainment
of the cost of its lead and tin and in its return for that
year the cost of the copper, zine, lead and tin content of
its sales during the year was ascertained by the Lifo
method.

How the amount of the cost of sales was determined, so
far as it related to these four metals, was illustrated in
detail by Exhibit 7. I shall refer only to the figures for
copper. When the appellant began to use the Lifo method
in 1936 it started with an inventory of 6,500,000 pounds of
copper which it had purchased at 7:5 cents per pound,
making a total cost of $487,500. The exhibit then shows
the increments to this inventory in the years 1937, 1938,
1939, 1945, and 1946 in quantities and prices. For example,
in 1946 there was an increment of 2,936,468 pounds at 11-5
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cents per pound amounting to $337,693.82. At the end of
1946 there was an inventory of 15,021,710 pounds which
had cost a total of $1,439,867.78 at prices ranging from 7-5
cents to 11-5 cents per pound. This was the opening
inventory for 1947. The total purchases of copper in 1947
amounted to 63,268,555 pounds at an average price of
18-854 cents per pound amounting to $11,928,728.71. The
addition of these purchases to the opening inventory made
a total of 78,290,265 pounds at the price of $13,368,596.49.
From this amount the closing inventory for 1947 amounting
to 14,291,007 pounds at the price of $1,355,836.93 was
deducted. The resultant figure of 63,999,258 pounds at
$12,012,759.56 represented the amount of copper used in
the finished products sold in 1947 and its cost as ascertained
by the Lifo method. The exhibit showed that more copper
had been used in 1947 than had been purchased in that
year to the extent of 730,703 pounds. This amount was
regarded as having been withdrawn from the increment in
1946 and was priced at 11-5 cents per pound, that having
been the price paid in 1946. The copper cost of sales in
1947 was thus ascertained at $12,012,759.56. The zine,
lead and tin costs of sales were ascertained in a similar
manner.

The appellant carried forward its closing inventory of
metals into its balance sheet as an asset at $1,848,497.89
with the following notation of its valuation: “Metals—
raw, scrap, finished and in process at cost which with minor
exceptions is computed on a ‘last-in first-out’ basis”. This
was sufficient notification that the appellant kept its
accounts by the Lifo method. On this basis the closing
inventory was carried at the same price as the opening
one. Indeed, this was implicit in the Lifo method. Con-
sequently, the closing inventory for 1947 carried forward
the opening inventory of 1936, when the method was first
used, at the cost of such opening inventory and the cost
of the increments in the years since then.

The Department of National Revenue has always refused
to recognize the Lifo method of accounting and when the
appellant’s returns for 1946 and 1947 came in with the
metals cost of sales and the closing inventory computed
according to the Lifo method it proceeded to value the
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inventory on the traditional basis of cost or market which-
ever is lower. It put the prices of the metals in the in-
ventory at their most recent prices, its view being that the
metals most recently purchased were the ones that would
be on hand at the end of the year. The result was that
whereas the appellant had computed its closing inventory,
as indicated, at $1,848,497.89 the Department value it at
$3,696,646.06, an increase of $1,848,148.17 over the appel-
lant’s figures. There was a deduction of $236,391.74 in
respect of the previous year which left a difference of
$1,611,756.43. On the assessment for 1947 this amount was
added to the amount of taxable income reported by the
appellant and described in the notice of assessment, dated
December 6, 1948, as Inventory Adjustment. This is the
assessment against which the present appeal was brought.

There was nothing strange or unusual about the manner
in which the appellant carried on business or kept its
accounts. Mr. T. E. Beltfort, the manager of the Copper
and Brass Research Association in the United States, who
had a thorough knowledge of the brass industry, stated that
the appellant’s mill was a typical brass mill and that it was
run in exactly the same way as the brass mills in the United
States. It was the standard practice in the brass industry
in that country to price the finished products on the basis
of the replacement cost of their metal content and to keep
the inflow of metals in accordance with the outflow of the
metal content of the produets. The charts prepared by
Mr. Beltfort, Exhibits 5 and 6, show the close relationship
between the sales prices of the copper and brass procuects
and the purchase prices of the copper and brass. Mr. Belt-
fort also testified from his own knowledge that the Lifo
method of accounting for inventory and ascertaining the
materials cost of sales was in common use throughout the
brass industry in the United States and had been in such
common use for income tax purposes since the amendment,
to the Internal Revenue Code in 1938, regarding which
more will be said later.

When the appellant began to use the Lifo methed in
1936 it followed the practice of its parent company in the
United States and that of the brass industry generally in
that country. I have already mentioned that it did not use
the method in filing its tax returns prior to making its
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returns for 1946. One reason for this was the Department
refused to recognize the method and the appellant there-
fore, in making its tax returns adjusted its inventory
account from the Lifo basis on which they had been kept
to the Fifo basis required by the Department. During the
war years, when the prices of metals were controlled, it
was a matter of little consequence to the appellant whether
it made its returns on the Lifo basis or adjusted its accounts
to the Fifo basis to meet the views of the Department. But
when the time came for filing the returns for 1946 there was
a radical difference in the situation. The war was over
and the prices of metals had risen sharply as already stated,
first on January 22, 1947, and then on June 10, 1947, when
the controls were lifted. It now became important to raise
the issue. The decision to employ the Lifo method in its
returns for 1946 and 1947 was made by the appellant on
the recommendation of Mr. McGinn and with the approval
of Mr. Gordon and after consultation and correspondence
with the parent company and its auditor Mr. Peloubet.
The return for 1946 was made on June 18, 1947. This was
after the price increases referred to and there can be no
doubt that these increases greatly influenced the appellant’s
decision. The reasons for the decision were put in various
forms but they were all really the same. Mr. Quigley
said that in 1947 it became obvious that the appellant
should not pay taxes on an unrealized profit. Mr. Vander-
ploeg expressed the view that it was a matter of justice
to the appellant to have its tax computed by a method of
accounting that reflected its way of doing business rather
than on increased prices of metals that had not affected
the profits from its business. Mr. McGinn, who recom-
mended the filing of the returns on the Lifo basis, said
that early in January, 1947, he could see the distortion
that was going to take place in 1947 if the appellant’s
income should be calculated on the Fifo basis. He admitted
freely that while it did not matter prior to 1947 whether the
tax returns were on a Fifo or Lifo basis it did make a differ-
ence in 1947, The difference is a substantial one and a
large amount of tax is involved.

In his cross-examination of the appellant’s witnesses
counsel for the respondent sought to establish that the
appellant had filed its returns for 1947 on the Lifo basis
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in order to avoid the heavy tax to which it would be subject
if the Fifo method of accounting were applied and the
resulting so-called inventory profits were included in the
assessment as an item of taxable income. There can be no
doubt that the difference in tax incidence under the two
methods, which resulted from the sharp increases in the
prices of metals in January and June of 1947, was a major
factor in the appellant’s decision to make its return on the
Lifo basis, notwithstanding the Department’s refusal to
recognize the method. It is no answer to the appellant’s
contention that it did not raise the issue before. If the
Department’s refusal to recognize the method was wrong
it cannot become right merely because the appellant did
not dispute it previously. The issue is now squarely before
the Court and must be decided on the merits. What falls
to be determined in this case is whether the Lifo method
of accounting correctly reflects the appellant’s net taxable
income in 1947. If it does, then the appeal against the
Minister’s assessment must be allowed.

I now come to the evidence of the accounting experts
explaining the accounting methods in dispute and the
reasons that led to the formulation and adoption of the Lifo
method. The experts called for the appellant were Mr.
G. Richardson of the Canadian accounting firm of Clarkson,
Gordon and Company, Mr. M. Peloubet of the New York
accounting firm of Pogson, Peloubet and Company, Pro-
fessor J. K. Butters, an associate professor of business
administration at the Harvard School of Business Admin-
istration, and Mr. E. A. Kracke of the New York accounting
firm of Hagkin and Selves. In addition, several Canadian
accountants were called for their expression of opinion as
to the acceptability of the Lifo method and its applicability
to the appellant’s business. For the respondent, expert
evidence was given by Mr. W. F. Williams, the Director
General of Corporation Assessments in the Department of
National Revenue, and Mr. J. C. Thompson of the Inter-
national accounting firm of Peat, Marwick, Mitchel and
Company.

I was very favourably impressed with the careful and
able manner in which counsel for the parties prepared and
presented their respective contentions and with the con-
structive attitude shown by the accounting experts. The
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Court is indebted to counsel and the experts for their
exposition of the pros and cons of a new method of in-
ventory accounting. It was made clear that the accounting
profession is not a static one. Its leaders do not consider
that the principles of accounting are like the laws of the
Medes and Persians. They are not immutable. The pro-
fession is naturally and properly conservative in its attitude
towards new accounting methods and critical of them. But
it does not hesitate to accept and adopt a new method if it
stands the tests of criticism and correctly reflects the true
position of the business to which it is applied. The fact
that a method is new does not condemn it. It is the
objective of accountancy to record in figures the true facts
of what has happened in the period of business to which
the accounting relates. Accountants have freely recognized
that methods of accounting that were reasonably adequate
to record the truth when business was simple and prices
of commodities were stable may not necessarily be sound in
a world of complexity and price fluctuation. The result
has been that traditional positions have been abandoned
and new ones taken up when changing conditions made
such shifts necessary in the interests of true accounting.
One important difference in concepts of accounting that has
developed in recent years was stressed by Mr. Kracke and
Mr. Richardson. Accountants are no longer primarily
concerned with the annual balance sheet of assets and
liabilities. This was originally of prime importance par-
ticularly to the banker who was interested in the amount
of eapital security behind his loans. He was concerned
with the amount for which the company could be liquidated
for this was the measure of the credit that might safely be
extended to it. Now the greater emphasis is put on the
annual profit and loss statement. This has become the
dominating accounting statement. Accountants now look
at a company’s position from the point of view of its being
a going concern and are more anxious to portray its income
position than to set out its liquidation possibilities.

This shift in emphasis from the balance sheet to the
profit and loss statement is reflected in a difference of
attitude towards inventory accounting. The modern
attitude is shown in a bulletin on Inventory Pricing issued
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by the Committee on Accounting Procedure of the Ameri-
can Institute of Accountants in July, 1947, which will be
referred to as Bulletin No. 29. The portion of this bulletin
consisting of the introduction, the first four statements and
the discussion thereof was put in for the appellant as
Exhibit 29. Statement 1 defines the term “inventory” as
follows:

The term “inventory” is used herein to designate the aggregate of
those items of tangible personal property which (1) are held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, (2) are in the process of production
for such sale, or (3) are to be currently consumed in the production of
goods or services to be available for sale.

I adopt this definition as applicable to the appellant’s
stock of goods. Its inventory embraces its finished products
in stock, its work in process of production and its raw
materials in their various forms, such as the raw metals
purchased from the refineries, the scrap engendered in the
course of processing and the scrap purchased from customers
and dealers. Statement 2 sets out what is now the accepted
objective of accounting for inventories in the following
terms:

A major objective of accounting for inventories is the proper
determination of income through the process of matching appropriate
costs against revenues.

And Statement 3 sets out that the primary basis of
accounting for inventories is cost. It reads as follows:

The primary basis of accounting for inventories is cost, which has been
defined generally as the price paid or consideration given to acquire an
asset. As applied to inventories, cost means in principle the sum of the
applicable expenditures and charges directly or evidently incurred in
bringing an article to its existing condition and location.

The net annual income of a company like the appellant
is the difference between its gross income and the costs
and expenses related thereto. It is the purpose of the
annual statement of profit or loss to show this difference.
There is no difficulty in ascertaining its gross income. That
is the total amount of its sales during the year and what-
ever other incoming revenue it had. It is in the ascertain-
ment of the related costs and expenses properly chargeable
against the gross income from sales that the difficulty arises.
Mr. Richardson emphasized that it is always necessary to
allocate the costs and expenses incurred during a year as
between those properly chargeable against the gross income
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from sales for the year and those to be charged against
the gross income from sales for a future period. In account-
ing terminology the former portion is styled cost of sales
for the year and the balance carried forward is called the
closing inventory. This becomes the opening inventory
of the following year. Thus each year a company like the
appellant starts with its opening inventory and makes pur-
chases of raw materials during the year. The accountant
who is concerned with ascertaining the company’s income
position for the year cannot simply charge all the purchases
against the sales regardless of their quantity. He must
pay attention to the relationship between the quantity of
finished products sold and the inventory and is faced with
the problem of ascertaining what portion of the opening
inventory and purchases made during the year is properly
chargeable against the gross income from sales for the year
as part of the cost of such sales and what should be carried
forward into the closing inventory to be charged against
the sales for a future period. The cost of sales for the year
must be aseertained for the purpose of determining the
company’s income position. It is thus of the utmost
importance to ascertain what is the appropriate cost of sales.
The balance carried forward as the closing inventory is
eliminated from the costs incurred during the year and
prior thereto and treated as an asset in the company’s
balance sheet, although its true nature, if the company
is looked upon as a going concern, is that of a residue of
unabsorbed costs of sales to be charged against the sales
for a future period. Under this concept of accounting
the determination of the amount of the closing inventory
and the value to be placed on it is a complement of the
ascertainment of the cost of sales for the year and the
determination of the company’s income position. The
cost, of sales is first to be ascertained and the valuation of
the closing inventory follows.

The appropriate cost of sales for the year may be
determined, according to the experts, under one of several
acceptable methods of accounting for inventories, depend-
ing upon the circumstances of the case. There was general
agreement that the method to be used is that which will
most nearly accurately reflect the true income position.
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This view, which is now generally taken, was expressed in
Statement 4 of Bulletin No. 29 as follows:

Cost for inventory purposes may be determined under any one of
several assumptions as to the flow of cost factors (such as “first-in first-out”,
“gverage”, and “last-in first-out”); the major objective in selecting a
method should be to choose the one which under the circumstances, most
clearly reflects periodic income.

In addition to the three methods mentioned in Statement
4, Mr. Richardson described another method which he called
the method of specific identification. Under this method
the cost of specific items is established by physical identifi-
cation of them. It is useful in a limited number of cases
and necessary in some. It is, as Mr. Kracke pointed out,
the proper system to employ in jewellers’ shops where
special precious stones are sold, or by art or antique dealers,
where the cost of sales can be determined by reference to
the sum paid for the specific article. But the method is
inapplicable in cases where the goods in the inventory
have similar characteristics and utility. There, in many
cases, physical identification is impossible as, for example,
in piles of serap or coal, or in industries where the raw
materials lose their identity in the process of production.
In other cases, physical identification would be possible
only with a great deal of effort of accounting or handling.
Moreover, no useful purpose would be served in such cases
by maintaining the identity of the goods. On the contrary,
the method lends itself to manipulation or variations in
profit depending on which item is selected. The result has
been that the method of specific identification has been
abandoned except in the cases where it is obviously
applicable.

Mr. Richardson explained the differences in the three
methods mentioned in Statement 4 but before doing so
referred to the view that there is a presumption that the
physical movement of goods out of an inventory will occur
in the order in which they were received into it on the
assumption that a prudent business man will move his
oldest stock first. Historically, this was the common
assumption and it is sound in certain cases as, for example,
where the goods in the inventory are subject to physical
deterioration or style changes. But there is no foundation
for it in industries where the goods are not so subject.
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There the physical movement of goods will depend upon
factors of convenience rather than the order in which they
were received. For example, in a pile of ingots the item
first received into stock will not be the item first removed
for processing if it is at the bottom of the pile. Nor would
a paper mill turn over its wood pile to obtain the logs at
the bottom. Nor is there any presumption of a last-in first-
out physical movement of goods. Indeed, in the three
methods referred to there are no presumptions of physical
flow of the goods in any particular order. In their place
there are assumptions of a flow of cost factors.

Under the first-in first-out method, known as Fifo, the
cost of the items of goods first rec